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Letter to HtC
sHareHoLders

dear shareholders,
it is my great pleasure to witness the sustained growth and
market success of HtC Corporation with each and every one of
our investors.

s

ustained expansion in overall business operations and
HtC's brand development crowned a year of exceptional
growth at HtC. We shipped 24.67 million smartphones in

2010 – the ﬁrst time in our history where shipment broke through

20 million. this more than doubles our 2009 shipment number
and gives HtC a year-on-year growth rate much higher than the
sector average. this stellar performance reﬂects not only strong
market growth, but also dedication by all HtC employees and
strong recognition from our customers and consumers.

Key accomplishments
innovative and agile, HtC continues to pioneer the mobile
experience. 2010 was no exception. this year saw the launch of
many new models destined to become HtC "classics". British
technology magazine t3 named the new HtC
desire their "phone of the year". Usbased technology news website Cnet.com
picked the HtC evo 4G (the world's ﬁrst
3G/4G android phone) as its "Best phone
of Ctia 2010". our ﬂagship model for 2010,
the HtC desire Hd, went further still, setting

Chairman

a new benchmark for other smartphones
to follow. desire Hd packs a Qualcomm 1GHz
processor, generous 4.3" LCd screen, dolby mobile
and srs virtual sound in a sleek aluminum unibody delivering an exhilarating browsing experience and optimal
enjoyment of outstanding multimedia content. also in
2010, we welcomed the release of Windows phone 7
by launching the world's ﬁrst ﬁve Windows phone 7
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smartphones. the lineup included the HtC 7 surround,

in addition, HtC introduced its brand in China

excitement delivered by the plethora of mobile

HtC 7 mozart, HtC 7 trophy, HtC 7 pro and HtC Hd7.

in 2010 and expanded positions in emerging

digital applications available such as location

markets such as China and southeast asia.

based services, multimedia entertainment, social

HtC sense is HtC's self-developed user experience that

HtC continues to beef up its product portfolio

networking services, and e-books continue to

integrates a suite of multimedia and location based

to address diversiﬁed market demand. recent

push smartphones to the fore of mobile phone

services. the exciting new app "Locations" lets users

examples include launches of HtC flyer – HtC's

purchase choices and increase penetration of

preload maps into their HtC devices for "no wait"

ﬁrst tablet pC, HtC sensation – our premium

smartphones in the mobile phone market.

navigation assistance. HtCsense.com, launched in 2010,

multimedia super phone, HtC evo 3d – our ﬁrst

is a new series of connected services that allows HtC

"glasses-free" 3d phone, and HtC salsa and HtC

Work continues on HtC's new taipei

users to manage device information and settings such

ChaCha – two smartphone models optimized for

Headquarters building in the taipei suburb of

as contacts, text messages and call history remotely

mobile social networking. the diverse functions

Xindian. HtC further expanded its taoyuan

through a mobile phone or personal computer.

and features of HtC products put users in charge

headquarters and Kangqiao production facility

and will continue to electrify and expand the

in shanghai for future growth. in 2010, HtC

mobile experience.

acquired the successful software customization

the global "Quietly Brilliant" campaign has steadily

house, abaxia, to broaden and deepen our

expanded brand recognition of HtC and its products.
the 2009 "yoU" campaign highlighted HtC's customercentered approach to business. this year's "Here's
an idea" campaign further highlighted the unique
user experience delivered by HtC innovation.
increased marketing at HtC sales outlets
worldwide (e.g., HtC phone and HtC
sense "test drive" promotions) have
further solidiﬁed the HtC brand.
By the close of 2010, global
recognition of the HtC
brand had risen to 50% – an
accomplishment that led t3
magazine to proclaim HtC
its "tech Brand of the year".
all these highlight our
achievements in developing

Ceo & president

and promoting the HtC

financial performance
HtC's growth model has kept the company highly
proﬁtable as it expands. Consolidated revenues
rose 93% during 2010, reaching a historic high
of nt$278.8 billion. Consolidated gross margin
was 30.1% and consolidated operating expense
ratio was 14.3%. Consolidated operating margin
reached 15.8%. these numbers attest to our
eﬀorts in enhancing operational eﬃciency. net
income after tax was nt$39.5 billion, an nt$16.9
billion increase over 2009. net margin (after tax)

capability in software development and
integrated cloud computing capabilities to oﬀer
a comprehensive range of connected services.
HtC is meeting intense competition head-on
with superior innovation and a brand that ﬁts
snugly with modern consumer lifestyles and
desires. We listen closely to our markets to reﬁne
products and services. in building an exceptional
reputation for the HtC brand, we are expanding
and deepening our abilities to share the fruits
of our accomplishments with HtC shareholders,
customers, and employees.

was 14.2%, and earnings per share (eps) was
nt$48.49.
HtC Corporation

the future
Chairman

brand in 2010.

Cher Wang

HtC anticipates continued growth in the
smartphone sector. the convenience and
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HtC - a GLoBaL
Leader in
smartpHone
innovation
HTC Corporation, founded in May 1997, leads
the mobile phone industry in innovation
and design. "Quietly Brilliant" encapsulates
HTC's commitment to developing exceptional
products and technologies. At HTC, we
believe that the best things in life should be
experienced, not explained. This is the core
value of HTC as a corporate, innovator and
business partner.

t

he communication needs and expectations of mobile
phone users are at the heart of HtC's business
model. We create mobile phones attuned to the
way our users live, work and play. HtC unites creativity
and unmatched technical expertise to bring people closer
together, infuse fun into life, and improve how we all
communicate and share information. these are the ideas
shaping HtC's mobile phone design today; and they will
continue to infuse brand-driven ideals and innovative new
design concepts into our products long into the future.
HtC holds the attention of global business and technology
media. Bloomberg BusinessWeek, fast Company and mit's
technology review put HtC on their respective lists of
globe's 50 most innovative companies in 2010. newsweek
further named HtC one of the top 10 innovative companies
in 2010. at the 2011 mobile World Congress, HtC overcame
stiﬀ competition from the likes of apple and samsung to
earn the event's coveted "device manufacturer of
the year" award.
HtC has been impassioned from the
start about innovation and the potential
of smartphones to radically improve
the way people live, work and play.
acting on this passion, HtC today
oﬀers a continuously updated
catalogue of innovative wireless
communications products.
Uniquely tailored to meet and
exceed user expectations, HtC
phones are marketed and sold
through telecom companies
and retail distributors across
europe, america and asia.

12
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important strategic partner of microsoft Corporation
and created the solid foundation on which the
HtC-microsoft partnership continues to grow and
ﬂourish. the Compaq ipaQ, manufactured by HtC for
Compaq Computer met with huge market success
when launched in 2000 and signaled the beginning
of HtC growth and success in the pda segment.
> Smart Phones: Leader of the Pack
HtC's second major realignment came in 1999, when
a decision was made to take the company rapidly
into the telecommunications arena. Current HtC
president peter Chou saw the increasingly important
role that mobile telecommunication products
would play in daily life and predicted (accurately)
that the Gsm standard would spread from europe
to dominate U.s. and Japanese markets. peter
Chou subsequently arranged visits to europe's
largest telecommunications companies to discuss
an innovative new approach for the industry – the
development of "customized" devices for the wireless
communication market. in 2002, HtC broke new
ground for the industry by launching two new mobile
wireless devices, the o2 Xda and orange spv in

14

acquisition of leading mobile software developer abaxia
in 2010 further strengthens HtC's software development
capabilities allowing it to innovate at an even faster
pace. HtC also has investment stakes in China-based
mobile security solutions provider netQin and shanghai
Gsuo information technology. early 2011 saw HtC invest
in online video company saﬀron digital, online gaming
company onLive, and China-based mobile ﬁnancial
solutions provider shanghai f-road Commerce service.
technologies, services and applications from these and
other investments ensure that HtC can deliver the latest
in mobile convenience and multimedia entertainment.

HTC has undergone three revolutionary changes since
it was founded.

dedication, talented employees and strong grasp
of technologies, products and market trends have
underpinned HtC's success as a leading provider of
world-class wireless telecommunication products.
in the short term, HtC will launch exciting android
and Windows mobile devices with enhanced product
functionality and competitiveness. We will also continue
to strengthen HtC's brand value and recognition as
well as continue streamlining business operations to
optimize cost structures. Looking further ahead, HtC
will focus on expanding global market opportunities,
cooperate with industry leaders and major telecom

> Professional PDA Designer: Innovative R&D and
Technologies
soon after beginning operations in 1997, HtC was
authorized to develop products using Windows
Ce, the newly launched microsoft operating system
designed speciﬁcally for consumer electronic
products. then president (now Board director) Ht
Cho and then-vice president (now Chief executive
oﬃcer) peter Chou brought together HtC's ﬁrst
r&d team and developed the world's ﬁrst handheld
personal data assistant (pda) to run on Windows
Ce. this positive ﬁrst step established HtC as an

2 0 1 0

H tC

a n n Ua L

r e p o r t

partnership, respectively, with o2 (UK) and orange
(france). the products, designed around microsoft's
latest operating system, helped telecommunication
service providers boost average revenue per user
(arpU) and earned worldwide attention.
HtC - the ﬁrst to integrate internet, entertainment,
video and personal assistant functions into a mobile
phone with a large dimension, high resolution and
full color display panel - ushered in a new era in
the history of the mobile phone. it was at this point
that HtC began to develop and test products in
partnership with customers and to tailor products
based on telecommunications services provided by its
customers. this marks the beginning of HtC's eﬀorts
in building a global sales and service network and
entrance into the global telecommunications market.
> Global HTC Brand: Strategic Rollout and Development
Launch of the HtC brand globally in may 2007
committed the company formally to long-term global
brand development. HtC subsequently launched HtC
touch, placing HtC in the front and center of growing
worldwide excitement over touch screen smart

service providers to give users even better products
and services, and further enhance global operations
management to segue HtC's rise as the world's number
one smartphone brand.
HtC is listed on the taiwan stock exchange (tWse)
under the ticker number 2498.

Company History
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phones. in June 2009, HtC released the all-new user
interface, HtC sense, delivering simpler and much
more intuitive user experience. HtC then proceeded
to introduce its competitive new lineup to the world
through its global "Quietly Brilliant" and "yoU"
advertising campaigns. HtC also began sponsoring
the tour de france and Wallpaper annual design
awards. each step along the way has been carefully
considered to raise HtC brand awareness in all key
markets.
more than a new frontrunner in smartphone
technology and products, HtC is now an important
player in global telecommunications with an
increasing voice in the industry's future. in 2010,
HtC earned t3 magazine's "tech Brand of the
year" award and recognition from the 2011 mobile
World Congress as the "device manufacturer of the
year". recognitions like these reﬂect widespread
market enthusiasm for HtC products and growing
recognition of the HtC brand.

16
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HtC maintains a bullish outlook on future growth
prospects in the smartphone sector. migration from
traditional mobile phones to smartphones is expected
to remain a deﬁning market trend. HtC's user-centric
design approach and technological proﬁciencies
make it a primary beneﬁciary of this trend.

products
HtC currently focuses on the design, development and
production of handheld wireless telecommunications
devices based on Windows mobile, android and Brew
operating systems. Core competencies include product
design, development of operating systems, middleware,
user interface and software applications. in addition to
product r&d, production and brand marketing, HtC
also provides relevant technical and after-sales service
support for all of its products.
HtC's relentless pursuit of innovation is reﬂected in
its regularly updated product lineup. new models

launched during 2010 include HtC desire, HtC evo
4G, HtC droid incredible and HtC Wildﬁre. each was
greeted with high anticipation and strong consumer
demand. HtC desire Hd, the year's ﬂagship product,
features HtC sense augmented by HtCsense.com,
a new suite of connected services geared to making
smartphones even more accessible and user friendly.
desire Hd's generous 4.3" screen, dolby mobile and
srs surround sound deliver crystal clear viewing
and fast data transfer speeds. HtC models built on
microsoft's new Windows phone 7 platform, including
the HtC 7 surround, HtC 7 mozart, HtC 7 trophy, HtC
7 pro and HtC Hd7, were also launched in 2010 to meet
consumers' diversiﬁed demand.
HtC launched three brand new 4G smartphones at
the 2011 Consumer electronics show (Ces). the HtC
evo shift 4G, HtC thunderBolt and HtC inspire 4G
further solidify HtC's leadership in the mobile 4G
arena. HtC combined ultra-fast 4G transfer rates with
exceptional HtC sense functionality to truly bring the

power of broadband wireless to life. HtC announced
the company's ﬁrst tablet, the HtC flyer, at the 2011
mobile World Conference. With redesigned HtC sense
for tablet, HtC flyer integrates touch and handwriting
functions and supports video downloads with HtC
Watch. through working with onLive, HtC flyer will
become the world's ﬁrst tablet featured with cloudbased mobile gaming services. this breakthrough
product set the stage for HtC to pursue new business
opportunities in the future.
through innovation, HtC seeks to make mobile
products more intuitive and easier to use. each
potential innovation is tested using extensive customer
research to ensure each change represents a step
in the right direction and that every HtC encounter
is enlivening and memorable. this is HtC's "Quietly
Brilliant" promise.

Company profil e
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Board of directors and
supervisors
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Cher Wang

> Chairman
> Chairman of the Compensation
Committee

Ht Cho

> director
> member of the Compensation
Committee

Wen-Chi Chen

> director

tan Ho-Chen

> director

Chen-Kuo Lin

> independent director
> member of the Compensation
Committee
> independent director

Josef felder
SUPERVISORS
shao-Lun Lee

> supervisor on behalf of Way-Chih
investment Co., Ltd.

Caleb ou-yang

> supervisor

management team
Name

Position

peter Chou

Chief executive oﬃcer &
president

fred Liu

Corporate senior executive
vice president and president of
engineering and operations

Winston yung

Chief financial oﬃcer

matthew vincent Costello

Chief operating oﬃcer

david Chen

Chief engineering oﬃcer

John Wang

Chief marketing oﬃcer

Kouji a. Kodera

Chief product oﬃcer

ronald allen Louks

Chief strategy oﬃcer

eric Chou

Chief information oﬃcer

Grace Lei

General Counsel

Cs Wang

vice president

Georges Boulloy

vice president

Gregory fisher

vice president

Lotus Chen

vice president

simon Hsieh

vice president

simon Lin

vice president

WH Liu

vice president

Jim Lin

associate vice president

ralph Wang

associate vice president

steve Wang

associate vice president

thomas Chien

associate vice president

James Chen

associate vice president

edward Wang

associate vice president

REGIONAL HEADS

18

Jason mackenzie

president-north america & Latin
america

florian seiche

president -emea region

Jack tong

vice president, apaC

ray yam

vice president, Head of China
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organization

organization functions
> Global Marketing
responsible for global corporate image;
conduct pr and marketing activities; conduct
industry research and implement corporate

AGM

marketing strategies
> Global Sales

Board

responsible for product sales, new customer
development, customer relations, and customer

Internal Audit

service
> Innovation Center

Chairman

Conduct r&d work related to new technologies,
potential future products and applications;
provide results/ﬁndings to other r&d

CEO & President

departments for further development
> Global Product
Conduct research on market trends; develop
Legal

Talent Management

Finance & Accounting

President of
Engineering & Operations

Global Strategy

Global Product

Innovation Center

Global Sales

Global Marketing

and manage product portfolio; deﬁne product
development strategies
> Global Strategy
analyze market trends, competitive landscape
and cutting edge technologies
> R & D Center
responsible for r&d and fostering a research
culture within the company
> Global Operation
manage global production capacities, plant

Global Operation

R & D Center

expansion, production and quality control;
coordinate delivery schedules; manage global
after-sales service to ensure HtC products
meet customer demand / expectations
> Procurement & Supply Chain Management

Procurement & Supply
Chain Management

Information
Technology

Manufacturing
Operation Center

Customer Service &
Quality Assurance

responsible for purchasing (quantity / price /
delivery) and control of materials, components

> Information Technology
responsible for it planning, security
and maintenance, disaster recovery and
assessment/implementation of work process
computerization
> Manufacturing Operation Center
responsible for manufacturing and production
capacity management
> Customer Service & Quality Assurance
responsible for quality control and global aftersales service to ensure HtC products meet
customer demand / expectations
> Internal Audit
audit eﬀectiveness of internal systems
and controls; assess accuracy of ﬁnancial
information and reports
> Finance & Accounting
responsible for corporate governance,
investor relations, global tax planning, cash
management, investment planning, risk
management, shareholder services and
business and cost analyses
> Talent Management
Handle corporate human resources
development and administration; promote
HtC corporate culture and employee beneﬁt
programs; conduct organizational and human
resource planning to support corporate
development
> Legal
responsible for all HtC contracts, trademarks,
patents, intellectual properties, lawsuits and
other legal aﬀairs

and ﬁnished products to meet quality and
delivery requirements

20
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Worldwide oﬃce Locations

Human resources

HtC is headquartered in taiwan. sales and service
centers in europe, the americas and asia ensure our
ability to service clients and enhance relationships
with consumers. HtC maintains a presence in all
key markets, including the United states, the United
Kingdom, Germany, france, China, Japan, Korea, italy,
the netherlands, Belgium, Greece, spain, poland,
denmark, russia, singapore, thailand, the philippines,
indonesia, india, malaysia, australia, the United arab
emirates (Uae) and Brazil.

employees represent one of HtC's most valuable
assets. the company has in recent years actively
recruited outstanding talent into its ranks – particularly
in the areas of product design, user interface, brand
promotion, and sales and marketing. While bringing
on professionals from europe and the americas, we
have also invested signiﬁcant resources into making
the work environment at HtC diverse, challenging,
and encouraging. as of the close of march 2011, HtC
employed 12,943 staﬀ worldwide. 22.9% of all HtC
managerial positions are held by 218 non-taiwanese
managers. non-taiwanese managerial and technical
staﬀ ﬁlled 13.5% of HtC managerial and technical
positions. Women held 16.2 % of HtC's 951 managerial
positions.

Key HTC operation centers include:

> Headquarters
no. 23, Xinghua road,
taoyuan City, taoyuan County, taiwan, r.o.C.
tel:+886-3-3753252
fax:+886-3-3753251

> Taipei R&D Center
1f, no. 6-3, Baoqiang road, Xindian district, new
taipei City 231, taiwan, r.o.C.
tel:+886-2-89124138

statistics related to the structure
of human resources at HtC
(excluding outsourced labor)

> Employees by Position Type

fax:+886-2-89124137

> HTC Europe Co., Ltd.
7th floor, thames Central Hatﬁeld road, slough
sL1 1Qe, United Kingdom
tel:+44(0)1753-218960
fax:+44(0)1753-218961/62

management
specialists
administrators
technical staﬀ
total

mar. 31, 2011 dec. 31, 2010 dec. 31, 2009
951
874
563
3,265
2,978
2,732
967
931
626
7,760
7,792
4,328
12,943
12,575
8,249

> Gender, Average Age and Average Years of Service
> HTC America, Inc.

mar. 31, 2011 dec. 31, 2010 dec. 31, 2009
male
7,231
7,214
4,445
female
5,712
5,361
3,804
average age
29.81
29.92
29.84
average years of service 2.43
2.22
2.97

13920 se eastgate Way, suite 400
Bellevue, Wa 98005, Usa
tel:+1-425-861-9174
fax:+1-425-861-1715

> HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd.
no. 1000, Xinmiao village, Kangqiao town, pudong
new area, shanghai, China
tel:+86-21-6818-7999
fax:+86-21-6818-7900
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> Employees' Highest Level of Academic Achievement
mar. 31, 2011 dec. 31, 2010 dec. 31, 2009
ph.d.
64
67
57
master's
2,393
2,195
1,815
Bachelor's
3,882
3,912
2,225
technical / vocational
1,129
1,259
781
other
5,475
5,142
3,371

Company profil e
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indUstry overvieW
The wireless telecommunications sector
is in the midst of tremendous growth.
In response, mobile phone makers,
telecom service providers and software
developers have introduced countless
products and services that aim to
enhance and further popularize the
mobile internet.

m

obile phones are now digital music players,

web browsers, e-mail portals, high-speed
internet devices and Gps navigation tools.

they are an indispensible personal entertainment and
work platform. international research ﬁrm Gartner
reported that smartphone penetration rose from
14.2% in 2009 to 18.6% in 2010. Growth is expected to
continue for years to come.
so much functionality in the palm of your hand would
not have been possible without the coordinated
eﬀort of multiple industries and countless companies.
Upstream smartphone suppliers include hardware
companies - experts in producing chips, panels and
batteries, among others, as well as software developers
that write operating systems, applications and other
programs. the quality of each input impacts directly
on ﬁnal product quality and indelibly aﬀects the user
experience. Companies like HtC - the middle link in
the chain of production - leverage technical expertise
to integrate software and hardware into a variety of
smartphone products tailored to the needs of diﬀerent
market segments. products then reach consumers
through downstream telecom service providers and
retail channels.
data-centric 3G/4G wireless communication technology
has now superseded previous voice-centric 2G
standards. the move to 4G is particularly evident in the
United states, as Us telecom providers seek to further
expand mobile multimedia services. for their part,
mobile phone makers continue to beef up products with
new features such as 1GHz processors, large screens,
enhanced resolution, intuitive touch interfaces, and an

26
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expanding universe of mobile content and services.

between hardware, aesthetics and user experience

capacity from our suppliers, HtC also regularly

support suppliers to raise production eﬃciencies and

Consumer demand for smartphones is fueling rapid

in place of the prevalent industry focus on hardware

negotiates to reduce supply costs. during 2010, HtC

lower costs to enhance mutual competitiveness.

business growth. Globally, smartphone sales topped

speciﬁcations. as such, HtC delivers a holistic user

managed to obtain signiﬁcant cost reductions on

300 million units in 2010 (idC estimate) – an impressive

experience to its users. HtC is also a 4G leader. our

medium and small panels despite tight supply situation.

74% rise over 2009.

launch of the world's ﬁrst Wimax android and Lte

the HtC supply chain is considered generally strong

market analysis

android mobile phones once again conﬁrms HtC's

and stable.

exceptionally positive prospects for the smartphone

an early leader in Windows mobile, HtC has expanded
aggressively into the android platform to take full

leadership in the smartphone industry.

Continued growth in worldwide mobile phone deliveries

advantage of rising demand for mobile digital services.

Led by rising demand, capacity utilization of upstream

during 2011 is expected to lead to tight supplies of

HtC launched the world's ﬁrst android mobile phone

components / parts suppliers started to increase from

upstream components. HtC will continue to demand

in 2008. the company has also wholly transformed the

the start of the 3rd quarter of 2010. shortages of certain

adequate capacity commitments from suppliers to

mobile phone design paradigm - demanding harmony

items were evident. apart from securing adequate

ensure on-time delivery of components. HtC will also

sector reﬂect rising consumer utilization of mobile
internet. Beyond traditional phone functions,
smartphones allow users to manage online social
networking, handle e-mails, access the internet and
tap into a variety of mobile applications. smartphone
functions touch on nearly every facet of modern life.
market growth continues to attract business attention
as well as new competitors eager to proﬁt from new
opportunities.
principal smartphone operating systems include
symbian, android, ios, Blackberry and Windows
mobile. symbian remains the dominant player, although
its market share has been slipping. android and ios,
both commercially available for less than ﬁve years,
have earned loyal followings and achieved exceptional
market share growth on the strength of their extensive
software app oﬀerings. android's 22.7% of worldwide
smartphone sales in 2010 (Gartner estimate) gives the
android os a market share second only to symbian.
HtC is the world's leading manufacturer of both
android and Windows mobile smartphones. its leading
r&d, innovation and operations are further enhanced
by its many long-term strategic partnerships with
industry leaders that give HtC an active role in shaping
industry trends. Close cooperation with major telecom
service providers around the globe keeps HtC plugged
in to consumer preferences and emerging needs. HtC
shipped 24.67 million units and supplied 8% of the
global smartphone market in 2010. We rank amongst
the world's top 5 manufacturers of smartphones and
top 10 manufacturers of mobile phones. Going forward,
HtC will continue to leverage innovation and expertise
to satisfy diverse consumer needs and further bolster
HtC's brand awareness and value.

28
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Business scope
smartphones based on android, Windows mobile
and Brew operating systems represent HtC's core
product oﬀering. the HtC touch, HtC Hero and HtC
desire series epitomize HtC product leadership. after
its 2006 brand launch, HtC focused on sales through
telecommunication service providers and retail channel
partners in europe, the americas and asia. this focus
has since gradually expanded to include emerging
smartphone markets in the middle east, Central and
south america and russia.
early emphasis on research and development has been
bolstered through the years by strategic partnerships
with microsoft, Google and Qualcomm. HtC has
consistently developed and launched groundbreaking
new product models. We help telecom service
providers raise their average revenues per user (arpU)
by creating product designs and features tailored to
ﬁt the way their customers live, work and play. Global
sales and after-sales service networks support and
extend the market success of each new HtC model in
order to fulﬁll its brand promise to both consumers and
shareholders.
the americas and europe represented the main focus
of HtC's business development work during 2010. Half
of HtC sales for the year went to north america (50.6%),
followed by europe (32.3%) and asia & other regions
(17.1%). a doubling of revenues in both north america
and europe in 2010 evinced already strong acceptance
of the HtC brand in these key markets. future eﬀorts
will continue to focus on developing products that ﬁt
ever more closely into users' daily lives and win over
increasing numbers of consumers to smartphone fun
and convenience.

Europe
NT$90.1 billion

32.3%

North America
NT$141.0 billion

50.6%
Asia & ROW
NT$47.7 billion

17.1%
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analysis of Business results
2010 marked a year of strong growth for HtC. Unit sales
and proﬁt ﬁgures hit new highs quarter after quarter.
HtC sold 24.67 million units in 2010 – more than double
the number sold in 2009. net proﬁts after tax for the
year reached ntd39.5 billion to set a new all-time
record.
2010's remarkable growth in smartphone sales
beneﬁted from strong consumer demand worldwide.
dedicated to making products that ﬁt the way users
live, work and play, HtC continued to launch a new
stream of ﬂagship products, including HtC desire, HtC
droid incredible, HtC evo 4G and HtC Wildﬁre, which
sparked consumer enthusiasm. Unit sales of many of
these models are in the multiple millions, giving rise to
HtC's industry-leading operational performance. Having
long been known to be strong in the middle to high-end
market segments, HtC extended its product portfolio to
the low to mid-end segment in 2010. the mid-tier HtC
Wildﬁre achieved impressive results during the year
through its powerful combination of social networking
functions and attractive mid-range price point. HtC
Wildﬁre in particular is selling very well in the youth and
young adult market segments.
HtC has sustained its average sales price (asp)
while rapidly expanding business volumes through a
successful product portfolio strategy. in Us dollar terms,
HtC's 2010 asp of Us$350 was a slight 0.6% below
asp of Us$352 the year before. in nt dollar terms, the
5.4% drop in asp for the year to nt$11,036 reﬂected
weakness in the Us-to-nt dollar exchange rate.

2009

2010

25,000

24,671
20,000

15,000

10,000

11,661

11,711

11,036

5,000

0

Volume (K)

ASP (NT$)

2008

HtC continues to streamline operations and optimize

to nt$21.8 billion, twice the amount spent during the

cost structures. the slight 1.8 percentage point decline

previous year. Consolidated operating costs for the

in our gross proﬁt margin to 30.1% was due primarily

year totaled nt$39.7 billion. Beneﬁting from economies

45

to exchange rate volatility, product mix changes and

of scale, HtC's consolidated operating expense ratio

40

market competition. in terms of operating expenses, we

declined by 0.6 percentage points for the year to

30

continue to devote signiﬁcant funds to building value

14.3%, which boosted consolidated operating proﬁt

25

and recognition for the HtC brand and to strengthening

margin (opm) to 15.8%. earnings per share (eps) saw a

point-of-sale marketing in our major markets. HtC's

robust leap to nt$48.49, up signiﬁcantly from 2009's

consolidated selling and marketing expense in 2010 rose

nt$28.71.

2009

2010
48.49

50

35

20
15

37.97
33.5

31.9

30.1
28.71
19.9

17.0

15.8

10
5
0

Gross Margin (%) Operating Margin (%)
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progress in research &
development

understanding of industry and consumer trends.
nowhere is this more apparent than in the android and
Windows mobile device markets. in 2010, leadership

since its inception, HtC has invested consistently
to solidify in-house r&d capabilities. today, r&d
professionals account for almost 30% of HtC's
headcount, and annual r&d investments regularly
represent 4 to 6 percent of total revenues. HtC
products are frequent trailblazers, earning a long line of
"ﬁrsts" that includes the world's ﬁrst Windows mobile
and android smartphones, ﬁrst dual-mode Gsm/
WimaX phone, ﬁrst 3G/4G android phone, and ﬁrst
Lte android phone. HtC sense, launched in 2009, was
a momentous breakthrough that revolutionized the

Here’s an idea:

Share the fun
Brand strategy

campaign launched in february 2011 further highlights

active management of the HtC brand is a long-term

infusing innovation and excitement into users' mobile

commitment at the core of HtC's overall business

lifestyle.

strategy. "Quietly Brilliant" pervades every aspect of
following user needs and habits toward upgrading and
innovating products and overall user experience. We
believe that the best things in life are experienced and
one "experience" outweighs a volume of words. HtC

mobile multimedia services from streaming movies and
online games to large ﬁle downloads and was named
Cnet's Best phone of Ctia 2010. at the start of 2011,
HtC announced the launch of HtC thunderbolt, the
world's ﬁrst Lte android phone that plugs the power of
wireless broadband into daily life, further strengthening
HtC's leadership in 4G devices.

mobile phone experience. HtC launched the HtCsense.

HtC launched its ﬁrst tablet, the HtC flyer, at the mobile

com suite of connected services in 2010. With an HtC

World Congress in february 2011. HtC flyer features a

phone or pC, HtCsense.com allows users to remotely

redesigned tablet version of the company's HtC sense

access and manage data on all their HtC devices.

user experience. stunning 3d graphics electrify the

HtC has earned its leading position in the smartphone
sector through innovation and exceptional

tablet's front page. HtC developers used digital ink
technology to develop HtC scribe, a software function
bundled into HtC flyer that seamlessly integrates

global marketing experience, we brought the same
innovative spirit and service quality to this vast market
and positioned ourselves for high future growth.
eﬀective marketing has propelled the HtC brand to
the fore of the global smartphone sector. HtC's 50%

world's premier brand name in the smartphone sector.

brand recognition worldwide at the close of 2010

the 2009 yoU campaign eﬀectively communicated
HtC's brand focus on user needs and user experience
to consumers worldwide. "Here's an idea!" succeeded
the yoU campaign in 2010 to highlight the incredible
excitement delivered by HtC innovation. throughout
the year, HtC joined telecom partners to launch and
promote new ﬂagship products together through media
and retail outlets. for their part, HtC's retail partners
further upgraded the point-of-sale HtC product
experience during 2010. the innovation inspired by you

a n n Ua L

Wimax protocol to deliver high speed, exciting life into

under its own brand name. in addition to years of

will continue to design and deliver mobile phones that

H tC

3G/4G android phone. the HtC evo 4G leverages the

2010 marked the ﬁrst year HtC sold products in China

ﬁt the way users work, live and play to make HtC the

2 0 1 0

fruit in the launch of HtC evo 4G, the world s ﬁrst

HtC's commitment to the user and promise to continue

the HtC business. HtC applies ideas gleaned from

34

in advanced telecommunications technology bore
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represents a 4-fold increase over just one year ago.
HtC's strong eﬀort and brilliant execution was honored
with t3 magazine's 2010 "tech Brand of the year"
award. We are committed to strengthening HtC's brand
value through innovation, user experience, technical
expertise, marketing and customer relations. Going
forward, we will go beyond growing brand recognition
to place increasing emphasis on deepening consumer
connections with, loyalty to, and preference for the HtC
brand.

Here’s an idea:

Every update at a glance
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touch control and handwriting functions to deliver both

1. Independent Director Positions Created

every quarter, at which ﬁnancial, legal, internal audit

5. Stable Dividend Policies

intuitive touch control and the power to instantly jot

in accordance with the securities and exchange

and other issues are reported. issues reviewed by

down notes, draw sketches and even make notations on

Law, HtC elected two independent directors at

supervisors and certiﬁed public accountants include

the years. factors considered in determining dividend

web graphics and digital images. HtC flyer is also the

its board re-elections in 2010. this move further

risk management, intercompany transactions,

distributions include current and future investment

ﬁrst device to feature the proprietary video application

enhanced corporate governance and increased the

changes in accounting policies, assessments of ipr

environments, capital needs, domestic / international

HtC Watch. HtC Watch gives users access to hundreds

independence and eﬀectiveness of the Board.

infringement risk, and reasonableness of provision

competition, and budgetary considerations.

of high deﬁnition (Hd) movies to download and watch

and accrual items to be presented on ﬁnancial

shareholder interests and the balance between

on demand at reasonable cost. the HtC partnership

reports.

dividend distributions vs. longer-term ﬁnancial

2. Remuneration Committee Created

with onLive gives HtC users access to online game

planning are also considered. the board of directors,

on June 22, 2007, HtC board member Ht Cho and

services and makes the HtC flyer the ﬁrst tablet in the

independent director Chen-Kuo Lin were approved by

world that supports cloud-based mobile gaming.

HtC has been working diligently to enhance the

HtC continuously innovates . apart from constant

HtC chairman Cher Wang is serving as the

timeliness and transparency of ﬁnancial disclosures.

investments to work the full potential of android,

committee's chairman. the main responsibility of this

in addition to online disclosure of important data
related to HtC's business in accordance with

Windows mobile and Brew operating systems, we've

committee is to monitor and review, on behalf of the

been making serious inroads into new but related ﬁelds

board, HtC remuneration policies and mechanisms

regulations, HtC publishes revenue reports for

such as tablets. also, in this age of the ubiquitous

and make relevant recommendations to the board of

the preceding month earlier than required, while

mobile internet, content is rapidly becoming signiﬁcant.

directors.

unaudited quarterly results are released at the
beginning of the ﬁrst month after the end of each

HtC is responding to this trend through investments in
mobile phone content providers such as leading online

Employee bonus appropriation ratio
23.5

23.0

f-road Communication services, and mobile security
solutions provider netQin. these and other investment
partnerships will help integrate technology, service

1.366

22.5

unparalleled convenience and entertainment.

22.5

R&D Expenditures in Recent Years

21.0

21.5

21.5

Unit: nt$ millions

Worldwide r&d expenditures
as a percentage of Worldwide revenue

forecasts are provided. investor teleconferences are

250

1.400

also held to keep investors updated on the latest

200

1.200

business operations.

2011 Q1

2010

2009

3,954

12,940

8,373

3.8%

4.6%

5.8%

Corporate Governance
HtC is committed to strict and fair governance
principles and constantly works to enhance the
eﬀectiveness of relevant systems and measures. Great
strides continue to be made in openness related to
risk management and ﬁnancial disclosures. in 2010,
financeasia gave HtC several important recognitions,
including those for taiwan's 1st runner-up for "Best
managed Company", 3rd runner-up for "Best Corporate
Governance", 2nd runner-up for "Best investor relations"

0.800
0.600

22.9

NPAT

Cash Dividend

Payout ratio
%

NT$ B

1.600

22.0

0.614

payments. in the most recent three ﬁscal years, HtC's
dividend payout ratio was above 60%.

300

1.000

and applications seamlessly to deliver HtC users

has been able to maintain relatively high dividend

every quarter, at which revenue, margin and expense

1.800

1.678

onLive, mobile ﬁnancial solutions provider shanghai

plan each year for submission to shareholders. HtC

quarter. Quarterly earnings calls are held for investors

Share dilution ratio

%

in accordance with regulations, sets a distribution

4. Disclosure of Information & Financial Forecasts

the board to serve on the remuneration committee.

video provider saﬀron digital, online game pioneer

HtC has maintained consistent dividend policies over

120.0

89.0

actively in investor forums and conferences in
taiwan and overseas as well as proactively visits

0.400

major investment houses and investors to enhance

0.200

communication with the investment community.

70.3

67.3

100.0

80.0

60.0

150

28.9

apart from regular disclosures, HtC also participates

140.0

19.5

28.6

20.1

100

22.6

20.1

40.0

20.0

50

0

-

2007

2008

2009

0.000

20.5

2007

2008

2009

the 2010 employee bonus appropriation rate for
accrued expenses is set at 18% of net proﬁt after
taxes, prior to this employee bonus adjustment. the
actual bonus distribution must be approved by the
board of directors after ﬁnal accounting ﬁgures for
the year have been published and approved by the
2011 shareholders meeting. during the past three
years, dilution ratio resulting from employee bonus
distributions has ranged between 0.6% and 1.7%.
HtC also conducts shares buybacks to minimize the
dilution eﬀect of bonus distributions.

and 3rd runner-up for "most Committed to a strong
dividend policy". HtC policies related to corporate
governance are explained further below:
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major suppliers/Customers representing at Least 10% of Gross
purchase/revenue for the most recent two-year period

principal Contractual agreements
Principal current contractual agreements shown below were eﬀective or expired during the most recent reporting
period.

1. Major suppliers representing at least 10% of gross purchase
Unit: nt$ millions
2010
supplier Code
a
others

amount
30,060
134,624

%
18
82

total

164,684

100

relation to HtC
none

2009
amount
14,546
57,661

%
20
80

72,207

100

relation to HtC
none

2. Major customers representing at least 10% of gross revenue
Unit: nt$ millions
2010
Customer Code
a
B
C
others
total

amount
51,647
47,500
38,544
141,070

%
18
17
14
51

278,761

100

relation to HtC
none
none
none

amount
28,816
8,111
27,213
80,353

%
20
5
19
56

144,493

100

relation to HtC
none
none
none

production Quantity
26,300
26,300

aLCateL LUCent

november 2009 - november 2012

authorization to use 2G (Gsm/Gprs/edGe/Cdma), 3G
(Cdma2000/WCdma), HtmL, mpeG, amr patent license
or technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

microsoft

february 1, 2009 - march 31, 2015

authorization to use embedded operating system; royalty
payment based on agreement.

telefonaktiebolaget Lm ericsson

december 15, 2008 - december 14, 2013

authorization to use platform patent license agreement;
royalty payment based on agreement.

siemens aktiengesellschaft

July 1, 2004 to the expiry dates of these patents

authorization to use Gsm, Gprs or edGe patent license or
technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

KoninKLiJKe pHiLips
eLeCtroniCs n.v.

January 5, 2004 to the expiry dates of these patents

Gsm/dCs 1800/1900 patent License; royalty payment
based on agreement.

interdigital technology
Corporation

december 31, 2003 to the expiry dates of these patents

authorization to use tdma and Cdma technology; royalty
payment based on agreement.

december 23, 2003 to the latest of the following dates:

tdma, narroWBand Cdma, WideBand Cdma or td/
Cdma standards patent license or technology; royalty
payment based on agreement.

a. expiry dates of patents
b. any time when HtC and its subsidiaries is not using any of motorola's
intellectual property,

Unit: 1,000 units / nt$ millions
production Capacity
27,305
27,305

description
authorization to use wireless technology; royalty payment
based on agreement.

motoroLa, inc.

Production

smartphones
total

Contract term
november 2010 - June 2020

2009

production and sales for the most recent two-year period
2010
production value
156,350
156,350

Contractor
iv international Licensing
netherlands, B.v.

production Capacity
16,848
16,848

production Quantity
12,308
12,308

2009
production value
75,846
75,846

ericsson mobile platform aB

april 2003 - march 2011

authorization to use edGe reference design license and
support agreement; royalty payment based on agreement.

nokia Corporation

January 1, 2003 to the expiry dates of these patents

authorization to use wireless technology, like Gsm; royalty
payment based on agreement.

Qualcomm incorporated.

december 20, 2000 to the following dates:

authorization to use Cdma technology to manufacture and
sell units; royalty payment based on agreement.

a. if HtC and its subsidiaries materially breaches any covenant and fails
to take remedial action within 30 days after Qualcomm's issuance of
a written notice, HtC and its subsidiaries will be prohibited from using
Qualcomm's property or patents.
b. any time when HtC and its subsidiaries is not using any of Qualcomm's
intellectual property, HtC and its subsidiaries may terminate this
agreement upon 60 days prior written notice to Qualcomm.

note: production capacity represents the normal capacity of current production equipment after making adjustments for necessary production stoppages, non-work holidays, etc.

Sales
Unit: 1,000 units / nt$ millions

smartphones
other items
(accessories)
total

Quantity
735
3,992

domestic sales
value
7,074
379

4,726

7,454

Quantity
23,936
55,383

2010
export sales
value
265,199
5,072

79,319

270,271

Quantity
473
889

domestic sales
value
4,524
94

Quantity
11,238
34,285

2009
export sales
value
132,042
6,232

1,362

4,618

45,523

138,274

note: main product item data not inclusive of income from maintenance / repairs or product development work.
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i. information on the Company's directors, supervisors, General
manager, assistant General managers, deputy assistant General
managers, and managers of all the Company's divisions and
branch units
(I) Directors and Supervisors:
1. Directors' and Supervisors' Information (I)
2011.04.30 ; Unit: share ; %

title

name

date
elected

term
expires

date first
elected

shareholding When
elected
%
shares

Current shareholding
(note)
shares
%

spouse & minor
shareholding (note)
shares
%

other persons holding
shares in their name
(note)
shares
%

principal work experience and academic qualiﬁcations

Chairman

Cher Wang

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

1999.04.30

24,736,896

3.20%

25,973,740

3.18%

21,325,133

2.61%

0

0.00%

> master in economics from the University of California,
Berkeley.
> General manager of the pC division, first international
Computer, inc. (fiC)

director

Ht Cho

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

2001.04.23

205,143

0.03%

138,600

0.02%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> electronic engineering, national taipei institute of
technology.
> president & Ceo, HtC Corporation.
> Consulting engineer, digital equipment Corporation.

director

Wen-Chi Chen

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

1999.04.30

20,309,651

2.62%

21,325,133

2.61%

25,973,740

3.18%

0

0.00%

> msCs from the California institute of technology.
> president, via technologies, inc.
> president, symphony Laboratories.

0.00%

> Bachelor in Civil engineering from national Chung-Hsing
University
> master in regional & Urban planning from virginia
polytechnic institute & state University, va/ Usa
> advanced study in Hunter College, CUny, ny/Usa &
Humphrey fellow
> president, tHi engineering Consulting Co.
> director, department of transportation, taipei City
Government
> executive vice minister, department of Communications
> Chairman, Chung Hua telecommunication Co.

director

tan Ho-Chen

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

2009.06.19

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

independent Chen-Kuo Lin
director

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

2007.06.20

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

independent Josef felder
director

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

2007.06.20

0

0.00%

127,605

0.02%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

supervisor

Way-Chih
investment
Co., Ltd.
representative:
shao-Lun Lee

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

1999.04.30
2006.04.13

39,745,389

5.14%

41,732,658

5.10%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

supervisor

Caleb ou-yang

2010.06.18

2013.06.17

2007.06.20

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

positions held concurrently in the company and/or any
other company
> Chairman, via technologies, inc.
> director, formosa plastics Corporation
> Chairman, H.t.C. (B.v.i) Corp.
> director, HtC social Welfare foundation.
> Chairman, via faith, Hope and Love foundation.
> Chairman, Chinese Christian faith, Hope and Love
foundation.
> Chairman, Chander electronics Corp.
> non-executive director, television Broadcasts Limited
> Chairman, HtC social Welfare foundation.
> Chairman, HtC education foundation.
> director, associated industries China, inc.
> director, Chunghwa telecom foundation.
> president, atrust Corporation
> president & director, via technologies, inc.
> director, HtC social Welfare foundation.
> director, via faith, Hope and Love foundation.
> director, Chinese Christian faith, Hope and Love foundation.
> Chairman, Xander international Corp.

none

> Bachelor in economics from national taiwan University.
> advanced study at the department of economics in
oklahoma state University.
> advanced study at the department of economics in Harvard
University.
> Chairman, Board of tunghai University.
> minister, ministry of finance, executive yuan.
> independent director, taiwan High speed rail Corporation.
> Chairman, taiwan external trade development Council.
(taitra)
> Chairman, taiwan asset management Corporation.
> professor, department of economics in national taiwan
University.
> independent director, Careal Holding aG, Zurich
> independent director, amaG, Zürich
> independent director, Zingg-Lamprecht aG, Zurich
> Graduate of advanced management program (amp),
> independent director, edelweiss air aG, Zurich
Harvard Business school
> director, Gutsbetrieb oetlishausen aG, Hohentannen
> deputy director at Crossair
> independent director, pro Juventute, Zurich
> director of fiG (flughafen immobilien Gesellschaft)
> independent director, Luzerner Kantonalbank aG, Lucerne
> Chief executive oﬃcer of Unique (flughafen Zurich aG)
> independent director, victoria Jungfrau Collection, interlaken
> independent director, flaschenpost aG, Zürich
> independent director, the nuance Group
> ph.d in material science and d.eng in electrical engineering > director, iC Broadcasting Co., Ltd
from UCLa.
> director, Chinese Christian faith, Hope and Love foundation.
> executive assistant to the Chairperson, via technologies, inc.
> director, via faith, Hope and Love foundation.
> executive vice president, Lam research Co., Ltd.
> department of marine engineering, national taiwan ocean none
University.

other executives, directors and
supervisors who are spouses or within
second-degree of kinship
title
name
relation

director

Wen-Chi Chen

spouse

none

none

none

Chairman

Cher Wang

spouse

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

note: shareholding as of 2011.04.17
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2. Major shareholders of Institutional Shareholders
2011.04.30

name of institutional shareholders

major shareholders of institutional shareholders

Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.

Cher Wang

3. Major shareholder(s) to the company listed in the above table on the right hand column:
not applicable

4. Directors' and Supervisors' Information (II)
2011.04.30
Conditions

name

meet one of the following professional qualiﬁcation requirements,
together with at least ﬁve years work experience

Conforms to criteria for independence（note 1）

an instructor (or higher)
in a department of
commerce, law, ﬁnance,
accounting, or other
academic departments
related to the business of
the company in a public
or private junior college,
college or university

1

a judge, public prosecutor,
attorney, certiﬁed public
accountant or other
professional or technical
specialists who has passed
a national examination and
been awarded a certiﬁcate
in a profession necessary
for the business of the
company

Have work
experience in
commerce,
law, ﬁnance,
accounting,
or other areas
relevant to the
business of the
company

Chairman
Cher Wang

v

director
Ht Cho

v

director
Wen-Chi Chen

v

director
Hochen tan

2

3

v

4

v

5

6

v

7

v

8

v

number of other
public companies
concurrently
serving as an
independent
director

9

10

v

v

n/a

v

v

n/a

v

v

n/a

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

n/a

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

1

independent director
Josef felder

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

n/a

supervisor
Way-Chih investment
Co., Ltd.
representative
shao-Lun Lee

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

v

independent director
Chen-Kuo Lin

v

supervisor
Caleb ou-yang

v

v

v

v

n/a

v

n/a

note1 : directors and supervisors meet any of the following criteria:
（1） not an employee of the Company or any of its aﬃliates.
（2） not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its aﬃliates. the same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of
the Company, its parent Company, or any subsidiary in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting shares.
（3）not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, children of minor age , or held by the person under others'
names, in an aggregate amount of 10% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
（4）not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the ﬁfth degree of kinship, of any of the persons in the preceding three
subparagraphs.
（5）not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company or that
holds shares ranking in the top ﬁve in holdings.
（6）not a director, supervisor, oﬃcer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares, of a speciﬁed Company or institution that has a ﬁnancial or business
relationship with the Company.
（7）not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or oﬃcer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, Company, or institution that provides
commercial, legal, ﬁnancial, accounting services or consultation to the Company or to any aﬃliate of the Company, or a spouse thereof.
（8）not having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any other director of the Company.
（9）not been a person of any conditions deﬁned in article 30 of the Company Law.
(10) not a governmental, juridical person or its representative as deﬁned in article 27 of the Company Law.
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(II) General Manager, Assistant General Managers, Deputy Assistant General Managers, and Managers of all divisions
and branch units:
2011.04.30；Unit：share ; %

shareholding (note)
title

name

Chief executive oﬃcer &
president

46

peter Chou

date elected

2004.04.30

Corporate senior
executive vice president &
president of engineering
and operation

fred Liu

2006.04.24

Chief financial oﬃcer

Winston yung

Chief operating oﬃcer

shares

3,847,470

%

0.47%

managers with spouses or
relatives within seconddegree of Kinship

spouse & minor shareholding other persons holding shares in
(note)
their name (note)
shares

1,133,370

%

0.14%

shares

0

%

0.00%

principal work experience and academic qualiﬁcations

0.17%

500,000

0.06%

0

0.00%

> department of electrical engineering, tatung University.
> director, digital equipment Corporation.

2011.01.01

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> department of economics, University of Hong Kong
> mBa, the Wharton school of the University of pennsylvania.
> Chief financial oﬃcer, shin Kong financial Holding Co., Ltd

matthew vincent
Costello

2010.11.01

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Chief engineering oﬃcer

david Chen

2007.05.08

306,641

0.04%

859

0.00%

0

0.00%

Chief marketing oﬃcer

John Wang

2007.05.08

56,410

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Chief product oﬃcer

Kouji a Kodera

2010.05.03

17,355

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Chief strategy oﬃcer

ronald allen Louks

2010.05.03

13,854

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

Chief information oﬃcer

eric Chou

2008.01.16

30,922

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

General Counsel

Grace Lei

2007.05.08

58,046

0.01%

5,589

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

Cs Wang

2001.03.12

95,665

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

Georges Boulloy

2010.12.01

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

Gregory fisher

2011.02.21

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

Lotus Chen

2004.04.01

49,482

0.01%

254

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

simon Hsieh

2008.06.01

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

simon Lin

2008.06.01

58,000

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

vice president

WH Liu

2008.06.01

42,548

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

H tC
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title

name

relation

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

> director (representative), HtC america, inc.
> director (representative), HtC eUrope Co. Ltd
> director (representative), High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd.
> director (representative), High tech Computer (H.K.) Limited
> director (representative), HtC philippines Corporation
> department of electronic engineering, national taiwan ocean University.
> director (representative), High tech Computer (suZhou) Co., Ltd.
> director, server platform design division, digital equipment Corporation.
> director (representative), Hua-chuang automobile information technical
Center Co., Ltd.
> Chairman (representative), HtC investment Corporation
> Chairman (representative), HtC investment i Corporation
> supervisor (representative), pt. High tech Computer indonesia

1,395,849

2 0 1 0

positions held concurrently in any other company

> department of economics, duquesne University.
> Corporate vice president, operations, sony ericsson mobile
Communications.
> partner, managing director and vice president of supply Chain, andersen
LLp.
> national United University.
> principal engineer, digital equipment Corporation.
> mBa, Harvard Business school
> Ceo, Quickdot Corporation
> department of Law, Keio University
> vp & Head of services & marketplace, sony ericsson Communications aB
> marketing director, mitsubishi electric telecom europe s.a.
> department of Computer science, mcmaster University
> Corporate vice president & Chief technology oﬃcer, sony ericsson
mobile Communications, inc.
> royal roads University
> senior director, semiconductor manufacturing international Corporation
(smiC)
> senior manager, tsmC
> deputy director , Underwriters Lab inc.
> master of Laws, University of pennsylvania
> master of Laws, national taiwan University.
> partner, Winkler partners attorneys at Law of taiwan and foreign Legal
aﬀairs
> partner, tsai, Lee & Chen Co., Ltd.
> master, michigan state University
> vice president, production enterprise, rCa.
> master, ecole des mines
> vp & Head dU taipei, sony ericsson mobile Communications
> senior vp, Wireless BU, Quanta Computers
> Bachelor in department of economics, Brigham young University
> director of intel technology asia pte. Ltd.
> director of intel Corporation
> master in Computer engineering, national Chiao tung University
> Chairman, Ulead systems, inc.
> Chairman & president, ia style inc.
> master in information engineering, national taiwan University
> assistance manager, asUs
> m.s., electrical engineering, University of texas
> director, r&d, digital equipment Corporation
> master in electronic engineering, national taiwan University of science
and technology
> senior manager of Wm system architecture design

> director (representative), HtC america, inc.
> director (representative), HtC eUrope Co. Ltd
> director (representative), HtC nippon Corporation
> director (representative), HtC HK, Limited
> director (representative), HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL
> director (representative), High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC philippines Corporation.
> director (representative), pt. High tech Computer indonesia
> Chairman(representative), High tech Computer (suZhou) Co., Ltd
> Chairman(representative), Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.
> executive director (representative), HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)
> director (representative), via teCHnoLoGies, inC.
> director (representative), HtC investment Corporation
> director (representative), HtC investment i Corporation
> director (representative), HtC (thailand) Limited
> Chairman (representative), HtC Communication Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), Luminous optical technology Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC america Holding, inc.
> director (representative), HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.
> director (representative), saﬀron media Group Limited
> director (representative), saﬀron digital Limited
> director (representative), HtC investment Corporation
> director (representative), HtC investment i Corporation

> director (representative), HtC america innovation, inc.

> director (representative), president, High tech Computer (suZhou) Co., Ltd
> director (representative), HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC Communication Co., Ltd.

> director (representative), Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.
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shareholding (note)

managers with spouses or
relatives within seconddegree of Kinship

spouse & minor shareholding other persons holding shares in
(note)
their name (note)

title

name

date elected

shares

%

shares

%

shares

%

associate vice president

Jim Lin

2007.05.08

132,526

0.02%

831

0.00%

0

0.00%

associate vice president

ralph Wang

2008.06.01

24,508

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

associate vice president

steve Wang

2008.06.01

31,000

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

associate vice president

thomas Chien

2011.04.01

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

principal work experience and academic qualiﬁcations
> national taiwan University of science and technology.
> director, digital equipment Corporation.
> electronic engineering, fu Jen Catholic University
> senior director, GvC
> project manager, philip
> azusa paciﬁc University
> vp, ia style in.c.
> master in department of industrial design, shih Chien University
> design engineer, premier image technology Corporation

positions held concurrently in any other company

title

name

relation

> director (representative), Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

> supervisor (representative), HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)
> supervisor (representative), HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC america innovation, inc.
> supervisor (representative), Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.
> supervisor (representative), HtC Communication Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), one & Company design, inc.
> director (representative), HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL
> supervisor (representative), HtC investment Corporation
> supervisor (representative), HtC investment i Corporation
> director (representative), HtC poland sp. z o.o.
> director (representative), HtC nordic aps
> director (representative), HtC iberia s.L.U.
> director (representative), HtC india private Limited
> director (representative), HtC (australia and new Zealand) pty Ltd
> director (representative), HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.
> director (representative), HtC nippon Corporation

associate vice president

James Chen

2009.02.10

11,000

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> master of accounting, nCCU
> manager, tsmC
> BU Controller, Lite-on

associate vice president

edward Wang

2009.03.10

8,800

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> mBa, tunghai University
> vp, Hotung Group

special assistant of
procurement division

Kenny tseng

2009.12.28

9,565

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> ming Chi University of technology
> formosa plastic Group. purchase ast. manager

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

none

> director (representative), HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.

director

Joey Cheng

2009.02.09

2,000

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> department of electrical engineering, national tsing Hua University
> msee, Cornell University
> executive director, Goldman sachs
> sr. marketing manager, marvell semiconductor
> vp of sales & marketing , inprocomm inc.,

president- north america &
Latin america

Jason mackenzie

2007.09.26

50,000

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> vice president of t-mobile

> director (representative), HtC italia srL
> director (representative), HtC Germany GmbH
> director (representative), HtC poland sp. z o.o.
> director (representative), HtC iberia s.L.U.
> director (representative), HtC nordic aps
> General manager (representative), abaxia sas
> president (representative), HtC france Corporation
> administrator (representative), HtC south eastern europe LLC
> Chairman (representative), HtC innovation Limited
> director (representative), HtC Communication Co., Ltd.
> director (representative), HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.
> director (representative), HtC india private Limited
> director (representative), HtC (australia and new Zealand) pty Ltd

president- emea region

florian seiche

2007.05.08

111,523

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> director of devices, orange Group

vice president, apaC

Jack tong

2007.07.01

48,865

0.01%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

> department of Civil engineering, feng Chia University.
> Chief executive oﬃcer, dopod international Corp.

0.00%

> Bachelor of science, Chinese University of Hong Kong
> vp & General manager of mobile Communication Business, LG electronics
(China) Co., Ltd.
none
> executive vice president, eternal asia supply Chain management Ltd.
> vice president and General manager, mobile devices Business, motorola
(China) electronics Ltd.

vice president, Head of China

ray yam

2011.03.17

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

0

note：shareholding as of 2011.04.17 (including shares under trust with discretion reserved.)

(III) Remuneration paid during the most recent ﬁscal year to Directors, Supervisors,
General Manager, and Assistant General Managers
1. Remuneration paid to Directors (Including Independent Directors)
2010 ; Unit : thousand shares ; nt$ thousands

remuneration paid to directors
title

salary (a)(note 1)

name
HtC

48

Chairman

Cher Wang

director

Ht Cho

director

Wen-Chi Chen

director

tan Ho-Chen

independent director

Chen-Kuo Lin

independent director

Josef felder

2 0 1 0

H tC

18,473

retirement pay (B)

Compensation from proﬁt
sharing (C) (note 2)

allowance (d) (note 3)

total remuneration (a+B+C+d)
as a percentage of net income
（％）(note 7)

Compensation earned as employee of HtC subsidiary aﬃliates
salary,Bonuses, and
allowance (e) (note4)

retirement pay (f)

employee proﬁt sharing (G) (note 5)
HtC

exercisable employee
stock options (H) (note 6)

all Consolidated entities (note 8)

total Compensation
(a+B+C+d+e+f+G)
as a percentage of net
income（％） (note 7)

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

Cash

stock

Cash

stock

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 8)

18,473

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.05%

0.05%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.05%

0.05%
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Compensation
paid to
directors from
non-subsidiary
aﬃliates
(note 9)

none
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note 1:
note 2:

directors' compensation in the most recent ﬁscal year (including salary, allowances, severance pay, and various awards and bonuses)
the amount proposed for distribution to directors as compensation, as passed by the Board of directors prior to the shareholders' meeting for the most recent ﬁscal year's earnings
distribution proposal.
note 3: expenses relating to business execution by directors in the most recent ﬁscal year (includes transportation allowances, special allowances, various subsidies, accommodations, and personal
cars).
note 4: all salary, allowances, severance pay, various bonuses, cash rewards, transportation allowances, special allowances, various material beneﬁts, accommodations, and personal cars received
by directors concurrently serving as employees (including those concurrently serving as General manager, assistant General manager, or other managerial oﬃcers and employees) in the
preceding ﬁscal year.
note 5: planned amount of employee bonuses approved for distribution by the Board of directors prior to the shareholders' meeting for the current year's earnings distribution proposal when
directors concurrently serving as employees (including those concurrently serving as General manager, assistant General manager, or other managerial oﬃcers or employees) received
employee bonuses (including stock and cash bonuses) in the most recent ﬁscal year. if the amount cannot be estimated, employee bonus for this year will be calculated based on last year's
actual distribution ratio.
note 6: number of shares represented by employee stock warrants (not including the portion already exercised) received by directors concurrently serving as employees (including those
concurrently serving as General manager, assistant General manager, or other managerial oﬃcers or employees) up to the date of printing of this annual report.
note 7: the 2010 net income nt$ 39,533,600 thousand (financial statements), nt$ 39,514,844 thousand (Consolidated financial statements).
note 8: total amount of all remunerations paid to directors by all consolidated entities (including HtC).
note 9: remunerations refer to salary, compensation, employee bonuses, and allowances relating to the conduct of business received by directors in their capacity as director, supervisor, or
managerial oﬃcer of a non-subsidiary aﬃliate.
＊ Compensation information disclosed in this statement diﬀers from the concept of income under the income tax act. this statement is intended to provide information disclosure and not taxrelated information.

Remuneration paid to Directors
scale of remunerations to directors of the
Company
Under nt$ 2,000,000

HtC

name
total remuneration (a+B+C+d+e+f+G)
HtC
all Consolidated entities J

total remuneration (a+B+C+d)
all Consolidated entities i

Cher Wang, Ht Cho, Wen-Chi Chen Cher Wang, Ht Cho, Wen-Chi Chen Cher Wang, Ht Cho, Wen-Chi Chen Cher Wang, Ht Cho, Wen-Chi Chen

nt$ 2,000,000 ~ nt$ 5,000,000

tan Ho-Chen, Chen-Kuo Lin

tan Ho-Chen, Chen-Kuo Lin

tan Ho-Chen, Chen-Kuo Lin

tan Ho-Chen, Chen-Kuo Lin

Josef felder

Josef felder

Josef felder

Josef felder

nt$ 5,000,000 ~ nt$ 10,000,000
nt$ 10,000,000 ~ nt$ 15,000,000

-

-

-

-

nt$ 15,000,000 ~ nt$ 30,000,000

-

-

-

-

nt$ 30,000,000 ~ nt$ 50,000,000

-

-

-

-

nt$ 50,000,000 ~ nt$ 100,000,000

-

-

-

-

over nt$ 100,000,000

-

-

-

-

total

6

6

6

6

2. Remuneration paid to Supervisors
2010 ; Unit : thousand shares ; nt$ thousands
remuneration paid to supervisors

title
name
superviso Caleb ou-yang
superviso Way-Chih
investment Co., Ltd.
representative:
shao-Lun Lee
superviso po-Cheng Ko (note 7)

salary (a)(note 1)
all Consolidated
HtC entities(note 5)

3,597

3,597

retirement pay (B)
all Consolidated
HtC entities(note 5)

0

0

Compensation from proﬁt
sharing (C)(note 2)
all Consolidated
HtC entities(note 5)

0

HtC

0

3

total remuneration
Compensation
allowance (d) (a+B+C+d) as a percentage paid to supervisors
(note 3) of net income（％）(note 4)
from nonall Consolidated
all Consolidated subsidiary aﬃliates
entities(note 5)
HtC entities(note 5)
(note 6)

3

0.01%

0.01%

none

note 1:
note 2:

supervisors' compensation in the most recent ﬁscal year (including salary, allowances, severance pay, and various awards and bonuses)
the amount proposed for distribution to supervisors as compensation, as passed by the Board of directors prior to the shareholders' meeting for the most recent ﬁscal year's earnings
distribution proposal.
note 3: expenses relating to business execution by supervisors in the most recent ﬁscal year (includes transportation allowances, special allowances, various subsidies, accommodations, and
personal cars).
note 4: the 2010 net income nt$ 39,533,600 thousand (financial statements), nt$ 39,514,844 thousand (Consolidated financial statements).
note 5: the total amount of all remunerations paid to supervisors by all consolidated entities (including HtC).
note 6: remunerations refer to salary, compensation, employee bonuses, and allowances relating to the conduct of business received by supervisors in their capacity as director, supervisor, or
managerial oﬃcer of a non-subsidiary aﬃliate.
note 7: po-Cheng Ko resigned on 20 april 2011.
＊ Compensation information disclosed in this statement diﬀers from the concept of income under the income tax act. this statement is intended to provide information disclosure and not taxrelated information.

Remuneration paid to Supervisors
name
HtC
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd. , shao-Lun Lee , Caleb ou-yang
po-Cheng Ko

total remuneration (a+B+C+d)
all Consolidated entities
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd. , shao-Lun Lee , Caleb ou-yang
po-Cheng Ko

nt$ 5,000,000 ~ nt$ 10,000,000
nt$ 10,000,000 ~ nt$ 15,000,000
nt$ 15,000,000 ~ nt$ 30,000,000

-

-

nt$ 30,000,000 ~ nt$ 50,000,000
nt$ 50,000,000 ~ nt$ 100,000,000
over nt$ 100,000,000
total

3

3

scale of remunerations to supervisors of
the Company
Under nt$ 2,000,000
nt$ 2,000,000 ~ nt$ 5,000,000
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3. Remuneration paid to General Manager and Assistant General Managers
2010 ; Unit : thousand shares ; nt$ thousands
retirement pay (B)
（note 2）

salary (a)
（note 1）
title
Chief executive
oﬃcer & president
Corporate senior
executive vice
president &
president of
engineering and
operation
Chief operating
oﬃcer
(note 9)
Chief engineering
oﬃcer
Chief marketing
oﬃcer
Chief product
oﬃcer
(note 10)
Chief strategy
oﬃcer
(note 11)
Chief information
oﬃcer
General Counsel
vice president

name
peter Chou

HtC

vice president
(note 12)
vice president

Georges
60,741.89
Boulloy
Lotus Chen

all Consolidated
entities (note 7)

HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 7)

92,314.42

2,233.48

25,831.27

Bonus & perquisite (C)
（note 3）
HtC

all Consolidated
entities (note 7)

total remuneration
Compensation
employee proﬁt sharing (d) (a+B+C+d) as a percentage exercisable employee
（note 4） of net income（％）（note 6） stock options（note 5） paid to president
& vice presidents
all Consolidated
from nonHtC
entities (note 7)
all Consolidated
all Consolidated
subsidiary
Cash
stock
Cash
stock
HtC entities (note 7) HtC entities (note 7) aﬃliates (note 8)

fred Liu

matthew
vincent
Costello
david Chen
John Wang
Kouji a.
Kodera
ronald allen
Louks
eric Chou
Grace Lei
Cs Wang

vice president

simon Hsieh

vice president

simon Lin

vice president

WH Liu

216,618.14 300,733.61

estimated estimated estimated estimated
number
number
number
number

475,148.55 558,499.97 475,148.55 634,610.97 3.32.%

3.87%

0

0

none

associate vice
Jim Lin
president
associate vice
ralph Wang
president
associate vice
steve Wang
president
thomas
associate vice
Chien
president
(note 13)
associate vice
James Chen
president
edward
associate vice
Wang
president
president-north
Jason
america & Latin
mackenzie
america
president -emea florian
region
seiche
Jack tong
vice president,
apaC
Chief financial
Hui-ming
oﬃcer &
Cheng
spokesman
(note 14)
executive vice
Jason Juang
president
(note 15)
Chief innovation
Horace Luke
oﬃcer
(note 16)
vice president
Cliﬀ
(note 17)
Chiang
vice president
david Wang
(note 18)
associate vice
andy
president
Chen
(note 19)
associate vice
Cliﬀ Chou
president
(note 20)
note 1: General manager and assistant General managers' compensations in the most recent ﬁscal year include salary, allowances, and severance pay.
note 2: pensions funded according to applicable law.
note 3: various awards, bonuses, transportation allowances, special allowances, various subsidies, accommodations, and personal cars by General manager and assistant General managers in the most recent ﬁscal year.
note 4: the amount proposed for distribution to General manager and assistant General managers as employee bonus (including stock and cash bonuses). estimated amounts of 2010 employee bonus are calculated
based on 2009 actual distribution ratio; distribution list for 2010 has not been decided yet.
note 5: number of shares represented by employee stock warrants (not including the portion already exercised) received by General manager and assistant General managers up to the date of printing of this annual report.
note 6: the 2010 net income nt$ 39,533,600 thousand (financial statements), nt$ 39,514,844 thousand (Consolidated financial statements).
note 7: total amount of all remunerations paid to General manager and assistant General managers by all consolidated entities (including HtC).
note 8: remunerations refer to salary, compensation, employee bonuses, and allowances relating to the conduct of business received by General manager and assistant General managers in their capacity as director,
supervisor, or managerial oﬃcer of a non-subsidiary aﬃliate.
note 9: matthew vincent Costello joined HtC on 1 november 2010.
note 10: Kouji a. Kodera joined HtC on 3 may 2010.
note 11: ronald allen Louks joined HtC on 3 may 2010.
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note 12:
note 13:
note 14:
note 15:
note 16:
note 17:
note 18:
note 19:
note 20:
note 21:

Georges Boulloy joined HtC on 1 december 2010.
thomas Chien joined HtC on 1 april 2011.
Hui-ming Cheng resigned on 1 January 2011.
Jason Juang resigned on 31 July 2010.
Horace Luke resigned on 30 april 2011.
Cliﬀ Chiang resigned on 29 october 2010.
david Wang resigned on 12 June 2010.
andy Chen resigned on 6 february 2010.
Cliﬀ Chou resigned on 1 march 2011.
only those who served as HtC's General manager and assistant General managers in 2010 or those who have worked for HtC until 31 december 2010 and were promoted to General
manager and assistant General managers before the date of printing of this annual report are disclosed in this statement.
＊ Compensation information disclosed in this statement diﬀers from the concept of income under the income tax act. this statement is intended to provide information disclosure and not taxrelated information.

Remuneration paid to General Manager and Assistant General Managers
name

scale of remunerations to managers of the
Company

HtC (note)

Under nt$ 2,000,000

david Wang, andy Chen

david Wang, andy Chen

nt$ 2,000,000 ～ nt$ 5,000,000

Jason Juang

Jason Juang

nt$ 5,000,000 ～ nt$ 10,000,000

Cliﬀ Chiang, Hui-ming Cheng

Cliﬀ Chiang, Hui-ming Cheng

nt$ 10,000,000 ～ nt$ 15,000,000

Cliﬀ Chou, Georges Boulloy

Cliﬀ Chou, Georges Boulloy

nt$ 15,000,000 ～ nt$ 30,000,000

Jim Lin, Grace Lei, James Chen, edward Wang, eric
Chou, ralph Wang, matthew vincent Costello, thomas
Chien

Jim Lin, Grace Lei, James Chen, edward
Wang, eric Chou, ralph Wang, matthew
vincent Costello, thomas Chien, Kouji a.
Kodera, ronald allen Louks

nt$ 30,000,000 ～ nt$ 50,000,000

Cs Wang, John Wang, Lotus Chen, WH Liu, simon Lin,
simon Hsieh、steve Wang

Cs Wang, John Wang, Lotus Chen, WH Liu,
simon Lin, simon Hsieh, steve Wang

nt$ 50,000,000 ～ nt$ 100,000,000

david Chen, Jack tong

david Chen, Jack tong, Jason mackenzie,
Horace Luke, florian seiche

over nt$ 100,000,000

peter Chou, fred Liu

peter Chou, fred Liu

total

26

31

all Consolidated entities (note)

note: estimated amounts of 2010 employee bonus are calculated based on 2009 actual distribution ratio; distribution list for 2010 has not been decided yet. only those who served as HtC's
General manager and assistant General managers in 2010 or those who have worked for HtC until 31 december 2010 and were promoted to General manager and assistant General
managers before the date of printing of this annual report are disclosed in this statement.

4. Employee proﬁt sharing granted to Management Team
2010 ; Unit : nt$ thousands

title

Chief executive oﬃcer & president
Corporate senior executive vice
president & president of engineering
and operation
Chief operating oﬃcer
(note 4)
Chief engineering oﬃcer
Chief marketing oﬃcer
Chief product oﬃcer
(note 5)
Chief strategy oﬃcer
(note 6)
Chief information oﬃcer
General Counsel
vice president
vice president
(note 7)
vice president
vice president
vice president
vice president
associate vice president
associate vice president
associate vice president
associate vice president
(note 8)
associate vice president
associate vice president
president-north america & Latin
america
president-emea region
vice president, apaC
special assistant of procurement
division
director
Chief financial oﬃcer & spokesman
(note 9)
executive vice president
(note 10)
Chief innovation oﬃcer
(note 11)
vice president
(note 12)
vice president
(note 13)
associate vice president
(note 14)
associate vice president
(note 15)

name
peter Chou
fred Liu

stock (note 1)

Cash (note 1)

estimated number
662,941.18

estimated number
562,185.23

total employee proﬁt
sharing (note 1)

total employee proﬁt sharing
paid to management team as
a percentage of net income
(%) (note3)

matthew vincent
Costello
david Chen
John Wang
Kouji a. Kodera
ronald allen Louks
eric Chou
Grace Lei
Cs Wang
Georges Boulloy
Lotus Chen
simon Hsieh
simon Lin
WH Liu
Jim Lin
ralph Wang
steve Wang
thomas Chien

estimated number
1,225,126.41

3.10%

James Chen
edward Wang
Jason mackenzie
florian seiche
Jack tong
Kenny tseng
Joey Cheng
Hui-ming Cheng
Jason Juang
Horace Luke
Cliﬀ Chiang
david Wang
andy Chen
Cliﬀ Chou

note 1 : planned amount of employee bonuses (including stock and cash bonuses) approved for distribution by the Board of directors prior to the shareholders' meeting for the current year's
earnings distribution proposal. estimated amounts of 2010 employee bonus are calculated based on 2009 actual distribution ratio; distribution list for 2010 has not been decided yet. only
those who served as HtC's manager in 2010 or those who have worked for HtC until 31 december 2010 and were promoted to manager before the date of printing of this annual report
are disclosed in this statement.
note 2 : applicable scope of oﬃcers is made in accordance with 27 march 2003 no. 0920001301 regulation as follows:
(1) Chief executive oﬃcer or equivalent
(2) vice president or equivalent
(3) associated vice president or equivalent
(4) director of finance department
(6) other director(s) within Company with signature authority
(5) director of accounting department
note 3: the 2010 net income ntd39,533,600 thousand.
note 4: matthew vincent Costello joined HtC on 1 november 2010.
note 5: Kouji a. Kodera joined HtC on 3 may 2010.
note 6: ronald allen Louks joined HtC on 3 may 2010.
note 7: Georges Boulloy joined HtC on 1 december 2010.
note 8: thomas Chien joined HtC on 1 april 2011.
note 9: Hui-ming Cheng resigned on 1 January 2011.
note 10: Jason Juang resigned on 31 July 2010.
note 11: Horace Luke resigned on 30 april 2011.
note 12: Cliﬀ Chiang resigned on 29 october 2010.
note 13: david Wang resigned on 12 June 2010.
note 14: andy Chen resigned on 6 february 2010.
note 15: Cliﬀ Chou resigned on 1 march 2011.
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(IV) Total remuneration as a percentage of net income as paid by the Company, and by
companies included in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, during the past two ﬁscal
years to its Directors, Supervisors, General Manager, and Assistant General Managers,
and description of remuneration policies, standards, packages, procedures for setting
remuneration, and linkage to performance.

the "Guidelines for Corporate Governance" were completed and
adopted, guaranteeing that the Board of directors has the authority
to independently supervise corporate operations and to make all
decisions necessary to fulﬁll its responsibilities to shareholders and
to society.
2. in accordance with the Compensation Committee articles of
incorporation drafted by the Board of directors, the Compensation
Committee shall be composed of three directors with the Chairman
of the Board as ex oﬃcio Chairman and the remaining two
appointed by the Board of directors, and it shall include at least one
independent director. HtC, in its Board meeting of 21 June 2010,
appointed director Ht Cho and independent director Chen-Kuo
Lin to the second session of the Compensation Committee, while
Chairman Cher Wang was made its Chairman. the principal duties
of the Compensation Committee include assisting the Board of
directors in supervising the company's compensation system and
making appropriate recommendations to the Board.

A. Total remuneration as a percentage of net income as paid by the Company, during the past two ﬁscal years to its
Directors, Supervisors, General Manager, and Assistant General Managers.
title
directors
supervisors
president and vice presidents
note 1:
note 2:

HtC
0.05%
0.01%
3.32% (note1)

total remuneration as a percentage of net income
2010
2009
all Consolidated entities
HtC all Consolidated entities
0.05%
0.06%
0.06%
0.01%
0.02%
0.02%
3.87% (note1)
306% (note2)
3.31% (note2)

HtC
-0.01%
-0.01%
0.26%

increases or decreases %
all Consolidated entities
-0.01%
-0.01%
0.56 %

(2) Supervisor participation in Board of Directors meetings
The Board of Directors conducted eleven meetings in 2010. The Supervisors' attendance status is as follows :
title

supervisor

po-Cheng Ko

(1) The State of Operations of The Board of Directors:

Other matters to be included:

The Board of Directors conducted eleven meetings in 2010. The Directors and Supervisors' attendance status is as
follows :

I.

supervisor

name
Cher Wang
Wen-Chi Chen
Ht Cho
tan Ho-Chen
Chen-Kuo Lin
Josef felder
Wei-Chi investment Co., Ltd.
representative: shao-Lun Lee
Caleb ou-yang

supervisor

po-Cheng Ko

supervisor

addendance in
person (B)
8
8
9
10
11
4

By proxy
3
3
2
0
0
7

attendance rate in
person(%) [B/a]
72.73%
72.73%
81.82%
90.91%
100.00%
36.36%

notes
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.

8

0

72.73%

elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.

0

0

0.00%

11

0

100.00%

elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
resigned on 20 april 2011.

Other matters to be included:
1.

2.

there was no independent director expressing opposition or reservation
with respect to any Board of directors meeting during the preceding
ﬁscal year, and no written record or written statement of related board
resolutions.

foundation-the subject recipients of the donation under this
proposal.
(3) director: Cher Wang, Wen-Chi Chen
Content of proposal: proposal to acquire real property from a
related party, via technologies, inc.

directors' abstention from discussion due to conﬂicts of interests in 2010:
(1) independent director: Chen-Kuo Lin, Josef felder

reason for abstention from voting participation: Chairman Cher
Wang and director Wen-Chi Chen are Chairman and president &
director of via technologies, inc.-the trading counterpart under
this proposal.

Content of proposal: review and discussion of the independent
director nominees list, proposed by the Board of directors, for
election at the 2010 annual General shareholders meeting.
reason for abstention from voting participation: Chen-Kuo Lin and
Josef felder are nominated candidates for independent directors.
(2) director: Ht Cho
Content of proposal:proposal on the donation of ntd 300 million to
HtC Cultural educational foundation and HtC foundation.
reason for abstention from voting participation: director Ht Cho
is Chairman of the HtC Cultural educational foundation and HtC
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supervisor

name
Wei-Chi investment Co., Ltd.
representative: shao-Lun Lee
Caleb ou-yang

supervisor

II. The State of the Company's Implementation of Corporate Governance:

title
Chairman
director
director
director
independent director
independent director
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3.

4. HtC has also been endeavoring in recent years to enhance the
timeliness and transparency of its information disclosure. in addition
to making timely posting of important ﬁnancial and business
information on the market observation post system, HtC also
provides early announcement of its monthly revenues, announces
preliminary revenue ﬁgures at the beginning of the month following
the end of each quarter, and convenes online investor conferences
on a quarterly basis to allow investors timely access to information
on the Company's operations and performance. in december 2008,
the HtC investor relations Website was revised. a special corporate
governance page was added along with disclosures of ﬁnancial
information. HtC achieved "a+" rating for the ﬁrst time in the sixth
information disclosure and transparency ranking organized by the
securities and futures institute (sfi). in the seventh evaluation, HtC
was recognized as one of the top 10 public companies with "a+"
ratings. in three consecutive evaluations, HtC was listed as one of
the more transparent among exchange or otC listed companies in
making voluntary disclosure of information.

3. Currently, prior to the establishment of the audit committee, most
of the committee's functions are performed by the supervisors
meetings. that is, in accordance with article 14-5 of the securities
and exchange act, matters intended to be handled by the audit
committee are ﬁrst passed to the supervisors meeting before
submission to the Board of directors for deliberation and voting. in

during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing of this annual report, distribution list of employee bonus has not been decided yet. estimated amounts of 2010 employee
bonus are calculated based on 2009 actual distribution ratio.
total remuneration for year 2009, related to amount of stock bonus, is calculated based on the closing price (nt$432.5) one day prior to the 2010 annual General shareholders'
meeting on an ex-dividend basis (nt$387.14).

B. HTC's compensation policy provides remuneration based on the salary level for a given position within the given market,
the scope of responsibilities of that position within the company, and the employee's contribution to the company's
operational goals. Company procedures for setting compensation provide fair levels of remuneration in consideration of
the overall operational performance of the company as well as the employee's achievement of individual performance
goals and contribution to the company's performance. If, in addition to the ﬁxed annual bonus (two month's salary in
Taiwan, one month's salary in China and certain Southeast Asian countries, and one month's salary in Brazil), distribution
of additional annual bonuses is proposed, a resolution approving the special bonuses must be passed by the Board of
Directors.

addition, regular supervisors meetings are convened on a quarterly
basis to hear reports on important ﬁnancial, legal, and internal audit
matters. there is also a joint assessment between the supervisors
and Cpa on the principles and appropriateness of various allowances
and reserves in the ﬁnancial statements.

addendance in person(B)

attendance rate (%) [B/a] (note)

8

72.73%

elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.

0

0.00%

11

100.00%

elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
elected again in 18 June 2010 shareholders' meeting.
resigned on 20 april 2011.

Composition and Responsibilities of Supervisors:

professional fees before such matters are submitted to the Board of
directors for resolution.

the structure of the supervisors' meetings at HtC is well established and it
carries out most functions of the audit committee.

during 2010, management continued to lend its full support to
corporate governance at HtC. internal controls are risk-oriented and
eﬃciency in ratifying issues continue to improve. in the supervision
of subsidiaries, emphasis was placed on evaluation by corporate
headquarters and the development of global policies. in the area
of internal control self-assessment, HtC has continued to use a
combination of questionnaires and small group discussions. individual
divisions also need to issue internal control statements to provide
a concrete and transparent basis for the issuance of statements on
corporate internal controls by the Board of directors.

1. supervisor communication with employees and shareholders (e.g.,
channels and methods of communication)
supervisors can make use of channels such as supervisors meetings,
Board of directors meetings, shareholders meetings, and internal audit
reports to communicate with management-level oﬃcers and with
shareholders.
2. supervisor communication with Chief internal auditor and Cpas (e.g.,
ﬁnancial and operational matters on which they communicate, their
methods, and results)
HtC supervisors communicate through their regular quarterly supervisor
meetings with HtC's ﬁnancial, legal, and internal audit oﬃcers, who report
to the supervisors on issues such as risk management, major litigations,
and internal audit reports.
Based on the principle of sound, conservative accounting, HtC's
supervisors and Cpas regularly undertake joint reviews of major account
items in the ﬁnancial statements to assess the reasonableness of basic
assumptions underlying various allowances and reserves. assessments are
also performed and reserves taken against potential liabilities associated
with intellectual property risks in order to reduce the impact on HtC's
ﬁnances.
supervisors also hold regular private meetings with Cpas. supervisors
must ﬁrst review and be satisﬁed with the Cpa's independence and

notes

II.

If Supervisors in attendance at a Board meeting state opinions, the
meeting date, session number, agenda, and result of resolutions must
be noted, along with the Company's handling of the Supervisors'
opinions.
prior to each quarterly meeting of the Board of directors, HtC convenes
a supervisors meeting at which important matters relating to ﬁnance,
legal, and internal audit are reported to the supervisors. the supervisors
in turn produce a quarterly supervisors' report for submission to the
Board. important related-party transactions are ﬁrst submitted to the
supervisors meeting, which must ﬁrst review the transactions and issue
an unqualiﬁed opinion before they are submitted for deliberation and
resolution by the Board. there has been no instance of a supervisor
expressing a dissenting opinion regarding a Board resolution during the
most recent ﬁscal year.

measures taken to strengthen the functionality of the Board of directors
and the status of implementation during current and preceding ﬁscal
years:
1. at the time of end-of-term elections for directors and supervisors
in the 2010 ﬁscal year, HtC selected two independent directors in
accordance with the provisions of the securities and exchange act
in order to strengthen the independence and functions of directors
and enhance the operational eﬀectiveness of the Board. in 2008,
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(3) The State of the Company's Implementation of Corporate Governance, departures
of such implementation from The Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles
for TSEC/GTSM Listed Companies, and reasons for departures.
item

implementation status

reason for nonimplementation

1. shareholding structure & shareholders' rights
(1) method of handling shareholder
suggestions or complaints

to protect shareholders' interests, HtC has appointed spokesperson and acting spokesperson to properly
handle any questions, suggestions, or disputes involving shareholders.

none

(2) the Company's understanding of major
shareholders and the ultimate owners of
these major shareholders

the Company has a good understanding of its major shareholders through shareholder registers provided
by stock agents at book closures. HtC also provides information regularly on pledges and the increase and
decrease in shareholdings of shareholders with a more than 10% stake in the company.

none

(3) risk management mechanism and
"ﬁrewalls" between the Company and
its aﬃliates

the division of responsibilities between HtC and its aﬃliates with respect to management of personnel,
resources, and ﬁnances is clear. risk assessments are rigorously performed and appropriate ﬁrewalls
have been established. HtC conducts business with aﬃliates based on the principles of fairness and
reasonableness and fully observe the "operating procedures for transactions with speciﬁc Companies,
enterprise Groups and related parties" and other related regulations. terms and conditions, pricing, and
payment methods are clearly prescribed in contracts to avoid non-arms-length transactions and ﬁnancial
tunneling. When it is necessary to eliminate non-competition restrictions on directors and managerial
oﬃcers, requests are duly submitted to the shareholders' meeting and Board for approval.

none

at the end-of-term elections for directors and supervisors at the 2010 ordinary shareholders'
meeting, HtC elected two independent directors in accordance with the provisions of the
securities and exchange act; the number of independent directors exceeds one-ﬁfth of the total
number of directors.

none

in 2008, HtC started to have its supervisors review the independence of Cpas on an annual basis. prior
to submitting a proposal to change Cpa to the Board, the Cpa will be interviewed and his credentials
reviewed by the supervisors to assess his independence.
HtC provides detailed contact information, including telephone numbers and email addresses, in the
"contact us" section of its corporate website. We also have personnel in place to exclusively deal with
messages to the spokesperson and investor mailboxes so that various interested parties will have channels
to communicate with HtC.

none

2. Composition and responsibilities of the
Board of directors
(1) independent directors

(2) regular evaluation of external auditors'
independence
3. Communication with stakeholders

4. information disclosure
(1) establishment of a corporate website
to disclose information regarding the
Company's ﬁnancials, business and
corporate governance
(2) other information disclosure channels
(e.g., maintaining an english-language
website, appointing responsible people
to handle information collection and
disclosure, appointing spokespersons,
webcasting investors conference)
5. operation of the Company's nomination
Committee, Compensation Committee, or
other functional committees of the Board
of directors

none

HtC has both Chinese and english websites. investor information pages provide information on ﬁnancial
and business issues and corporate governance, while product information pages provide information
relating to our products and services.

none

HtC has english and Chinese investor relations websites. dedicated personnel have been assigned to
collect and update information to websites. Chief financial oﬃcer Winston yung has been appointed
spokesperson and a spokesperson email address has been established. an investors conference is
convened online each quarter. recording and presentation are posted on the Company website after the
conference.

none

at the end-of-term elections of directors and supervisors at its ordinary shareholders' meeting of 2010,
HtC's Board elected the second session of the Compensation Committee in accordance with provisions
of the Compensation Committee articles of incorporation. that is, the Compensation Committee shall be
composed of three directors with the Chairman of the Board as ex oﬃcio Chairman, the remaining two
members appointed by the Board, and at least one member shall be an independent director. at the Board
meeting of 21 June 2010, director Ht Cho and independent director Chen-Kuo Lin were appointed to the
Compensation Committee, while Chairman Cher Wang was made its chairman. the principal duties of the
Compensation Committee include assisting the Board in supervising the Company's compensation system
and making appropriate recommendations.

none

7. other important information helpful to understanding HtC's corporate governance practices:
(1) employee rights and interests and employee care
HtC's employee code of conduct provides rules and guidelines for employees to follow when involved in company operations. all employees of the
Company and its branches and subsidiaries, regardless of their position, level, or location, need to abide by this code of conduct. any unlawful conduct,
either at the Company or otherwise is prohibited.
in the General principles, the Company commits to provide a safe and healthy work environment, fair opportunities, and provide principles for handling
Company assets and information.
in relations with Customers and suppliers, HtC commits to maintaining long-term relationships on a fair and reasonable basis in order to create win-win
partner relationships.
in the Conﬂicts of interest section, HtC provides principles of conduct to guide employees in situations of conﬂict.
1. HtC is committed to providing employees with a working environment free of discrimination or harassment (including sexual harassment). any form
of speech or conduct intended to incite hatred, conduct which could lead to accidental injury, or discrimination, will be immediately reported to the
responsible department for investigation and punishment.
2. due caution is to be exercised in dealing with employee personal information, which shall be handled so as to give due regard to both the needs of the
organization and the employee's right to privacy. disclosing employee personal information of any kind is inappropriate in any situation except where so
required by government laws or regulations.
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3. management of idle inventory: in addition to enhancing supplier
management and demand forecast, idle inventory is attended to early
and reserves for loss taken in an appropriate manner.
4. Global tax risk: Handling of tax issues and risks has been outsourced
to an international tax aﬀairs institution, which undertakes necessary
tax assessments and planning. a proposal for reorganization of the
Company's overseas subsidiaries was approved by the Board of
directors on april 30, 2009.
5. product design quality: to ensure quality of design, HtC has
established a department for design quality, which is exclusively
responsible for control and management of quality in hardware
and software, product safety, and conformance with environmental
regulations around the world. the department provides a complete
range of product testing and certiﬁcation.

(2) investor relations
HtC carries out its responsibility in the area of investor relations by
endeavoring to enhance the transparency and timeliness of information
disclosure. in addition to immediate announcement of material
information, monthly revenues are announced early, and preliminary
earnings are announced at the beginning of the month after the end of
each quarter. investor/press conferences are held in Chinese and english,
with an average of more than 100 institutional investors from taiwan
and abroad participating. information is also uploaded to the Company
website simultaneously.

(6) status of customer-protection policy implementation:
HtC strictly abides by the contracts it signs with customers to protect
consumer rights and interests. regular deliberation on and assessment
of the product Warranty reserve for after-sales services ensures that
allocations made to such reserves are reasonably suﬃcient and warranty
responsibilities of the Company are adequately expressed.
(7) Liability insurance provided by HtC to directors and supervisors:

in addition to the regularly scheduled information disclosures above,
HtC also actively participates in investment seminars held by local and
overseas securities ﬁrms and investor/press conferences; it also arranges
meetings with domestic and foreign investors in order to further explain
ﬁnancial ﬁgures and operational results that have already been publicly
released. also, more than ten international securities houses routinely
publish analyst reports on HtC, providing investors with independent,
professional investment analyses.
HtC's investor relations activities in 2010, were as follows: throughout
the year, HtC frequently participated in investor conferences in taiwan,
Hong Kong, singapore, new york, and Beijing, and periodically visited
main investors in the european, american and asia regions. at the
same time, foreign and domestic institutional investors and analysts
frequently visit our investor relations department or contact it by phone.
Going forward, HtC will continue to advance its work in every aspect of
investor relations in order to fulﬁll the responsibilities of a listed company
toward its investors and shareholders.
(3) supplier relations and rights of interested parties

6. in 2008, HtC adopted the "Guidelines for Corporate Governance". its provisions are based on the Corporate Governance Best-practice principles for tseC/
Gtsm Listed Companies issued on 10 november 2010, and were drafted with reference to the corporate governance practices of companies in taiwan and
abroad with outstanding records in that area. its purpose is to ensure that the Board has the authority to independently supervise corporate operations and to
make all decisions necessary to fulﬁll its responsibilities to shareholders and society.

2. receivables risk: receivables risk is managed eﬀectively by the
ﬁnance department to ensure receivables quality and lower the risk of
bad debt.

3. HtC's hiring policies comply with the relevant laws and regulations
and provide fair opportunities to both applicants and employees.
Hiring decisions are based on HtC's operational needs, nature of the
work, and applicants' abilities. fair opportunities are provided to both
applicants and employees. there will be absolutely no discrimination
on the basis of nonwork-related factors, such as race, skin color,
social position, language, belief, religion, political aﬃliation, family
origin, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, appearance, facial
features, mental or physical disabilities, previous union aﬃliation, or
any other factor protected by government order. relations between
the company and any employee shall be based on the principles of
respect and good faith, without considerations of private interest.
these principles are applied (but not limited) to recruitment, hiring,
training, promotion, pay scales, beneﬁts, transfers, and community
activities.

HtC has adopted procedures for transactions with speciﬁc Companies,
Group enterprises, and related parties to guarantee the rights and
interests of HtC and interested parties. purchasing contracts are also
signed with suppliers to govern to transactions and cooperative eﬀorts
to protect the lawful rights and interests of all parties.
(4) professional development of directors, supervisors, and managerial
oﬃcers:

HtC amended its articles of incorporation by passage of a resolution
at the 2006 ordinary shareholders' meeting. article 16 of the amended
articles of incorporation provides that the company may acquire
liability insurance for all directors and supervisors throughout their
term, within the scope of the indemnity liability they bear under the
law in connection with their business responsibilities. Currently, HtC
has purchased Liability insurance for directors, supervisors, and key
personnel (please see appendix 3 for details), thereby transferring
the risk arising from negligence or erroneous or improper conduct by
directors, supervisors, or key personnel and enhancing the soundness of
company management.
8.

if the Company has a self corporate governance evaluation or has
authorized any other professional organization to conduct such an
evaluation, the evaluation results, major deﬁciencies or suggestions, and
improvements are stated as follows:
as of 2010, HtC has not yet issued any corporate governance selfassessment report or engaged any other professional institute to perform
a corporate governance assessment. it has become a member of the
roC's Corporate Governance association (CGa). regular participation
of its directors, supervisors, and management-level personnel in the
CGa's directors and supervisors association provides opportunities for
exchanges with government, business, and academia on topics such as
enterprise orientation, strategy development, operations and management,
and ﬁnancial,legal, and corporate governance issues, thereby strengthening
HtC's enterprise management and corporate governance.

HtC directors and supervisors voluntarily attend seminars held by
professional training institutes as required by law and regulation. in
addition, to further strengthen implementation of corporate governance,
regular courses are also planned on ﬁnance, business, commerce, law,
and accounting subjects that are related to corporate governance, as
well as courses on internal control and responsibility in connection with
preparation of ﬁnancial reports. details of professional development
courses taken by directors, supervisors, and managerial oﬃcers for 2010
can be found in appendixes 1 and 2.
(5) status of implementation of risk management policies and standards for
measurement of risk:
HtC has adopted relevant risk management policies and standards for
measurement of risk, and has established a dedicated unit to carry out
risk management and risk measurement. With respect to implementation,
HtC has reassessed its business risks after transitioning into a brand
company. risk factors are also reﬂected in ﬁnancial statement items such
as bad debts and warranty reserves which are reviewed by supersivors
and Cpas to ensure they are reasonable and appropriate.
HtC's management of potential risk associated with promotion of its
global brand is explained below:
1. exchange rate risk: foreign exchange movements are monitored and
managed / hedged by dedicated personnel. reserves for on-book
liabilities are valued at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date,
reducing as much as possible the eﬀects of currency ﬂuctuations on
HtC's business and ﬁnances.
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Appendix 1: Continuous Education/Training of Directors and Supervisors
date of training
from
to
2010.06.21 2010.06.21

title
Chairman

name
Cher Wang

director

Wen-Chi Chen 2010.06.21

2010.06.21

securities & futures institute (sfi)

director

Ht Cho

2010.06.21

2010.06.21

securities & futures institute (sfi)

director

tan Ho-Chen

2010.06.21

2010.06.21

securities & futures institute (sfi)

independent director

Chen-Kuo Lin

2010.06.21

2010.06.21

securities & futures institute (sfi)

Juristic person
supervisor:
representative
supervisor

shao-Lun Lee 2010.06.22 2010.06.22 securities & futures institute (sfi)
po-Cheng Ko

organization
securities & futures institute (sfi)

2. review the competitiveness of the Company's executive compensation programs to ensure the attraction and retention of
executives and align interests of key leadership with that of the Company's shareholders.

training
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】

2010.06.03 2010.06.03 taiwan stock exchange Corporation (tWse) 2010 seminar on "responsible persons of Listed
Companies"-investor relations
advanced practice seminar of directors and
2010.06.21 2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)
supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
2010.06.22 2010.06.22 taiwan Corporate Governance association (tCGa) Corporate Governance and securities Law

Hours

notes

3
3

(5) HTC's exercise of corporate social responsibility:

3
3

item

3
3
resigned on 20
april 2011.

3
3
3

Appendix 2: Continuous Education/Training of Management Team
date of training organization
2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)

title
Corporate senior
executive vice
president & president
of engineering and
operation
General Counsel

name
fred Liu

Grace Lei

2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)

3

vice president

Cs Wang

2010.06.21

3

associate vice
president
associate vice
president

Jim Lin

2010.06.21

James Chen

2010.06.21
2010.09.13~
2010.09.14

special assistant of
Kenny tseng
procurement division
associate vice
edward Wang
president
Chief financial oﬃcer Hui-ming Cheng
& spokesman

training
advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】

advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
securities & futures institute (sfi) advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
securities & futures institute (sfi) advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
securities & futures institute (sfi) advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
accounting research and
international financial reporting standards (ifrs) Workshop (i): overview of ifrs
development foundation in taiwan and statements relating to assets and Liabilities

2010.10.15 accounting research and
development foundation in taiwan
2010.11.29 accounting research and
development foundation in taiwan
2010.12.22 accounting research and
development foundation in taiwan
2010.12.31 accounting research and
development foundation in taiwan
2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)
2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)
2010.06.21 securities & futures institute (sfi)

analysis of tax on foreign income, repatriation of funds to taiwan, and
investment-Linked insurance for tax savings
seminar on Legal Liability in relation to announcement of material information by
public Companies and Case analysis of violations
analysis of Letters of interpretation on financial accounting issues in the Latest
fiscal year
the Latest practices in accounting, taxation, and Customs aﬀairs relating to
international multilateral trade
advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】
advanced practice seminar of directors and supervisors (including independent directors)
【Corporate social responsibility】

Hours
3

note

3

insured object
all directors and
supervisors

2

all directors and
supervisors

insurance Company
fubon insurance Co., Ltd.
(insureds include HtC-appointed juristic person directors'
representatives at investee companies and key personnel)
fubon insurance Co., Ltd.
(insureds include HtC-appointed juristic person directors'
representatives at investee companies and key personnel)

insured amount (nt$)
1,019,550,000
1,019,550,000

reasons for discrepancy with the
Corporate social responsibility
Best practice principles for
tWse/Gtsm-Listed Companies

implementation status

exercising corporate governance
1. the Company's adoption of corporate social responsibility
> HtC upholds the ideal of comprehensive environmental protection, proper
policies and systems, and eﬀectiveness of their implementation.
management of health and safety, and eﬀective improvements in energy
eﬃciency. We provide and maintain a safe and healthy working environment
for our employees in order to create better quality of life for our employees,
customers, suppliers, and contractors, so that we may fulﬁll our corporate social
responsibilities and achieve the goal of sustainable corporate development. HtC
has now made basic commitments with respect to corporate social responsibility
(Csr), and our general aﬀairs department regularly reports to one of the directors
on the HtC board regarding the results of their implementation. for a description
of our Csr policies and a discussion of the eﬀectiveness of their implementation,
please see p. 67-71 of this annual report.

HtC has not yet adopted Csr
policies or system passed by the
Board of directors.

2. the operational status of the unit established by the Company
with exclusive or concurrent responsibility for Csr.

> HtC has appointed the general aﬀairs unit to be responsible for carrying out Csrrelated activities, and has engaged an outside professional institution, the afnor
Group, to provide professional consulting on the implementation of Csr matters.

through its general aﬀairs
department, HtC provides
regular reports to a member of
the Board of directors regarding
Csr activities and the status of
their implementation, but does
not regularly report to the full
Board of directors.

3. the holding of business ethics training and provision of
guidance on related matters on a regular basis for directors,
supervisors and employees, and the incorporation of business
ethics into its employee performance appraisal system.

> in June 2010, HtC engaged the securities and futures institute to provide training
in corporate social responsibility (the principal component of Csr) to its directors
and supervisors. HtC has also adopted an employee code of conduct to provide
rules and guidelines for employees during their execution of Company operations.
all employees at HtC and its branches and subsidiaries, regardless of their
position, rank, or location, are required to abide by this set of ethical standards.

HtC has not yet integrated
business ethics into employee
performance evaluations.

3
developing a sustainable environment

12

1. the status of the Company's eﬀorts to improve its eﬃciency in
the utilization of all resources and the use of recycled materials
with low environmental impact.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

4
3

2. the status of the Company's establishment of environmental
management systems appropriate to the nature of its industry.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

3

3. the status of the Company's establishment of dedicated
environmental management units or personnel to protect the
environment.

> HtC has established an environment and safety unit to be responsible for
matters relating to environmental management and maintenance. it also obtains
certiﬁcation annually from a third-party certiﬁcation institution with respect to
environmental protection and energy use.

none

4. the status of the Company's attention to the eﬀects of climate
change on its operations and its establishment of a Company
strategy for energy conservation and carbon and greenhouse
gas reduction.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

1. the status of the Company's observance of relevant labor
laws and regulations, protection its employees' legal rights
and interests, and establishment of appropriate management
methods and procedures.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

2. the status of the Company's provision of a safe and healthy
work environment for its employees and its provision of health
and safety education to its employees on a regular basis.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

3. the status of the Company's formulation and public release of
its policies on consumer rights and interests, and its provision
of transparent and eﬀective procedures for handling consumer
complaints regarding its products and services.

> HtC safeguards consumer rights and interests with various kinds of services
and information. it provides channels of communication that allow consumers
to contact HtC by many means, including the limited warranty sheet included
in the HtC phone package, customer service contact numbers in all countries,
a taiwan customer service center contact information card, information on its
oﬃcial website, live customer chat service, customer service e-mail, home pickup
and delivery service, a customer service center address, and customer satisfaction
(Csat) surveys.

none

4. the status of the Company's cooperation with suppliers to
jointly enhance corporate social responsibility.

> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.

none

5. the status of the Company's participation in commercial
> please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report.
activities, property donations, volunteer service or the provision
of free professional services, and participation in charitable
activities or community development.

none

6
3
3
3

resigned
on 1
January
2011.

Appendix 3: Directors, Supervisors and Key Personnel Liability Insurance
no
1

3. review trends in executive compensation and make recommendations concerning long-term incentive compensation plans,
including the use of equity-based plans, to the Board of directors.

insurance period
from: 2009.03.15
to: 2010.03.15

notes
insured amount:
Us$35,000,000

from: 2010.03.15
to: 2011.03.15

insured amount:
Us$35,000,000

(4) Composition, responsibilities and operation of the Compensation Committee
HtC has duly formulated the Compensation Committee articles of incorporation, under which the Compensation Committee
consists of the president, one director, and one independent director, to assist the Board in performing duties related to
compensation of senior management. the Committee is required to provide oversight and submit recommendations to the
Board on material issues relating to compensation or the Company's system of beneﬁts, and convenes on a quarterly basis to
implement the following matters:

protecting public interest

1. administer equity-based and employee beneﬁt plans.
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item

implementation status

reasons for discrepancy with the
Corporate social responsibility
Best practice principles for
tWse/Gtsm-Listed Companies

1. Statement on Internal Control

enhancing information disclosure
1. the Company's method of disclosure of relevant and reliable
information relating to Csr.

> HtC collects and compiles information on its Csr activities through the general
aﬀairs unit. an outside professional institution, the afnor Group, assists to ensure
the accuracy and reliability of the information disclosed.

none

2. the status of the Company's production of corporate social
responsibility reports disclosing the implementation of Csr
matters.

> as of 2010, HtC has not yet prepared a separate Csr report. it currently discloses
information on Csr-related activities and performance through its annual report.

HtC does not produce a
corporate social responsibility
report.

HtC Corporation

Statement on Internal Control
date: 1/21/2011

if the Company has formulated a set of its own corporate social responsibility best practice principles in accordance with the Corporate social responsibility Best practice principles for tWse/
Gtsm-Listed Companies, please describe any discrepancies between their operation and the principles as adopted
HtC has not yet adopted its own corporate social responsibility best practice principles; please refer to p. 67-71 of this annual report for a description of HtC's Csr-related activities.
any other important information helpful to understanding the Company's Csr-related operations (such as the status of its systems, measures, or performance in Csr activities relating to the
environment, community, contributions to society, social service, public interest, consumer rights and interests, human rights, health and safety, and other Csr-related activities:
please refer to p. 67-71 of this year's annual report for a description of HtC's Csr-related operations.
if the Company's products or its corporate social responsibility report have met the standards of a relevant certiﬁcation institution, please indicate:
HtC has obtained iso 14001 environmental management systems certiﬁcation and oHsas 18001 occupational health and safety management systems certiﬁcation.

(6) The status of the Company's exercise of good faith in management and adoption of
related measures:
HtC has always upheld the ﬁve major ideals of honesty, humility, simplicity, vitality, and innovation as its highest criteria for
operations. everyone within the Company, from the highest levels to the lowest, is asked to strictly uphold the spirit of these
ﬁve ideals, as well as abide by all laws, regulations, and rules. HtC has also formulated internal rules to ensure the exercise of
good faith in management and the observance of laws and regulations.

(7) For information on HTC's Guidelines for Corporate Governance and other codes of
practice, please refer to the HTC website at www.htc.com.
(8) Other important information helpful to understanding HTC's corporate governance:
due to a number of factors, including the shift in HtC's principal business operations in recent years to own-brand
manufacturing, the growing scale of its operations, and the continued expansion of overseas subsidiaries, HtC has continued
to examine and revise or adopt new rules and procedures which will enhance the eﬃciency of its operations and strengthen
risk management and corporate governance. over the recent years, in line with the formulation or amendment of relevant
securities laws and regulations, and in consideration of operational needs, HtC has adopted or revised its "procedures
for Board of directors meetings", "procedures for the acquisition or disposal of assets", "procedures for the Handling of
derivatives trading", "Guidelines for Corporate Governance", "procedures for shareholders' meetings", and "Bylaws for the
election of directors and supervisors". in addition, it has also adopted the "detailed Guidelines for the Handling of derivatives
transactions", "Credit policy and operation procedures", and "rules for assignment of directors and supervisors at investee
Companies", and revise implementation rules that guide its internal operations, such as the "transaction operating procedures
for speciﬁc Companies, enterprise Groups and related parties", "Budget management procedures", "Corporate Bylaws for
subsidiaries" and "operational procedures for Handling material inside information, and prevention of insider trading". Latest
drafts and amendments of the "operating procedures for the Handling of material inside information and prevention of insider
trading" are sent to all HtC employees via e-mail and posted on the internal website. the most updated version is posted on
both the corporate website and internal website. new employees are also trained on the prevention of insider trading.

the Company states the following with regard to its internal control system for 2010, based on the ﬁndings of a selfevaluation:
1. the Company is fully aware that establishing, operating, and maintaining an internal control system is the
responsibility of its Board of directors and management. the Company has established such a system aimed at
providing reasonable assurance to the achievement of objectives in the eﬀectiveness and eﬃciency of operations
(including proﬁts, performance, and safeguard of assets), reliability of ﬁnancial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.
2. an internal control system has inherent limitations. no matter how perfectly designed, an eﬀective internal control
system can only provide reasonable assurance of accomplishing the three goals mentioned above. furthermore,
the eﬀectiveness of an internal control system may change along with changes in environment or circumstances.
the internal control system of the Company contains self-monitoring mechanisms which allow the Company to
take corrective actions as soon as a deﬁciency is identiﬁed.
3. the Company judges the design and eﬀectiveness of its internal control system based on the criteria provided in
the regulations Governing the establishment of internal Control systems by public Companies promulgated by
the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan (the "regulations"). the criteria adopted by the regulations
divide internal control into ﬁve elements based on the process of management control: 1. control environment 2.
risk assessment and feedback 3. control activities 4. information and communication 5. monitoring. each element
further contains several items. please refer to the regulations for details.
4. the Company has evaluated the design and eﬀectiveness of its internal control system according to the aforesaid
criteria.
5. Based on the ﬁndings of the evaluation, it is concluded by the Company's internal control system (including
its supervision of subsidiaries), encompassing transparency of operational performance, reliability of ﬁnancial
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws, was eﬀectively designed and implemented and can provide
reasonable assurance to the achievement of the above-stated objectives.
6. this statement will become a major part of the content of the Company's annual report and prospectus, and will
be made public. any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in its content will entail legal liability under articles
20, 32, 171, and 174 of the securities and exchange Law.
7. this statement has been passed by the Board meeting held on 1/21/2011, where all of the six attending directors
aﬃrmed the content of this statement.

(9) The state of implementation of HTC's internal control system:

HTC Corporation

Chairman: Cher Wang

President: Peter Chou

2. External auditors' opinion on HTC's internal control: Not applicable
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(10) For the most recent ﬁscal year and during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of
printing of this annual report, there were no sanctions imposed upon the Company or
its internal personnel.

(12) Where, during the most recent ﬁscal year and current ﬁscal year up to the date of
printing of this annual report, no Director or Supervisor has expressed a dissenting
opinion with respect to a material resolution passed by the board of directors.

(11) Material Resolutions of the 2010 Shareholders Meeting and Board of Directors Meetings
during the most recent ﬁscal year and the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing
of this annual report.

(13) Summary of Resignations and Dismissals:

item
year 2010
Board of
directors
meeting

date

material resolutions

2010.01.26

1. adopted resolution on setting aside Company's 2010 dividend for employees.
2. adopted resolution to convene the 2010 annual General shareholders meeting, meeting date, time, and place, the
submission period and place for shareholders' proposals, the quota of independent directors, and the submission period
and place for shareholders' nominations.
3. adopted resolution to promote fred Liu to Corporate senior executive vice president and president of engineering and
operations.

Board of
directors
meeting
Board of
directors
meeting
Board of
directors
meeting

2010.02.09

1. adopted resolution for repurchase of the Corporation's shares and cancellation of such shares.

2010.03.22

1. adopted resolution for registering a change of share status to write-oﬀ 15,000,000 shares of Company's treasury stock
and setting the record date for the reduction of paid-up capital.

2010.04.28

1. adopted resolution for fiscal 2009 earnings distribution proposal
2. adopted resolution for capital increase through retained earnings and employee bonuses and issuance of new shares.
3. adopted resolution to amend the agenda for convening the 2010 annual General shareholders' meeting of the Company.
4. adopted resolution to entirely convert Company's shares to dematerialized form.

shareholders 2010.06.18
meeting

1. adoption of the fiscal 2009 Business report and financial statements.
2. adoption of the fiscal 2009 earnings distribution proposal.
3. adopted resolution to allocate earnings and employee bonuses to a capital increase and issuance of new shares.
4. adopted resolution to partially amend the articles of incorporation.
5. adopted resolution to partially amend the Company's procedures for the acquisition or disposal of assets.
6. adopted resolution to partially amend the Company's rules for endorsements and Guarantees.
7. adopted resolution to partially amend the Company's operational procedures for Lending funds to others.
8. adopted resolution to hold the re-election of directors and supervisors according to article 13 of the amended articles
of incorporation.
9. adopted resolution to remove the limitation on directors for non-competition.

note

item
type of personnel change
eﬀective date
name and title of the replaced person

resolution
principal financial oﬃcer
2011/1/1
Hui-ming Cheng , Chief financial oﬃcer & spokesman

name and title of the replacement
reason for the change

Winston yung, Chief financial oﬃcer
position adjustment due to Hui-ming Cheng's retirement and transfer to become an
advisor to the Board of directors.

internal audit oﬃcer
2011.04.30
vincent tseng, internal audit
director
Under process of appointment
resigned due to personal
career planning

III. Information On CPA Professional Fees:
1. Scale of CPA professional fees
accounting firm
deloitte & touche
please refer to
the notes for an
execution
summary of the
material
resolutions of
the shareholders
meeting

name of Cpa
ming-Hsien, yang
tze-Chun, Wang

audit period
years ended december 31, 2010

scale of fee
1 Under nt$ 2,000,000
2

nt$ 2,000,000 ～ nt$ 4,000,000

3

nt$ 4,000,000 ～ nt$ 6,000,000

audit fee

note

non-audit fee

item
total fee

v

v

4 nt$ 6,000,000 ～ nt$ 8,000,000
5

nt$ 8,000,000 ～ nt$ 10,000,000

v

Board of
directors
meeting

2010.07.11

1. adopted resolution on a date of record for the distribution of dividends as well as the dates of the capital increase, the
closing period for the share transfer and the delivery date of cash dividends.
2. adopted resolution for the repurchase of the Company's shares and transfer of such shares to employees.

Board of
directors
meeting
Board of
directors
meeting

2010.07.28

1. adopted resolution for Company's subsidiary in the UK, HtC europe Co., Ltd., to purchase an oﬃce building.

2. Information on CPA professional fees

2010.10.29

1. adopted resolution on the revised budget for Company's subsidiary in the UK, HtC europe Co., Ltd., to purchase an
oﬃce building.
2. adopted resolution on the budget for the oﬃce building construction plan in taoyuan.
3. adopted resolution for the repurchase of the Company's shares and transfer of such shares to employees.
4. adopted resolution for the repurchase of the Company's shares and cancellation of such shares.

(1) The amounts of both audit and non-audit fees as well as details of non-audit services are disclosed as follows:

Board of
directors
meeting

2010.11.22

1. adopted resolution to acquire real property from a related party, via technologies, inc.

Board of
directors
meeting
year 2011
Board of
directors
meeting

2010.12.22

1. adopted resolution for replacement of Company's Chief financial oﬃcer and spokesperson.

2011.01.21

1. adopted resolution to convene the 2011 annual General shareholders meeting, meeting date, time, and place, the
submission period and place for shareholders' proposals.
2. adopted resolution for the capital expenditure and the capital injection in the subsidiary HtC electronics (shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

Board of
directors
meeting
Board of
directors
meeting

2011.03.17

1. adopted resolution for the adjusted budget for the oﬃce building construction plan in taoyuan.

2011.04.30

1. adopted resolution for fiscal 2010 earnings distribution proposal.
2. adopted resolution for capital increase through retained earnings and employee bonuses and issuance of new shares.
3. adopted resolution to amend the agenda for convening the 2011 annual General shareholders´ meeting of the
Company.
4. adopted resolution for the acquisition of 8 lots of land (lot number 1896 et al, etc.) located in taoyuan City, dashulin
section adjacent to the taoyuan headquarters.
5. adopted resolution for the replacement of Company's spokesperson.
6. adopted resolution for the resignation of Company's internal audit oﬃcer.
7. adopted resolution for the subsidiary in the Us to purchase land and construct an oﬃce building. resolution resolved
to authorize the Chairperson and a speciﬁc person appointed by the Chairperson to execute and process the relevant
details of the land purchase and oﬃce building construction within a budget authorized by the board of directors.

6 over nt$ 10,000,000

Unit: nt$ thousands

accounting firm
deloitte & touche

name of Cpa audit fee
ming-Hsien yang,
tze-Chun Wang

9,840

system
Company
design registration
-

150

Human
resource
-

non-audit fee
others
(note) subtotal Cpa's audit period note
transfer pricing report, international tax
years ended consultation, review of shareholders'
10,422
10,572
december 31,2010 meeting annual report and Cpa opinion
on earnings capitalization.

(2) The company does not change its accounting ﬁrm.
(3) Audit fees paid by the company for the current year are not lower than those for the previous ﬁscal year by 15
percent or more.

note:1. acting pursuant to resolutions adopted at the 2010 regular shareholders meeting regarding the earnings distribution proposal and the earnings capitalization proposal, HtC
completed the following actions in 2010: an amendment registration to reﬂect its capitalization of earnings; distributions of cash and stock dividends; and distributions of
employee bonus shares and cash bonuses.
note:2. acting pursuant to a resolution adopted at the 2010 regular shareholders meeting regarding the proposal to amend the HtC articles of incorporation, HtC has completed an
amendment registration with the ministry of economic aﬀairs.
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IV. Information on replacement of certiﬁed public accountant:

(I) Changes in shareholdings of Directors, Supervisors, Managers, and Major Shareholders
Unit：shares

1. Regarding the former certiﬁed public accountant
date of replacement
reason for replacement

Whether the engagement was voluntarily ended or declined by Cpa

audit report expressing other than an unqualiﬁed opinion during the two most
recent years
Whether there was any disagreement between the company and the former Cpa

other matters required for disclosure under article 10, subparagraph 5, item
1, point 4 of the regulations Governing information to be published in annual
reports of public Companies

title

name

director

Ht Cho

director
director
independent director
independent director
supervisor

Wen-Chi Chen
tan Ho-Chen
Chen-Kuo Lin
Josef felder
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.
representative: shao-Lun Lee
Caleb ou-yang

none

Chief executive oﬃcer & president

peter Chou

yes

Corporate senior executive vice president and
president of engineering and operation
Chief financial oﬃcer (note1)
Chief operating oﬃcer (note 2)

Winston yung
matthew vincent Costello

Chief engineering oﬃcer

david Chen

Chief marketing oﬃcer
Chief product oﬃcer (note 3)
Chief strategy oﬃcer (note 4)

John Wang
Kouji a Kodera
ronald allen Louks

Chief information oﬃcer

eric Chou

General Counsel

Grace Lei

vice president

Cs Wang

vice president (note 5)

vice president (note 6)
vice president

Georges Boulloy
Gregory fisher
Lotus Chen

vice president

simon Hsieh

vice president

simon Lin

vice president

WH Liu

associate vice president

Jim Lin

associate vice president

ralph Wang

12/28/2009
due to adjustments in the managerial organization at deloitte & touche, the certifying
Cpas have been changed from ming-Hsien yang and Kwan-Chung Lai to ming-Hsien
yang and tze-Chun Wang.
Condition
Concerned person
accountant
appointer
voluntarily ended the engagement
declined further engagement
-

accounting principles or practices
financial report disclosure
audit scope or procedure
other

no
v
description
none

2. Regarding the successor certiﬁed public accountant
name of the accounting ﬁrm
name of the certiﬁed public accountant
date of engagement
Consultation with the newly engaged accountant regarding the accounting treatment of a speciﬁed transaction, or the type of
audit opinion that might be rendered on the company's ﬁnancial report prior to the formal engagement of the successor
Written views from the successor certiﬁed public accountant regarding the matters on which the company did not agree with
the former certiﬁed public accountant

deloitte & touche
ming-Hsien yang、tze-ChunWang
12/28/2009
none
none

3. There is no response letter from the former CPA regarding the matters under Article 10, subparagraph 5, item 1,
and Article 10, subparagraph 5, item 2, of these the Regulations Governing Information to be Published in Annual
Reports of Public Companies.

V.

The Company's Chairperson, General Manager, or any Managerial
Oﬃcer in charge of ﬁnance or accounting matters has not in the most
recent year hold a position at the accounting ﬁrm of its certiﬁed public
accountant or at an aﬃliated enterprise of such accounting ﬁrm.

Chairman

supervisor
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fred Liu

associate vice president

steve Wang

associate vice president (note 7)

thomas Chien

associate vice president
associate vice president

James Chen
edward Wang

special assistant of procurement division

Kenny tseng

director

Joey Cheng

president- north america & Latin america

Jason mackenzie

president- emea region

florian seiche

vice president, apaC

Jack tong

vice president, Head of China (note 8)
supervisor (note 9)

ram yam
po-Cheng Ko

Chief innovation oﬃcer (note 11)

Horace Luke

Chief financial oﬃcer & spokesperson (note 10) Hui-ming Cheng
executive vice president (note 12)

vice president (note 13)

VI. Transfer of equity interests and/or pledge of or change in equity
interests by a Director, Supervisor, Managerial Oﬃcer, or shareholder
with a stake of more than 10 percent during the most recent ﬁscal year
and the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing of this annual
report.

Cher Wang

Jason Juang

Cliﬀ Chiang

vice president (note 14)
vice president (note 15)
associate vice president (note 16)

david Wang
KH tung
andy Chen

associate vice president (note 17)

Cliﬀ Chou

director (note 18)

vincent tseng

note 1 :
note 2 :
note 3 :
note 4 :
note 5 :
note 6 :
note 7 :
note 8 :
note 9 :
note 10 :
note 11 :
note 12 :
note 13 :
note 14 :
note 15 :
note 16 :
note 17 :
note 18 :

2010
Change in quantity
of pledged shares

Change in quantity
of shareholding

2011.01.01~2011.04.17
Change in quantity
of pledged shares

0

(6,000)

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
70,000

0
0
0
0

1,987,269

0

0

0

0
329,403
(70,000)
143,611
(624,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(81,000)

0

0

0
0

0
0

250,000

(113,000)

(250,000)

0
0
0

(66,000)
(2,645)
(2,813)
5,000
(10,000)

0
0
0

0

(19,000)

0

0

(93,000)

0

0
0

0

0

(34,000)

0

0

(22,000)

0

0

(55,452)

0

0

(70,000)

0

0

(17,000)

0

0

(20,000)

0

0

(21,750)

0

-

0
(1,000)
(8,000)

0

Change in quantity
of shareholding

1,236,844
9,457
(173,000)
1,015,482
0
0
0

-

0
58,078
(154,000)
34,400
20,000
16,667
11,472
(10,000)
17,954
(20,000)
33,460
(39,000)
0

-

32,546
30,350
(33,350)
34,402
(9,000)
36,073
(74,000)
25,691
(110,000)
14,262
(55,000)
29,750
(26,000)

-

12,000
10,800
10,265
(3,000)

8,600

53,616
(88,000)
47,374
(20,331)
31,565
(25,000)

0

1,850
47,788
(85,000)
(63,000)

3,445

0
(3,000)
0
30,297
(87,000)
6,965

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

(3,000)

0

0

(18,600)

0

0

(5,944)

0

-

(63,000)

0

0

(14,000)

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

(74,063)

0

0
0

0

0
0
0

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

(15,000)

0

0

(24,000)

0

Winston yung took oﬃce on January 1, 2011.
matthew vincent Costello took oﬃce on november 1, 2010.
Kouji a Kodera took oﬃce on may 3, 2010.
ronald allen Louks took oﬃce on may 3, 2010.
Georges Boulloy took oﬃce on december 1, 2010.
Gregory fisher took oﬃce on february 21, 2011.
thomas Chien took oﬃce on april 1, 2011.
ram yam took oﬃce on march 17, 2011.
po-Cheng Ko left oﬃce on april 20, 2011.
Hui-ming Cheng left oﬃce on January 1, 2011.
Horace Luke left oﬃce on april 30, 2011.
Jason Juang left oﬃce on July 31, 2010.
Cliﬀ Chiang left oﬃce on october 29, 2010.
david Wang left oﬃce on June 12, 2010.
KH tung left oﬃce on January 5, 2010.
andy Chen left oﬃce on february 6, 2010.
Cliﬀ Chou left oﬃce on march 1, 2011.
vincent tseng left oﬃce on april 30, 2011.
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(II) Stock transfer with related party:
name
fred Liu
fred Liu

reason for transfer
Gift
Gift

date of
transaction
04/16/2010
08/27/2010

party to transaction
Hui-Chin yang
Wan-yun Liu

relationship of other party in transaction to Company, director, supervisor and
shareholder holding 10% or more of the total number of shares issued by the Company
spouse
Children

shares
500,000
25,000

price
-

(III) Stock Pledged with related party: none

VII. Related parties, as deﬁned in the Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 6, among the Company's 10 largest shareholders.
name (note 1)
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.
(representative: su-Lan Chiang)
Way-Lien technology inc.
(representative: su-Lan Chiang)
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei
Branch in custody for europaciﬁc
Growth fund
Cher Wang
Hon-mou investment Co., Ltd.
(representative: su-Lan Chiang)
Wen-Chi Chen
HtC depositary receipts
special account under custodial
administration of Citibank n.a
deutsche Bank in custody for pine
international value fund
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei
Branch in custody for oppenheimer
developing market fund
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei
Branch in custody for Capital Word
Growth and income fund

shareholding under spouse and
children of minor age

shareholding under
the title of third party

shares

%

shares

%

shares

%

41,732,658

5.10%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

35,864,982

4.39%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

33,900,610

4.15%

0

0.00%

0

25,973,740

3.18%

21,325,133

2.61%

21,809,601

2.67%

0

21,325,133

2.61%

20,055,170

top 10 shareholders who are related parties to each
other. (note 2)

note

name
>Way-Lien technology inc.
>Hon-mou investment Co., Ltd.
>Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.
>Hon-mou investment Co., Ltd.

relationship
>same chairman
>same chairman
>same chairman
>same chairman

0.00%

none

none

0

0.00%

0.00%

0

0.00%

>Wen-Chi Chen
>Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.
>Way-Lien technology inc.

>spouse
>same chairman
>same chairman

25,973,740

3.18%

0

0.00%

>Cher Wang

>spouse

2.45%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

none

none

18,493,671

2.26%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

none

none

13,808,740

1.69%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

none

none

13,350,000

1.63%

0

0.00%

0

0.00%

none

none

VIII. Total number of shares and total equity stake held in the same enterprise
by the Company, its Directors and Supervisors, Managers directly or
indirectly
2010.12.31 Unit: share; dollar; ％
investments by HtC

total investments

shares/investment
amount
225,018,083 shares
0
0

%

shares/investment amount

%

100%
0%
0%

0%
100%
100%

High tech Computer (suZhou) Co., Ltd.

0

0%

exedea inc.
HtC nippon Corporation
HtC Brasil

0
0
0

0%
0%
0%

HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)

0

0%

0
18,000,000 shares
20,633,883 shares
Usd20,000,000
(ntd662,388 thousand)
100 shares
1,000 shares
1,987,399 shares
Usd1,500,000
(ntd49,845 thousand)

HtC HK, Limited

0

0%

781,440,695 shares

100%

781,440,695 shares

100%

HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL

0

0%

18,550 shares
eUr10,000
(ntd422 thousand)
0
185,625 shares
0
2,000,000 shares
400,000 shares

100%

18,550 shares
eUr10,000
(ntd422 thousand)
20,000,000 shares
187,500 shares
206,218,309 shares
2,000,000 shares
400,000 shares

100%

H.t.C(B.v.i) Corp.
HtC america, inc.
HtC eUrope Co., Ltd.

HtC italia srL
Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.
pt. High tech Computer indonesia
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd.
High tech Computer (H.K.) Limited
HtC (australia and new Zealand) pty. Ltd.
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0

0%

20,000,000 shares
1,875 shares
206,218,309 shares
0
0

100%
1%
100%
0%
0%

r e p o r t

100%
100%
100%
99.99%
100%

100%
0%
99%
0%
100%
100%

shares/investment
amount
225,018,083 shares
18,000,000 shares
20,633,883 shares
Usd20,000,000
(ntd662,388 thousand)
100 shares
1,000 shares
1,987,399 shares
Usd1,500,000
(ntd49,845 thousand)

0
0
30,000,000 shares

0%
0%
100%

0

0%

0

0%

HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.

0

0%

HtC (thailand) Limited
one & Company design, inc.
HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.
HtC innovation Limited

0
0
0
0

0%
0%
0%
0%

HtC Communication Co., Ltd.

0

0%

HtC i investment Corporation

29,500,000 shares
eUr280
(ntd13 thousand)
0
24,500,000 shares
0
0
0
0
0
0

100%

HtC netherlands B.v.
Huada digital Corporation
HtC france Corporation
HtC america Holding, inc.
HtC america innovation, inc.
HtC south eastern europe LLC.
HtC nordic aps
abaxia

1%
0%
100%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

99.99%
100%
0%

100%

858,767 shares
500,000 shares
30,000,000 shares
Usd101,000,000
(ntd3,162,105 thousand)
10,000,000 shares
60,000 shares
25,000 shares
5,000 shares
Usd27,500,000
(ntd891,326 thousand)
29,500,000 shares
eUr28,000
(ntd1,348 thousand)
18,000 shares
24,500,000 shares
6,500,000 shares
23,617,151 shares
1,000 shares
150 shares
80,000 shares
805,716 shares
Usd20,000
(ntd660 thousand)
100 shares

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%
99%
100%
0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

99.99%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

HtC Germany GmbH

0

0%

25,000 shares

100%

25,000 shares

100%

HtC iberia, s.L.

0

0%

3,006 shares

100%

3,006 shares

100%

note:HtC Long-term investments.

note 1 : the top 10 shareholders shall all be listed; for institutional shareholders, the name of the entity and the name of its representative shall be listed separately.
note 2 : mutual relationships of shareholders, including judicial and natural persons, shall be disclosed.

Long-term investments (note)

BLrsoft
HtC poland sp. z o.o.

858,767 shares
500,000 shares
0
Usd101,000,000
(ntd3,162,105 thousand)
10,000,000 shares
60,000 shares
25,000 shares
5,000 shares
Usd27,500,000
(ntd891,326 thousand)
0
eUr27,720
(ntd1,335 thousand)
18,000 shares
0
6,500,000 shares
23,617,151 shares
1,000 shares
150 shares
80,000 shares
805,716 shares
Usd20,000
(ntd660 thousand)
100 shares

HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.

2011.04.17
shareholding

HtC philippines Corporation
HtC india private Limited
HtC investment Corporation

%
100%
100%
100%

IX. Corporate Social Responsibility
Report

management standards to eﬀectively manage carbon
emissions and reduce their resulting impact on global
climate change.

HtC upholds the ideals of comprehensive environmental
protection, proper health and safety management,
and progressive improvement in energy eﬃciency,
and provide a safe and healthy working environment
for our employees. for the beneﬁts of its employees,
customers, suppliers, and contractors, and to achieve
sustainable corporate development, HtC has made the
following basic commitments in the area of corporate
social responsibility:

in energy saving, HtC is reducing electricity use by
implementing time-controlled lighting, installing infrared
sensor switches, and replacing t8 lighting with energy
saving t5 ﬁxtures in plants and oﬃces. from 2010, it
has successively converted to the use of energy saving
Led lighting in its newly built oﬃces and plants in
taoyuan, Hsindian, and tainan.

> HtC will scrupulously abide by all local laws and
regulations.
> HtC will protect employees' work-related rights and
interests and ensure fair employment opportunities.
> HtC will actively participate in energy saving, carbon
reduction, and environmental protection.
> HtC will be transparent in its management.
> HtC will continue to innovate in products and
services to raise the level of customer satisfaction.
> HtC will enhance shareholder interests, while
supporting underprivileged groups, charitable and
public service activities.

100%
100%
100%
99.99%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

as the Company grows and develops, HtC must
respond to environmental, safety, and health issues
driven by increasing level of production. each year,
HtC receives aﬃrmation from third-party certiﬁcation
institutions for eﬀective implementation of iso14001
and oHsas 18001 standards. from 2010, HtC has
implemented the eiCC (electronic industry Citizenship
Coalition) Code of Conduct and the iso 5001 energy
management standards, as it continues to strengthen its
corporate social responsibility (Csr) in environmental
protection and eﬃcient use of energy.
HtC is working to monitor and reduce carbon emission
at its production facilities in taoyuan and around
taiwan. the Company uses the iso 5001 energy

HtC continues to reduce the volume of industrial waste
resulting from its manufacturing processes and increase
resource recycling. actual recycling rate for HtC mobile
phones, including reuse, recovery and recycling, far
exceeds the requirements of the eU Weee (Waste
electrical and electronic equipment) standards.
in the area of health and safety, HtC begins by
assessing risks and adopting necessary measures in
order to reduce accidents related to manufacturing,
equipment, working environment, or chemical exposure.

ISO Management Systems
Based on the concept of sustainable management,
HtC strives to achieve the greatest possible operating
performance, but is also committed to environmental
protection and employee care. HtC implements
the following management systems: the iso 14001
environment management system, the oHsas 18001
occupational health and safety management standards
(2007 standards), the ts 16949 and tL 9000 quality
management system, the ieCQ QC 080000 hazardous
substance process management standards (2005
standards), and eiCC electronic industry guidelines.

Employee Care
HtC's employees are its most valuable asset-the crucial
factor that allows it to compete successfully in the
global marketplace. HtC provides comprehensive safety
and health management, a friendly, healthy working
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environment, and professional employee assistance
programs. our employees understand our commitment
to their welfare. participation in HtC's family day
by employees and their families also helps promote
identiﬁcation with Company values and understanding
of the Company's commitment to public interest,
health, and the environment.
Safety and Health Management
the oHsas 18001 occupational health and safety
management standards and HtC workplace accident
prevention plans are the key elements of our eﬀorts
to prevent the possible occurrence of workplace
accidents. Key points of implementation include
observing health and safety laws and regulations,
identifying hazards as a means of lowering risk, creating
standards for management of harmful and dangerous
substances, providing information on health and safety,
and implementing management of contractors. all
employees participate in the programs for reduction
of health and safety risks. emergency incidents caused
by human error or natural disasters, including incidents
such as ﬁre, explosions, typhoons, accidental substance
releases, mechanical equipment injuries, contagious
diseases, or earthquakes, are managed through
prevention in-advance, response measures during the
incident, and critical appraisal and feedback after-thefact. in addition, HtC regularly conducts emergency
response drills and ﬁreﬁghting exercises to ensure that
the impact of any accident on employee safety and
Company assets is minimized.
HtC has established a response organization at
the corporate level for major infectious diseases
to ensure proper handling of any suspected cases.
implementation of the response plan is outlined below:
> the environment, Health and safety Committee
meets regularly, focusing on the environmental, safety,
and health projects under implementation during
the given quarter. during the meetings, committee
members and HtC department representatives
hear reports on issues such as achievement of
improvement goals, analyses of accidents, employee
health promotion, implementation of environment
projects, and the results of testing carried out in
employee work environments.
> ever since its founding, HtC has undertaken risk
assessments that target its production processes,
equipment, and use of chemical products. it adopts
measures necessary on the basis of the assessment
results in order to reduce accidents caused by
processes, equipment, or working environments, and
to reduce harmful exposure to chemical products.
measures include:
• Chemical substances management
• regular inspections of dangerous machinery and
equipment
• employee education, training, and guidance,
including general labor safety and health related
education and ﬁrst-aid training.
• regular compilation and statistical analysis of
accidents occurred.
• notice and explanations in relation to hazardous
conditions and dynamic management of the work
area at irregular intervals.
Creating a friendly workplace
HtC provides its employees with a variety of services,
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including a convenience store, coﬀee shop, travel
agency, health center and resident physician, ﬁtness
center, outdoor multi-sport playing ﬁeld, game area,
massage station, and library. to meet the diverse needs
of employees, it has also actively expanded green
spaces, designed facilities for easy access by workers
and visitors with physical disabilities, and provided
breast feeding rooms for mothers.
in addition to providing a comfortable and friendly
work environment as described above, HtC is also very
concerned about measures closely related to the lives
and well-being of its employees, such as providing
appropriate air quality control and lighting in work
areas, to ensure that its employees can work in the best
possible environment.
Healthy work environment
in order to provide a healthier work environment for its
employees, HtC has set up a health center to provide
employee health care, wellness promotion, health
management, and related consulting. regular checkups are provided (new employee physical exams,
yearly exams, and special exams). Health management
includes setting up basic health data ﬁles, follow-up
exams and tracking for reported problems, analysis
of yearly check-up data, management of chronic
conditions, and interviews and follow-up on special
conditions. other services provided to help safeguard
employee health include ﬁrst-aid training, health
care provided through consultation with a resident
physician, prevention of occupational illnesses, epidemic
prevention, and sharing of health education information.
Lifestyle diseases are usually the result of a buildup of
long-ignored danger signals. HtC's health center works
together with other health care providers to help track
and provide diagnosis and treatment to employees
belonging to high-risk groups, and assists employees
with prevention and management of any such
conditions through accurate understanding and lifestyle
changes. in addition, with facilities such as the health
center, library, ﬁtness center, massage rooms/stations,
and multi-sport playing ﬁeld, HtC also provides
employees with outlets for relieving pressure so that
they can develop the habit of exercising and taking care
of their own well-being. HtC also creates a smoke-free
working environment, providing information on giving
up tobacco and activities for smokers wanting to quit.
Employee assistance programs
many employees in the modern workplace experience
psychological burdens arising from the fast pace of
life or the pressures of their lives, families, or work
obligations. through a program oﬀered in cooperation
with the Hsinchu Lifeline, HtC provides its employees
with opportunities for professional psychological
counseling while ensuring that they receive all the
necessary guarantees of privacy. regular and irregular
counseling services are arranged and informative
classes available to all employees in the areas of work
and career, family and relatives, relationships, and
physical and psychological stress. Classes include
awareness promotion, department head consultations,
sensitivity training for entry-level managers, and
physical and psychological stress-relief groups to help
reduce the negative impact of work-related stress.
Family day
every year, HtC invites employees and their families
to participate in family day activities to promote
family values and help employees and their families
understand HtC corporate culture and values. on

family day, employees and their families are invited
to participate in enjoyable activities and share in the
Company's accomplishments. the theme of the 2010
family day was "green life", with activities centering on
HtC's three principles of "public interest, health, and
the environment." the "health" aspect was emphasized
through an event emphasizing love for walking: "6000
steps a day brings health one step at a time." this event
engaged the interest of employees, and during the
course of 3 months, 243 employees from 10 diﬀerent
departments participated, logging a total of 69,228,000
steps.
Human rights guarantees
HtC has adopted non-discriminatory hiring and
management rules that respect the ethnicity, gender,
and beliefs of its employees. it has also instituted an
equal pay for equal work policy, and provides wages,
compensation, and welfare beneﬁts competitive with
the marketplace.
to ensure proper management and prevent exploitation
or unequal treatment of foreign workers, HtC enters
into contracts directly with intermediary companies
supplying foreign labor as a guarantee of their rights
and interests. medical checkups are also provided with
the same frequency and covering the same items as
local workers to help guarantee the health of foreign
workers.

3. Environmental protection
in addition to having obtained iso 1400 certiﬁcation
for environment management, HtC also takes the
initiative in observing local environment-related laws
and regulations in carrying out related environmental
work. it also actively promotes energy-saving and
waste-reduction through measures such as replacing
traditional lighting with energy-saving t5 and Led
lighting ﬁxtures, introducing water-saving devices and
recycling and reusing rainwater.
HtC has placed eﬀective controls on the use of airconditioning systems, its dormitories use heat pumps
in place of natural gas, and waste is also separated for
recycling. since 2008, in response to global concerns
about greenhouse gases, it undertook an inventory
of its carbon emissions and actively assessed related
carbon reduction strategies. its goal is to help fulﬁll
its responsibility as a corporate citizen by reducing
emissions of the greenhouse gas carbon dioxide.
in research and development of green products, HtC
emphasizes each phase of a product's life, from its
design, manufacture, use, up through the end-of-life
to ﬁnd new ideas for eco- friendly product design. the
thinking behind HtC's eco-friendly product designs
extends from the end-of-the-pipeline treatment directly
back to the initial design stages, using design concepts
centered around low toxicity, energy eﬃciency, and
recyclability to develop a variety of new, greener
products.
Measures to improve energy savings and energy-saving
promotion
during their construction, both production facilities
and oﬃces incorporated water- and electricitysaving design concepts. measures to improve energy
conservation continue to be implemented during
operation. HtC also continues to promote measures for
conservation of water and electricity and environmental
protection, which are described brieﬂy below:

• Greening the area around its facilities through
landscaping and tree planting to help reduce
carbon dioxide emissions and global warming.
• installation of water treatment facilities to reduce
release of polluted water.
• Using recycled water for irrigation in green
landscape projects and for washroom ﬂushing.
• Creating a rainfall storage reservoir to collect, ﬁlter,
and use rainwater.
• installation of reduced-ﬂow faucets in break rooms,
shower rooms and restrooms and use two-stage
ﬂushing systems to reduce unnecessary water use.
• promoting and enhancing reduction of ordinary
waste and sorting of recyclable waste.
• frequency converters are added to motors and
pumps to help save energy.
Greenhouse gases inventory management
HtC is actively carrying out its responsibility as a
corporate citizen to protect the earth's environment.
in line with implementation of the guidance plan
for greenhouse gas reduction by the industrial
development Bureau of the ministry of economic
aﬀairs, HtC implements inventories of the sources and
volumes of its greenhouse gas emissions in accordance
with iiso14064-1 standards.
• inventorying greenhouse gas emissions allows
better understanding of energy use and is helpful in
establishing energy-saving strategies.
• at the beginning of each year, HtC implements
inspection of its greenhouse gas inventory by a
certiﬁcation agency and recieves an inventory
certiﬁcate.
• HtC discloses information on its greenhouse
gas emissions each year through the taiwan
environmental protection agency's national
Greenhouse Gas registration platform and
information disclosure through international
nonproﬁt organizations.
Greenhouse gases are not currently listed as statutory
air pollutants in taiwan, and HtC currently has no
investment to directly measure the emissions of
those gases. it primarily makes use of the emissions
coeﬃcient method applied by the majority of
organizations in taiwan, and applies the chemical
mass balance method as a secondary method. HtC's
2008 greenhouse gas emissions results, focusing
primarily on the organizational boundary of its taoyuan
headquarters, showed that electricity use was the main
source of emissions, which amounted to about 21,000
metric tons. extending the organizational boundary
to include all HtC taiwan oﬃces as well as its taoyuan
production facility in 2009, initial estimates placed its
volume of greenhouse gas emissions at 30,000 metric
tons. the expansion of the taoyuan facilities in 2010
correspondingly altered the organizational boundary,
causing total greenhouse gas emissions to increase to
34,800 metric tons. Going forward, HtC will undertake
further measures to reduce greenhouse gases in
anticipation of the introduction of the iso 50001
energy management standards.
Eco-friendly products
in research and development of eco-friendly products,
early 2000 marked the introduction of design process
in which each stage of design, manufacture, use, and
even the end of product life cycle were scrutinized to
ﬁnd new room for eco-friendly design. the thinking
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behind our eco-designs extends from their end-of-thepipeline treatment directly back to the initial design
stages; one consideration is the reduction in the use
of environmentally harmful substances such as lead,
cadmium, hexavalent chromium, and mercury. another
requirement is increasing recycling and the ratio of
reusable components in products in order to reduce
negative environmental impacts. a variety of green
products have therefore been developed using design
concepts based on low toxicity, energy eﬃciency, and
recyclability. these environmentally friendly products
not only meet customer needs but also conform with
international environmental regulations and help
enhance HtC's green competitiveness and its vision of
sustainable corporate development.
> Low toxicity design
in response to trends in international environmental
regulation and related concerns of our international
customers, HtC was already placing controls on
harmful substances in year 2000. By 2005, it had
produced the world's ﬁrst pda phone that met
standards of the eU's roHs directive (restriction on
the Use of Certain Hazardous substances in electrical
and electronic equipment directive). since then, HtC
has required that all parts, modules, and materials
delivered to its plants conform with its substances
control checklist. its control of restricted substances
goes beyond the six controlled substances listed in
the roHs directive, and includes other substances
such as formaldehyde, ozone-depleting substances,
and chlorinated paraﬃn, which, pursuant to
international environmental laws and regulations or
requirements of our international customers, are also
deemed controlled substances.
in hazardous substance management, HtC obtained
QC-080000 certiﬁcation from the ieCQ (international
electrotechnical Commission Quality assessment
system) in 2007. in 2010, it completed the secondstage recertiﬁcation audit to ensure that its hazardous
substance management system continues to operate
eﬀectively on an ongoing basis.
> energy-eﬃcient designs
from the point of view of the overall life cycle of an
electronic communications product, the period of
use by the consumer is the most energy-intensive.
most production of greenhouse gases in connection
with those products occurs during this stage. for
that reason, HtC puts a lot of emphasis on energy
eﬃciency during the research and development
process. as part of our concern for energy eﬃciency,
all HtC product power supplies must conform to the
international energy use standards below:
•
•
•
•

the Us epa energy star program
California energy Commission standards
the eU Code of Conduct
the eU eup directive

in addition, our r&d team has developed outstanding
power management systems. Based on consumer
habits, handsets automatically switch to energysaving mode that reduces energy use and extends
battery life. some models also include light sensors
that trigger an automatic LCd backlighting function,
which not only creates more readable displays but
also saves energy.
> design for recyclability
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HtC makes design-for-recyclability assessments
and other simulations part of its initial research
and development. it disassembles products and
performs material simulations to estimate materials
compositions and recycling rates. Labeling of
materials, simpliﬁed component design, and design
for ease of disassembly are strategies used to provide
feedback on designs to the r&d team. Current HtC
products are designed to meet both current and
future recycling standards.
> Green packaging
in addition to visual appeal and packaging strength,
HtC's green packaging concepts extend to
developing materials that satisfy the environmental
design concepts of low toxicity, low volume, and
recyclability.
• Low-toxicity design
- packaging materials meet the standards of the eU
directive on packaging materials. Levels of lead,
cadmium, mercury, and hexavalent chromium are
all below legal limits.
- packaging materials use no pvCs.
- packaging materials contain no ods (ozone
depleting substances) restricted by the montreal
protocol.
- printing inks are low-volatility or environmental
vegetable-based inks such as soy ink.
• Low-volume design
- expanded polystyrene foam (eps) beads are not
used for packing.
- volume per unit of stacking space is maximized to
reduce the amounts of packing materials required
during shipping.
- improved shock-absorbing packaging reduces
the need for shock-absorbing packing materials
during shipping.
• design for recyclability
- our corrugated board for mobile phone
packaging is manufactured with more than 90%
recycled paper.
- if the use of virgin materials is diﬃcult to
avoid because of visual design considerations,
packaging materials with fsC (forest
stewardship Council), pefC (programme for the
endorsement of forest Certiﬁcation schemes), or
sfi (sustainable forestry initiative) certiﬁcation
are used.
Recycling and reuse of waste materials
HtC's primary product lines are handheld computers
and smart phones. during their manufacture, only
soldering generates exhaust emission. no wastewater is
produced, with the exception of domestic wastewater
from employees. HtC makes pollution control a high
priority, devoting extensive funding to pollution control
facilities and the deployment of dedicated personnel to
reduce environmental impact. the Company provides
personnel with external training to obtain relevant
certiﬁcation, allowing them to assume full responsibility
for the management of pollution control facilities.
through training and auditing, normal operation of all
pollution controls is maintained through appropriate
management designed to steadily diminish our
environmental impact. HtC anticipates continued
reduction in environment impact and achievement of
the goal of completely "clean production."

> HtC's strategy for waste reduction begins with HtC's
strategy for waste reduction begins with rigorous
sorting and waste reduction. production of waste
is reduced from the beginning, while priority is
also given to reuse of materials in order to improve
recycling rates. the parts of plastic assembly panels
that can be recycled are reused, and the remaining
recyclable materials are outsourced to a recovery
enterprise approved by the ministry of economic
aﬀairs' industrial development Bureau for puriﬁcation
and processing into industrial-grade materials for
further use. the resulting average annual recycling
rate is higher than 62 percent.
other waste is dealt with by physical sorting to
increase reusability; and parts that cannot be
reused are incinerated. only when landﬁll disposal
is unavoidable does it become the ﬁnal method of
handling. HtC carries out regular online reporting in
accordance with laws and regulations with regard to
the status of production and temporary storage of
waste.
> one of HtC's environmental initiatives is to minimize
waste by recycling general domestic waste such as
aluminum foil, pet bottles, steel and aluminum cans,
and plastic containers. Used batteries, ﬂuorescent
light tubes, and computer and electronics equipment
are also fully recycled.
> employees are provided with environmentally friendly
tableware for use in the employee cafeteria. ecofriendly reusable cups are also provided for internal
personnel, guests, and people visiting on business in
order to reduce the use of paper cups.
> in observance of earth day, HtC promoted the use
of eco-friendly reusable cups in cooperation with its
on-site 7-11 and starbucks by oﬀering discounts to
employees who bring their own reusable cups when
they make purchases.
Promoting green buildings
HtC has already moved to introduce green building
techniques in its new headquarters, which are expected
to meet the Us Leed (Leadership in energy and
environmental design) green building standards. these
standards will be observed for all new buildings and
plants in the future and will allow HtC to provide even
more environmental, energy-saving, pleasant, and
healthy working environments.

on an inspection tour. president ma oﬀered personal
encouragement when HtC organized the ﬁrst echelon
of volunteer workers to serve in the disaster area, which
resulted in a very special kind of mid-autumn festival
experience for all of the participating employees. in
addition, to help children living in the aﬀected area
leave the experience behind, HtC employees organized
on their own a caring mission to the Jialan tribe of
taitung. through their "surprise shoebox" campaign,
they donated gift boxes that conveyed their well wishes
in a way that the children in the disaster will remember
all their lives.
in recent years, HtC has been involved with promoting
character-building education for children and young
people, working together with city and community
eﬀorts to create a culture of character and showing
concern for disadvantaged groups by providing extra
educational opportunities for their children. in addition
to providing programs to encourage continuing study,
HtC also works tirelessly with others to help promote
a culture of values which will foster individuals who
are upright, honest, caring, positive and concerned
about natural resources. HtC is continuing a threeyear project it began in march 2008 when it signed
a "character white paper" with the taoyuan County
Government to create "100 character-building schools,"
promoting character education in all areas among
educational administrators, schools, communities, and
families. HtC's character village project is underway in
Hualien County's yu Li township and taoyuan County's
Long tan township, where it has signed related
memorandums of understanding to promote a culture
of character education through character training and
class work. HtC, in cooperation with the Hualien County
Government, has established a Character and english
institute in Hualien's meilun district, which is already
operating. the institute's ﬁrst location was set up in
idle facilities at the Ci Zhih school in Hualien. thorough
renovation by HtC made the facilities look new again;
and it began providing free classes so students could
study character and english there in an enjoyable
and pressure-free environment. a new Character and
english institute has been set up in yunlin and began
operating in september 2010 in the same mode as the
Hualien institute, providing educational opportunities
to children of disadvantaged groups or those living in
remote areas. a third Character and english institute is
planned for Chiayi, and is scheduled to begin operating
in september 2011.

Charitable activities
in addition to environmental protection, health and
safety, energy management, and providing a safe and
healthy working environment for its workers, HtC
continues to engage in other public service activities
such as caring for the victims of the february 28 ﬂoods
in taiwan, making donations of blood, employing
people with disabilities, and taking part in community
environmental cleanups. the HtC foundation also
promoted character-building educational activities for
children and young people.
HtC and World vision taiwan teamed up to provide
temporary housing units in Jinfeng township, taitung
County. they were the ﬁrst completed temporary
housing units to be occupied by victims of the february
28 ﬂoods, and won the praise of president ma yingjiou
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I. Capital and Shares

(3) Distribution of ownership:
2011.04.17 each share having a par value of nt$10

(1) Capitalization:
2011.04.30 Unit: share; nt$

authorized
month/year
03/1998
10/1998
08/2000
04/2001
06/2002
09/2003
11/2003
03/2004
08/2004
01/2005
04/2005
09/2005
08/2006
04/2007
09/2007
08/2008
02/2009
08/2009
11/2009
04/2010
08/2010

price
10
10
40
163.5
10
10
131.1
10
10
127.95
127.95
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

shares
19,500,000
200,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000
270,000,000
270,000,000
270,000,000
450,000,000
450,000,000
450,000,000
450,000,000
550,000,000
550,000,000
650,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000

amount
195,000,000
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
2,700,000,000
2,700,000,000
2,700,000,000
4,500,000,000
4,500,000,000
4,500,000,000
4,500,000,000
5,500,000,000
5,500,000,000
6,500,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000
10,000,000,000

paid-in
shares
19,500,000
100,000,000
125,000,000
127,600,000
162,720,000
202,764,000
217,164,000
218,731,347
271,427,616
276,311,395
288,763,321
357,015,985
436,419,182
432,795,182
573,133,736
755,393,856
745,393,856
796,020,844
788,935,844
773,935,844
817,653,285

amount
195,000,000
1,000,000,000
1,250,000,000
1,276,000,000
1,627,200,000
2,027,640,000
2,171,640,000
2,187,313,470
2,714,276,160
2,763,113,950
2,887,633,210
3,570,159,850
4,364,191,820
4,327,951,820
5,731,337,360
7,553,938,560
7,453,938,560
7,960,208,440
7,889,358,440
7,739,358,440
8,176,532,850

remark
sources of capital
Cash oﬀering
Cash oﬀering
Cash oﬀering
Cash oﬀering
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capitalization of proﬁts
Cash oﬀering
merger
Capitalization of proﬁts
Conversion of eCB
Conversion of eCB
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capital reduction : Cancellation of treasury shares
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capital reduction : Cancellation of treasury shares
Capitalization of proﬁts
Capital reduction : Cancellation of treasury shares
Capital reduction : Cancellation of treasury shares
Capitalization of proﬁts

Capital increase by
assets other than cash
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none

other
note 1
note 2
note 3
note 4
note 5
note 6
note 7
note 8
note 9
note 9
note 10
note 11
note 12
note 13
note 14
note 15
note 16
note 17
note 18
note 19

note 1: approval document no. : the 23 July 1998 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-59976 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance.
note 2 : approval document no. : the 21 July 2000 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-59899 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 3 : approval document no. : the 13 april 2001 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-118901 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 4 : approval document no. : the 30 april 2002 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-119837 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 5 : approval document no. : the 28 July 2003 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-0920133959 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 6 : approval document no. : the 06 november 2003 Letter no.taiwan-finance-securities-i-0920146220 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 7 : approval document no. : the 16 January 2004 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-0920162653 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 8 : approval document no. : the 09 July 2004 Letter no. finance-supervisory-securities-i-0930130457 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission executive yuan
note 9 : approval document no. : the 14 January 2003 Letter no. taiwan-finance-securities-i-09100169047 of the securities and futures Commission (sfC), ministry of finance
note 10 : approval document no. : the 12 July 2005 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-i-0940128133 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 11 : approval document no. : the 06 July 2006 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-i-0950128723 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 12 : approval document no. : the 25 January 2007 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0960004848 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 13 : approval document no. : the 12 July 2007 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-i-0960036213 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 14 : approval document no. : the 25 June 2008 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-i-0970031749 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 15 : approval document no. : the 16 december 2008 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0970068202 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 16 : approval document no. : the 9 July 2009 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0980034309 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 17 : approval document no. : the 8 october 2009 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0980053814 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 18 : approval document no. : the 9 march 2010 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0990010834 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
note 19 : approval document no. : the 2 July 2010 Letter no. financial-supervisory-securities-iii0990034358 of the securities and futures Bureau of the financial supervisory Commission, executive yuan
2011.04.30 Unit: share

type of stock
Common stock

outstanding shares Unissued shares
817,653,285
182,346,715

authorized Capital
total
remark
1,000,000,000 (1) 16,000,000 shares are reserved for the exercise of options such as stock warrants, preferred
shares with warrants, or corporate bonds with warrants.
(2) outstanding shares include share repurchases of 9,786,000 shares for the transfer to
employees.

(2) Shareholder structure:
shareholder
Government agencies

74

financial institutions other Juridical persons

foreign institutions & natural persons

domestic natural persons

number of shareholders

2

32

377

1,877

24,616

number of shareholders

1,091,014

13,880,049

148,729,446

527,883,982

116,282,794

0.13%

1.70%

18.19%

64.56%

14.22%

Holding percentage
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shareholder ownership
(Unit: share)
1~999
1,000~5,000
5,001~10,000
10,001~15,000
15,001~20,000
20,001~30,000
30,001~40,000
40,001~50,000
50,001~100,000
100,001~200,000
200,001~400,000
400,001~600,000
600,001~800,000
800,001~1,000,000
1,000,001 以上
total

number of shareholders
13,255
10,016
1,202
457
264
327
221
135
338
279
170
74
33
18
116
26,905

ownership
2,281,029
18,338,119
8,839,296
5,646,398
4,711,945
8,165,654
7,733,675
6,122,765
24,346,523
39,501,963
47,503,007
35,968,101
22,640,178
15,970,882
570,153,750
817,653,285

ownership (%)
0.28%
2.24%
1.08%
0.69%
0.58%
1.00%
0.95%
0.75%
2.98%
4.83%
5.81%
4.37%
2.77%
1.95%
69.72%
100.00%

(4) List of principal shareholders:
2011.04.17
name of principal shareholders
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd.
Way-Lien technology inc.
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei Branch in custody
for europaciﬁc Growth fund
Cher Wang
Hon-mou investment Co., Ltd.
Wen-Chi Chen
HtC depositary receipts special account under
custodial administration of Citibank n.a
deutsche Bank in custody for pine international value
fund
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei Branch in custody
for oppenheimer developing market fund
Jpmorgan Chase Bank n.a. taipei Branch in custody
for Capital World Growth and income fund

Current shareholding
41,732,658
35,864,982

shares
percentage
5.10%
4.39%

33,900,610
25,973,740
21,809,601
21,325,133

4.15%
3.18%
2.67%
2.61%

20,055,170

2.45%

18,493,671

2.26%

13,808,740

1.69%

13,350,000

1.63%

(5) Share prices for the past two ﬁscal
years, the Company's net worth per
share, earnings per share, dividends
per share, and related information:
market price per share

Highest market price
Lowest market price
average market price
net worth per share (note) Before distribution
after distribution
earnings per share
Weighted average shares
(thousand shares)
earnings per share
retroactively adjusted
earnings per share
dividends Cash dividends
per share
stock
dividends from retained
dividends
earnings
dividends from capital
surplus
accumulated undistributed dividend
return on price/earnings ration
investment price/dividend ratio
Cash dividend yield

2011.01.01~
2009
2010 2011.03.31
543
921
1,150
308.50 277.50
846
390.74 549.61
989.63
83.20
91.38
111.19
57.70 (note)
(note)
787,367 815,239 807,867
28.71
27.35

48.49
(note)

26
0.05

(note)
(note)

-

-

13.61
15.03
6.65%

11.33
(note)
(note)

18.36
(note)

note : 2011 pending on the approval of the shareholders meeting.

2011.04.17

structure

a yearly basis. earnings may be allocated in cash or stock
dividends, provided that the ratio of cash dividends may
not be less than 50% of total dividends.

r e p o r t

treasury stock

total

1

26,905

9,786,000 817,653,285
1.20%

100.00%

(6) Dividend policy:
1. Dividend policy :
since the Company is in the capital-intensive
technology sector and growing, dividend policy is
set with consideration to factors such as current and
future investment climate, demand for working capital,
competitive environment, capital budget, and interests
of the shareholders, balancing dividends with long-term
ﬁnancial planning of the Company. dividends are proposed
by the Board of directors to the shareholders' meeting on

according to the Company's articles of incorporation,
earnings shall be allocated in the following order:
(1) to pay taxes.
(2) to cover accumulated losses, if any.
(3) to appropriate 10% legal reserve unless total legal reserve
accumulated has already reached the amount of the
Company's authorized capital.
(4) to pay remuneration to directors and supervisors up to
0.3% of the balance after deducting the amounts under
subparagraphs 1 to 3.
(5) to pay bonus to employees up to 5% of the balance after
deducting the amounts under subparagraphs 1 to 3, or
such balance plus unappropriated retained earnings
of previous years. However, the bonus may not exceed
the limits on employee bonus distributions set out in
the regulations Governing the oﬀering and issuance
of securities by issuers. Where bonus to employees is
allocated by means of new share issuance, the employees
to receive bonus may include employees serving with
aﬃliates who meet speciﬁc requirements. such speciﬁc
requirements shall be prescribed by the Board of
directors.
(6) for any remainder, the Board of directors shall propose
dividend distribution to the shareholders' meeting based
on the dividend policy set forth in paragraph 2 of this
article.
2. Dividend distribution proposed at the most recent
shareholders' Meeting: (Proposal adopted by the Board
pending approval by the Shareholders' Meeting.)
on april 30, the Board of directors adopted a resolution
to distribute nt$ 403,933,650 in stock dividend and
nt$ 29,891,089,545 in cash dividend. it translates to
approximately nt$ 0.5 stock dividends and nt$ 37 cash
dividends per share (based on the number of outstanding
shares as of book closure date, excluding share repurchases,
for the 2011 annual shareholders' meeting). the Board of
directors may make necessary adjustments to the actual
distribution ratio on the basis of the number of issued and
outstanding shares registered in the Common stockholders'
roster as at the record date.
3. There is no material change in dividend policy.

(7) Impact of the Stock Dividend
Proposal on Operational Performance
and Earnings per Share:
HTC is not required to announce 2011 ﬁnancial forecasts;
therefore it is not applicable.

(8) Employee Proﬁt Sharing and
Compensation for Directors and
Supervisors:
1. Percentage and scope of employee proﬁt sharing and
Director and Supervisor remuneration as stipulated in the
Company's Article of Incorporation.
the Company's articles of incorporation stipulate that
earnings shall be allocated in the following order:
(1) to pay taxes.
(2) to cover accumulated losses, if any.
(3) to appropriate 10% legal reserve unless total legal
reserve accumulated has already reached the amount of
the Company's authorized capital.
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(4) to pay remuneration to directors and supervisors up
0.3% of the balance after deducting the amounts under
subparagraphs 1 to 3.
(5) to pay bonus to employees up 5% of the balance after
deducting the amounts under subparagraphs 1 to 3, or
such balance plus unappropriated retained earnings
of previous years. However, the bonus may not exceed
the limits on employee bonus distributions set out in
the regulations Governing the oﬀering and issuance
of securities by issuers. Where bonus to employees
is allocated by means of new share issuance, the
employees to receive bonus may include employees
serving with aﬃliates who meet speciﬁc requirements.
such speciﬁc requirements shall be prescribed by the
Board of directors.
2. Employee Bonus proposal adopted by the Board：
Unit: nt$ thousands
distribution of 2010 accrued expenses for
earnings
employee Bonus
employee Bonus
8,491,704

directors' and
supervisors'
remuneration

resolution approved by the Board of
directors
2011.04.30
employee stock
4,245,852
Bonus (note 2)
employee Cash
4,245,852
Bonus
total amount
8,491,704

0

0

note1 : there is no diﬀerence between the value of employee cash/stock bonuses and director/
supervisor remunerations proposed by the Board and expenses accrued in the ﬁnancial
reporting period.
note 2: for employee stock bonus, the number of shares shall be calculated based on the
closing price one day prior to the 2011 annual General shareholders' meeting on an exdividend basis. for employees receiving less than one share, bonuses will be distributed
in the form of cash.

3. Distributions of 2009 employees' bonus and remunerations
for Directors and Supervisors:
date of the Board resolution
date of annual shareholders'
meeting
total stock bonus as employee
bonus

distributions of earnings in 2009
2010.04.28
2010.06.18
total number of shares (note)
total amount (nt$1,000)

total cash bonus as employee
bonus (nt$1,000)
total employee bonus (nt$1,000)
director' and supervisors'
remuneration (nt$1,000)

5,020,649
1,943,694
2,915,542
4,859,236
0

note: for employee stock bonus, the total number of new shares issued (5,020,649) is
calculated based on the closing price (nt$ 432.5) one day prior to the 2010 annual
General shareholders' meeting on an ex-dividend basis. the amount less than one
share (nt$ 382) was distributed in the form of cash.

(9) Share Repurchases:
topic
explanation
initial estimation of share Buy-back status
Board of director resolution
02/09/2010
purpose of the share buy-back
to stabilize stock price by maintaining
company credibility and shareholders
rights. according to the regulations
Governing share repurchase by Listed
and otC Companies, article 2 requires oﬀsetting of buy-back treasury stocks.
type of share buy-back
Common stock
total amount allocated for share buy-back ntd 7,500,000,000
Buy-back period
02/10/2010~04/09/2010
estimated number of buy-back shares (as 15,000,000 shares (1.90%)
percentage of total outstanding shares)
estimated buy-back price interval
Buy-back stock price is between ntd 280 to
ntd 500. it is further resolved by the Board
of directors to continue buy-back of shares
if the stock price falls under ntd 280.
method of Buy-back
Buy-back shares from stock exchange
actual stock Buy-back status
Buy-back period
02/10/2010~03/05/2010
number of buy-back shares (as a
percentage of total shares outstanding)
total amount for buy-back shares
average price per buy-back share

76

2 0 1 0

H tC

15,000,000 shares (1.90%)
ntd 4,834,173,984
ntd 322.28

a n n Ua L

r e p o r t

topic
number of shares Cancelled or transferred
Cumulative number of own shares held
ratio of cumulative number of own shares
held during the repurchase period to the
total number of the Company's issued shares

explanation
Cancelled 15,000,000 shares
0 shares
0%

topic
explanation
initial estimation of share Buy-back status
Board of director resolution
07/11/2010
purpose of the share buy-back
to transfer stocks to employees. according to
the regulations Governing share repurchase
by Listed and otC Companies, article 2
requires to buy back treasury stocks.
type of share buy-back
Common stock
total amount allocated for share buy-back ntd 6,310,000,000
Buy-back period
07/13/2010~09/11/2010
estimated number of buy-back shares (as 10,000,000 shares (1.29%)
percentage of total outstanding shares)
estimated buy-back price interval
Buy-back stock price is between ntd 526 to
ntd 631. it is further resolved by the Board
of directors to continue buy-back of shares
if the stock price falls under ntd 526.
method of Buy-back
Buy-back shares from stock exchange
actual stock Buy-back status
Buy-back period
07/28/2010~09/03/2010
number of buy-back shares (as a
percentage of total shares outstanding)
total amount for buy-back shares
average price per buy-back share
number of shares Cancelled or transferred
Cumulative number of own shares held

topic
estimated buy-back price interval

method of Buy-back
actual stock Buy-back status
Buy-back period
number of buy-back shares
(as a percentage of total shares
outstanding)
total amount for buy-back shares
average price per buy-back share

explanation
Buy-back stock price is between ntd 565 to
ntd 850. it is further resolved by the Board
of directors to continue buy-back of shares
if the stock price falls under ntd 565.
Buy-back shares from stock exchange
note
0 share
(0%)
ntd 0
n/a

number of shares Cancelled or transferred 0 share
Cumulative number of own shares held
9,786,000 shares
ratio of cumulative number of own shares 1.20%
held during the repurchase period to the
total number of the Company's issued
shares
note: since stock price of HtC Corp. during the repurchase period was higher than the
price ceiling approved by the Board of director, there is no execution of buyback.

II. Issuance of corporate bonds
none

4,786,000 shares (0.59%)
ntd 2,865,989,634
ntd 598.83
0 shares
4,786,000 shares

ratio of cumulative number of own shares
0.59%
held during the repurchase period to the
total number of the Company's issued shares

III. Status of Preferred shares
none

IV. Global depository receipts
2011.03.31

topic
explanation
initial estimation of share Buy-back status
Board of director resolution
10/29/2010
purpose of the share buy-back
to transfer stocks to employees. according to
the regulations Governing share repurchase
by Listed and otC Companies, article 2
requires to buy back treasury stocks.
type of share buy-back
Common stock
total amount allocated for share buy-back ntd 4,250,000,000
Buy-back period
11/01/2010~11/30/2010
estimated number of buy-back shares (as 5,000,000 shares (0.61%)
percentage of total outstanding shares)
estimated buy-back price interval
Buy-back stock price is between ntd 565 to
ntd 850. it is further resolved by the Board
of directors to continue buy-back of shares
if the stock price falls under ntd 565.
method of Buy-back
Buy-back shares from stock exchange
actual stock Buy-back status
Buy-back period
11/02/2010~11/30/2010
number of buy-back shares
(as a percentage of total shares
outstanding)
total amount for buy-back shares
average price per buy-back share
number of shares Cancelled or transferred
Cumulative number of own shares held

5,000,000 shares (0.61%)
ntd 3,986,503,299
ntd 797.30
0 shares
9,786,000 shares

ratio of cumulative number of own shares
1.20%
held during the repurchase period to the
total number of the Company's issued shares
topic
explanation
initial estimation of share Buy-back status
Board of director resolution
10/29/2010
purpose of the share buy-back
to stabilize stock price by maintaining
company credibility and shareholders
rights. according to the regulations
Governing share repurchase by Listed
and otC Companies, article 2 requires
oﬀ-setting of buy-back treasury stocks.
type of share buy-back
Common stock
total amount allocated for share buy-back ntd 4,250,000,000
Buy-back period
12/01/2010~12/31/2010
estimated number of buy-back shares (as 5,000,000 shares (0.61%)
percentage of total outstanding shares)

issue date
issuance and Listing
total amount
oﬀering price per Gdr
Units issued
Underlying securities

2003.11.19
Luxembourg
Usd 105,182,100.60
Usd 15.4235
8,804,767 (note)
Cash oﬀering and common shares from selling
shareholders
Common shares represented
35,219,078 (note)
rights and obligations of Gdr holders same as that of common share holders
trustee
not applicable
depositary bank
Citibank, n.a.–new york
Custodian bank
Citibank taiwan Limited
Gdrs outstanding
5,093,710
apportionment of expenses for issuance all fees and expenses such as underwriting
and maintenance
fees, legal fees, listing fees and other expenses
related to issuance of Gdrs were borne
by HtC and the selling shareholders, while
maintenance expenses such as annual listing
fees and accounting fees were borne by HtC.
terms and conditions in the deposit
see deposit agreement and custody
agreement and custody agreement
agreement for details
Closing price 2010
High
Usd 123.33
per Gdr
Low
Usd 34.59
average
Usd 69.45
2011.01.01~
High
Usd 156.44
2011.03.31
Low
Usd 116.88
average
Usd 135.03

V. Employee share warrants
(1) during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing
of this annual report, HtC has not issued any employee
share warrants.
(2) during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing
of this annual report, HtC does not have unexpired
employee share warrants outstanding.

VI. Issuance of new shares for
mergers and acquisitions
(1) during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing
of this annual report, the Company has not issued new
shares for mergers and acquisitions.
(2) during the current ﬁscal year up to the date of printing of
this annual report, the Board of directors has not adopted
any resolution to issue new shares for mergers and
acquisitions.

VII. Implementation of the
Company's funds utilization
plan
The Company does not have unﬁnished funds utilization plans
or plans that have not produced the desired beneﬁts during the
ﬁscal year up to the date of printing of this annual report.

note: the total number of units issued includes original issuance of 6,819,600 units (representing
27,278,400 common shares) and additional issuance representing stock dividends paid on
common shares underlying the Gdrs:
18 august 2004: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 216,088 units (representing 864,352 common shares)
12 august 2005: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 70,290 units (representing 281,161 common shares)
1 august 2006: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 218,776 units (representing 875,107 common shares)
20 august 2007: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 508,556 units (representing 2,034,224 common shares)
21 July 2008: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 488,656 units (representing 1,954,626 common shares)
9 august 2009: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 170,996 units (representing 683,985 common shares)
3 august 2010: dividends on the common shares represented by overseas depositary
receipts, in the amount of 311,805 units (representing 1,247,223 common shares)

Capital and shares
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I. Financial Status

II. Operating Results

Unit：nt$ thousands

Unit：nt$ thousands

2010
168,639,526
1,232,145

2009
104,900,881
810,485

amount
63,738,645
421,660

diﬀerence
%
61
52

fixed assets
intangible assets

14,024,329
935,650

9,899,808
240,482

4,124,521
695,168

42
289

other assets
total assets

5,550,094
190,381,744

3,577,361
119,429,017

1,972,733
70,952,727

55
59

115,641,103
12,188
13,959

53,728,775
24,375
1,210

61,912,328
(12,187)
12,749

115
(50)
1,054

total Liabilities

115,667,250

53,754,360

61,912,890

115

Capital stock
Capital surplus
retained earnings

8,176,532
10,820,744
63,150,566

7,889,358
9,099,923
48,637,773

287,174
1,720,821
14,512,793

4
19
30

(580,855)

13,396

(594,251)

(4,436)

item
Current assets
Long-term investments

Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
other Liabilities

item
revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross proﬁt
operating expenses
operating income
nonoperating income and Gains
nonoperating expenses and Losses
income from Continuing operations Before income tax
income tax
income from Continuing operations
net income
net income attributable to stockholders of the parent

2010
278,761,244
194,892,505
83,868,739
39,736,158
44,132,581
1,142,944
311,137
44,964,388
5,449,544
39,514,844
39,514,844
39,533,600

2009
144,492,518
98,329,537
46,162,981
21,540,074
24,622,907
1,420,086
646,581
25,396,412
2,781,999
22,614,413
22,614,413
22,608,902

diﬀerence
134,268,726
96,562,968
37,705,758
18,196,084
19,509,674
(277,142)
(335,444)
19,567,976
2,667,545
16,900,431
16,900,431
16,924,698

％
93
98
82
84
79
(20)
(52)
77
96
75
75
75

* all numbers above are based on consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

equity adjustments

(6,852,493)

0

(6,852,493)

-

equity attributable to stockholders of the parent
minority interest

treasury stock

74,714,494
0

65,640,450
34,207

9,074,044
(34,207)

14
(100)

total stockholders' equity

74,714,494

65,674,657

9,039,837

14

* all numbers above are based on consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

Explanations for any material changes in HTC's assets, liabilities, and shareholders'
equity in the most recent two ﬁscal years
Capital: 2010 marked a new high water mark for HtC's business with 111% growth in shipment. this raised HtC's current assets by 61% or nt$63.7
billion at the close of 2010. major increases include nt$9.8 billion more in cash and cash equivalents, nt$34.5 billion more in accounts receivable, and
nt$20.3 billion more in inventory than at year-end 2009. Work continued in 2010 on the new taoyuan Headquarters campus and taipei headquarters
building. additional land and oﬃce space was also purchased nearby the taipei headquarters property to help ensure adequate oﬃce space over the
long term. HtC also added capacity to plants in taoyuan and shanghai to meet market demand. at the close of 2010, HtC's ﬁxed assets were nt$4.1
billion (42%) higher than at year-end 2009. other assets were primarily noncurrent deferred income tax assets, which rose by nt$1.3 billion (55%)
over year-end 2009. total assets at the close of 2010 stood at nt$190.3 billion, an increase of nt$71.0 billion or 59% over year-end 2009.
debt: aggressive increases of inventory to meet strong 4Q demand and anticipated continued demand growth led to an nt$38.3 billion (149%)
increase in notes and accounts payable at the close of 2010 compared with year-end 2009. strong business growth spurred rises in associated
liabilities. these included an nt$8.5 billion rise in accrued marketing expense, nt$3.6 billion rise in accrued bonus to employees, and nt$3.8 billion
rise in reserve for warranty expenses. the additional nt$61.9 billion in current liabilities at the end of 2010 as compared to 2009 fueled this year's
115% growth in total liabilities to nt$115.7 billion.
shareholders' equity: We attribute the rise in retained earnings this year primarily to 2010's rapid business growth that increased net income by
nt$16.9 billion. Lower equity adjustments for the year were due to exchange rate volatility that reduced cumulative translation adjustments by
nt$590 million from year-end 2009. HtC initiated a share repurchase in early 2010 to protect shareholder equity and spent nt$4.8 billion to
purchase and cancel 15 million HtC shares. during the second half of 2010, HtC spent a further nt$6.9 billion to buy back 9,786,000 treasury shares
for distribution to employees as performance incentive bonuses. at the close of 2010, HtC's total shareholders' equity stood at nt$74.7 billion, a rise
of nt$9.0 billion or 14% over year-end 2009.
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Explanations for any material changes in HTC's revenues, operating income, and pretax income in the most recent two ﬁscal years
We attribute HtC's 111% growth in shipment in 2010 to several popular phone models launched by the Company in 2010 and to
generally strong global demand for smartphones. HtC's operating revenues in 2010 topped nt$278.8 billion, an nt$134.3 billion
(93%) increase over 2009.
We have continuously enhanced operating eﬃciencies and streamlined cost structures as business expands rapidly. HtC's gross
proﬁt grew 82% in 2010 to nt$83.9 billion. programs to enhance brand recognition for HtC and improve user experience grew
operating expenses by nt$18.2 billion or 84%. operating income grew this year by nt$19.5 billion (79%) to nt$44.1 billion.
HtC's revenue comes mainly from its primary business. income from interest, forex gain/loss, and valuation gain/loss on ﬁnancial
instruments accounted for nearly all non-operating gain/loss. net non-operating income and gains in 2010 grew 8% to nt$0.8
billion. net income before tax rose by nt$19.6 billion (77%) to nt$45.0 billion.

III. Cash Flows
(1) Analysis of change in cash ﬂow for the most recent ﬁscal year
item
Cash flow ratio (%)
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)
Cash flow reinvestment ratio (%)

2010
40
150
32

2009
52
192
11

%
(23)
(22)
191

Explanation and analysis of change
Business growth in 2010 expanded annual shipment by 111% resulting in a 66% growth in net cash ﬂow from operating activities to nt$46.0 billion.
Current liabilities saw a corresponding rise by 115% over the previous year, causing the cash ﬂow ratio to decrease to 40%. Continued capacity and
oﬃce expansion by HtC and its aﬃliates to meet anticipated future demand coupled with increased inventories to meet current market demand
reduced cash ﬂow adequacy ratio to 150%. Cash ﬂow reinvestment ratio rose to 32% due to a 241% rise in the numerator (net cash ﬂows from
operating activity – cash dividends) since net cash ﬂow from operating activities increased 66% and cash dividend payments remained at a similar
level compared to 2009.
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(2) Cash ﬂow analysis for the coming year

Factors Favorable to HTC Growth

Unit：nt$ thousands

Beginning cash
balance

projected whole-year cash ﬂow
from operating activities

projected whole-year cash
outﬂow

projected cash surplus
(deﬁcit) amount

74,462,861

69,940,040

41,848,662

102,554,239

remedial measures for projected cash deﬁcit
investment plan
financial management plan

-

-

remedial measures for projected cash deﬁcit: not applicable

IV. The Eﬀect On Financial Operations Of Material Capital
Expenditures During The Most Recent Fiscal Year
(1) Review and analysis of material capital expenditures and funding sources
Unit：nt$ thousands

actual or projected
sources of capital

actual or projected
date of completion total capital needed (as of fy2011)

2009~2011

8,165,429

490,166

3,289,848

4,385,416

working capital

2009~2011

11,084,544

1,260,347

1,941,918

7,882,279

in product design and software application development. HtC also

(1) new plant/Building Construction
the new taoyuan Headquarters campus, taipei
headquarters building and Kangqiao production facility
in shanghai are essential to expanding production and
providing HtC employees with an appropriate working
environment.
(2) new equipment / facilities
replacement / upgrade of equipment and facilities is
critical to enhancing productivity and meeting rising
market demand.

V. Investment Diversiﬁcation In
Recent Years
focused on its core business, HtC uses investment or merger
strategies to further its competitive advantages in product
development / design, sales and marketing, and long-term growth.
such investments are intended to enhance product quality, product
value, user experience, customer service, cost structure, and
business eﬀectiveness. the focus of future HtC investment activities
will be mobile content, communications, mobile and information
security, location-based services, entertainment and user interface /
experience innovation.
HtC and its aﬃliates opened a number of subsidiaries in 2010 to bring
the group closer to key markets and customers. these subsidiaries,
including HtC south eastern europe Limited Liability Company, HtC
franCe Corporation, HtC nordic aps, HtC Germany GmbH, HtC
iberia, s.L., and HtC poland sp. z o.o., will be responsible for market
development, product repair and after-sales services. strategic
acquisition of abaxia sas and BLrsoft and the establishment of HtC
america innovation, inc. are expected to strengthen HtC capabilities
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actual or projected capital utilization
2009
2010
2011

working capital

2. Anticipated Beneﬁts
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HtC has always developed smartphone products in close
cooperation with industry leaders such as microsoft,
Qualcomm and Google as well as the world's leading
telecommunications service providers. examples include
HtC's launch of the world's ﬁrst Windows mobile
smartphone and ﬁrst android smartphone. our strong
partnerships deliver greater choice to consumers while
continuing to drive industry innovation.

2. Long-term Cooperative Relationships with Telecom
Providers Keep HTC Abreast of Consumer Demand

1. Material capital expenditure and funding sources

planned items
purchase and installation of
equipment / facilities
plant/Building Construction

1. Partnerships with Industry Leaders Help HTC Drive
Industry Trends

r e p o r t

invested in China-based mobile security solutions provider netQin
and shanghai Gsuo information technology during 2010 and in online
video company saﬀron digital, online game company onLive, and
China-based mobile ﬁnancial solutions provider shanghai f-road
Commerce service in early 2011.
HtC founded HtC america Holding, inc. to streamline its overall
investment structure. HtC, as the parent company, recognized nt$1.5
billion gain on equity-method investments in 2010. the increase is
primarily due to growth in subsidiary proﬁts including investment
gain of nt$700 million for HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.
and nt$400 million for HtC america, inc. Going forward, HtC
will continue to focus investments on enhancing user experience,
growing sales and improving mobile digital service applications as
well as integrating technologies gained through investments into HtC
products.

VI. Competitive Advantages,
Business Growth and
Assessment of Risks
(1) Potential Factors That May
Inﬂuence HTC's Competitiveness/
Business Growth and Related
Countermeasures
Critical competitive factors in HtC's industry include: 1) product r&d
and innovation capabilities, 2) strategic partnerships with industry
leaders and 3) accurate grasp of market trends. the following
assesses HtC's competitiveness in terms of factors deemed to
support and detract from HtC achieving its business goals.

HtC promotes products directly to mass-market
consumers via long-term, unique relationships with the
world's largest telecommunications service providers that
include the four big mobile operators in the United states,
ﬁve major operators in europe and several fast growing
carriers in asia. these relationships not only keep HtC
abreast of user demand but also allow HtC to better tailor
its products and services to the needs of each carrier
partner.

3. Diverse and growing universe of mobile digital
services drives smartphone market penetration
new mobile phone operating systems such as ios and
android, which permit easy app store downloading of
social networking, shopping, travel, game and other
software, are attracting even more consumers to the
ranks of smartphone users. market analysts expect
the coming several years to be a period of particularly
strong smartphone sector growth, and we anticipate
telecom service providers' rollout of 3G/4G mobile
internet networks to stimulate growth even further. these
developments should all impact positively on HtC business
growth prospects.

4. Instilling a positive corporate culture enhances
organizational ﬂexibility and responsiveness
HtC promotes a unique corporate culture that is designed to instill
passion for innovation and commitment to the highest standards.
our lack of barriers between departments promotes synergy
and dynamism even further. HtC's highly eﬃcient operations
have been aﬃrmed by numerous international quality standards
including iso-9001, iso-14001, iso-14064-1, tL-9000, and
oHsas 18001. outstanding in-house research and development
capabilities give HtC the competitive edge to reach the market
ﬁrst with many industry leading innovations and features.

5. Comprehensive domestic industry base supports
current and future growth needs

active government and private sector eﬀorts to grow the
domestic high tech sector in recent decades have given taiwan a
strong foundation of skilled researchers and technicians. taiwan
is further beneﬁting from increasingly coherent industry supply
and support systems and industry clustering eﬀects. in addition
to making it easier for us to recruit and retain personnel, these
developments increasingly allow us to cooperate with domestic
and international suppliers in order to lower purchase costs and
respond even faster to industry trends and changes in market
demand.

Factors Adverse to the Achievement
of HTC Growth Goals and Relevant
Countermeasures
many current and potential competitors are now active in
the smartphone market looking to beneﬁt from current rapid
growth in worldwide demand. Competition should continue
to intensify as the smartphone user base grows, smartphone
functions and features increase, and smartphone model
lifecycles shorten. the following outlines HtC measures
designed to respond to such challenges.
1. We work actively to establish HtC brand value, enhance
global brand recognition and preference, and leverage
eﬀective brand management activities and product
promotions to establish the HtC brand as consumers'
"ﬁrst choice" in smartphones.
2. We emphasize innovative to maintain a leading
competitive edge. product diﬀerentiation and innovations
in user experience allow us to develop a wide range
of products tailored to meet diverse consumer needs.
Launched in 2009, the proprietary HtC sense interface is
the result of extensive research and study in interpersonal
communications. HtC sense is designed with customer at
the center to make mobile phones more intuitive and easy
to use.
3. We enhance product design, mass production, technical
support, distribution, and after-sales services for our
customers in order to strengthen strategic alliances with
global industry leaders and remain aligned with industry
trends and developments.
4. We regularly upgrade our materials requirement planning
(mrp) system to improve our ability to manage material
inventories and anticipate future demand in order to lower
inventory costs and reduce inventory devaluation risks.
We continue to build and diversify supplier relationships
to enhance supply stability. our objectives are consistent
and uninterrupted supply of all materials and a highly
competitive cost structure.
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5. We work hard to maximize the productivity of each
link in our business chain, enhance time management,
standardize workﬂows and fully implement iso quality
control practices in order to improve competitiveness
through reduced process and communications costs and
comprehensive quality management.
6. HtC's leadership in the industry helps ensure that suppliers
accommodate and meet HtC priorities in expanding
market sales. this helps mitigate risks related to reliance
on overseas suppliers for many critical components. We
further beneﬁt from close strategic relationships that help
ensure supplier support and favorable purchase terms.
7. as the fastest growing sector of taiwan's economy, the
electronics industry requires a steady stream of human
resources. downsizing in the manufacturing sector has
increased the diﬃculty in hiring entry-level workers. HtC
plans to continue to hire foreign workers and work with
schools to help increase domestic hiring in the future.

(2)Risk Factors
the following describes identiﬁed risks and related mitigating
measures.
1. interest, forex, and inﬂation rate risks and mitigating
measures
impact on HtC proﬁtability:
item
net interest income
net forex income
net interest income as percentage of
net revenue
net interest income as percentage of
earnings Before tax
net forex income as percentage of
net revenue
net forex income as percentage of
earnings Before tax

2010 (nt$1,000 or %)
310,326
235,597
0.11%
0.69%
0.08%
0.52%

note: Calculated on HtC consolidated ﬁnancial numbers

Working capital required to support the expansion of HtC
business operations has over recent years been supplied
exclusively from internal ﬁnances. as the corporation has
taken out no long-term loans, ﬂuctuations in interest rates
have had no eﬀect on the Company's liabilities. HtC is
prudent in its ﬁnancial policies. asset allocation decisions
prioritize security and ﬂuidity, with most funds kept in
time deposit accounts. during 2010, HtC interest income
totaled nt$310 million.
HtC revenues are denominated primarily in Us dollars
(Usd) and euros (eUr). manufacturing costs are
denominated primarily in Us dollars. forex ﬂuctuations
have the potential to impact HtC revenues, operating costs
and operating proﬁts. apart from careful management of
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the quality and payment cycles of its foreign currencydenominated accounts receivable, HtC uses forward
exchange contracts to minimize its forex risk. at the
close of 2010, ﬁnancial derivatives held by HtC related
to exchange risk were valued at Usd447 million, eUr531
million, GBp57.4 million, Jpy1,515 billion and Cad250
thousand. fair value of the derivatives changes as a result
of forex ﬂuctuations. a fall of 1% in the quoted exchange
rate of any one of the abovementioned currencies against
the nt dollar would result in a derivatives holding beneﬁt
to HtC of approximately nt$368.315 million.
during 2010, the euro fell against the nt dollar from 1:46
to 1:39. the Us dollar fell from 1:32 against the nt dollar
to approximately 1:29. net exchange income earned
during 2010 totaled nt$235.597 million. Under eﬀective
management by the Company, negative eﬀects of
exchange rate ﬂuctuations on proﬁts in recent years have
been minimal.
inﬂation in taiwan was approximately 0.96% in 2010.
inﬂation rates in north american and european markets
were also relatively negligible. overall, inﬂation had no
signiﬁcant impact on HtC proﬁts.
2. Risks associated with high-risk/high-leveraged investment;
lending, endorsements, guarantees for other parties and
ﬁnancial derivative transactions
HtC does not engage in high-risk ventures or highly
leveraged investments. Loaning of funds takes place only
between HtC and its subsidiaries. HtC acts as guarantor
only to wholly owned subsidiaries. all such arrangements
must be reviewed and approved by the board of directors
in accordance with the operational procedures for fund
Lending and rules for endorsements and Guarantees. HtC
engages in derivative products trading only to mitigate
forex risks arising from foreign currency assets and
liabilities. all derivative trading is conducted according to
stipulations written in the procedures for acquisition or
disposal of assets.
3. Future R&D plans and anticipated R&D expenditures
recent r&d work at HtC has focused on user interface,
mobile-internet related technologies, as well as related
technical support and after-sales service. the 2009 launch
of HtC's proprietary user interface HtC sense marked a
breakthrough for the Company in terms of enhancing user
experience. HtC launched HtCsense.com in 2010. this
powerful suite of connected services lets users manage
their mobile experience quickly and easily via HtC phones
or personal computers.
HtC is currently reconﬁguring its HtC sense user
experience to operate with tablets. HtC announced its ﬁrst
tablet, the HtC flyer, in february 2011. HtC applied digital

ink technology to develop HtC scribe, which integrates
touch interface and handwriting functionality. HtC flyer
is also the ﬁrst device to support HtC's online multimedia
service - HtC Watch. HtC Watch allows users to download
on-demand instant-play high deﬁnition (Hd) content at
competitive prices. onLive's online gaming services are
also bundled into HtC flyer, making it the world's ﬁrst
tablet featured with cloud-based mobile gaming services.
HtC has always stressed the importance of r&d and
technological innovation. r&d personnel account for
around 30% of HtC's worldwide headcount and we
invest some 4~6% of annual revenues in r&d related
activities. HtC will continue to focus on handheld devices
and will further enhance user experience to strengthen
competitiveness in the long term.
4. Eﬀects of domestic / foreign government policies and
regulations on HTC ﬁnances and response measures
Government incentives of primary beneﬁt to HtC include
permitted deduction of r&d related investments and a
previously permitted ﬁve-year tax break. after expiration of
the statute for industrial Upgrading in 2009, the Legislative
yuan on 12 may 2010 announced passage of the statute on
promoting innovative industries that extended government
permission to deduct r&d related investments and
permitted continuance of the ﬁve-year tax break until full
term. revisions to article 5 of the income tax act by the
Legislative yuan in may of 2009 and again in may of 2010
reset the proﬁt tax rate assessed on businesses from 25%
to 17%. these changes should have no signiﬁcant impact
on HtC's income tax burden over the short term as HtC
enjoys alternative minimum tax treatment.
apart from the above, changes in domestic and overseas
government policies and laws should have no signiﬁcant
impact on HtC ﬁnances. We will remain vigilant with regard
to future changes and take measures that best satisfy
HtC's business operation needs.
5. Eﬀects on HTC ﬁnances of changes in technology and
industry trends and response measures
Wireless telecommunications is an important growth sector
within the it industry and the smartphone is its ﬂagship
product. responding to rapid mobile internet growth and
communication technology migration to 3G/4G, HtC has
leveraged outstanding r&d capabilities in partnerships
with global telecom leaders to launch numerous "world
ﬁrsts" that include the world's ﬁrst Windows mobile,
android, dual mode Gsm/WimaX, and Lte android mobile
phones. the launch of a diverse range of products through
many carriers worldwide has built up HtC's signiﬁcant
position in the global telecommunications industry and
created exceptional business opportunities. HtC will

continue to use its resources to develop new technologies
and enhance the holistic user experience in order to deliver
products and services that ﬁt market demand.
6. Eﬀect of changes in the company's corporate image on
the company's crisis management protocol and mitigating
measures
HtC maintains high professional ethics and eﬀective
control over its operations. Corporate honesty and ethics
rules eﬀectively bar all in the HtC organization from
engaging in dishonest or unethical practices.
7. Anticipated beneﬁts / potential risks related to mergers
and acquisitions and mitigating measures
mergers and acquisitions in recent years have focused on
raising overall product value and enriching the HtC user
experience. all such activities have been funded internally.
future mergers and acquisitions will be conducted
after careful consideration of expected beneﬁts and
in accordance with all relevant government laws and
corporate regulations.
8. Anticipated beneﬁts / potential risks of HTC plant
expansion plans and mitigating measures
apart from regularly enhancing production capacity,
quality and optimizing costs, HtC is working to meet
rising smartphone demand by expanding capacity. HtC
expanded production at its Kangqiao plant in shanghai
in 2009. HtC's board of directors also approved to build
a new oﬃce and production building at the HtC taoyuan
headquarters within a nt$2.8 billion budget to meet
future growth. furthermore, designation of authorized
outsourcing partners has added another level of ﬂexibility
to HtC's production.
9. Concentration risks associated with goods received and
sold and mitigating measures
(1) purchases:
the skills and capabilities of materials / components
suppliers are maturing in step with mobile phone
technologies. Growing opportunities to source
materials from multiple suppliers reduce the risk of
overreliance on one or several suppliers. HtC also
purchases in volume to reduce unit costs and optimize
cost structures.
(2) sales:
HtC products are distributed across the americas,
europe and asia primarily through major carriers
and local retail channels. the inﬂuence of carriers
can be expected to rise in the new age of 3G/4G
wireless standards, which is expected to beneﬁt HtC
product penetration. apart from working with current
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customers to expand markets and strengthen strategic
partnerships, HtC continues to discuss potential
cooperative projects with leading it and telecom
companies in order to remain at the fore of market
trends. HtC is also developing the HtC brand and
strengthening relationships with channel retailers in
order to reduce business and sales concentration risks.
10. Eﬀect upon and risk to the company in the event a major
quantity of shares belonging to a director, supervisor, or
shareholder holding greater than a 10 percent stake in
the company has been transferred or otherwise changed
hands and mitigating measures being or to be taken:
as of the end of 2010, no transfer of signiﬁcant portions of
HtC share rights has occurred with respect to any director,
supervisor, or major shareholder holding more than a 10
percent stake in the company.
11. Eﬀect upon and risk to the company associated with any
change in governance personnel or top management and
mitigating measures being or to be taken:
there was no change in HtC managerial control in 2010.
12. Lawsuits and other non-litigation legal proceedings related
to the corporation; its directors, supervisors, president,
senior executives; major shareholders owning greater than
10% of outstanding shares; and corporate subsidiaries,
the results of which could signiﬁcantly aﬀect shareholder
rights and / or share prices.
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(1) major lawsuits, non-litigation legal proceedings or
administrative litigations currently involving HtC:
a. in april 2008, ipCom GmBH & Co., KG ("ipCom") ﬁled
a multi-claim lawsuit against the Company with the
district Court of mannheim in Germany, alleging that
HtC infringed ipCom's patents. in february 2009,
the court ruled on one of the patents and granted
ipCom's request for an injunction to prevent HtC
from importing devices into Germany. HtC appealed
this decision to the court of appeal and won a
stay of the injunction pending the outcome of this
appeal. thus, HtC has continued to ship products to
Germany.
b. in march 2010, apple inc. ﬁled a lawsuit against
HtC concurrently with the U.s. international trade
Commission ("itC") and U.s. district Court in
delaware ("delaware court") alleging that HtC
infringed its patents. subsequently, HtC ﬁled on itC
investigation and a counterclaim with the delaware
court against apple for patent infringements and
requested the itC and delaware court to prevent
apple from selling devices in the United states and
order damage compensation.
(2) HtC had examined circumstances and related
information of the cases, including past experiences,
expert opinions, results of the evaluation of
contingencies and estimation of the degree of actual
occurrence, and concluded that the amounts of
contingent assets or liabilities were appropriately
accounted for.

13. Other important risks and mitigating measures being or to be taken
none

14. Risk Management Organization Structure
responsible/implementation Unit Control item
Legal department
Contractual and Legal risk
finance and accounting division Business strategy and financial risks
internal audit

internal Control risk

Global product division

product trend risk

design Quality & engineering
service division
manufacturing operation Center
Customer service and Quality
assurance division

product design and Quality risks
production Quality risk
product Quality risk

implementation tasks
manage overall corporate contractual risk
responsible for capital allocation and management, investment
planning, customer credit control, operational analysis, and cost
analysis
assess comprehensiveness and eﬀectiveness of internal control
systems
identify future product development trends and customer
demands
ensure design quality of HtC products with regard to hardware,
software and product safety
enhance production quality
provide after-sales service and enhance the quality of such

VII. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS
Relevant certiﬁcation of ﬁnancial personnel as required by the competent authority
division
finance and
accounting
division

internal audit

name
James Chen
sally Wang
eason Chou
mingyi Wu
Hsiu Lai
George Liu
Jill Chen
Jerry Chen
ally Liu
irene Cheng
anita Cheng

relevant training and Certiﬁcation
Certiﬁed public accountant (Cpa)
Chartered financial analyst (Cfa), financial risk manager (frm)
Us Certiﬁed public accountant, Chartered financial analyst
internal auditor, Certiﬁed public accountant
Certiﬁed public accountant, Us Certiﬁed public accountant
internal auditor
Certiﬁed public accountant
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AFFILIATES
I. HTC Aﬃliated Companies Chart
1. Controlled and Aﬃliated Companies
(as of 2010.12.31)

100.00%
100.00%

HTC Corporation

100.00%

H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

High Tech Computer
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

100.00%

HTC Investment Corporation
PT. High Tech Computer
Indonesia

1.00%

100.00%

1.00%

100.00%

HTC I Investment Corporation
HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

100.00%

Huada Digital Corporation

HTC America Inc.
One & Company Design, Inc.

Exedea Inc.
HTC America Holding Inc.

Communication Global
Certification Inc.

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

High Tech Computer Corp.
(Suzhou)

100.00%

HTC America Innovation Inc.

100.00%
100.00%

High Tech Computer
(H.K.) Limited

100.00%

100.00%

HTC (Australia and New
Zealand) PTY LTD.

99.99%

99.99%

99.00%

99.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

99.00%

100.00%

HTC Philippines Corp.

100.00%

PT. High Tech Computer
Indonesia

99.33%

HTC India Private Limited

100.00%

HTC (Thailand) Limited

100.00%

HTC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

100.00%

HTC Innovation Limited
HTC Communication Co., Ltd.
HTC HK, Limited
HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

1.00%

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ)

HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,
HTC Netherlands B.V.

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

HTC EUROPE CO., LTD.
HTC BRASIL
HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL
HTC NIPPON Corporation
HTC South Eastern Europe
Limited Liability Company
HTC Italia SRL
HTC Nordic ApS.
HTC Germany GmbH.
HTC Iberia S.L.
HTC Poland sp. z o.o.
HTC FRANCE CORPORATION

100.00%

ABAXIA SAS
100.00%

HTC India Private Limited
BLRSoft

0 .67%

HTC South Eastern Europe
Limited Liability Company

2. Mutually Invested Companies:
none
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II. HTC Aﬃliated Companies

Company
HtC iberia s.L.

amount in thousands
Company
investor:
HtC Corporation

investee:
H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp.

date of
incorporation place of registration

Capital stock

Business activities

1997.05.15

ntd 8,176,532

principally engaged in design, manufacture and
marketing of pda phones, smart phones and
handheld devices, as well as the provision of
related technologies and after services
international holding

2000.08.01

Communication Global Certiﬁcation 1998.09.01
inc.

3f, omar Hodge Building, Wickhams Cay i, p.o. ntd 855,826
Box 362, road town, tortola, British virgin
( Usd 25,252 )
islands
5f., no.364, sec. 2, Xiyuan rd., Wanhua
ntd 200,000
district, taipei City 108, taiwan, r.o.C.

High tech Computer asia paciﬁc
pte. Ltd.
HtC investment Corporation

2007.07.12

260 orchard road #07-04 Heeren, singapore

2008.07.24

HtC i investment Corporation

2009.09.14

Huada digital Corporation

2010.01.04

5f., no.364, sec. 2, Xiyuan rd., Wanhua
district, taipei City 108, taiwan, r.o.C.
5f., no.364, sec. 2, Xiyuan rd., Wanhua
district, taipei City 108, taiwan, r.o.C.
no.2-2, aly. 8, Ln. 85, sec. 3, muzha rd.,
Wenshan dist., taipei City 116, taiwan, r.o.C.
suzhou industrial park, China

High tech Computer Corp. (suzhou) 2003.01.01
exedea inc.

2004.12.28

High tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

2007.08.03

HtC (australia and new Zealand)
pty Ltd.
HtC philippines Corp.

2007.08.28
2007.12.06

pt. High tech Computer indonesia

2007.12.03

HtC india private Limited

2008.01.30

HtC (thailand) Limited

2007.11.06

HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.

2007.11.07

HtC innovation Limited

2009.01.30

HtC Communication Co., Ltd.

2008.12.29

HtC HK, Limited

2006.08.26

HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.

2009.08.18

HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)

2007.07.09

HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2007.01.22
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no.23, Xinghua rd., taoyuan City, taoyuan
County 330, taiwan, r.o.C.

5950 Corporate dr. Houston,texas 77036
2306
Unit 808-09a, 8th floor, aia tower, 183
electric road, north point, Hong Kong
suite 3002, Level 30, 100 miller street, north
sydney, australia
Unit 32 3/f WorLdnet BUsiness Center
Zeta BLdG 191, saLCedo st LeGaspi
viLLaGe, maKati City 1229
pLaZa Lippo, 3rd floor, Jl. Jend. sudirman
Kav 25, Jakarta 12920
315-315a, 3rd floor, rectangle no.1, district
Commercial Complex-d4 saket, new
delhi-110017 india
no. 1 fortune town Building, 30th floor,
Unit no. a-3/1, ratchadapisek road, Kwang
dingdang Khet dingdang, Bangkok, thailand
Level 18, the Gardens north tower, mid valley
City, Lingkaran syed putra, 59200 Kuala
Lumpur, malaysia
20/f Korea first Bank Bldg., 100 Gongpyungdong, Chongno-gu, seoul, Korea
room 201a, no.2555, Jinke road, Zhangjiang
Hi-tech park, shanghai, China
31/f tHe Center 99 QUeen's road
CentraL HK
orteliuslaan 850, 3528BB Utrecht
6f a building, no.288 Hedan rd.,Waigaoqiao
free trade Zone, shanghai, China
room 123, no. 2502, Hunan road, Kangqiao
industrial Zone, nanhui district, shanghai,
China
orteliuslaan 850, 3528BB Utrecht

HtC netherlands B.v.

2009.11.11

HtC eUrope Co., Ltd.

2003.07.09

HtC BrasiL

2006.10.25

HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL

2006.10.12

HtC nippon Corporation

2006.03.22

HtC franCe Corporation

2010.04.02

HtC south eastern europe Limited
Liability Company
HtC italia srL

2010.04.27

16f akasaka twin tower main tower, 2-17-22
akasaka, minato-ku, tokyo 1070052 Japan
123 rUe dU CHateaU 92100 BoULoHne
BiLLanCoUrt
Kiﬁssias 90, marousi 15125, athens, Greece

2007.02.19

piazza marconi, 15- 00144, rome, italy

HtC nordic aps.

2010.07.01

a.p. møllers allé 9B, 2791 dragør, denmark

HtC Germany GmbH.

2010.09.06

solmsstrasse 18, Gebäude e 60486 frankfurt
am main Germany
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Communications House, presley Way,
Crownhill, milton Keynes, Bucks, mK8 0es, UK
rua James Joule, no.92, suite 82, 7th floor,
ediﬁcio plaza.1, in the City of sao paulo, state
of sao paulo.
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ntd 6,561,949
( sGd 286,941 )
ntd 300,000

import of controlled telecommunications radio
frequency devices and information software
services
Global investing activities, marketing,
distribution and after-sales service
General investing activities

ntd 295,000

General investing activities

ntd 245,000

software service

ntd 662,388
( Usd 20,000 )
ntd 35
( Usd 1 )
ntd 85,132
( HKd 20,000 )
ntd 117,871
( aUd 4,000 )
ntd 6,596
( pHp 8,588 )

manufacture and sale of smart handheld devices
and electronic components
distribution and sales

ntd 6,184
( Usd 188 )
ntd 4,133
( inr 5,000 )

marketing, repair and after-sales services

date of
incorporation place of registration
2010.10.08
avda. de la industria 4, natea Business park,
edif 3. planta 3 d 28108 alcobendas, madrid
spain

HtC poland sp. z o.o.

2010.09.01

HtC america Holding inc.

2010.04.23

aBaXia sas

2003.02.19

HtC america inc.

2003.01.06

one & Company design, inc.

2003.10.04

HtC america innovation inc.

2010.04.23

BLrsoft

2006.11.09

Capital stock
ntd 117
( eUr 3 )

ul. post pu 21B 02-676 Warszawa poland

ntd 2,297
( eUr 59 )
13920 se eastgate Way, suite 400 Bellevue,
ntd 687,963
Washington 98005
( Usd 23,617 )
40 rue madeleine michelis 92200 neuilly sur
ntd 3,522
seine, france
( eUr 81 )
13920 se eastgate Way, suite 400 Bellevue,
ntd 594,286
Washington 98005
( Usd 18,000 )
2700 18th street san francisco, Ca,Usa, 94110 ntd 1,174
( Usd 36 )
13920 se eastgate Way, suite 400 Bellevue,
ntd 93,780
Washington 98005
( Usd 3,000 )
203-25 Ulitsa yanki Kupaly minsk, 220030,
BeLarUs

ntd 509
( Byr 42,820 )

Business activities
marketing, repair and after-sales services

marketing, repair and after-sales services
international holding
design, research and development of
application software
marketing, repair and after-sales services
design, research and development of
application software
design, research and development of
application software
design, research and development of
application software

note 1: paid-in capital is translated at the exchange rate current at the time the capital contribution was eﬀected.

marketing, repair and after-sales services
marketing, repair and after-sales services
marketing, repair and after-sales services

marketing, repair and after-sales services

ntd 2,313
( myr 250 )

marketing, repair and after-sales services

ntd 1,166
( KoW 50,000 )
ntd 891,326
( Usd 27,500 )
ntd 2,924,964
( HKd 780,407 )
ntd 1,348
( eUr 28 )
ntd 49,845
( Usd 1,500 )
ntd 3,162,105
( Usd 100,909 )

marketing, repair and after-sales services

ntd 783
( eUr 19 )
ntd 2,768
( Jpy 10,000 )
ntd 284,115
( eUr 6,500 )
ntd 177
( eUr 4.5 )
ntd 422
( eUr 10 )
ntd 418
( eUr 11 )
ntd 973
( eUr 25 )

none.

IV. Industries covered by the Businesses Operated by all Aﬃliates
and Intra-ﬁrm Division of Labor:
1. Industries covered by the businesses operated by all aﬃliates:

marketing, repair and after-sales services

ntd 23,427
( tHB 25,000 )

ntd 867
( eUr 18 )
ntd 932,445
( GBp 20,634 )
ntd 33,058
( BrL 1,987 )

III. Common Shareholders of HTC and its Subsidiaries or its
Aﬃliates with Actual of Deemed Control:

sale of smart handheld devices and electronic
components
international holding
international holding
repair and after-sales service
manufacture and sale of smart handheld devices
and electronic components
international holding
marketing, repair and after-sales services
marketing, repair and after-sales services

marketing, repair and after-sales services
marketing, repair and after-sales services

principally engaged in design, manufacture and marketing of pda phones, smart phones and handheld devices, as
well as the provision of related technologies and after-sales services.

2. Division of labor among all aﬃliates:
the controlling company, HtC Corporation, is the primary r&d and manufacturing base and provider of technical
resources. for its aﬃliates:
﹥ the primary business of H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp., HtC america Holding inc., HtC HK, Limited, HtC Holding Cooperatief
U.a. and HtC netherlands B.v. is international holding.
﹥ Huada digital Corporation engages in software service.
﹥ Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc. engages in the import of controlled telecommunications radio frequency
devices and information software services.
﹥ the primary business of HtC investment Corporation and HtC i investment Corporation is general investing
activities.
﹥ High tech Computer Corp. (suzhou) and HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd. engage in the manufacture and
sale of smart handheld devices and electronic components.
﹥ exedea inc. engages in distribution and sales.
﹥ HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ) engages in repair and after-sales service.

marketing, repair and after-sales services

﹥ aBaXia sas, BLrsoft, HtC america innovation inc. and one & Company design, inc. engage in design, research
and development of application software.

marketing, repair and after-sales services

﹥ HtC Communication Co., Ltd. engages in sale of smart handheld devices and electronic components.

marketing, repair and after-sales services
marketing, repair and after-sales services

﹥ High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. engages in global investing activities, marketing, distribution and aftersales service.

marketing, repair and after-sales services

﹥ the remaining companies engage in marketing, repair and after-sales services.
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V. Rosters of Directors, Supervisors, and Presidents of HTC
Aﬃliated Companies
Unit: nt$ thousands, except shareholding
Company

title

investor:
HtC Corporation

investee:
H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp.
Communication Global Certiﬁcation
inc.

High tech Computer asia paciﬁc
pte. Ltd.
HtC investment Corporation

Chairman
director

Cher Wang
Wen-Chi Chen

director
director
independent director
independent director
supervisor
supervisor

Ht Cho
tan Ho-Chen
Chen-Kuo Lin
Josef felder
Way-Chih investment Co., Ltd. representative: shao-Lun
Lee
Caleb ou-yang

Chairman
Chairman

HtC Corporation representative: Cher Wang
HtC Corporation representative: fred Liu

100.00%

858,767 shares

99.99%

185,625 shares

99.00%

1,875 shares
185,625 shares

1.00%
99.00%

1,875 shares
495,000 shares

1.00%
99.00%

5,000 shares

1.00%

10,000,000 shares

100.00%

25,000 shares

100.00%

5,000 shares

100.00%

ntd 891,326

100.00%

781,440,695 shares

100.00%

ntd 49,845
ntd 3,162,105
ntd 1,335

100.00%
100.00%
99.00%

ntd 13

1.00%

18,000 shares
20,633,883 shares
1,987,399 shares
18,550 shares

100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
100.00%

1,000 shares

100.00%

HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.

director

HtC innovation Limited

Chairman

HtC Communication Co., Ltd.

Chairman

HtC HK, Limited

director

HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)
executive director
HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd. Chairman
HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.
director
director
HtC netherlands B.v.
HtC eUrope Co. Ltd.
HtC BrasiL
HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL

representative
director
representative
director

HtC nippon Corporation

Chairman
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100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

60,000 shares

100.00%

1,000 shares

100.00%

ntd 660

100.00%

VI. Operational Highlights of HTC Aﬃliated Companies

400,000 shares

director

director

23,617,151 shares
805,716 shares
18,000,000 shares

director

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

HtC (thailand) Limited

one & Company design, inc.

100.00%

BLrsoft

30,000,000 shares
29,500,000 shares
29,500,000 shares
29,500,000 shares
24,500,000 shares
24,500,000 shares
24,500,000 shares
ntd 662,388
100 shares
2,000,000 shares

director

director
president
director

100 shares

director

100.00%
100.00%

supervisor
director

HtC america Holding, inc.
aBaXia sas
HtC america, inc.

100.00%
100.00%

HtC america innovation, inc.

30,000,000 shares
30,000,000 shares

director

director

25,000 shares
3,006 shares

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

pt. High tech Computer indonesia

HtC poland sp. z o.o.

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

225,018,083.20 shares
20,000,000 shares

100.00%
100.00%

director

director
director

6,500,000 shares
150 shares
ntd 422
80,000 shares

-

20,000,000 shares

director

HtC Germany GmbH
HtC iberia s.L.U.

HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche,
edward Wang
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche,
edward Wang
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: florian seiche,
edward Wang
HtC eUrope Co. Ltd representative: Hui-ming Cheng
Cedric mangaud
HtC america Holding, inc. representative: peter Chou,
fred Liu
HtC america Holding, inc. representative: edward Wang,
Horace Luke, scott Croyle
HtC america Holding, inc. representative: James Chen,
ronald allen Louks
aBaXia sas representative: ongan mordeniz

-

20,000,000 shares
206,218,309 shares

HtC (australia and new Zealand)
pty Ltd
HtC philippines Corp.

president
administrator
director
director

0.02%
5.10%

HtC Corporation representative: Jim Lin, simon Hsieh

HtC Corporation representative: edward Wang
HtC Corporation representative: peter Chou
HtC Corporation representative: fred Liu, Hui-ming Cheng
HtC Corporation representative: edward Wang
HtC Corporation representative: peter Chou
HtC Corporation representative: fred Liu, Bill Lee
HtC Corporation representative: yvonne Chen
H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp. representative: fred Liu
H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp. representative: marian Chao
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
peter Chou
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
Jack tong, edward Wang, michael derin
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
peter Chou, fred Liu, majorie L. elic, Juancho s. ong,
edgardo C. abenis
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
fred Liu
HtC Corporation representative: fred Liu
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
peter Chou
HtC Corporation representative: peter Chou
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
Jack tong, edward Wang
HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a. representative: Jack tong,
edward Wang
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
fred Liu
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
Jack tong, edward Wang, yeoh Cheng Lee, abd malik Bin
a. rahman
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
Jack tong
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
fred Liu
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
fred Liu, abraxas Limited
HtC HK, Limited representative: fred Liu
HtC HK, Limited representative: Cs Wang
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte. Ltd. representative:
Hui-ming Cheng, J. J. van Ginkel
HtC Corporation representative: Hui-ming Cheng, J. J. van
Ginkel
HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: peter Chou, fred Liu
HtC netherlands B.v.
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: fred Liu, edward
Wang, equity trust Belgium nv
HtC netherlands B.v. representative: david Kou

shareholding

144,600 shares
41,732,658 shares

HtC Corporation representative: Hui-ming Cheng
HtC Corporation representative: peter Chou, fred Liu, Lim
tiong Beng
HtC Corporation representative: peter Chou
HtC Corporation representative: fred Liu, Hui-ming Cheng

Chairman
director

name or representative

investment Holding
percentage
3.18%
2.61%

director

director
supervisor
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shareholding

title

investee:
HtC france Corporation
HtC south eastern europe LLC
HtC italia srL
HtC nordic aps

shares (investment
amount)
25,973,740 shares
21,325,133 shares

supervisor
director

supervisor
HtC i investment Corporation
Chairman
director
supervisor
Huada digital Corporation
Chairman
director
supervisor
High tech Computer Corp. (suzhou) Chairman
exedea inc.
Chairman
High tech Computer (H.K.) Limited
director

HtC india private Limited

name or representative

Company

Unit: nt$ thousands, except eps (nt$)
Company
investor:
HtC Corporation
investee:
H.t.C. (B.v.i.) Corp.
Communication Global Certiﬁcation inc.
High tech Computer asia paciﬁc pte.
Ltd.
HtC investment Corporation
HtC i investment Corporation
Huada digital Corporation
High tech Computer Corp. (suzhou)
exedea inc.
exedea inc.
High tech Computer (H.K.) Limited
HtC (australia and new Zealand) pty
Ltd.
HtC philippines Corp.
pt. High tech Computer indonesia
HtC india private Limited
HtC (thailand) Limited
HtC malaysia sdn. Bhd.
HtC innovation Limited
HtC Communication Co., Ltd.
HtC HK, Limited
HtC Holding Cooperatief U.a.
HtC Corporation (shanghai WGQ)
HtC electronics (shanghai) Co., Ltd.
HtC netherlands B.v.
HtC south eastern europe Limited
Liability Company
HtC eUrope Co., Ltd.
HtC BrasiL
HtC Belgium BvBa/sprL
HtC nippon Corporation
HtC franCe Corporation
HtC italia srL
HtC nordic aps.
HtC Germany GmbH.
HtC iberia s.L.
HtC poland sp. z o.o.
HtC america Holding inc.
aBaXia sas
HtC america inc.
one & Company design, inc.
HtC america innovation inc.
BLrsoft

Capital stock

assets

Liabilities

net Worth

net sales

income from
operation

net income
(net of tax)

Basic eps
(net of tax)

8,176,532

184,050,453

109,335,959

74,714,494

275,046,954

42,295,343

39,533,600

48.49

855,826
200,000
6,561,949

1,061,474
432,180
7,727,438

4,578
32,684
41,969

1,056,896
399,496
7,685,469

3,014
169,882
1,814,610

( 6,773 )
3,181
1,476,827

( 11,758 )
5,251
1,481,173

( 0.03 )
0.29
10.43

300,000
295,000
245,000
662,388

300,965
295,971
245,696
644,014

176
189
128
1,616

300,789
295,782
245,568
642,398

39,579

( 193 )
( 180 )
( 255 )
( 49,269 )

642
775
568
( 42,488 )

0.02
0.03
0.02
-

35
85,132
117,871

39,593
141,885
277,818

1,806
59,535
127,982

37,787
82,350
149,836

1,332,896
235,723
334,278

47,359
11,286
15,796

28,819
9,874
14,415

288,190.00
4.94
36.04

6,596
6,184
4,133
23,427
2,313
1,166
891,326
2,924,964
1,348
49,845
3,162,105
867
177

6,400
6,002
65,862
45,020
26,682
92,048
3,300,572
3,690,631
2,342,433
80,535
9,501,488
2,372,539
3,613

52,687
17,025
21,824
84,051
2,524,892
213
24,173
5,867,579
31,186
2,166

6,400
6,002
13,175
27,995
4,858
7,997
775,680
3,690,418
2,342,433
56,362
3,633,909
2,341,353
1,447

140,386
70,374
75,360
198,567
2,217,409
689,042
739,712
97,423
11,308,875
785,007
24,636

6,691
3,330
3,571
9,407
( 79,794 )
688,527
739,687
5,924
670,801
740,742
1,824

4,122
1,764
741
6,731
( 52,316 )
688,492
739,687
3,449
699,946
739,713
1,368

8.24
0.18
29.64
1,346.20
2,294.97
9,120.00

932,445
33,058
783
2,768
284,115
422
418
973
117
2,297
687,963
3,522
594,286
1,174
93,780
509

3,343,378
45,668
161,066
66,732
615,534
26,111
46,106
52,130
31,093
13,519
1,255,472
510,753
28,345,054
95,230
294,237
8,038

1,437,097
23,000
76,096
60,242
369,923
22,426
38,478
22,399
20,048
11,144
234
41,454
27,288,912
26,702
196,455
3,398

1,906,281
22,668
84,970
6,490
245,611
3,685
7,628
29,731
11,045
2,375
1,255,238
469,299
1,056,142
68,528
97,782
4,640

4,155,967
186,144
478,536
121,238
78,956
75,240
94,276
50,877
17,293
16,150
404,126
161,066
93,104,066
169,776
294,708
35,153

485,734
8,365
42,722
5,690
9,900
4,596
4,214
8,072
2,523
769
403,874
( 25,855 )
635,376
2,716
19,279
( 7,411 )

707,235
3,510
39,801
2,021
( 7,478 )
837
1,998
5,570
1,766
80
372,294
( 18,212 )
413,827
6,750
11,244
( 8,249 )

37.71
1.77
2,145.61
2,021.00
( 1.15 )
24.98
222.80
588.67
800.00
13.83
( 22.60 )
22.99
112.50
11,244.00
-

note: authorized capital is translated at the exchange rate at the time the capital contribution was eﬀected. the balance sheet foreign exchange rate is based on the exchange rate on the
balance sheet date. the foreign exchange rate for the income statement is based on the weighted average exchange rate for the given period.
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Consolidated Financial Statements of HTC Aﬃliated Companies

the workﬂow for handheld devices, from r&d through production, is as follows:

pursuant to the "regulations Governing preparation of Consolidated Business reports Covering aﬃliated enterprises,
Consolidated financial statements Covering aﬃliated enterprises, and reports on aﬃliations" and to Letter no.
taiwan-finance-securities-04448 of the securities and futures Commission, ministry of finance, HtC shall prepare
aﬃliates' consolidated ﬁnancial statements and issue the declaration of attachment 1 of that Letter. that declaration
has already been issued by HtC and placed on page 1 of the aﬃliates' ﬁnancial statement; please refer to it there.

setting product speciﬁcations ＞ software/Hardware r&d ＞ testing ＞ Certiﬁcation ＞ pCB manufacturing ＞ pCB
testing ＞ system assembly ＞ finished product testing & inspection ＞ finished product enters warehouse

Aﬃliates Report
there were no circumstances requiring preparation of an aﬃliates report.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT SECURITIES IN 2010 AND
AS OF THE DATE OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT:
none.

STATUS OF HTC COMMON SHARES AND GDRS
ACQUIRED, DISPOSED OF, AND HELD BY
SUBSIDIARIES IN 2010 AND AS OF THE DATE OF
THIS ANNUAL REPORT:
none.

II. Environmental Protection Expenditures:
primary products manufactured by HtC Corporation include smartphone and handheld devices. With regard to
production processes, airborne pollutants are generated only during soldering and solid wastes are generated at various
production stages. HtC production processes generate no wastewater.
HtC places a high priority on eﬀectively managing wastes generated by operations and consistently allocates
signiﬁcant funds to install and maintain pollution prevention facilities and retain professional staﬀ. HtC provides oﬀsite
training for staﬀ to earn licenses needed to operate installed pollution control equipment. HtC further implements
internal training programs and conducts audits to ensure relevant pollution control mechanisms operate properly and
eﬀectively in order to continue reducing pollution at HtC. HtC regularly contracts with licensed independent inspectors
to review its operational environment. every audit and inspection of HtC facilities conducted since HtC was founded
has conﬁrmed that company operations comply with all relevant government rules and regulations.
HtC is certiﬁed under iso 14001:2004 environmental management and iso 14064-1:2006 greenhouse gas emission
standards. Certiﬁcation-mandated procedures and requirements further reduce HtC pollution emissions and energy
consumption and move us forward toward clean production objectives.
1. Losses (including ﬁnancial compensation) and ﬁnes due to pollution incidents from the start of the most recent ﬁscal
year and as of the date of this annual report:
HtC has never been ﬁned or otherwise penalized for pollution by environmental authorities.
2. future strategies (inclusive of environmental protection facility improvements) and possible expenditures:

ANY EVENTS IN 2010 AND AS OF THE DATE OF
THIS ANNUAL REPORT THAT HAD SIGNIFICANT
IMPACTS ON SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT OR
SECURITY PRICES AS STATED IN ITEM 2
PARAGRAPH 2 OF ARTICLE 36 OF SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE LAW OF TAIWAN:

> Continue to strengthen operations management in order to comply with government rules / regulations and reduce
accidents, errors and other abnormalities;
> strengthen waste collection and recycling eﬀorts. encourage resource reuse as part of the eﬀort to achieve waste
reduction targets;
> Continue promoting iso 14001 and iso 14064-1 technical and administrative measures to maximize clean
production beneﬁts.

none.

OTHER NECESSARY SUPPLEMENT:
I. Key Functionalities and Manufacturing Processes for Primary
Product Lines:
HtC's primary products are converged devices designed on android, Windows mobile and Brew operating systems
(os). HtC products support voice communication, mobile internet, multimedia, global positioning service (Gps),
personal data assistant (pda), e-mail, instant data search, ﬁnancial transaction services and other mobile digital
services.
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> major planned environmental expenditures over the next 2 years include:
Unit: nt$ thousands
item
anticipated
equipment
purchases /
expenditures

2011
1. energy eﬃcient lighting system for
new building (e.g., low-energy lighting,
independent power controls, energy saving
sensor & light switches)
2. Water conservation facilities for new building
(e.g., water saving taps in kitchenettes &
washrooms and water saving dual-ﬂush
toilets)
3. temperature & time switches for aircon
systems and inverters on main aircon units &
fans (new building)
4. inverters for elevators & air compressors
(new building)
5. rainwater recycling tanks (new building)

6. environmentally friendly materials for new
building (e.g., ﬂoorboards, paints, thermal
blocks, double low e glass, and solar
paneling)
7. inverters for motors & pumps

anticipated
Beneﬁts

8. HtC headquarters campus greeniﬁcation
9. sewage remediation work (in stream
adjacent to campus east gate)
10. Headquarters campus sewage system
enhancement
1. reduce energy consumption
2. Conserve water resources
3. reduce energy consumption
4. reduce energy consumption
5. Conserve water resources
6. reduce pollution and minimize health risks.
enhance material thermal resistance to cut
energy loss
7. reduce energy consumption

fiscal year
2012
1. energy eﬃcient lighting system

2013
1. energy eﬃcient lighting system

2. Water conservation facilities

2. Water conservation facilities

3. energy eﬃcient aircon equipment

3. energy eﬃcient aircon equipment

4. inverters for motors and pumps

4. inverters for elevators & air compressors

5. temperature & time switches for new building
aircon systems and inverters on main aircon
units and fans
6. inverters for elevators and air compressors in
new building

5. system to supply recycled wastewater as
landscaping & toilet ﬂush water

7. environmentally friendly materials for new
building

7. Water / power conservation promotion
activities
8. Garbage reduction promotion activities
9. inverters for motors and pumps

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

reduce energy consumption
Conserve water resources
reduce energy consumption
reduce energy consumption
reduce energy consumption
reduce energy consumption

7. reduce pollution and minimize health risks.
enhance material thermal resistance to cut
energy loss

8. achieve natural cooling eﬀect, reduce Co2
emission, and reduce energy consumption

expenditures
(estimated)

9. prevent stream silting and odors
10. reduce impact of HtC-generated wastes on
the environment
126,300

6. rainwater collection pond construction

reduce energy consumption
Conserve water resources
reduce energy consumption
reduce energy consumption
Conserve water resources
reduce demand on public water supplies and
conserve water resources

7. promote use of new water conservation
facilities to minimize waste
8. promote general waste reduction & recycling
to reduce waste volumes and environmental
loading
9. reduce energy consumption

105,000

70,000

3. environmental protection and employee Health & safety measures
Environmental Protection:
HtC is committed to operating low-polluting, low-hazard work environments. HtC adheres to all domestic
environmental protection regulations. Cardboard boxes, containers and plastic packaging material are collected and
separated for recycling. HtC requires suppliers to comply with eU Weee and roHs environmental requirements
in order to reduce industrial waste, prevent pollution, enhance general quality of life and oﬀer consumers products
that reﬂect HtC's low environmental impact commitment.
Committed to environmental responsibility, HtC monitors its greenhouse gas sources and emissions in compliance
with iso 14064-1 standards. HtC also follows iso 50001 energy management standards to promote eﬀective
energy management in order to achieve long-run sustainability and competitiveness.

98

>

track greenhouse gas emission to monitor type and amount of energy resources currently being used. Use
data to draft action plan for energy conservation

>

recertiﬁcation of greenhouse gas records conducted by recognized certiﬁcation agency at the start of each
year (certiﬁcate issued)

>

release to the public on a voluntary annual basis relevant data on HtC greenhouse gas emissions through the
taiwan environmental protection administration's national GHG emissions registry and relevant international
nonproﬁt organizations

>

expect to earn iso 50001 energy management systems Certiﬁcation by end of 2011
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Employee Health and Safety (H&S):
HtC updates its workplace safety and accident
prevention plan on an annual basis to reﬂect current
H&s management conditions. this plan represents
HtC's primary line of defense against accidents in
the workplace. main thrusts of HtC's H&s measures
include ensuring adherence to all mandated H&s
regulations, reducing risk through hazard recognition,
and eﬀective management of dangerous / hazardous
materials. HtC is certiﬁed under oHsas18001:2007.
new employees receive health and safety education
training to ensure familiarity with safety rules
related to HtC's work environment and production
processes. HtC also holds regular ﬁre safety drills
to familiarize all employees with the use of ﬁre
prevention and suppression facilities.
in the realm of health, HtC focuses eﬀorts on the four
facets of employee healthcare, health enhancement,
health management and employee assistance
programs. HtC plans to oﬀer all employees a high
quality menu of health service items including
regular health checkups, health-enhancement
programs / activities, health-related seminars,
group management for speciﬁc health problems,
and psychological counseling. HtC also recognizes
the importance to employee wellbeing of rest and
relaxation outside of oﬃce hours.
the HtC health and safety management handbook
and manual of H&s regulations are available on the
company intranet for ready reference and review by
all employees.
4. Green Product Research and Development
environmental "green" design procedures have been
enforced at HtC since 2000. these procedures
address the complete product lifecycle - from
design and production through consumer use and
end-of-life disposal. HtC seeks to identify and
exploit opportunities to both minimize the negative
environmental impacts and maximize the positive
environmental eﬀects of each of its products. Use of
lead, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, mercury and
other hazardous materials is minimized or eliminated.
designers also work to increase the recoverability
of materials at end-of-life and the utilization of
recycled materials in products in order to reduce
overall environmental impact. HtC develops its
green products within the framework of minimal
use of toxic materials, frugal use of input resources
and maximum materials recyclability. as such, our
products meet strict environmental regulations
enforced in our markets and satisfy customer
expectations and needs. all these enhance HtC's
"green competitiveness" and help realize long-term
sustainability for our operations and business.

III. Labor Relations Management
HtC oﬀers employees opportunities to extend and
deepen professional skills and knowledge; sharpen
proactive and positive attitudes toward professional
responsibilities; internalize serious and responsible work
values; adopt honest and forthright work habits and
pursue excellence in all tasks and responsibilities in order
to create an exceptional work environment. We provide
our employees with engaging challenges as well as skills
/ knowledge of value to their career growth. We ﬁrmly
believe that a positive, energetic work environment
fosters professional enthusiasm and innovation.
1. Employee Recruitment
Hiring and retaining exceptional employees is a key
objective of HtC's human resources strategy. We are
an equal opportunity employer and recognize the
practical beneﬁts that employee diversity brings to
HtC corporate culture and to the reinforcement and
extension of innovation. HtC hires all new employees
through open selection procedures, with candidates
oﬀered positions based on merit. We permit no
discrimination based on ethnicity, skin color, social
status, language, religion, political aﬃliation, country
/ region of origin, gender, sexual orientation, marital
status, appearance, disability, professional association
membership or other similar considerations not
relevant to job performance. HtC works through
cooperative programs with universities, internship
programs and summer work programs to provide work
opportunities to a large number of students each year.
We participate actively in job fairs and recruitment
events in taiwan and abroad as part of our ongoing,
organized eﬀort to tap the best talent available.
2. Employee Development
HtC operates a workplace environment highly
conducive to learning and professional growth. By
encouraging employees to improve themselves and
to maintain and enhance their professional skills, HtC
helps sustain its competitive advantage while keeping
a promise to help employees grow as individuals.
supplementing our extensive in house technical
training curriculum, we oﬀered during 2010 specially
designed management and personal development
curricula (including language training and new staﬀ
orientation) to help employees diversify their skill sets,
explore new potentials and deepen expertise. HtC
has also launched a dedicated e-Learning and mobile
Learning platform able to deliver a diverse range of
learning tools within a highly accommodating learning
environment. HtC further oﬀers its employees inservice training scholarships as well as subsidizes
oﬀ-site training to encourage growth and permit the
pursuit of personal fulﬁllment.
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Staﬀ Training Hours & Expenditures during 2010
total training
Hours
66,590

Category
technical
management
personal
development

orientation
training (for new
staﬀ)
eﬀectiveness
enhancement

totaL

expenditure (nt$)
958,227

18,171

5,355,261

9,854

680

55,412

5,323,335

150,027

11,637,503

3. Employee Beneﬁts and Employee Satisfaction
HtC's work environment is geared to challenge,
stimulate and fulﬁll our employees. We maintain
various outreach initiatives designed to motivate
employees, enhance employee beneﬁts and facilitate
greater dialogue between the company and its
workforce.
． Comprehensive Employee Beneﬁts
HtC provides coverage of its employees under both
the national Labor and national Health insurance
programs, provides employees with annual vacation
travel allowance, regular physical examinations, regular
departmental lunches, cash bonuses for taiwan's three
main annual festivals, cash for weddings / funerals,
subsidies for club activities, book store coupons, and
access to employee exercise facilities and various
exercise classes.
． Open and Responsive Lines of Communication
HtC operates an internal system to receive employee
complaints. this system includes a hotline, physical
mailbox, and e-mail address dedicated to receiving
employee complaints and suggestions as well as
a regularly convened joint labor-management
committee. HtC regularly canvasses employee
opinions. results are made available to executives and
managers and used to measure changes in employee
satisfaction and commitment.
． Regular Activities and Events
HtC holds regular sports rallies, family days, athletic
competitions and artistic / literary contests to
increase opportunities for employees to enjoy informal
interactions outside of their regular work.
． Employee Awards
dedicated to rewarding employee eﬀort and
innovation, HtC maintains employee proﬁt sharing
mechanisms and rewards individual employees who
submit proposals for practical improvements or earn
patent awards. HtC also provides cash awards for
the best entries in an annual competition designed to
solicit quality improvement ideas.
4. Employee Retention
specialist retention plan: incentives are oﬀered to
employees with special / critical skills to keep them
with the company and ensure they beneﬁt from the
results of their eﬀorts.
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Long service awards: awards are presented at a
company-wide ceremony that recognize employees
with 5 and 10-year long service records.
internal transfer assistance: in order to help enhance
employees' professional experience / career planning,
HtC provides assistance to facilitate employee
transfers within the company.
5. Compensation and Retirement Beneﬁts
HtC employees earn market-competitive salaries
that take into consideration academic background,
work experience, seniority and current professional
responsibilities / position level. the amount of annual
employee performance bonuses is proposed by the
president and approved by the board of directors
based on current year business performance.
employee proﬁt sharing bonuses are also allocated
to employees each year based on motions from the
board of directors that are adopted by resolutions
at annual shareholders' meetings. Both bonuses are
allocated based on work performance and relative
level of contribution in order to motivate employees
eﬀectively.
HtC's retirement policy has been in place, as required
by law, since the company was founded. starting in
november 1999, HtC began to contribute an amount
equal to 2 percent of each employee's salary into his /
her individual corporate retirement fund. this system
was replaced in 2004 when HtC began contributing
an amount equal to 8 percent of each employee's
salary into a general labor retirement fund managed
by a labor retirement fund supervisory board. With
the enactment of the new retirement system on 1 July
2005, employees hired under the previous retirement
scheme who opted not to switch to the new
retirement system were permitted, with supervisory
approval, to adjust the current 8 percent contribution
downward to 2 percent.
6. Labor Negotiations and Measures to Protect
Employee Rights
HtC is committed to fostering an atmosphere of trust
in its labor relations and places great importance on
internal communications. Labor relations meetings
are convened once every two months (at least 6
regular meetings per year), with labor represented
by six elected employee representatives. meeting
minutes are kept to ensure follow-on action and track
results. HtC further oﬀers employees various channels
through which to submit opinions, suggestions and
complaints, which may be delivered via a telephone
hotline, e-mail address or physical mail as well as
made known through HtC's regular employee opinion
surveys.
during the most recent ﬁscal year and as of the date
of this annual report, labor relations management
have been harmonious with no losses resulting from
labor-management conﬂicts; and no loss of this type
is expected in the future.
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1. ABBREVIATED BALANCE SHEETS AND INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE PAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(2) Abbreviated Consolidated Balance Sheets
Unit: NT$ thousands

(1) Abbreviated Balance Sheets
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year
Item

Year
Item

Current Assets

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

As of 2011.3.31

Current Assets

156,908,107

101,503,673

101,271,990

83,172,719

61,810,772

183,880,137

Long-term Investments

10,708,420

6,506,194

5,160,891

2,899,109

824,481

14,701,217

Intangible Assets

Properties

10,941,230

8,314,177

7,375,651

3,715,901

2,909,624

11,239,179

Other Assets

Intangible Assets
Other Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities

Before Appropriation
After Appropriation

Long-term Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Before Appropriation
After Appropriation

Capital stock
Capital surplus
Retained Earnings

Before Appropriation
After Appropriation

Unrealized Loss On Financial Instruments
Cumulative Translation Adjustments
Net Loss Not Recognized As Pension Cost
Treasury Stock
Total Stockholders’ Equity Before Appropriation
After Appropriation

208,581

-

-

-

-

198,675

5,284,115

3,297,898

1,417,830

656,817

449,300

7,252,697

184,050,453

119,621,942

115,226,362

90,444,546

65,994,177

217,271,905

109,335,331

53,980,282

54,558,470

34,368,139

23,421,319

127,441,341

*
-

74,102,614

74,684,104

55,064,686

37,106,789

-

-

-

-

*
-

628

1,210

6,406

628

640

628

109,335,959

53,981,492

54,564,876

34,368,767

23,421,959

127,441,969

*
8,176,532

74,103,824

74,690,510

55,065,314

37,107,429

7,889,358

7,553,938

5,731,337

4,364,192

*
8,176,532

10,820,744

9,099,923

4,417,534

4,415,845

4,452,688

10,820,744

63,150,566

48,637,773

52,036,321

45,920,120

33,988,785

77,983,430

*
(885)

28,128,473

31,537,990

23,400,972

18,899,930

(1,658)

(1,632)

(1,187)

(238)

*
(284)

(579,849)

15,088

65,602

9,664

10,786

(297,872)

2009

2008

2007

2006

As of 2011.3.31

104,900,881

104,256,700

85,763,011

62,812,623

194,463,432

1,232,145

810,485

541,437

501,976

2,925

2,719,422

14,024,329

9,899,808

8,916,350

4,220,962

3,170,398

14,596,809

Long-term Investments
Properties

Total Assets
Current Liabilities

Before Appropriation

935,650

240,482

289,783

175,206

-

2,332,737

5,550,094

3,577,361

1,738,140

755,326

477,478

7,566,238

190,381,744

119,429,017

115,742,410

91,416,481

66,463,424

221,678,638

115,641,103

53,728,775

54,998,933

35,152,925

23,757,897

131,828,222

*
12,188

73,851,107

75,124,567

55,849,472

37,443,367

24,375

46,875

75,625

-

*
4,063

After Appropriation
Long-term Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Before Appropriation
After Appropriation

Capital stock
Capital surplus
Retained Earnings

Before Appropriation

13,959

1,210

6,420

633

640

16,417

115,667,250

53,754,360

55,052,228

35,229,183

23,758,537

131,848,702

*
8,176,532

73,876,692

75,177,862

55,925,730

37,444,007

7,889,358

7,553,938

5,731,337

4,364,192

*
8,176,532

10,820,744

9,099,923

4,417,534

4,415,845

4,452,688

10,820,744

63,150,566

48,637,773

52,036,321

45,920,120

33,988,785

77,983,430

*
(885)

28,128,473

31,537,990

23,400,972

18,899,930

(1,658)

(1,632)

(1,187)

(238)

*
(284)

(579,849)

15,088

65,602

9,664

10,786

(297,872)

(121)

(34)

-

-

-

(121)

(6,852,493)

-

(3,410,277)

-

(243,995)

(6,852,493)

74,714,494

65,640,450

60,661,486

56,075,779

42,572,218

89,829,936

-

34,207

28,696

111,519

132,669

-

74,714,494

65,674,657

60,690,182

56,187,298

42,704,887

89,829,936

*

45,552,325

40,564,548

35,490,751

29,019,417

*

After Appropriation
Unrealized Loss On Financial Instruments
Cumulative Translation Adjustments
Net Loss Not Recognized As Pension Cost
Treasury Stock

(121)

(34)

-

-

-

(121)

(6,852,493)

-

(3,410,277)

-

(243,995)

(6,852,493)

Minority Interest

74,714,494

65,640,450

60,661,486

56,075,779

42,572,218

89,829,936

Total Stockholders’ Equity

*

45,518,118

40,535,852

35,379,232

28,886,748

*

*Subject to change after shareholders’ meeting resolution

2010
168,639,526

Equity Attributable To The Stockholders Of The Parent
Before Appropriation
After Appropriation
*Subject to change after shareholders’ meeting resolution

(3) Abbreviated Income Statements
Unit: NT$ thousands (Except EPS NT$)

Year
Item

2010

2009

2008

275,046,954

144,880,715

152,558,766

Gross Profit (Note 1)

79,556,972

45,862,483

50,641,854

Operating Income (Note 1)

42,295,343

24,174,994

30,256,385

2,536,080

1,623,362

2,300,018

340,114

585,892

44,491,309

Revenues

Non-operating Income and Gains (Note 1)
Non-operating Expenses and Losses (Note 1)
Income from Continuing Operations before
Income Tax
Income from Continuing Operations

2007(Note 2)

2006(Note 2)

118,579,958

104,816,548

101,018,948

2011 1Q

40,177,500

31,322,998

27,420,007

30,535,537

25,820,624

15,284,442

1,810,908

1,234,336

1,528,358

965,924

195,148

97,082

145,415

25,212,464

31,590,479

32,151,297

26,957,878

16,667,385

39,533,600

22,608,902

28,635,349

28,938,862

25,247,327

14,832,864

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

Income (Loss) from Extraordinary Items

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting
Principle
Net Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,533,600

22,608,902

28,635,349

28,938,862

25,247,327

14,832,864

48.49

27.35

34.44

34.74

30.07

18.36

Basic Earnings Per Share

Note 1: In accordance with 2008 and 2010 financial reporting requirements, write-downs of inventories or reversal of write-downs and product warranty costs registered during the
period 2006 to 2007 have been reclassified as cost of revenues items.
Note 2: Excluded employee bonus expenses
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2. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
(4) Abbreviated Consolidated Income Statements

(1) Financial Analysis (Unconsolidated)

Unit: NT$ thousands (Except EPS NT$)

Year

Year
Item

2010

2009

2008

2007(Note 2)

2006(Note 2)

2011 1Q

Revenues

278,761,244

144,492,518

152,353,176

118,217,545

105,358,397

104,156,600

Gross Profit (Note 1)

83,868,739

46,162,981

50,990,638

44,164,632

32,516,182

30,470,410

44,132,581

24,622,907

30,345,270

30,660,255

25,745,994

16,470,484

1,142,944

1,420,086

2,319,489

1,771,846

1,284,052

734,476

311,137

646,581

929,043

200,165

87,329

155,806

44,964,388

25,396,412

31,735,716

32,231,936

26,942,717

17,049,154

39,514,844

22,614,413

28,552,526

28,917,712

25,234,342

14,832,864

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

-

-

-

-

-

-

Income (Loss) from Extraordinary Items

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting
Principle
Net Income

-

-

-

-

-

-

Operating Income (Note 1)
Non-operating Income and Gains (Note 1)
Non-operating Expenses and Losses (Note 1)
Income from Continuing Operations before
Income Tax
Income from Continuing Operations

Net Income Attributable to Shareholders of
the Parent
Basic Earnings Per Share

39,514,844

22,614,413

28,552,526

28,917,712

25,234,342

14,832,864

39,533,600

22,608,902

28,635,349

28,938,862

25,247,327

14,832,864

48.49

27.35

34.44

34.74

30.07

Item (Note 2~3)
Capital
Structure
Analysis
Liquidity
Analysis

2010

2009

2008

59

45

47

38

35

59

Long-term Fund to Fixed Assets
Ratio (%)
Current Ratio (%)

683

790

822

1,509

1,463

799

144

188

186

242

264

144

Quick Ratio (%)

120

171

169

218

233

119

967,203

192,463

136,167

133,409

90,464

-

5.92

4.92

6.09

6.01

6.09

6.35

Debt Ratio (%)

Times Interest Earned (Times)
Operating
Average Collection Turnover (Times)
Performance Days Sales Outstanding
Analysis
Average Inventory Turnover (Times)

Note 1: In accordance with 2008 and 2010 financial reporting requirements, write-downs of inventories or reversal of write-downs and product warranty costs registered during the
period 2006 to 2007 have been reclassified as cost of revenues items.
Note 2: Excluded employee bonus expenses

74

60

61

60

57

11.71

12.68

12.14

13.01

10.33

4.59

3.72

4.08

4.03

4.80

4.7

31

31

29

30

28

35

Fixed Assets Turnover (Times)

25.14

17.43

20.68

31.91

36.02

35.95

Total Assets Turnover (Times)

1.49

1.21

1.32

1.31

1.59

1.86

Return on Total Assets (%)

26

22

28

37

48

30

Return on Equity (%)

56

37

49

59

77

72

Operating Income to Paid-in Capital
Ratio (%)
Pre-tax Income to Paid-in Capital
Ratio (%)
Net Margin (%)

517

306

401

533

592

187

544

320

418

561

618

204

Basic Earnings Per Share (NT$)
Cash Flow

(5) The Name of the Certified Public Accountant and the Auditor's Opinion
CPA Firm

Certified Public Accountant

Auditor's Opinion

2006

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Tze-Chun Wang and Kwan-Chung Lai

Unqualified Opinion

2007

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Ming-Hsien Yang and Kwan-Chung Lai

Unqualified Opinion

2008

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Ming-Hsien Yang and Kwan-Chung Lai

Modified Unqualified Opinion

2009

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Ming-Hsien Yang and Tze-Chun Wang

Unqualified Opinion

2010

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Ming-Hsien Yang and Tze-Chun Wang

Unqualified Opinion

Leverage

14

16

19

24

24

15

48.49

27.35

34.44

34.74

30.07

18.36

Cash Flow Ratio (%)

37

51

69

116

106

19

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%)

157

201

221

291

296

155

Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio (%)
Year

As of 2011.3.31

62

Average Inventory Turnover Days

18.36

2006(Note 1)

11.77

Average Payment Turnover (Times)

Profitability
Analysis

2007(Note 1)

26

11

28

47

44

25

Operating Leverage

1.43

1.54

1.44

1.20

1.16

1.35

Financial Leverage

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Significant changes in various performance indicators reflected the doubling of HTC’s business in 2010.

1.

Capital Structure & Liquidity Analyses

As of year-end 2010, our debt ratio stood higher at 59% while current and quick ratios were both lower at 144% and 120%,
respectively. This situation reflected increases in current liabilities due to rapid business growth that saw notes and accounts
payable rise 131% to NT$58.4 billion, accrued marketing expense rise 84% to NT$15.7 billion, accrued bonus to employees rise 75%
to NT$8.5 billion, and product warranty liabilities grow 71% to NT$9.1 billion.

HTC carries no external loans and equity funds currently cover all expenditure needs. The relatively small interest expense entered
into the income statement primarily reflects operating leases and imputed interest on security deposits. Reductions in these two
items during 2010 saw interest expense fall for the year to NT$46,000 and times interest earned rise 403% over year-end 2009.

2. Operating Performance Analysis

Fixed asset turnover, total asset turnover, and average collection turnover were all higher due to strong revenue growth. Days sales
outstanding fell from 74 days in 2009 to 62 days in 2010. Average payment turnover increased to 4.59 due to the 97% rise in cost of
revenue for the year.
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3. Profitability Analysis

1.

Capital Structure & Liquidity Analyses

Consumers are increasingly recognizing the value of HTC’s innovation and the HTC brand. The market success of many flagship

As of year-end 2010, our debt ratio stood higher at 61% while current and quick ratios were both lower at 146% and 120%,

products launched in 2010 helped grow revenues by 90% and net income by 75% to new historic highs. Earnings per share (EPS)

respectively. This situation reflected increases in current liabilities due to rapid business growth that saw notes and accounts

rose to NT$48.49. Operating income and pre-tax income to paid-in capital ratios rose by 517% and 544%, respectively. Return on

payable rise 149% to NT$63.9 billion, accrued marketing expense rise 97% to NT$17.3 billion, accrued bonus to employees rise 75%

equity (ROE) rose to 56% from 37% in 2009.

to NT$8.5 billion, and product warranty liabilities grow 73% to NT$9.1 billion.

4. Cash Flow Analysis

2. Operating Performance Analysis

Reflecting strong business growth, net cash flows from operating activities grew 48% over 2009 levels to NT$40.8 billion. Current

Fixed asset turnover and total asset turnover were all higher due to strong revenue growth. Days sales outstanding fell to 59 days

liabilities also rose 103%, resulting in a 37% reduction in our 2010 cash flow ratio. During 2010 HTC continued expanding production

in 2010. Average inventory turnover days increased to 36 days due to aggressive increases of inventory to meet strong market

capacity and office space to meet anticipated future growth. This, coupled with increased inventory levels necessary to meet

demand and higher inventory amount in transit at 2010 year-end.

market demand, reduced the cash flow adequacy ratio to 157%. Cash flow reinvestment ratio rose to 26% due to a 179% rise in the
numerator (net cash flows from operating activity – cash dividends) due to a 48% growth in net cash flows from operating activities

3. Profitability Analysis

and a similar cash dividend payments compared to 2009.
Consumers are increasingly recognizing the value of HTC’s innovation and the HTC brand. The market success of many flagship

(2) Financial Analysis (Consolidated)

products launched in 2010 helped grow revenues by 93% and net income by 75% to new historic highs. Earnings per share (EPS)
rose to NT$48.49. Operating income and pre-tax income to paid-in capital ratios rose by 540% and 550%, respectively. Return on

Year
Item (Note 2~3)
Capital
Structure
Analysis
Liquidity
Analysis

Debt Ratio (%)

2007(Note 1)

2006(Note 1)

As of 2011.3.31

61

45

48

39

36

59

664

681

1,333

1,347

615

146

195

190

244

264

148

Quick Ratio (%)

120

176

171

217

230

121

12,624

11,683

3,041

26,595

90,413

6,983

6.14

6.03

6.12

6.06

6.25

6.65

total asset (ROA) and Return on equity (ROE) rose to 26% and 56% from 21% and 37% in 2009, respectively.

4. Cash Flow Analysis

Reflecting strong business growth, net cash flows from operating activities grew 66% over 2009 levels to NT$46.0 billion. Current
liabilities also rose 115%, resulting in a 40% reduction in our 2010 cash flow ratio. During 2010 HTC and its subsidiaries continued
expanding production capacity and office space to meet anticipated future growth. This, coupled with increased inventory levels

59

61

60

60

58

55

10.06

11.46

10.95

9.68

11.34

9.27

necessary to meet market demand, reduced the cash flow adequacy ratio to 150%. Cash flow reinvestment ratio rose to 32% due to

4.35

4.03

3.92

3.66

4.65

4.49

36

32

33

38

32

39

a 241% rise in the numerator (net cash flows from operating activity – cash dividends) due to a 66% growth in net cash flows from

Fixed Assets Turnover (Times)

19.88

14.60

17.09

28.01

33.23

28.54

Total Assets Turnover (Times)

Average Payment Turnover (Times)
Average Inventory Turnover Days

1.46

1.21

1.32

1.29

1.59

1.88

Return on Total Assets (%)

26

21

28

37

47

29

Return on Equity (%)

56

37

49

58

77

72

540

312

402

535

590

201

550

322

420

562

617

209

14

16

19

24

24

14

Operating Income to Paid-in Capital
Ratio (%)
Pre-tax Income to Paid-in Capital
Ratio (%)
Net Margin (%)
Basic Earnings Per Share (NT$)

48.49

27.35

34.44

34.74

30.07

18.36

Cash Flow Ratio (%)

40

52

68

113

104

18

Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%)

150

192

211

273

271

153

32

11

28

47

43

25

Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio (%)
Leverage

2008

533

Operating
Average Collection Turnover (Times)
Performance Days Sales Outstanding
Analysis
Average Inventory Turnover (Times)

Cash Flow

2009

Long-term Fund to Fixed Assets
Ratio (%)
Current Ratio (%)
Times Interest Earned (Times)

Profitability
Analysis

2010

Operating Leverage

1.43

1.54

1.44

1.20

1.16

1.35

Financial Leverage

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

operating activities and a similar cash dividend payments compared to 2009.

Note 1: Excluded employee bonus expenses
Note 2: In accordance with 2008, 2009 and 2010 financial reporting requirements, write-downs of inventories or reversal of write-downs and product warranty costs registered
during the period 2006 to 2007 have been reclassified as cost of revenues items.
Note 3: Glossary
a. Capital Structure Analysis
(1) Debt Ratio=Total Liabilities / Total Assets.
(2) Long-term Fund to Fixed Assets Ratio=(Shareholders' Equity + Long-term Liabilities) / Net Fixed Assets.
b. Liquidity Analysis
(1) Current Ratio=Current Assets / Current Liabilities.
(2) Quick Ratio:(Current Assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses) / Current Liabilities.

Significant changes in various performance indicators reflected the doubling of HTC’s business in 2010.

(3) Times Interest Earned:Earnings before Interest and Taxes / Interest Expenses.
c. Operating Performance Analysis
(1) Average Collection Turnover: Net Sales / Average Trade Receivables.
(2) Days Sales Outstanding: 365 / Average Collection Turnover.
(3) Average Inventory Turnover:Cost of Sales / Average Inventory.
(4) Average Payment Turnover=Cost of Sales / Average Trade Payables.
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3. 2010 SUPERVISOR’S REPORT

4. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

HTC CORPORATION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

SUPERVISORS AUDIT REPORT

HTC Corporation

(3) Net Margin=Net Income / Net Sales.

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of HTC Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 and the

(4) Earnings Per Share=(Net Income - Preferred Stock Dividend) / Weighted

2010 Business Report, Financial Statements and Earnings

related statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in New Taiwan

Distribution Proposal. HTC Corporation’s Financial Statements

dollars. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

have been audited and certified by Yang, Ming-Hsien, CPA,

these financial statements based on our audits.

(5) Average Inventory Turnover Days=365 / Average Inventory Turnover.
(6) Fixed Assets Turnover=Net Sales / Net Fixed Assets.
(7) Total Assets Turnover=Net Sales / Total Assets.
d. Profitability Analysis
(1) Return on Total Assets=(Net Income + Interest Expenses * (1 - Effective 		
Tax Rate) / Average Total Assets.
(2) Return on Equity=Net Income / Average Shareholders' Equity.

Average Number of Shares Outstanding.
e. Cash Flow
(1) Cash Flow Ratio=Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities / Current 		
Liabilities.
(2) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio=Five-year Sum of Cash from Operations / 		
Five-year Sum of Capital Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and Cash 		
Dividend.
(3) Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio=(Cash Provided by Operating Activities 		
-Cash Dividends) / (Gross Fixed Assets + Investments + Other Assets + 		
Working Capital).
f. Leverage

and Wang Tze-Chun, CPA, of Deloitte & Touche and an audit
report relating to the Financial Statements has been issued.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants

The Business Report, Financial Statements and Earnings

and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Those rules and standards require that we plan and perform the

Distribution Proposal have been reviewed and considered to be

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

complied with relevant rules by the undersigned, the supervisor

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

of HTC Corporation. According to Article 219 of the Company

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

Law, I hereby submit this report.

statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

(1) Operating Leverage=(Net Sales - Variable Cost) / Income from Operations.
(2) Financial Leverage=Income from Operations / (Income from Operations –

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of HTC Corporation

Interest Expenses)

as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with the
Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, requirements of the Business Accounting Law and
Guidelines Governing Business Accounting relevant to financial accounting standards, and accounting principles generally accepted in
the Republic of China.

We have also audited the consolidated financial statements of HTC Corporation and subsidiaries as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2010, and expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements in our report dated January 18, 2011.
HTC CORPORATION

Our audits also comprehended the translation of the 2010 New Taiwan dollar amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion,
such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the

SUPERVISOR

Way-Chih Investment Co., Ltd.

convenience of readers.

January 18, 2011

Representative: Shao-Lun Lee
Notice to Readers
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

April 30, 2011

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared
and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions,
the Chinese-language auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail. Also, as stated in Note 2 to the financial statements, the additional footnote disclosures that are not
required under generally accepted accounting principles were not tra
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HTC CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Except Par Value)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 2, 5
and 23)
Available-for-sale financial assets - current (Notes 2 and 6)
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 2 and 7)
Accounts receivable from related parties, net (Notes 2 and 24)
Other current financial assets (Notes 8 and 24)
Inventories (Notes 2 and 9)
Prepayments (Notes 10 and 24)
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 21)
Other current assets
Total current assets
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent (Notes 2 and 6)
Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent (Notes 2 and 11)
Financial assets carried at cost - noncurrent (Notes 2 and 12)
Investments accounted for by the equity method (Notes 2 and 13)
Prepayments for long-term investments (Notes 2 and 13)
Total long-term investments
PROPERTIES (Notes 2, 14 and 24)
Cost
Land
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Molding equipment
Computer equipment
Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leased assets
Leasehold improvements
Total cost
Less:
Accumulated depreciation
Prepayments for construction-in-progress and equipment-in-transit

(

Properties, net
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 2)
Patents
OTHER ASSETS
Assets leased to others
Refundable deposits
Deferred charges (Note 2)
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 21)
Restricted assets (Note 25)
Other (Notes 2, 10 and 17)
Total other assets
TOTAL

$

2009
NT$

NT$

2010
US$(Note3)

$ 61,676,464

$ 66,282,076

$ 2,275,389

18,132
2,497,394
25,326,228
2,244,550
234,201
5,217,193
3,351,491
811,240
126,780

450,276
441,948
35,179,038
28,186,391
717,636
21,920,492
2,347,617
925,579
457,054

15,457
15,172
1,207,657
967,607
24,635
752,506
80,591
31,774
15,690

101,503,673

156,908,107

5,386,478

313
501,192
5,549,766
454,923

538
207,946
515,861
9,900,410
83,665

18
7,139
17,709
339,870
2,872

6,506,194

10,708,420

367,608

4,719,538
3,174,986
4,008,111
172,632
302,213
2,732
129,533
4,712
96,014
12,610,471
4,321,855
25,561

5,690,718
3,504,669
5,564,902
172,632
343,939
6,242
147,349
4,712
151,716
15,586,879
4,934,160
288,511

195,356
120,312
191,037
5,926
11,807
214
5,058
162
5,208
535,080
169,384
9,904

)

(

)

(

8,314,177

10,941,230

375,600

-

208,581

7,160

48,135
69,166
69,773
1,066,101
63,900
1,980,823

50,828
79,197
27,658
2,419,431
63,900
2,643,101

1,745
2,719
949
83,056
2,194
90,735

3,297,898

5,284,115

181,398

119,621,942

$

184,050,453

$

6,318,244

2009
NT$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties (Note 24)
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 21)
Accrued expenses (Notes 15 and 24)
Payable for purchase of equipment (Note 24)
Other current liabilities (Notes 16 and 24)

$

25,275,140
85,676
4,152,624
17,127,974
68,906
7,269,962

Total current liabilities
OTHER LIABILITIES
Guarantee deposits received
Total liabilities
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 18)
Capital stock - NT$10.00 par value
Authorized: 1,000,000 thousand shares
Issued and outstanding: 788,936 thousand shares in 2009 and
817,653 thousand shares in 2010
Common stock
Capital surplus
Additional paid-in capital from share issuance in excess of par
Long-term equity investments
Merger
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Accumulated earnings
Cumulative translation adjustments (Note 2)
Net loss not recognized as pension cost
Unrealized valuation losses on financial instruments
Treasury stock (Notes 2 and 19)

(
(

Total stockholders’ equity

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$
$

58,420,924
1,346,981
6,416,667
31,663,629
318,587
11,168,543

$

2,005,524
46,240
220,277
1,086,977
10,937
383,403

53,980,282

109,335,331

3,753,358

1,210

628

22

53,981,492

109,335,959

3,753,380

7,889,358

8,176,532

280,691

9,056,323
18,411
25,189

10,777,623
18,411
24,710

369,984
632
848

10,273,674
38,364,099
15,088
34
1,658
-

10,273,674
52,876,892
579,849
121
885
6,852,493

352,684
1,815,204
19,906
4
30
235,239

(
(
(
(

)
)

65,640,450

)
)
)
)

(
(
(
(

74,714,494

2,564,864

184,050,453

$ 6,318,244

)
)
)

)

TOTAL

$

119,621,942

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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HTC CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share)

2009
NT$
REVENUES (Notes 2 and 24)

$

144,880,715

$

275,046,954

$

99,018,232

195,489,982

6,710,950

GROSS PROFIT

45,862,483

79,556,972

2,731,101

(

REALIZED PROFIT FROM INTERCOMPANY TRANSACTIONS
REALIZED GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 20 and 24)
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
NONOPERATING INCOME AND GAINS
Interest income
Gains on equity-method investments (Notes 2 and 13)
Gain on disposal of properties
Gains on sale of investments, net
Exchange gain (Note 2)
Valuation gains on financial instruments, net(Notes 2 and 5)
Other (Note 24)
Total nonoperating income and gains
NONOPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of properties
Exchange loss (Note 2)
Impairment losses (Notes 2, 12 and 13)
Other
Total nonoperating expenses and losses
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX (Notes 2 and 21)
NET INCOME

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

(
$

108,150

)

(

345,455

)

(

11,859

134,091

108,150

3,713

45,888,424

79,319,667

2,722,955

11,103,061
2,010,000
8,600,369

19,516,895
4,812,579
12,694,850

669,993
165,211
435,800

21,713,430

37,024,324

1,271,004

24,174,994

42,295,343

1,451,951

348,693
273,811
2,984
3,035
513,650
18,132
463,057

286,610
1,457,395
3,001
450,276
338,798

9,839
50,031
103
15,457
11,631

1,623,362

2,536,080

87,061

131
30,944
554,817

46
139
303,549
1,192
35,188

2
5
10,420
41
1,208

585,892

340,114

11,676

25,212,464

44,491,309

1,527,336

2,603,562
22,608,902

)

(
$

4,957,709
39,533,600

)

(
$

170,193

Before Income
Tax

2009
After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE(Note 22)

$ 30.50

$ 27.35

$

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 22)

$ 29.95

$ 26.86

Related Party

9,442,051

COST OF REVENUES (Notes 9, 20 and 24)

UNREALIZED PROFIT FROM INTERCOMPANY TRANSACTIONS

114

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2010
After Income
Tax

Before Income
Tax
NT$

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

54.57

$ 1.87

$ 48.49

$ 1.66

$ 53.90

$ 1.85

$ 47.89

$ 1.64
(Concluded)

)

1,357,143
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HTC CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

Capital Stock

New Taiwan Dollars
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2009

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustments
65,602

Net Loss Not
Recognized as
Pension Cost
$
-

Unrealized
Valuation
Losses on
Financial
Instruments
$(
1,632 )

2,863,535)

-

-

-

-

-

372,697)

-

-

-

-

-

20,125,634)

Capital Surplus

Issued and
Outstanding
Common Stock
$
7,553,938

From Share
Issuance in
Excess of Pars
$
4,374,244

-

-

-

-

2,863,535

(

372,697

-

-

-

-

(
(

$

Long-term
Equity
Investments
17,534

Capital Stock
Legal Reserve
Merger
25,756

$

$

7,410,139

Accumulated
Earnings
$

44,626,182

$

Treasury Stock
$ ( 3,410,277 )

Total
60,661,486

$

Appropriation of the 2008 net earnings
Legal reserve
Stock dividends
Cash dividends

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

133,573

4,821,316

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,954,889

Net income in 2009

-

-

-

-

-

22,608,902

-

-

-

-

22,608,902

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unrealized loss on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adjustment due to changes in ownership percentage in
investees and the movement of investees' other equity under
equity method

-

-

877

-

-

Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

-

-

Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

Retirement of treasury stock

(

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009

170,850)

(

139,237)

-

(

567)

(

2,566)

(

(

-

(

-

-

47,783)
2,731)

-

5,506,553)

-

38,364,099

15,088

-

-

(

47,783)

26)

-

(

26)

34)

-

-

(

4,454)

-

-

(

(

(

( 20,125,634)

34)

(

(

1,658)

2,406,930)

( 2,406,930)

5,817,207

-

-

65,640,450

7,889,358

9,056,323

18,411

25,189

10,273,674

386,968

-

-

-

-

(

386,968)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

20,122,332)

-

-

-

-

Appropriation of the 2009 net earnings
Stock dividends
Cash dividends
Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

( 20,122,332)

50,206

1,893,488

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,943,694

Net income in 2010

-

-

-

-

-

39,533,600

-

-

-

-

39,533,600

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

773

-

Adjustment due to the movement of investees' other equity
under equity method
Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

87)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Retirement of treasury stock
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010

(
$

150,000)
8,176,532

(
$

172,188)
10,777,623

$

18,411

(
$

479)
24,710

$

10,273,674

(
$

(

4,511,507)
52,876,892

594,937)
(

$(

579,849 )

$(

121 )

(

11,686,667)

$(

6,852,493 )

$(

885 )

(

594,937)
773

(

87)

( 11,686,667)

4,834,174

$

74,714,494

U.S. Dollars (Note 3)
Appropriation of the 2009 net earnings
Stock dividends
Cash dividends
Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

-

-

-

-

(

13,284)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

690,777)

-

-

-

-

(

690,777)

1,724

65,001

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

66,725

Net income in 2010

-

-

-

-

-

1,357,143

-

-

-

-

1,357,143

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27

-

Adjustment due to the movement of investees' other equity
under equity method
Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17)

-

-

-

-

-

Retirement of treasury stock
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010

116

13,284

(
$

5,150)
280,691

(
$

5,910)
369,984

$

632

(
$

848

$

352,684

(
$

(

154,874)
1,815,204

$(

20,424 )

19,906 )

(

$(

4)

$(

30 )

(

(

27

401,190)
165,951

$(

235,239 )

20,424)

(

3)

(

401,190)
-

$

2,564,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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HTC CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

2009
NT$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation (including depreciation of assets leased to others)
Amortization
Amortization of premium on financial assets
Prepaid pension costs
Gains on equity-method investments
Cash dividends received from equity-method investees
(Gain) loss on disposal of properties, net
Transfer of properties to expenses
Gains on sale of investments, net
Impairment losses
Deferred income tax assets
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from related parties
Other current financial assets
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Other assets - other
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

2009
NT$
61,826,873

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
$

22,608,902

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

Net cash provided by operating activities

633,950
39,847
20,515)
273,811)
905
2,984)
7,021
3,035)
30,944
503,703)
532,215)
3,534,014
1,305,780)
41,305
2,201,274
2,095,767)
35,227
1,843,170)
2,603,301)
56,973
214,879
6,432,196
888,452

$

39,533,600

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

27,541,608

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds of the sale of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets
Increase in investments accounted for by the equity method
Purchase of properties and assets leased to others
Proceeds of the sale of properties
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Increase in deferred charges
Increase in restricted assets
Increase in intangible assets

(

(
(

(
(

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in guarantee deposits received
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasury stock
Net cash used in financing activities
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

(

8,105,512)
5,611,153
1,164,135)
1,426,671)
4,005
48,298
57,495)
63,900)
-

622,438
58,621
385
21,293)
1,457,395)
480
139
532
3,001)
1,192
1,467,669)
432,144)
9,852,810)
25,941,841)
483,435)
16,703,299)
1,003,874
330,274)
640,985)
33,145,784
1,261,305
2,264,043
16,322,342
3,955,215

$

1,357,143

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

40,835,804

(

21,368
2,012
13
731)
50,031)
17
5
18
103)
41
50,383)
14,835)
338,236)
890,554)
16,596)
573,405)
34,462
11,338)
22,004)
1,137,858
43,299
77,722
560,327
135,778

(

(

(

121,908)
192,591
7,152)
104,082)
103,133)
344)
142)
7,585)

(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(

5,154,257)

(

4,420,611)

(

151,755)

(
(
(

5,196)
20,125,634)
2,406,930)

(
(
(

582)
20,122,332)
11,686,667)

(
(
(

20)
690,777)
401,190)

(

22,537,760)

(

31,809,581)

(

1,091,987)

150,409)

4,605,612

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

$

61,676,464

$

66,282,076

$

2,275,389

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year
Interest (net of amounts capitalized)
Income tax

$
$

131
2,892,386

$
$

46
4,161,335

$
$

2
142,854

$
$
$

372,697
261,824
5,817,207

$
$
$

386,968
47,813
4,834,174

$
$
$

13,284
1,641
165,952

$

4,954,889

$

1,943,694

$

66,725

$

1,137,873
26,262
1,164,135

$

2,976,349
55,558
3,031,907

$

102,175
1,907
104,082

1,336,787
88,880
1,004

$

1,426,671

$

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer of retained earnings to stock dividends for distribution
Transfer of assets leased to others to properties
Retirement of treasury stock
Transfer of stock bonuses to employees to common stock and
additional paid-in capital
INCREASE IN LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS - EQUITY METHOD
Increase in investments accounted for by the equity method
Decrease in payable for purchase of investments
Cash paid for increase in long-term investments
PURCHASE OF PROPERTIES AND ASSETS LEASED TO OTHERS
Cost of properties and assets leased to others purchased
Decrease (increase) in payable for purchase of equipment
Decrease in lease payable
Cash paid for purchase of properties and assets leased to others
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$

$

$

$

(

3,252,855
249,681)
1,076
3,004,250

$

$
(
$

111,667
8,571)
37
103,133
(Concluded)

1,401,847

3,551,180)
5,610,175
208,331)
3,031,907)
3,004,250)
10,031)
4,144)
220,943)

(
(
(

2010
US$(Note3)
2,117,284

NT$
61,676,464

158,105

(Continued)
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HTC CORPORATION

The Company’s significant accounting policies are summarized

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as follows:

balance sheet date are determined as follows: Publicly traded

received or receivable and represents amounts agreed

stocks - at closing prices; open-end mutual funds - at net asset

between the Company and the customers for goods sold in the

values; bonds - at prices quoted by the Taiwan GreTai Securities

normal course of business, net of sales discounts and volume

Market; and financial assets and financial liabilities without

rebates. For trade receivables due within one year from the

quoted prices in an active market - at values determined using

balance sheet date, as the nominal value of the consideration

valuation techniques.

to be received approximates its fair value and transactions are

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS
HTC Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated on May
15, 1997 under the Company Law of the Republic of China to
design, manufacture and sell smart handheld devices. In 1998,
the Company had an initial public offering and, in March 2002,
the Company’s stock was listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
On November 19, 2003, the Company started trading Global
Depositary Receipts on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The Company had 7,284 and 10,843 employees as of December
31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Current/Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

Current assets include cash, cash equivalents, and those assets
held primarily for trading purposes or to be realized, sold or

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of interest.

incurred for trading purposes or to be settled within one year

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially measured at fair

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided on the basis

from the balance sheet date. All other liabilities are classified

value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

of a review of the collectability of accounts receivable. The

as noncurrent.

acquisition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

Company assesses the probability of collections of accounts

recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured

receivable by examining the aging analysis of the outstanding

at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in equity

receivables and assessing the value of the collateral provided

until the financial assets are disposed of, at which time, the

by customers.

other assets such as properties and intangible assets are
classified as noncurrent. Current liabilities are obligations

Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
included in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition. The

The recognition, derecognition and the fair value bases of

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished

Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability on

available-for-sale financial assets are similar with those of

goods and work-in-process. Effective from January 1, 2008,

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity

its balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the

financial assets at FVTPL.

inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable

with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial

contractual provisions of the financial instrument. A financial

Reports by Securities Issuers, Business Accounting Law,

asset is derecognized when the Company has lost control of its

Cash dividends are recognized on the stockholders’ resolutions,

where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items.

Guidelines Governing Business Accounting, and accounting

contractual rights over the financial asset. A financial liability

except for dividends distributed from the pre-acquisition

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories

principles generally accepted in the Republic of China (ROC).

is derecognized when the obligation specified in the relevant

profit, which are treated as a reduction of investment cost.

less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

Under these guidelines, laws and principles, certain estimates

contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Stock dividends are not recognized as investment income

make the sale. Cost is determined using the moving-average

but are recorded as an increase in the number of shares. The

method.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) include
financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and

and assumptions have been used for the allowance for doubtful

value. Inventory write-downs are made item by item, except

accounts, allowance for loss on inventories, depreciation of

Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair

total number of shares subsequent to the increase is used for

properties, income tax, royalty, pension cost, allowance for

value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

recalculation of cost per share.

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

product warranties, bonuses to employees, etc. Actual results

acquisition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

may differ from these estimates.

recognition, financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortized cost

remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized

evidence that the financial asset is impaired. Any subsequent

using the effective interest method. Held-to-maturity financial

directly in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Cash

decrease in impairment loss for an equity instrument classified

assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs

dividends received subsequently (including those received in

as available-for-sale is recognized directly in equity.

that are directly attributable to the acquisition. Profit or loss

For readers’ convenience, the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English from the
original Chinese version prepared and used in the ROC. If
inconsistencies arise between the English version and the
Chinese version or if differences arise in the interpretations
between the two versions, the Chinese version of the financial
statements shall prevail. However, the accompanying financial

the year of investment) are recognized as income for the year.
On derecognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable or consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

statements do not include the English translation of the
additional footnote disclosures that are not required under
ROC generally accepted accounting principles but are required
by the Securities and Futures Bureau for their oversight
purposes.

A derivative that does not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting is classified as a financial asset or a financial liability
held for trading. If the fair value of the derivative is positive,
the derivative is recognized as a financial asset; otherwise, the
derivative is recognized as a financial liability.

120

frequent, fair value of the consideration is not determined by

consumed within one year from the balance sheet date. All
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is recognized when the financial assets are derecognized,
Revenue Recognition, Accounts Receivable and Allowance for

impaired, or amortized. All regular way purchases or sales of

Doubtful Accounts

financial assets are accounted for using a trade date basis.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the Company

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective

has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

evidence that the investment is impaired. The impairment

of ownership of the goods because the earnings process has

loss is reversed if an increase in the investment’s recoverable

been completed and the economic benefits associated with

amount is due to an event which occurred after the impairment

the transaction have been realized or are realizable.

loss was recognized; however, the adjusted carrying amount
of the investment may not exceed the carrying amount that
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would have been determined had no impairment loss been

before January 1, 2006, the unamortized amount continues to

lives are further depreciated over their newly estimated useful

recognized for the investment in prior years.

be amortized over the remaining year.

lives.

goodwill is disallowed.

For long term equity investments for which the Company has
Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Profits from downstream transactions with an equity-method

The related cost (including revaluation increment) and

significant influence but with no control, the carrying amount

investee are eliminated in proportion to the Company’s

accumulated depreciation are derecognized from the balance

(including goodwill) of each investment is compared with its

Investments in equity instruments with no quoted prices in

percentage of ownership in the investee; however, if the

sheet upon its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of the

own recoverable amount for the purpose of impairment testing.

an active market and with fair values that cannot be reliably

Company has control over the investee, all the profits are

asset is included in nonoperating gains or losses in the year of

measured, such as non-publicly traded stocks and stocks

eliminated. Profits from upstream transactions with an equity-

disposal.

Accrued Marketing Expenses

traded in the emerging stock market, are measured at their

method investee are eliminated in proportion to the Company’s

original cost. The accounting treatment for dividends on

percentage of ownership in the investee.

If the properties are leased to others, the related costs and

The Company accrues marketing expenses on the basis of

accumulated depreciation would be transferred from properties

agreements, management’s judgment, and any known factors

to other assets - assets leased to others.

that would significantly affect the accruals. In addition,

financial assets carried at cost is similar to that for dividends
on available-for-sale financial assets. An impairment loss is

When the Company subscribes for its investee’s newly issued

recognized when there is objective evidence that the asset is

shares at a percentage different from its percentage of

impaired. A reversal of this impairment loss is disallowed.

ownership in the investee, the Company records the change

depending on the nature of relevant events, the accrued
Intangible Assets

in its equity in the investee’s net assets as an adjustment to
Investments Accounted for by the Equity Method

investments, with a corresponding amount credited or charged
to capital surplus. When the adjustment should be debited to

Investments in which the Company holds 20 percent or more
of the investees’ voting shares or exercises significant influence
over the investees’ operating and financial policy decisions are

capital surplus, but the capital surplus arising from long-term
investments is insufficient, the shortage is debited to retained
earnings.

accounted for by the equity method.

marketing expenses or as a decrease in revenues.
Intangible assets acquired are initially recorded at cost and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
years.

equity was amortized by the straight-line method over five

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or

years. Effective January 1, 2006, pursuant to the revised

construction of properties are capitalized as part of the cost of

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 5,

those assets. Major additions and improvements to properties

“Long-term Investments Accounted for by Equity Method”, the

are capitalized, while costs of repairs and maintenance are

acquisition cost is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities

expensed currently.

assumed based on their fair values at the date of acquisition,
and the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of

Assets held under capital leases are initially recognized as

the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.

assets of the Company at the lower of their fair value at the

Goodwill is not being amortized. The excess of the fair value of

inception of the lease or the present value of the minimum

the net identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition cost is

lease payments; the corresponding liability is included in the

used to reduce the fair value of each of the noncurrent assets

balance sheet as obligations under capital leases. The interest

acquired (except for financial assets other than investments

included in lease payments is expensed when paid.

postretirement benefit) in proportion to the respective fair
values of the noncurrent assets, with any excess recognized
as an extraordinary gain. Effective January 1, 2006, the
accounting treatment for the unamortized investment
premium arising on acquisitions before January 1, 2006 is the
same as that for goodwill and the premium is no longer being
amortized. For any investment discount arising on acquisitions
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pertinent factors.

software costs and deferred license fees. Installation charges
and computer software are amortized on a straight-line basis

Product-related Costs

over 3 years, and deferred license fees, over 10 years.
The cost of revenues consists of costs of goods sold, writeAsset Impairment

downs of inventories and the reversal of write-downs. The
provisions for product warranty are estimated and recorded

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less

under cost of revenues when sales are recognized.

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

Pension Plan

charged to earnings unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by

deduction to the unrealized revaluation increment.

actuarial valuations. Contributions made under a defined
contribution plan are recognized as pension cost during the

accounted for by the equity method, noncurrent assets held
for sale, deferred income tax assets, prepaid pension or other

liability is estimated on the basis of management’s evaluation
of the products under warranty, past warranty experience, and

Deferred charges are telephone installation charges, computer

cost and the Company’s proportionate share in the investee’s

The Company provides warranty service for one to two years
depending on the contract with customers. The warranty

Properties

Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Reserve for Warranty Expenses

lives. Patents are amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 to 10

Deferred Charges

Prior to January 1, 2006, the difference between the acquisition

marketing expenses are accounted for as an increase in

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service lives of the assets plus one additional year
for salvage value: buildings (including auxiliary equipment) 3 to 50 years; machinery and equipment - 3 to 5 years; office
equipment - 3 to 5 years; transportation equipment - 5 years;
and leasehold improvements - 3 years.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying

year in which employees render services.

amount of the asset is increased accordingly, but the increased
carrying amount may not exceed the carrying amount that

Curtailment or settlement gains or losses on the defined

would have been determined had no impairment loss been

benefit plan are recognized as part of the net pension cost for

recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

the year.

impairment loss is recognized in earnings, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as an increase in the unrealized

Properties still in use beyond their original estimated useful

revaluation increment. A reversal of an impairment loss on

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

123

Income Tax

earnings. The carrying value of treasury stocks should be
calculated using the weighted-average method.

a.	Recognized in stockholders’ equity if the changes in fair

On time deposits, interest rates ranged from 0.10% to 1.03%

value are recognized in stockholders’ equity; and

and from 0.14% to 1.50%, as of December 31, 2009 and 2010,

b.	Recognized in profit and loss if the changes in fair value is

The Company applies intra-year and inter-year allocations for

respectively.

recognized in profit or loss.

its income tax, whereby (1) a portion of income tax expense

When the Company's treasury stock is retired, the treasury

is allocated to the cumulative effect of changes in accounting

stock account should be credited, and the capital surplus -

principles; and (2) deferred income tax assets and liabilities are

premium on stock account and capital stock account should

Foreign-currency nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are

0.70% and from 0.15% to 0.70% as of December 31, 2009 and

recognized for the tax effects of temporary differences, unused

be debited proportionately according to the share ratio. The

carried at cost continue to be stated at exchange rates at the

2010, respectively.

loss carryforward and unused tax credits. Valuation allowances

difference should be credited to capital surplus or debited to

trade dates.

are provided to the extent, if any, that it is more likely than not

capital surplus and/or retained earnings.

that deferred income tax assets will not be realized. A deferred
tax asset or liability is classified as current or noncurrent in

Foreign Currencies

On preferential deposits, interest rates ranged from 0.10% to

If the functional currency of an equity-method investee is

5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

a foreign currency, translation adjustments will result from

accordance with the classification of its related asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

the translation of the investee’s financial statements into

However, if a deferred income tax asset or liability does not

as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

The financial statements of foreign operations are translated

the reporting currency of the Company. These adjustments

into New Taiwan dollars at the following exchange rates:

are accumulated and reported as a separate component of

relate to an asset or liability in the financial statements, then
it is classified as either current or noncurrent based on the
expected length of time before it is realized or settled.

Tax credits for purchases of machinery, equipment and
technology, research and development expenditures, and
personnel training expenditures are recognized using the flowthrough method.

stockholders’ equity.
Derivatives financial assets Exchange
contracts

a. Assets and liabilities - at exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date;

Reclassifications

c. Dividends - at the exchange rate prevailing on the dividend
declaration date; and
d. Income and expenses - at average exchange rates for the

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or
Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations are recognized as a

Certain 2009 accounts have been reclassified to be consistent
with the presentation of the financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2010.

NT$ US$(Note 3)

18,132

$

450,276

$

15,457

The Company had derivative transactions in 2009 and 2010
to manage exposures related to exchange rate fluctuations.
hedge accounting under Statement of Financial Accounting

3. TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLARS

Standards No. 34 - “Financial Instruments: Recognition and

The financial statements are stated in New Taiwan dollars.

Measurement.” Thus, the Company had no hedge accounting

The translation of the 2010 New Taiwan dollar amounts into

in 2009 and 2010. Outstanding forward exchange contracts as

U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience

of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

separate component of stockholders’ equity. Such exchange

unappropriated earnings is provided for as income tax in the

differences are recognized as gain or loss in the year in which

year the stockholders approve to retain the earnings.

the foreign operations are disposed of.

Treasury Stock

Nonderivative foreign-currency transactions are recorded in

as representations that the New Taiwan dollar amounts have

New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange in effect when

been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into

The Company adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting

the transactions occur. Exchange differences arising from

U.S. dollars at this or any other exchange rate.

Standards No. 30 - “Accounting for Treasury Stocks,” which

the settlement of foreign-currency assets and liabilities are

requires the treasury stock held by the Company to be

recognized as gain or loss.

of readers, using the noon buying rate of NT$29.13 to
US$1.00 quoted by the Bank of Taiwan on December 31,
2010. The convenience translation should not be construed

accounted for by the cost method. The cost of treasury stock
is shown as a deduction to arrive at stockholders’ equity,

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency monetary assets

while gain or loss from selling treasury stock is treated as an

and liabilities are revalued using prevailing exchange rates and

adjustment to capital surplus.

the exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency nonmonetary assets

the book value, the difference should be credited to the capital

(such as equity instruments) and liabilities that are measured at

surplus - treasury stock transactions. If the selling price is

fair value are revalued using prevailing exchange rates, with the

below the book value, the difference should first be offset

exchange differences treated as follows:

against capital surplus from the same class of treasury stock

NT$

However, these transactions did not meet the criteria for

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax at 10% of

When treasury stocks are sold and the selling price is above

2010

b. Stockholders’ equity - at historical exchange rates;

year.
deducted from the current year’s tax provision.

$

2009

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2009 and 2010
were as follows:

2009
NT$
Cash on hand
Cash in banks
Time deposits

$

1,000 $

2010
NT$ US$(Note 3)
1,000

$

34

561,516

15,491,311

531,800

61,113,948

50,789,765

1,743,555

$ 61,676,464 $ 66,282,076

$ 2,275,389

transactions, and any remainder should be debited to retained
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8. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Forward Exchange Contracts

2009

Forward exchange contracts

Buy/Sell

Currency

Settlement Period/Date

Sell

EUR/USD

2010.01.15-2010.02.26

10. PREPAYMENTS
Prepayments as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as

Other current financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and

follows:

2010 were as follows:

Contract Amount
EUR

76,000

2010
Othe receivables

Buy/Sell

Currency

Settlement Period/Date

Contract Amount

Forward exchange contracts

Buy

USD/CAD

2011.01.26

USD

250

Forward exchange contracts

Buy

USD/JPY

2011.01.12-2011.02.23

USD

18,187

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

EUR/USD

2011.01.05-2011.03.18

EUR

531,000

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

GBP/USD

2011.01.12-2011.03.25

GBP

57,400

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

USD/TWD

2011.01.03-2010.01.31

USD

447,000

$

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

118,321

$

641,609

$

22,026

Other receivables from
related parties (Note 24)

81,137

36,185

1,242

Agency payments

23,517

28,610

982

Interest receivables

11,226

11,232

385

$

234,201

$

717,636

$

24,635

Royalty

$

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

3,044,563 $

Services

1,870,381

$

64,208

121,600

166,781

5,725

10,410

66,295

2,276

Marketing
Software and hardware
maintenance

68,937

94,871

3,257

Molding equipment

37,052

91,058

3,126

Others

68,929

58,231

1,999

$

3,351,491 $

2,347,617

$

80,591

Other receivables were primarily prepayments on behalf of

Net loss on derivative financial instruments in 2009 was NT$749,476 thousand, including realized settlement loss of NT$767,608

vendors or customers, withholding income tax of employees’

thousand and valuation gain of NT$18,132 thousand.

bonuses, and other compensation.

Net gain on derivative financial instruments in 2010 was NT$759,889 thousand (US$26,086 thousand), including realized settlement
gain of NT$309,613 thousand (US$10,629 thousand) and valuation gain of NT$450,276 thousand (US$15,457 thousand). Note 23 has
more information.

Prepayments for royalty were primarily prepayments for
discount purpose and classified as current or noncurrent based
on their maturities. As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the

9. INVENTORIES

noncurrent prepayments were NT$1,843,170 thousand and

Inventories as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

NT$2,484,156 thousand (US$85,279 thousand) were classified
as other assets, respectively (Note 27 has more information).

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and
2010 were as follows:

Finished goods

$

2009
NT$

$ 2,497,394

$ 441,948

313

538

Domestic quoted stocks
Less: Current portion

( 2,497,394)
$

313

( 441,948)
$

538

(
$

as follows:

Goods in transit

2009
NT$
Accounts receivable

$ 26,334,719 $

18

Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts

( 1,008,491)

18

779,104 $

Raw materials

15,172

15,172)

NT$ US$(Note 3)

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were

US$(Note 3)
$

2010

NT$

1,132,685

2010

NT$

2009

Work-in-process

$

Mutual funds

2009

809,469

$

27,788

5,408,003

185,651

2,687,391

11,272,675

386,978

618,013

4,430,345

152,089

5,217,193 $ 21,920,492

$

752,506

Prepayments for others were primarily for rent, travel and
insurance expenses.

11. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
Held-to-maturity financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and
2010 were as follows:

2010
NT$

US$(Note 3)

36,187,529 $

1,242,277

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the allowance for inventory
devaluation was NT$2,646,767 thousand and NT$3,436,697
thousand (US$117,978 thousand), respectively.

( 1,008,491)

$ 25,326,228 $ 35,179,038

(
$

34,620)
1,207,657

The write-down of inventories to their net realizable value
amounted to NT$1,934,360 thousand and NT$1,297,811
thousand (US$44,552 thousand) and was recognized as cost
of sales for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010,

Corporate bonds

$

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

-

$

207,946

$

7,139

In 2010, the Company bought the corporate bonds issued
by Nan Ya Plastics Corporation and maturing in 2013 with an
effective interest rate of 0.90%.

respectively.
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

In March 2004, the Company merged with IA Style, Inc. and

In August 2000, the Company acquired 100% equity interest in

in Communication Global Certification Inc. amounted to
NT$380,000 thousand (US$13,045 thousand).

acquired 1.82% equity interest in Answer Online, Inc. as a result

H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp. for NT$12,834 thousand and accounted for

Financial assets carried at cost as of December 31, 2009 and

of the merger. In addition, the Company determined that the

this investment by the equity method. The Company increased

2010 were as followss:

recoverable amount of this investment in 2010 was less than

this investment by NT$385,749 thousand in 2009, consisting

In July 2007, the Company acquired 100% equity interest

its carrying amount and thus recognized an impairment loss of

of NT$316,656 thousand transferred from prepayments for

in High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. (“High Tech

NT$1,192 thousand (US$41 thousand).

long-term investments because the registration of the related

Asia”) for NT$560,660 thousand and accounted for this

investment had been completed by the beginning of 2009 and

investment by the equity method. In 2009 and 2010, High
Tech Asia increased its capital by NT$1,339,311 thousand and

Hua-Chuang Automobile
Information Technical
Center Co., Ltd.

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 500,000

BandRich Inc.

$

-

Answer Online, Inc.

501,192

$

17,164

In April 2006, the Company acquired 92% equity interest in

545

BandRich Inc. for NT$135,000 thousand and accounted for

the Company reorganized its overseas subsidiaries’ investment

NT$3,198,864 thousand (US$109,813 thousand), respectively,

this investment by the equity method. In May 2006 and July

structure in the fourth quarter of 2009. H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

because of the Company’s new cash investment and a transfer-

2010, BandRich Inc. issued common shares and the Company

transferred some of its subsidiaries to High Tech Computer

in due to the reorganization of the Company’s overseas

did not buy any shares. The Company’s ownership percentage

Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. and HTC HK, Limited and reduced its

subsidiaries’ investment structure. As of December 31, 2010,

declined from 92% to 18.08% and lost its significant influence.

capital by NT$751,314 thousand.

the Company’s investment in High Tech Computer Asia Pacific

15,861

1,192
$

500,000

of a new investment amount of NT$69,093 thousand. Then,

$

-

515,861

$

17,709

In January 2007, the Company acquired 10% equity interest in

As a result, the Company transferred this investment to

Hua-Chuang Automobile Information Technical Center Co., Ltd.
for NT$500,000 thousand. The Company also signed a joint
venture agreement with Yulon Group, the main stockholder

Pte. Ltd. had amounted to NT$6,561,949 thousand (US$225,264

“financial assets carried at cost” using book value at the time of

In 2010, the Company made a new investment of NT$570,991

its ownership percentage changed in July 2010.

thousand (US$19,601 thousand), and reorganized its overseas

thousand).

subsidiaries’ investment structure again. Thus, H.T.C. (B.V.I.)

In April 2008, the Company made a new investment of US$350

These unquoted equity instruments were not carried at fair

Corp. transferred some of its subsidiaries to High Tech

thousand and transferred its bond investment of US$1,000

2011, submit written requests to each other for Yulon Group

value because their fair value could not be reliably measured;

Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. and reduced its capital by

thousand to convertible preferred stocks issued by Vitamin D

to buy back NT$300,000 thousand at original price, some of

thus, the Company accounted for these investments by the

NT$893,506 thousand (US$30,673 thousand). As of December

Inc. As a result, the Company acquired 27.27% equity interest

cost method.

31, 2010, the Company’s investment in H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

in Vitamin D Inc. for NT$40,986 thousand, enabling the

amounted to NT$855,826 thousand (US$29,379 thousand).

Company to exercise significant influence over this investee.

However, because the registration of this investment had

Thus, the Company accounts for this investment by the equity

not been completed as of December 31, 2010, an amount of

method. In September 2008, January 2009 and June 2009,

NT$83,665 thousand (US$2,872 thousand) was temporarily

Vitamin D Inc. issued new convertible preferred shares, but the

accounted for under “prepayments for long-term investments.”

Company did not buy any of these shares. The Company’s

of Hua-Chuang. Under the agreement, the Company and
Yulon Group may, between January 1, 2010 and December 31,

Hua-Chuang’s shares bought by the Company. The buy-back
proposed by Yulon Group becomes effective with a consensus
from the Company.

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY METHOD

ownership percentage thus declined from 27.27% to 25.59%,

Investments accounted for by the equity method as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Carrying Value

2009
Ownership
Percentage

Original Cost

NT$

NT$

Carrying Value

US$(Note 3)

NT$

2010
Ownership
Percentage

US$(Note 3)

Equity method
H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

$

BandRich Inc.
HTC HK, Limited
Communication Global Certification Inc.
High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
Vitamin D Inc.
HTC Investment Corporation
PT. High Tech Computer Indonesia

1,408,470

100 $

772,161

$

26,507

$

973,231

$

33,410

100

of NT$1,689 thousand, NT$671 thousand in 2008 and 2009,

investment by the equity method. In July 2010 the Company

respectively. In addition, the Company determined that the

lost its significant influence and accounted for this investment

recoverable amount of this investment in 2009 was less than

by the cost method (Note 12 has more information).

its carrying amount and thus recognized an impairment loss of
NT$30,944 thousand. Vitamin D was dissolved in August 2010.

-

-

-

-

-

In September 2006, the Company acquired 100% equity

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

interest in HTC HK, Limited for NT$1,277 thousand and

In July 2008, the Company acquired 100% equity interest in
HTC Investment Corporation for NT$300,000 thousand and
accounted for this investment by the equity method.

286,957

100

380,000

13,045

399,496

13,714

100

accounted for this investment by the equity method. In

3,223,526

100

6,561,949

225,264

7,685,469

263,833

100

December 2009, HTC HK, Limited was sold to High Tech

-

25.59

-

-

-

-

-

Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. in line with the reorganization

300,563

100

300,000

10,299

300,789

10,326

100

of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries’ investment structure.

62

1

62

2

62

2

1

100

295,000

10,127

295,782

10,154

100

HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

-

-

13

1

13

1

1

-

-

454,923
$

BandRich Inc. for NT$135,000 thousand and accounted for this

50.66

295,071

Prepayments for long-term investments

and there was a capital surplus - long-term equity investments

35,117

HTC I Investment Corporation

Huada Digital Corporation

In April 2006, the Company acquired 92% equity interest in

6,004,689

$

245,000

8,410

245,568

8,430

83,665

2,872

83,665

2,872

8,637,850

$

296,527 $

9,984,075

$

342,742

100

In December 2007, the Company and its subsidiary, High
Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., acquired 1% and 99%,

In January 2007, the Company acquired 100% equity

respectively, equity interest in PT. High Tech Computer

interest in Communication Global Certification Inc. for

Indonesia for NT$62 thousand and NT$6,122 thousand,

NT$280,000 thousand and accounted for this investment

respectively. As a result, the Company accounted for this

by the equity method. The Company increased this

investment by the equity method.

investment by NT$100,000 thousand (US$3,433 thousand)
in 2010. As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s investment
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In September 2009, the Company acquired 100% equity

On its equity-method investments, the Company had gains of

interest in HTC I Investment Corporation for NT$295,000

NT$273,811 thousand and NT$1,457,395 thousand (US$50,031)

thousand and accounted for this investment by the equity

in 2009 and 2010, respectively.

method.

15. ACCRUED EXPENSES

16. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as

Other current liabilities as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were

follows:

as follows:

The financial statements of equity-method investees had been
In October 2009, the Company and its subsidiary, High

examined by the Company’s independent auditors.

Marketing

Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., acquired 1% and 99%,

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 8,572,963 $ 15,742,853 $

Bonus to employees

respectively, equity interest in HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

2009

540,434

4,859,236

8,491,704

291,511

Under the revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

Services

1,115,099

2,770,306

95,101

for NT$13 thousand and NT$1,325 thousand, respectively. As

No. 7, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” which took effect

Salaries and bonuses

820,342

2,089,517

71,731

a result, the Company accounted for this investment by the

on January 1, 2005, the Company included the accounts

Import, export and freight

487,713

1,060,399

36,402

equity method.

of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries in the consolidated

Research materials

405,916

367,487

12,615

financial statements as of and for the years ended December

Donation

In December 2009, the Company acquired 100% equity interest

31, 2009 and 2010. All significant intercompany balances and

in Huada Digital Corporation for NT$245,000 thousand and

transactions have been eliminated.

accounted for this investment by the equity method.

14. PROPERTIES
Properties as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Carrying Value
NT$
Land

$

Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Molding equipment
Computer equipment
Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leased assets
Leasehold improvements
Prepayments for land,
construction-in- progress
and equipment-in-transit

NT$

Carrying Value

NT$

NT$

US$(Note 3)

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 5,287,562 $ 9,057,050

$

310,918

905,908

601,717

20,656

576,891

459,156

15,762

Deferred credits - profit
from intercompany
transactions

108,150

345,455

11,859

Advance receipts

195,678

333,282

11,441

Others

195,773

371,883

12,767

11,168,543

$ 383,403

Agency receipts

217,800

7,477

Meals and welfare

111,745

162,337

5,573

Repairs and maintenance

63,957

138,747

4,763

Insurance

74,607

122,947

4,221

Pension cost

47,860

69,296

2,379

The Company provides warranty service for one to two years

Travel

22,325

43,396

1,490

depending on the contract with customers. The warranty

Others

328,411

386,840

13,280

liability is estimated based on management’s evaluation of

17,127,974 $ 31,663,629

$ 1,086,977

$ 7,269,962 $

the products under warranty, past warranty experience, and
pertinent factors.

2010

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

Other payables (Note 24)

2010

217,800

$

2009

Reserve for warranty
expenses

2009

Based on the resolution passed by the Company’s board of
directors, the employee bonuses for 2009 and 2010 should be

Other payables were payables for investments accounted for

195,356

appropriated at 18% of net income before deducting employee

by the equity method, miscellaneous expenses of overseas

2,522,640

3,504,669

779,721

2,724,948

93,544

bonus expenses.

sales offices and repair materials.

900,468

5,564,902

3,528,924

2,035,978

69,893

The Company accrued marketing expenses on the basis of

In December 2008, the Company also estimated a contingent

related agreements and other factors that would significantly

liability of NT$125,663 thousand due to an increased financial

affect the accruals.

risk from a customer. If the customer cannot pay its payments,

4,719,538

$

5,690,718

$

-

$

5,690,718

$

-

172,632

172,632

-

-

77,914

343,939

258,527

85,412

2,932

1,338

6,242

1,835

4,407

151

19,203

147,349

116,629

30,720

1,055

1,571

4,712

3,927

785

27

41,774

151,716

71,965

79,751

2,738

29,731

288,511

-

288,511

9,904

the upstream firms might dun the Company for the customer’s
In September 2009, the Company’s board of directors resolved

liabilities.

to donate to the HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation
$

8,314,177

$

15,875,390

$

4,934,160

$

10,941,230

$

375,600

NT$300,000 thousand, consisting of (a) the second and third

Agency receipts were primarily employees’ income tax,

floors of Taipei’s R&D headquarters, with these two floors to

insurance, royalties and overseas value-added tax.

be built at an estimated cost of NT$217,800 thousand, and
In December 2008, the Company bought land - about 8.3 thousand square meters - from Yulon Motors Ltd. for NT$3,335,000

(b) cash of NT$82,200 thousand. This donation excludes the

Deferred credits - gains on intercompany transactions were

thousand to build the Taipei R&D headquarters in Xindian City. The Company had paid 80% and 20% of the purchase price and

land, of which the ownership remains with the Company. The

unrealized profit from intercompany transactions.

completed the transfer registration of the relative portion of land in December 2008 and January 2010, respectively.

difference between the estimated building donation and the
actual construction cost will be treated as an adjustment in the

In November 2010, the Company bought land and building for NT$404,000 thousand (US$13,869 thousand) from a related party, VIA

year when the completed floors are actually turned over to the

Technologies, Inc. to have more office space in Xindian. The transaction price had been paid except for NT$20,200 thousand (US$693

HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation.

thousand), which was accounted for as payable for purchase of equipment.
Services fees accrued were mainly marketing activities,
Prepayments for construction-in-progress and equipment-in-transit were prepayments for the construction of Taipei R&D headquarters
and miscellaneous equipments.
There were no interests capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

130

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

research and design and business consulting services provided
by related parties.

17. PENSION PLAN
The Labor Pension Act (the “Act), which provides for a
new defined contribution plan, took effect on July 1, 2005.
Employees covered by the Labor Standards Law (the “Law”)
before the enforcement of the Act were allowed to choose to
remain to be subject to the defined benefit pension mechanism
under the Law or to be subject instead to the Act. Based
on the Act, the rate of the Company’s required monthly
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contributions to the employees’ individual pension accounts

The reconciliations between pension fund status and prepaid

As a result, the amount of the Company’s outstanding common

Taking into account the effect of stock dividends, the GDRs

is at least 6% of monthly wages and salaries, and these

pension cost as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as

stock as of December 31, 2009 increased to NT$7,889,358

increased to 8,804.8 thousand units (35,219.1 thousand shares).

contributions are recognized as pension expense in the income

follows:

thousand, divided into 788,936 thousand common shares at

The holders of these GDRs requested the Company to redeem

NT$10.00 par value.

the GDRs to get the Company’s common shares. As of

statement. The pension fund contributions for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2010 were NT$182,271 thousand and
NT$219,565 thousand (US$7,537 thousand), respectively.

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

Present actuarial value of
benefit obligation

Under the Law, which provides for a defined benefit pension

Vested benefit obligation

plan, retirement payments should be made according to the
years of service, with a payment of two units for each year of
service but only one unit per year after the 15th year; however,
total units should not exceed 45. The rate of the Company’s
contributions to a pension fund was 2% after the Act took
effect. The pension fund is deposited in the Bank of Taiwan
in the committee’s name. The pension fund balances were
NT$416,688 thousand and NT$447,728 thousand (US$15,370
thousand) as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

1,334

$

1,525

$

52

Non-vested benefit
obligation

177,557

190,908

6,554

Accumulated benefit
obligation

178,891

192,433

6,606

Additional benefits on
future salaries

148,040

150,480

5,166

Projected benefit
obligation

326,931

342,913

11,772

Fair value of plan assets

( 416,688)

( 447,728)

( 15,370)

Funded status

(

89,757)

( 104,815)

(

3,598)

Unrecognized pension loss

(

47,896)

(

54,130)

(

1,858)

137,653) $ ( 158,945 )

$(

5,456)

Prepaid pension cost

Based on the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

$

$(

Assumptions used in actuarially determining the present value

Research and Development Foundation of the ROC, pension
cost under a defined benefit pension plan should be calculated

of the projected benefit obligation were as follows:

redeemed, representing 12,527.5 thousand common shares, and

shares at NT$150,000 thousand (US$5,150 thousand). Also, in

the outstanding GDRs represented 22,691.6 thousand common

June 2010, the stockholders approved the transfer of retained

shares or 2.81% of the Company’s common shares.

earnings amounting to NT$386,968 thousand (US$13,284
thousand) and employee bonuses amounting to NT$50,206
the amount of the Company’s outstanding common stock as

Under the Company Law, capital surplus can only be used

of December 31, 2010 increased to NT$8,176,532 thousand

to offset a deficit. However, the capital surplus from share

(US$280,691 thousand), divided into 817,653 thousand

issued in excess of par (additional paid-in capital from issuance

common shares at NT$10.00 (US$0.34) par value.

of common shares, conversion of bonds and treasury stock
transactions) and donations may be capitalized, which however

Global Depositary Receipts

The Company’s net pension costs under the defined benefit
plan in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

$

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

5,255

Interest cost

$

9,351

Projected return on plan
assets

(

11,076)

Amortization of
unrecognized net
transition obligation, net

(

-

Amortization of net
pension benefit

1,349
$

4,879

$

4,915 $

169

6,539

224

8,582)

(

Weighted-average discount rate

2.00%

2.00%

Assumed rate of increase in future
compensation

3.50%

3.75%

Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets

corresponding to 3,600 thousand units of Global Depositary
Receipts (GDRs). For this GDR issuance, the Company’s

-

297

10
109

thousand GDR units. Thus, the entire offering consisted
of 6,819.6 thousand GDR units. Each GDR represents four
common shares, and was issued, at a premium, at NT$131.1.
For this common share issuance, net of related expenses,

2.00%

2.00%

NT$1,696,855 thousand was accounted for as capital surplus.
This share issuance for cash was completed and registered on

The vested benefits as of December 31, 2009 and 2010

November 19, 2003.

amounted to NT$1,511 thousand and NT$1,702 thousand (US$58
thousand), respectively.

294)

-

3,169 $

2010

The additional paid-in capital was NT$4,374,244 thousand
as of January 1, 2009. In January and November 2009, the
retirement of treasury stock caused a decrease of additional
paid-in capital amounted to NT$57,907 thousand and
NT$81,330 thousand, respectively. The bonus to employees
of NT$6,164,889 thousand for 2008 was approved in the
stockholders’ meeting in June 2009. Of the approved amount,
NT$4,954,889 thousand, representing 13,357 thousand, which
was determined by fair value, would be distributed by common
stock in 2009. The difference between par value and fair value
of NT$4,821,316 thousand was accounted for as additional
paid-in capital in 2009. As a result, the additional paid-in

The holders of these GDRs have the same rights and

capital as of December 31, 2009 was NT$9,056,323 thousand.

18. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

the distribution of the offering and sales of GDRs and the

Also in April 2010, the retirement of treasury stock caused a

Capital Stock

shares represented thereby in certain jurisdictions may be

decrease of additional paid-in capital amounted to NT$172,188

restricted by law. In addition, the GDRs offered and the shares

thousand (US$5,910 thousand). The bonus to employees

represented are not transferable, except in accordance with the

of NT$4,859,236 thousand (US$166,812 thousand) for 2009

restrictions described in the GDR offering circular and related

were approved in the stockholders’ meeting in June 2010. Of

laws applied in Taiwan. Through the depositary custodian in

the approved amount, NT$1,943,694 thousand (US$66,725

Taiwan, GDR holders are entitled to exercise these rights:

thousand), representing 5,021 thousand common shares which

The Company’s outstanding common stock as of January
755,394 thousand common shares at NT$10.00 par value. In
January and November 2009, the Company retired 10,000

was determined by fair value, would be distributed by common

thousand and 7,085 thousand treasury shares at NT$100,000
thousand and NT$70,850 thousand, respectively. In June

a. To vote; and

2009, the stockholders approved the transfer of retained

b. To receive dividends and participate in new share issuance

earnings amounting to NT$372,697 thousand and employee
bonuses amounting to NT$133,573 thousand to capital stock.
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may not be used for any purpose.

obligations as the stockholders of the Company. However,

1, 2009 amounted to NT$7,553,938 thousand, divided into

132

is limited to a certain percentage of the Company’s paid-in
capital. Also, the capital surplus from long-term investments

12,878.4 thousand common shares, corresponding to 3,219.6
2009

Capital Surplus

thousand (US$1,724 thousand) to capital stock. As a result,

stockholders, including Via Technologies, Inc., also issued

by the actuarial method.

Net pension cost

In April 2010, the Company retired 15,000 thousand treasury

The Company issued 14,400 thousand common shares

No. 18 - “Accounting for Pensions,” issued by the Accounting

Service cost

December 31, 2010, there were 3,131.9 thousand units of GDRs

for cash subscription.

stock in 2010. The difference between par value and fair
value of NT$1,893,488 thousand (US$65,001 thousand) was
accounted for as additional paid-in capital in 2010. As a result,
the additional paid-in capital as of December 31, 2010 was
NT$10,777,623 thousand (US$369,984 thousand).
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The capital surplus from long-term equity investments was

capital expenditure budget and financial goals in determining

NT$17,534 thousand as of January 1, 2009. When the Company

the stock or cash dividends to be paid. The Company’s

did not subscribe for the new shares issued by Vitamin D

dividend policy stipulates that at least 50% of total dividends

Inc. in January 2009 and June 2009, adjustments of NT$187

may be distributed as cash dividends.

thousand and NT$484 thousand were made to the investment
The bonus to employees of NT$6,164,889 thousand for 2008

2009, the Company also determined that the recoverable

were approved in the stockholders’ meeting in June 2009. The

amount of this investment was less than its carrying amount

bonus to employees included a cash bonus of NT$1,210,000

and recognized an impairment loss on its carrying value. As a

thousand and a share bonus of NT$4,954,889 thousand. The

result, the carrying value of this investment became zero and

number of shares of 13,357 thousand was determined by

the Company reversed a capital surplus of NT$2,360 thousand

dividing the amount of share bonus by the closing price (after

that was recognized in prior years for the movement of Vitamin

considering the effect of cash and stock dividends) of the

D’s capital surplus in proportion to the Company’s equivalent

shares of the day immediately preceding the stockholders’

stock. The Company also recognized the movement of other

meeting. The approved amounts of the bonus to employees

investees’ capital surplus amounting to NT$2,566 thousand. As

were the same as the accrued amounts.

of December 31, 2010, the total capital surplus from long-term
thousand).

On October 7, 2008, the Company’s board of directors passed a resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand Company shares from the
open market. The repurchase period was between October 8, 2008 and December 7, 2008, and the repurchase price ranged from
NT$400 to NT$500 per share. If the Company’s share price was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back
its shares. The Company bought back 10,000 thousand shares for NT$3,410,277 thousand during the repurchase period and retired

carrying value and capital surplus, respectively. In December

equity-method investments was NT$18,411 thousand (US$632

19. TREASURY STOCK

them in January 2009.
On July 31, 2009, the Company’s board of directors passed a resolution to buy back 13,000 thousand Company shares from the open
market. The repurchase period was between August 3, 2009 and October 2, 2009, and the repurchase price ranged from NT$300 to
NT$500 per share. If the Company’s share price was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back its shares.
The Company bought back 7,085 thousand shares for NT$2,406,930 thousand during the repurchase period and retired them in
November 2009.
On February 9, 2010, the Company’s board of directors passed a resolution to buy back 15,000 thousand Company shares from the
open market. The repurchase period was between February 10, 2010 and April 9, 2010, and the repurchase price ranged from NT$280
to NT$500 per share. If the Company’s share price was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back its
shares. The Company bought back 15,000 thousand shares for NT$4,834,174 thousand (US$165,951 thousand) during the repurchase

The bonus to employees of NT$4,859,236 thousand for 2009

period and retired them in April 2010.

were approved in the stockholders’ meeting in June 2010. The
bonus to employees included a cash bonus of NT$2,915,542

On July 11, 2010, the Company’s board of directors passed a resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand Company shares from the open
market. The repurchase period was between July 13, 2010 and September 12, 2010, and the repurchase price ranged from NT$526 to

The additional paid-in capital from a merger was NT$25,756

thousand and a share bonus of NT$1,943,694 thousand. The

thousand as of January 1, 2009. In January 2009, November

number of shares of 5,021 thousand was determined by

2009 and April 2010, the retirement of treasury stock caused a

dividing the amount of share bonus by the closing price (after

decrease of additional paid-in capital from a merger amounted

considering the effect of cash and stock dividends) of the

to NT$341 thousand, NT$226 thousand and NT$479 thousand

shares of the day immediately preceding the stockholders’

On October 29, 2010, the Company’s board of directors passed a resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand and 10,000 thousand

(US$17 thousand), respectively. As a result, the additional

meeting. The approved amounts of the bonus to employees

Company shares from the open market between November 1, 2010 and November 30, 2010, and between December 1, 2010 and

paid-in capital from a merger as of December 31, 2010 was

were the same as the accrued amounts.

December 31, 2010, respectively, with the repurchase price ranging from NT$565 to NT$850 per share. If the Company’s share price

The Company bought back 4,786 thousand shares for NT$2,865,990 thousand (US$98,387 thousand) during the repurchase period.

was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back its shares. The Company bought back 5,000 thousand

NT$24,710 thousand (US$848 thousand).
Based on a resolution passed by the Company’s board of

Appropriation of Retained Earnings and Dividend Policy

NT$631 per share. If the Company’s share price was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back its shares.

directors, the employee bonus for 2009 and 2010 should be

shares for NT$3,986,503 thousand (US$136,852 thousand) during the repurchase period. The related treasury stock information for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 was as follows:

appropriated at 18% of net income before deducting employee
Based on the Company Law of the ROC and the Company’s

bonus expenses. If the actual amounts subsequently resolved

(In Thousands of Shares)

Purpose of Treasury Stock

Number of Shares,
Beginning of Year

Addition
During the Year

Reduction
During the Year

Number of Shares,
End of Year

10,000

7,085

17,085

-

Articles of Incorporation, 10% of the Company’s annual net

by the stockholders differ from the proposed amounts,

income less any deficit should first be appropriated as legal

the differences are recorded in the year of stockholders’

reserve. From the remainder, there should be appropriations

resolution as a change in accounting estimate. If bonus shares

of not more than 3‰ as remuneration to directors and

To maintain the Company’s credibility and shareholders’
interest

are resolved to be distributed to employees, the number of

supervisors and at least 5% as bonuses to employees.

Year ended December 31, 2010

shares is determined by dividing the amount of bonus by the

To maintain the Company’s credibility and shareholders’
interest

-

15,000

15,000

-

For transferring shares to the Company’s employees

-

9,786

-

9,786

-

24,786

15,000

9,786

closing price (after considering the effect of cash and stock
The appropriation of retained earnings should be proposed

dividends) of the shares of the day immediately preceding the

by the board of directors and approved by the stockholders in

stockholders’ meeting.

their annual meeting.

Year ended December 31, 2009

Based on the Securities and Exchange Act of the ROC, the number of reacquired shares should not exceed 10% of the Company’s
As of January 18, 2010, the date of the accompanying

issued and outstanding stocks, and the total purchase amount should not exceed the sum of the retained earnings, additional paid-in

As part of a high-technology industry and a growing enterprise,

independent auditors’ report, the appropriation of the 2010

capital in excess of par, and realized capital reserve. In addition, the Company should not pledge its treasury shares nor exercise voting

the Company considers its operating environment, industry

earnings had not been proposed by the Board of Directors.

rights on the shares before their reissuance.Based on the Securities and Exchange Act of the ROC, the number of reacquired shares

developments, and long-term interests of stockholders as well

Information on earnings appropriation can be accessed online

should not exceed 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding stocks, and the total purchase amount should not exceed the sum

as its programs to maintain operating efficiency and meet its

through the Market Observation Post System website.

of the retained earnings, additional paid-in capital in excess of par, and realized capital reserve. In addition, the Company should not
pledge its treasury shares nor exercise voting rights on the shares before their reissuance.
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20. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

2009
Function

2009

2010

NT$

NT$

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

Total

$ 2,498,640

$ 6,743,119

$ 9,241,759

2,110,277

6,209,064

8,319,341

3,995,447

154,384

183,942

338,326

57,183

129,967

Other

176,796

Depreciation
Amortization

Expense Item
Personnel expenses
Salary
Insurance
Pension cost

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

$ 4,599,227 $ 12,688,670

US$ (Note 3)

Total

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

Total

$ 17,287,897

$ 157,886

$ 435,588

$ 593,474

12,103,004

16,098,451

137,159

415,483

552,642

204,932

212,854

417,786

7,035

7,307

14,342

187,150

80,857

141,877

222,734

2,776

4,870

7,646

220,146

396,942

317,991

230,935

548,926

10,916

7,928

18,844

294,601

335,536

630,137

299,285

322,728

622,013

10,274

11,079

21,353

11,357

28,490

39,847

34,987

23,634

58,621

1,201

811

2,012

NT$
Unrealized (realized) bad debt expenses
Capitalized expense

(

Unrealized warranty expense
Unrealized marketing expenses
Unrealized valuation gains on financial instruments

(

Unrealized contingent losses of purchase orders

(

1,714 )

246,134

532,215 )

(

(

Taxable income

(

(

Income tax payable determined pursuant to the Income Tax Law

281,695 )

(

56,137,044 )

(

Prior years’ income tax payable

14,835 )
41,759
8,146

(

63,299,179

26,204,796 )

9,670 )
2,172,989

(

1,927,121 )

6,795,610

7,162,135

245,868

25%

17%

17%

1,698,903

1,217,563

41,798

-

-

1,698,893

10 )

1,217,563

41,798

202,145

-

-

202,145 )

-

-

1,217,563

41,798

3,211,563

Less: Prepaid and withheld income tax

(

237,305
(

1,698,893

Alternative minimum tax

432,144 )
1,216,443

33,000,406

Less: Tax-exempt income

Less: Investment research and development tax credits

49,924 )

129,402

25,941 )

Unappropriated earnings (additional 10% income tax)

(

7,169,890

446,788 )

under the conservatism guideline, the Company adjusted its income tax for the tax shortfall stated in the tax assessment notices.

12,288 )

3,769,488

(

the tax authorities’ assessment on its returns for 2001 to 2003 and applied for the administrative litigation of its returns. Nevertheless,

(

61,700

(

Estimated income tax provision

357,947 )

3,037,905

Other
Total income

US$(Note 3)

(

725,704

Income tax credit

Under the Statute for Upgrading Industries, the Company was granted exemption from corporate income tax as follows:

29,095 )

(Realized) unrealized profit from intercompany transactions

The Company’s income tax returns through 2007 had been examined by the tax authorities. However, the Company disagreed with

NT$

503,089

Tax rate

21. INCOME TAX

2010

6,330,018

39,014 )

(

980,075

217,303

28,685 )

(

115,334

985 )
3,959

Item Exempt from Corporate Income Tax

Exemption Period

Sales of pocket PCs, pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2004.09.15-2009.09.14

Sales of pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2004.11.30-2009.11.29

Sales of pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2005.12.20-2010.12.19

The alternative minimum tax (AMT) imposed under the AMT Act is a supplemental tax levied at a rate of 10% which is payable if the

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3G or GPS function

2006.12.20-2011.12.19

income tax payable determined pursuant to the Income Tax Law is below the minimum amount prescribed under the AMT Act. The

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3G or GPS function

2007.12.20-2012.12.19

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3.5G function

2010.01.01-2014.12.31

Income tax payable

$

4,152,624

$

6,416,667

$

$ 220,277

taxable income for calculating the AMT includes most of the income that is exempted from income tax under various laws and statutes.
The Company has considered the impact of the AMT Act in the determination of its tax liabilities. As a result, the current income tax
payable as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 should be NT$3,211,563 thousand and NT$6,330,018 thousand (US$217,303 thousand),
respectively.

In May 2009, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduced a profit-seeking
enterprise’s income tax rate from 25% to 20%, effective January 1, 2010. In May 2010, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of
Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduced a profit-seeking enterprise’s income tax rate from 20% to 17%, also effective January 1,
2010. Income taxes payable as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were computed as follows:

2009

2010

NT$
Income before income tax

$

Gains on equity-method investments

25,212,464
(

Impairment losses
$

Realized pension cost

$ (

Unrealized losses on decline in value of inventory

Unrealized (realized) exchange losses, net
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$

44,491,309
(

$

1,527,337
50,031 )

$ (

101,268 ) $ (

3,476 )

20,515 ) $ (

21,293 ) $ (

731 )

-

1,457,395 )

US$(Note 3)

(

30,944

Realized investment loss

Unrealized royalties

273,811 )

NT$

1,192

41

1,502,036

789,930

27,117

2,312,014

8,482,060

291,180

942,915

(

156,772 )

(

5,382 )
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Deductible temporary differences and tax credit carryforwards that gave rise to deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2010

Valuation allowance is based on management’s evaluation of the amount of tax credits that can be carried forward for four years.

were as follows:
The income taxes in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:
2009

2010

NT$

NT$

US$(Note 3)

2009

Temporary differences

2010

NT$

Provision for loss on decline in value of inventory

$

529,353 ) $

584,238

$

20,056

Current income tax

$

3,211,563

Unrealized marketing expenses

1,714,593

2,676,285

91,874

Increase in deferred income tax assets

(

503,703)

Unrealized reserve for warranty expense

1,057,512

1,539,698

52,856

(Overestimation) underestimation of prior year’s income tax

(

104,298)

Capitalized expense

40,734

74,045

2,542

Unrealized royalties

1,691,142

2,879,421

98,847

Unrealized contingent losses of purchase orders

95,699

206,795

7,099

Unrealized bad-debt expenses

147,309

64,353

2,209

Unrealized exchange losses, net

155,801

30,472

1,046

Other

43,237

12,570

432

3,056,328

3,141,129

107,832

Tax credit carryforwards
Total deferred tax assets

8,531,708

Less: Valuation allowance

(

Total deferred tax assets, net

11,209,006

6,623,210 )

(

(

Unappropriated earnings generated from 1998
Actual/estimated creditable ratio (including income tax payable)

118,386

Unrealized pension cost

(

27,531 )

(

27,021 )

(

928 )

Unrealized valuation gains on financial instruments

(

3,626 )

(

76,547 )

(

2,628 )

Less: Current portion

(

Deferred tax assets - noncurrent

$

3,345,010

811,240 )
1,066,101

(
$

2,419,431

(

31,774 )

$

50,384)

$

4,957,709

3,274
$

170,193

$

1,702,246 $
38,364,099

2010
US$(Note 3)

NT$
3,098,652
52,876,892

$

106,373
1,815,204

13.85%

18.00%

18.00%

(Actual ratio)

(Estimated ratio)

(Estimated ratio)

For distribution of earnings generated on or after January 1, 1998, the ratio for the imputation credits allocated to stockholders of
the Company is based on the balance of the ICA as of the date of dividend distribution. The expected creditable ratio for the 2010

114,830

925,579 )

(

95,360

NT$
Balance of imputation credit account (ICA)

Deferred tax liabilities

1,877,341

2,603,562

1,467,669)

217,303

2009

266,407 )

3,448,578

$

(

US$(Note 3)
$

The integrated income tax information is as follows:

384,793

7,760,428 )

1,908,498

Income tax

NT$
6,330,018

$

earnings may be adjusted, depending on the ICA balance on the date of dividend distribution.

83,056

22. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Details of the tax credit carryforwards were as follows:

Earnings per share (EPS) before tax and after tax are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding which includes the deduction of the effect of treasury stock during each year. The weighted average number of
2009

Year of Occurrence

Validity Period

2010

NT$

NT$

US$(Note 3)

shares used in EPS calculation was 826,735 thousand shares and 815,239 thousand shares for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2010, respectively. EPS for the year ended December 31, 2009 was calculated after the average number of shares outstanding was
adjusted retroactively for the effect of stock dividend distribution in 2010.

Temporary differences
2007

2007-2011

$

2008

2008-2012

831,154

831,154

28,533

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation issued Interpretation 2007-052 that requires companies to recognize bonuses

2009

2009-2013

2,023,668

2,309,975

79,299

paid to employees, directors and supervisors as compensation expenses beginning January 1, 2008. These bonuses were previously

107,832

recorded as appropriations from earnings. If the Company may settle the bonus to employees by cash or shares, the Company should

$

201,506

3,056,328

$

$

-

3,141,129

$

$

-

presume that the entire amount of the bonus will be settled in shares and the resulting potential shares should be included in the
Before January 1, 2010, the investment and research and development tax credits can be carried forward for four years based on the

weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the calculation of diluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive effect. The number

related regulations of Income Tax Act in the ROC. The total credits used in each year cannot exceed half of the estimated income tax

of shares is estimated by dividing the entire amount of the bonus by the closing price of the shares at the balance sheet date. Such

provision.

dilutive effects of the potential shares needs to be included in the calculation of diluted EPS until the stockholders resolve the number
of shares to be distributed to employees at their meeting in the following year. The related EPS information for the years ended

Under Article 10 of the Statute for Industrial Innovation (SII) passed by the Legislative Yuan in April 2010, a profit-seeking enterprise

December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

may deduct up to 15% of its research and development expenditures from its income tax payable for the fiscal year in which these
expenditures are incurred, but this deduction should not exceed 30% of the income tax payable for that fiscal year. This incentive took
effect from January 1, 2010 and is effective till December 31, 2019.
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2009
Amount (Numerator)

Basic EPS

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

$

25,212,464

Bonus to employees
Diluted EPS

$

$

25,212,464

$

EPS (In Dollars)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

22,608,902

826,735

-

15,044

22,608,902

841,779

-

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

$

30.50

$

Basic EPS

Before Income Tax
NT$

NT$

$

44,491,309

Bonus to employees
Diluted EPS

$

$

29.95

$

26.86

815,239

-

10,201

39,533,600

825,440

$

44,491,309

$

EPS (In Dollars)

39,533,600

2009
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

NT$

NT$

2010
Carrying Amount
NT$

Fair Value

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

Assets

Amount (Numerator)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

December 31

27.35

2010

After Income
Tax

b. Derivative financial instruments

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

$

54.57

$

48.49

$

53.90

$

47.89

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current

$

18,132

$

18,132

$

450,276

$

15,457

$

450,276

$

15,457

Methods and Assumptions Used in Determining Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Not subject to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34 - “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
cash, receivables, other current financial assets, payables, accrued expenses and other current financial liabilities, which have carrying
amounts that approximate their fair values.

The financial instruments include neither refundable deposits nor guarantee deposits. The fair values of refundable deposits and
guarantee deposits received are based on the present value of future cash flows discounted at the average interest rates for time
deposits with maturities similar to those of the financial instruments.

2010
Amount (Numerator)
After Income
Tax

Before Income Tax
US$ (Note 3)
Basic EPS

$

Diluted EPS

$

1,357,143

815,239

-

10,201

1,357,143

825,440

$

1,527,366

$

The fair values of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial assets are

After Income
Tax

based on quoted market prices in an active market, and their fair values can be reliably measured. If the securities do not have market

Before Income Tax
US$ (Note 3)

US$ (Note 3)

consistent with information that market participants would use in setting a price for these securities.

US$ (Note 3)

1,527,366

Bonus to employees

EPS (In Dollars)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

$

1.87

$

prices, fair value is measured on the basis of financial or other information. The Company uses estimates and assumptions that are

1.66

Financial assets carried at cost are investments in unquoted shares, which have no quoted prices in an active market and entail an
$

1.85

$

1.64

unreasonably high cost to obtain verifiable fair values. Therefore, no fair value is presented.
Methodology Used to Determine the Fair Values of Financial Instruments

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Values Based on Quoted Market Prices

Fair Values Based on Valuation Methods

December 31

December 31

a. Nonderivative financial instruments
2009
NT$

December 31
2009
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

NT$

NT$

2010
Carrying Amount
NT$

Fair Value

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

2010

2009

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

2010
NT$

US$ (Note 3)

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss current
Available-for-sale financial assets - current

$

18,132
2,497,394

$

450,276
441,948

$

15,457

$

-

$

-

$

-

15,172

-

-

-

Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent

313

538

18

-

-

-

Available-for-sale financial assets - current

Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent

-

207,467

7,122

-

-

-

Financial assets carried at cost

-

-

-

501,192

515,861

17,709

Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent
Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent
Financial assets carried at cost

$

2,497,394

$

313

2,497,394

$

441,948

313

538

-

-

501,192

501,192

$

15,172

$

441,948

$

15,172

18

538

18

207,946

7,139

207,467

7,122

515,861

17,709

515,861

17,709

There was no loss or gain recognized for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 on the fair value changes of derivatives with
fair values estimated using valuation techniques. However, the Company recognized an unrealized loss of NT$26 thousand and an
unrealized gain of NT$773 thousand (US$27 thousand) under stockholders’ equity for the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, financial assets exposed

b. Credit risk

to fair value interest rate risk amounted to NT$0 thousand
and NT$207,946 thousand (US$7,139 thousand), respectively;

The Company deals only with banks with good credit standing

financial assets exposed to cash flow interest rate risk

based on the banks’ reputation and takes into account past

amounted to NT$61,177,848 thousand and NT$50,853,665

experience with them. Moreover, the Company has a series of

thousand (US$1,745,749 thousand), respectively.

control procedures for derivative transactions. Management
believes its exposure to counter-parties’ default on contracts is

Relationship with the Company

High Tech Computer Singapore Pte. Ltd. (Merged
into High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. in
February 2010)

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

HTC (Australia and New Zealand) Pty. Ltd.

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

HTC India Private Limited

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

HTC (Thailand) Limited

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

HTC Electronics (Shanghai)

Subsidiary of HTC HK, Limited.

HTC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

HTC Innovation Limited

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Financial Risks

low.

a. Market risk

c. Cash flow risk

One & Company Design Inc.

Subsidiary of HTC America Holding, Inc.

The Company uses derivative contracts for hedging purposes,

The Company’s operating funds are deemed sufficient to meet

HTC France Corporation

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

i.e., to reduce any adverse effect of exchange rate fluctuations

the cash flow demand, therefore, liquidity risk is not considered

HTC South Eastern Europe Limited liability Company

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

of accounts receivable/payable. The gains or losses on these

to be significant.

Abaxia SAS

Subsidiary of HTC France Corporation

contracts almost offset the gains or losses on the hedged

HTC Nordic ApS.

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

items. Thus, market risk is not material.

HTC America Innovation Inc.

Subsidiary of HTC America Holding, Inc.

HTC Communication Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Employees’ Welfare Committee

Employees’ Welfare Committee of HTC Corporation

HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation

A non-profit organization of which the funds donated from the Company exceeds one third
of the non-profit organization’s total funds

24. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The names and relationships of related parties are as follows:
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Related Party

Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Xander International Corp.

Chairperson is an immediate relative of the Company’s chairperson

VIA Technologies, Inc.

Same chairperson

Chander Electronics Corp.

Same chairperson

Comserve Network Netherlands B.V.

Main director is an immediate relative of the Company’s chairperson

Syuda Construction Company

The only juridical stockholder whose chairperson is the same person with the Company at
the transaction date

Major transactions with related parties are summarized below:

Purchases of Inventories and Services

Related Party

H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

Subsidiary

BandRich Inc.

Originally a subsidiary of the Company until July 2010 because of losing significant influence

Chander Electronics Corp.

Communication Global Certification Inc.

Subsidiary

High Tech Computer Corp. (Suzhou)

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Subsidiary

BandRich Inc.

Subsidiary

HTC. Netherlands B.V.

Subsidiary of HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

HTC America Holding Inc.

Subsidiary of HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

HTC America Inc.

Subsidiary of HTC America Holding, Inc.

High Tech Computer Corp. (Suzhou)

Subsidiary of H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

HTC Nippon Corporation

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

HTC Brasil

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

Exedea Inc.

Subsidiary of H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ)

Subsidiary of HTC HK, Limited.

HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

Subsidiary of HTC. Netherlands B.V.

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

2010
% to Total Net
Purchases

Amount

NT$
HTC Electronics (Shanghai)

HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

Amount

2009
% to Total Net
Purchases

$

$

NT$

78,835

-

28,606

-

32,361

-

41,318

-

181,120

-

$

298,526

US$ (Note 3)
$

10,248

-

270,931

9,301

-

39,876

1,369

-

-

-

20,918

-

$

609,333

$

Terms of payment and purchasing prices for both related and third parties were similar.
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Sales and Services Provided

Other Receivables

2009
Related Party

Amount

2010

% to Total Revenues

Amount

NT$
HTC America Inc.

$

NT$

1,118,794

HTC Communication Co., Ltd.
Exedea Inc.
HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

1

86,510,154

$

2,969,796

32

-

2,565,782

88,080

1

1,844,513

1

1,126,078

38,657

-

-

9,666

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

% to Total Revenues

US$ (Note 3)

-

298,267

Employees’ Welfare Committee

$

172,235

5,913

34,138

1,172

-

55,123

-

16,399

563

-

34,840

-

6,155

211

-

BandRich Inc.

20,028

-

6,735

231

-

Others

20,505

-

31,023

1,065

-

3,401,736

2

3,105,688

33

$

90,468,699

$

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Other
Receivable

% to Total Other
Receivable

Amount

NT$
HTC America Inc.

$

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.
Others

High Tech Computer Singapore Pte. Ltd.

$

December 31

$

NT$

77,930

40

1,988

1

1,219

-

81,137

41

$

34,034

US$ (Note 3)
$

1,697
454
$

36,185

$

1,168

5

58

-

16

-

1,242

5

Prepaid Expenses

December 31
2009

The selling prices and collection terms for products sold to related parties were similar to those sold to third parties, except those for

Related Party

HTC America Inc., HTC Europe Co., Ltd and Employees’ Welfare Committee.

Accounts Receivable

$

-

December 31

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Accounts
Receivable

% to Total Accounts
Receivable

Amount

NT$

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

HTC Communication Co., Ltd.
HTC Europe Co., Ltd.
Exedea Inc.
Others
$

42

1,388,612

47,669

2

-

54,993

1,888

-

7

-

-

-

1

-

-

25,333
1,820,281
20,352

-

2,244,550

8

$

26,738,921

$

3,865
$

28,186,391

$

133

-

967,607

44

66,989

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Accounts
Payable

% to Total Accounts
Payable

Amount

NT$
HTC Electronics (Shanghai)

$

Chander Electronics Corp.
High Tech Computer Corp. (Suzhou)
Others
$

144

NT$

67,245

-

13,479

-

-

-

4,952

-

85,676

-

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

$

US$ (Note 3)

3

42,984

1,475

2

35,035

1,203

2

HTC India Private Limited

-

-

10,927

375

-

HTC South Eastern Europe Limited
liability Company

-

-

3,892

134

-

One & Company Design, Inc.

$

3,850

-

44

1

-

94,223

3

-

-

-

-

-

87

3

-

122,049

4

5,491

7

$

159,958

$

Accrued Expenses

December 31

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Accrued
Expenses

% to Total Accrued
Expenses

Amount

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.
HTC Cultural and Educational
Foundation
HTC (Australia and New Zealand)
Pty. Ltd.

$

NT$

458,233

3

217,800

1

$

610,022

US$ (Note 3)
$

20,941

2

217,800

7,477

1

13,513

-

150,526

5,167

1

47,985

-

100,001

3,433

-

26,798

-

85,871

2,948

-

40,654

2

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte.
Ltd.

126,093

4,328

-

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

36,550

1,255

-

HTC Innovation Limited

-

-

73,009

2,506

-

3

-

HTC India Private Limited

16,546

-

68,655

2,357

-

46,240

2

HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

39,436

-

40,374

1,386

-

1,184,262

$

76
$

2,300

1

NT$
December 31

US$ (Note 3)
$

-

Related Party

Accounts Payable

$

-

Others
917,917

378,584

NT$
-

% to Total
Prepayment

23,976

HTC America Inc.

Accounts receivable
$

Amount

HTC Brasil

HTC NIPPON Corporation

Related Party

% to Total
Prepayment

NT$
HTC America Innovation Inc.

HTC America Inc.

Amount

2010

1,346,981

$
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HTC Brasil

$

-

-

-

-

HTC Nordic ApS.

-

HTC America Innovation Inc.

-

Communication Global Certification
Inc.

HTC (Thailand) Limited
HTC America Inc.
High Tech Computer Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Others
$

$

37,462

$

1,286

-

31,886

1,095

-

-

30,803

1,057

-

-

27,484

944

-

Warranty Expenses

Related Party

-

18,903

649

-

3

-

-

-

HTC America Inc.

22,550

-

-

-

-

23,716

-

129,218

4,436

1
5

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte.
Ltd.

7

$

1,622,014

$

55,682

Other Payables to Related Parties

2010
% to Total Warranty
Expenses

Amount

NT$

9,064
401,564

1,277,205

Amount

2009
% to Total Warranty
Expenses

$

NT$

1,211,149

22

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

319,210

6

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ)

89,358

2

$

US$ (Note 3)

793,998

$

27,257

8

275,025

9,441

3

104,176

3,576

1

-

-

62,068

2,131

1

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

48,179

1

40,707

1,398

-

Others

31,188

-

37,698

1,294

-

1,699,084

31

45,097

13

2009

2010

% to Total
Commission
Expenses

Amount

% to Total
Commission
Expenses

$

$

1,313,672

$

December 31

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Other
Payables

% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$
HTC America Inc.

$

NT$

317,708

35

$

US$ (Note 3)

173,961

$

Warranty expense resulted from authorizing the above related parties to provide after-sales service.

Commission Expenses

5,972

28

-

-

113,407

3,893

19

HTC EUROPE CO, LTD.

83,509

9

87,266

2,996

15

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte.
Ltd.

96,438

11

47,335

1,625

8

15,470

2

25,802

886

4

HTC Nippon Corporation

7,069

1

7,084

243

1

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

6,776

1

183

6

-

HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

Others

4,797

-

21,198

728

4

HTC Nordic ApS.

531,767

59

16,349

79

HTC America Innovation Inc.

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ)

$

$

476,236

$

Related Party

Amount
NT$
$

86

424,299

14

-

-

HTC FRANCE CORPORATION

-

Others

2,971,650

100

$

Advance Receipts
December 31
2009
Related Party

Amount

$

% to Total Advance
Receipts

61,358

$

US$ (Note 3)
126,147

81

528,017

18,126

12

91,146

3,129

2

-

76,889

2,640

2

-

151,249

5,192

3

155,234

100

$

3,674,661

$

4,521,962

$

Commission expenses resulted from the basis of the nature of services rendered by the related parties.

2010
Amount

NT$
BandRich Inc.

NT$

2,547,351

NT$
11

$

% to Total Advance
Receipts

US$ (Note 3)

-

$

-

-

Outsourcing Expenses

Related Party

2009

2010

% to Total Outsourcing
Amount
Expenses

% to Total Outsourcing
Amount
Expenses

NT$
HTC Electronics (Shanghai)

$

High Tech Computer Corp. (Suzhou)
$

146

NT$

306,410

95

3,775

1

310,185

96
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$

11,010,333

US$ (Note 3)
$

$

11,010,333

$

377,972

95

-

-

377,972

95
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Service and Marketing Fees

Donation Expense

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

2009

2010

% to Total Service
Expenses

% to Total Service
Expenses

% to Total Donation
Expenses

% to Total Donation
Expenses

Amount

NT$
HTC America Inc.

$

NT$

2,541,746

HTC (Australia and New Zealand)
Pty. Ltd.

33

92,283

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte.
Ltd.
HTC America Innovation Inc.

$

2,276,534

1
-

312,685

16

11,400

2

10,734

-

278,890

9,574

2

1

192,255

6,600

2

-

-

188,065

6,456

1

HTC Brasil

173,325

2

175,816

6,036

1

Communication Global Certification
Inc.

175,930

2

163,565

5,615

1

One & Company Design, Inc.

157,246

2

160,473

5,509

1

63,051

1

149,498

5,132

1

HTC NIPPON Corporation

211,502

3

106,811

3,667

1

HTC (Thailand) Limited

40,669

1

70,248

2,411

1

-

-

56,751

1,948

-

High Tech Computer Singapore Pte. Ltd.

166,508

2

13,996

480

-

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

142,260

2

-

-

-

HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

142,164

2

-

-

-

Others

46,273

1

79,604

2,733

-

4,047,213

53

156,446

31

HTC India Private Limited

ABAXIA SAS

$

$

4,557,276

$

HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation

NT$

$

300,000
25,000

7

$

325,000

99

HTC Social Welfare and Charity
Foundation

2

-

HTC Innovation Limited

Amount

NT$

78,151

94,256

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited

Amount

US$ (Note 3)
$

332,085

-

Related Party

92

$

150,000

$

300,000

US$ (Note 3)
$

5,150

49

5,150

49

$

10,300

98

150,000

The Company donated NT$325,500 thousand in 2009 and NT$305,500 thousand (US$10,487 thousand) in 2010 to help
disadvantaged minorities, teenagers and other people in need. Of these donations, NT$500 thousand in 2009 and NT$5,500
thousand (US$189 thousand) in 2010 went to unrelated parties (Note 15 has more information).

Property Transactions

In November 2010, the Company bought land and building for NT$404,000 thousand (US$13,869 thousand) from a related party, VIA
Technologies, Inc. to have more office space in Xindian. The transaction price had been paid except for NT$20,200 thousand (US$693
thousand), which was accounted for as payable for purchase of equipment.

In January 2009, the Company acquired land from a related party, Syuda Construction Company, for NT$791,910 thousand. It was
about 39 thousand square meters, located near the Company in Taoyuan, and the land price was based on appraisal reports. It will be
used to expand factory area.

In 2009, the Company sold equipment to HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ) for NT$496 thousand, and resulting in NT$0 gain or loss
on this sale.

Other Revenues

2009
Related Party

2010

% to Total Other
Revenues

Amount

Amount

NT$
BandRich Inc.

$

NT$

1,200

-

$

200

% to Total Other
Revenues

Endorsement/Guarantee Provided

Note 26 has more information.

US$ (Note 3)
$

7

-

Compensation of Directors, Supervisors and Management Personnel

Leasing - Lessee

2009

2010

NT$

Operating expenses - rental expenses

Salaries
2009

Related Party

Amount

2010

% to Total Rental
Expenses

Amount

NT$
VIA Technologies Inc.

$

9,035

NT$
17

$

12,212

% to Total Rental
Expenses

US$ (Note 3)
$

419

16-

The Company leased offices and parking space owned by VIA Technologies, Inc. at one-year renewable operating lease agreements,

$

Incentives

78,556

NT$
$

46,799

Special compensation
Bonus
$

79,745

US$ (Note)
$

244,333

2,738
8,387

12

3

-

669,412

(Note)

(Note)

794,779

$

324,081

$

11,125

Note: The appropriation of the 2010 earnings is not shown because the Board of Directors has not yet made the related proposal.

and the rental payment was determined at the prevailing rates in the surrounding area.
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The Company’s disclosure of the compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 was in compliance with
Order VI-0970053275 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission under the Executive Yuan.

Contractor

Contract Term

Description

a. Expiry dates of patents
b. Any time when the Company is not using any
of Motorola’s intellectual property,

The compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel for the year ended December 31, 2009 included the bonuses appropriated from the earnings of 2009,
which had been approved by stockholders in their annual meeting in 2010.

25. PLEDGED ASSETS
As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the Company had provided time deposits of NT$63,900 thousand and NT$63,900 thousand
(US$2,194 thousand) to the National Tax Administration of Northern Taiwan Province as part of the requirements for the Company to

ALCATEL LUCENT

November 2009 - November 2012

Authorization to use 2G (GSM/GPRS/EDGE/CDMA), 3G
(CDMA2000/WCDMA), HTML, MPEG, AMR patent license
or technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

Siemens Aktiengesellschaft

July 1, 2004 to the expiry dates of these patents. Authorization to use GSM, GPRS or EDGE patent license
or technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

IV International Licensing Netherlands, B.V.

November 2010 - June 2020

Authorization to use wireless technology; royalty
payment based on agreement.

get a certificate stating that it had no pending income tax.

28. OTHER EVENTS

26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lawsuit

As of December 31, 2010, unused letters of credit amounted to EUR 86 thousand.

The Company provided NT$436,950 thousand (US$15,000 thousand) guarantee for HTC Electronics (Shanghai)’s bank loans. HTC
Electronics (Shanghai) has drawn down NT$78,195 thousand (US$2,684 thousand) from banks within the guarantee amount as of
December 31, 2010.

a.	In April 2008, IPCom GMBH & CO., KG (“IPCom”) filed a multi-claim lawsuit against the Company with the District Court of
Mannheim in Germany, alleging that the Company infringed IPCom’s patents. In February 2009, the court granted a ruling on
patent #100 (EP 186189B1) which granted IPCom’s request for an injunction to prevent the Company from importing devices
into Germany, with the serving of this injunction pending IPCom’s placement with the court of a security bond of €1 million. The
Company appealed this decision to the court of Appeal in Karlsruhe and requested a stay of the injunction pending the outcome of

27. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

this appeal. In May 2009, the court of Appeal in Karlsruhe issued a stay of the injunction and enforced this stay after the Company

Patent Agreements

submitted to the court a bank guarantee amounting to €7.5 million, the amount of the required security bond. Thus, the Company
has continued to ship products regularly to Germany.

To enhance the quality of its products and manufacturing technologies, the Company has patent agreements as follows:
	In December 2009, the District Court of Mannheim ruled that it will stay the proceedings on patent #107 (EP 122782) because of
Contractor

Contract Term

Description

the Court’s doubts about its validity. The case was therefore stayed pending the decision of the EPO opposition division on validity.

Microsoft

February 1, 2009 - January 31, 2011

Authorization to use embedded operating system; royalty
payment based on agreement.

The EPO subsequently revoked the patent #107 (EP 122782) for all designated states in June 2010. Also, in February 2010, the

Qualcomm Incorporated

December 20, 2000 to the following dates:
a. If the Company materially breaches any
Authorization to use CDMA technology to manufacture
covenant and fails to take remedial action within and sell units; royalty payment based on agreement.
30 days after Qualcomm’s issuance of a written
notice, the Company will be prohibited from
using Qualcomm's property or patents.
b. Any time when the Company is not using
any of Qualcomm’s intellectual property, the
Company may terminate this agreement upon
60 days’ prior written notice to Qualcomm.

Ericsson Mobile Platform AB

150

April 2003 - March 2011

District Court of Mannheim further ruled that the Company had not infringed IPCom’s patent #173 (EP 1018849).

	In October 2010, IPCom filed a new complaint against the Company alleging patent infringement of patent #114 (EP 1226692B1) in
District Court of Dusseldorf. The Company has previously filed patent invalidity action against patent #114 (EP 1226692B1) in EPO
and patent #114 (EP 1226692B1) has already been revoked by EPO and IPCom is appealing EPO’s decision. In December 2010, the
#100 (EP 186189B1) was upheld in the Federal Patents Court; however, the chances of IPCom proving infringement are very low
because the revised claim is very restricted. The risk of this newly asserted patent is very low. As of January 18, 2011, the date of the
accompanying independent auditors’ report, there had been no further hearing nor had a court decision been made.

Authorization to use EDGE reference design license
and support agreement; royalty payment based on
agreement.

b.	In March 2010, Apple Inc. (“Apple”) filed a lawsuit against the Company, H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp., HTC America, Inc. and Exedea, Inc.
(“the Company’) concurrently with the U.S. International Trade Commission (“ITC”) and U.S. District Court in Delaware (“Delaware

Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson

December 15, 2008 - December 14, 2013

Authorization to use platform patent license agreement;
royalty payment based on agreement.

Nokia Corporation

January 1, 2003 to the expiry dates of these
patents.

Authorization to use wireless technology, like GSM;
royalty payment based on agreement.

importing to and selling devices in the United States and damage compensation, respectively. The Company, subsequently filed ITC

InterDigital Technology Corporation.

December 31, 2003 to the expiry dates of these
patents.

Authorization to use TDMA and CDMA technology;
royalty payment based on agreement.

Delaware court to prevent Apple from importing and selling devices in the United States and damage compensation, respectively.

KONINKLIJKE PHILIPS ELECTRONICS N.V.

January 5, 2004 to the expiry dates of these
patents

GSM/DCS 1800/1900 Patent License; royalty payment
based on agreement.

Motorola, Inc.

December 23, 2003 to the latest of the following TDMA, NARROWBAND CDMA, WIDEBAND CDMA
dates:
or TD/CDMA Standards patent license or technology;
royalty payment based on agreement.

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

court”), alleging that the Company infringed its patents. Apple requested ITC and Delaware court to prevent the Company from
investigation and filed counterclaim with Delaware court against Apple for patent infringements. The Company requested ITC and
The Company evaluated that there was indirect association between the patents used by the Company‘s devices and those claimed
by Apple. The Company believes the lawsuits have limited impact on its financial results or sales activities. As of January 18, 2011,
the date of the accompanying independent auditors’ report, there had been no further hearing nor had a court decision been made.
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5. CONSOLIDATED REPORT

c.	The Company had examined their circumstances and related information, including past experiences, expert opinions, results of
the evaluation of contingencies and estimation of the degree of actual occurrence, and concluded that the amounts of contingent
assets or liabilities were appropriately accounted.

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
HTC Corporation

Construction for Taipei R&D Headquarters

In September 2009, the Company’s board of directors resolved to build the Taipei R&D headquarters in Xindian City and the land was
bought from Yulon Motors Ltd. The estimated budget for the construction is NT$3,380,000 thousand for a total floor space of 92

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HTC Corporation and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for the years then ended, all expressed in New Taiwan dollars. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the

thousand square meters. Construction is scheduled to be completed by August 31, 2011 (Note 14 has more information).

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants

Industry Type

and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Those rules and standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

The Company mainly manufactures and sells smart handheld devices.

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Foreign Operations

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial

The Company does not have any foreign operations.

position of HTC Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,

Export Sales

and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

Export sales in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Our audits also comprehended the translation of the 2010 New Taiwan dollar amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion,
such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the
2009

2010

NT$
Asia

$

19,291,108

NT$
$

28,505,519

$

978,562

North America

70,729,422

137,284,600

4,712,825

Europe

44,000,227

90,094,743

3,092,851

Others

6,218,621

11,867,647

407,403

$

140,239,378

$

267,752,509

convenience of readers.

US$ (Note3)

$

9,191,641

January 18, 2011

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such
consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

Major Customers

For the convenience of readers, the auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version

Sales to major customers were as follows

prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two
versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail. Also, as stated in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the additional
footnote disclosures that are not required under generally accepted accounting principles were not translated into English.

2009
Customer
A

NT$
$

B

$

57,148,379

86,510,154

US$ (Note3)
$

26,341,261

27,213,647
$

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

1,118,794

NT$

28,815,938

C
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2010

904,266

11,156,997
$

124,008,412

2,969,796

383,007
$

4,257,069
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Except Par Value)

2009
NT$

ASSETS

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)

2009
NT$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

CURRENT LIABILITIES
$

64,638,290

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 2, 5 and 25)

$

18,132

74,462,861

$

450,276

2,556,226
15,457

Short-term borrowings (Note 15)

$

72,326

Notes and accounts payable (Note 26)

$

25,631,015

-

$

63,916,803

2,194,192

Available-for-sale financial assets - current (Notes 2 and 6)

2,497,394

441,948

15,172

Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 23)

4,270,962

6,809,417

233,760

Notes and accounts receivable, net (Notes 2, 7 and 26)

27,125,609

61,614,355

2,115,151

Accrued expenses (Notes 16 and 26)

16,963,888

33,426,028

1,147,478
15,173

Other current financial assets (Notes 8 and 26)

258,474

783,540

26,898

Payable for purchase of equipment (Note 26)

153,551

441,976

Inventories (Notes 2 and 9)

6,036,207

26,413,747

906,754

Long-term liabilities - current portion (Note 18)

22,500

12,188

418

Prepayments (Note 10)

3,341,649

2,653,778

91,101

6,614,533

11,034,691

378,808

Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 23)

812,254

1,051,196

36,086

Other current assets

172,872

767,825

26,359

53,728,775

115,641,103

3,969,829

104,900,881

168,639,526

5,789,204

24,375

12,188

418

313

538

18
1,210

13,959

479

53,754,360

115,667,250

3,970,726

7,889,358

8,176,532

280,691

9,056,323

10,777,623

369,984

18,411

18,411

632

25,189

24,710

848

Total current assets
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term bank loans, net of current portion (Note 18)

Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent (Notes 2 and 6)
Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent (Notes 2 and 11)
Financial assets carried at cost (Notes 2 and 12)
Prepayments for long-term investments (Notes 2, 12 and 13)
Total long-term investments

-

207,946

7,139

565,172

975,596

33,491

245,000

48,065

1,650

810,485

1,232,145

42,298

PROPERTIES (Notes 2, 14 and 26)

OTHER LIABILITIES
Guarantee deposits received
Total liabilities
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 20)

Cost
Land

4,719,538

5,862,076

201,238

Buildings and structures

4,218,443

5,005,642

171,838

Machinery and equipment

4,702,420

7,236,349

248,416

Molding equipment

199,392

172,632

5,926

Computer equipment

411,504

474,299

16,282

Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leased assets
Leasehold improvements
Total cost
Less:

Other current liabilities (Notes 17 and 26)

Accumulated depreciation

(

Prepayments for construction-in-progress and equipment-in-transit
Properties, net

4,575

7,378

253

462,664

245,041

8,412

6,327

5,934

204

199,416

305,073

10,473

14,924,279

19,314,424

663,042

5,055,135)

(

5,801,233)

(

199,150)

30,664

511,138

17,547

9,899,808

14,024,329

481,439

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 2)
Patents
Goodwill
Deferred pension cost
Other
Total intangible assets

-

208,581

7,160

239,992

497,803

17,089

490

416

14

-

228,850

7,857

240,482

935,650

32,120

Capital stock - NT$10.00 par value
Authorized: 1,000,000 thousand shares
Issued and outstanding: 788,936 thousand shares in 2009 and
817,653 thousand shares in 2010
Common stock
Capital surplus
Additional paid-in capital from share issuance in excess of par
Long-term equity investments
Merger
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Accumulated earnings
Cumulative translation adjustments (Note 2)

10,273,674

10,273,674

352,684

38,364,099

52,876,892

1,815,204

(

579,849)

(

Net loss not recognized as pension cost

(

15,088
34)

(

121)

(

4)

Unrealized valuation losses on financial instruments

(

1,658)

(

885)

(

30)

(

6,852,493)

(

235,239)

Treasury stock (Notes 2 and 21)

-

Equity attributable to stockholders of the parent
MINORITY INTEREST
Total stockholders' equity

19,906)

65,640,450

74,714,494

2,564,864

34,207

-

-

65,674,657

74,714,494

2,564,864

OTHER ASSETS
Assets leased to others
Refundable deposits

50,828

1,745

150,860

5,179

Deferred charges (Note 2)

245,996

243,249

8,350

Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 23)

1,067,691

2,366,488

81,239

Restricted assets (Note 27)
Other (Notes 2, 10 and 19)
Total other assets
TOTAL

154

48,135
128,655
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$

106,252

95,688

3,285

1,980,632

2,642,981

90,731

3,577,361

5,550,094

190,529

119,429,017

$

190,381,744

$

6,535,590

TOTAL

$

119,429,017

$

190,381,744

$

6,535,590
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share)

2009
NT$
REVENUES (Notes 2 and 26)

$

COST OF REVENUES (Notes 9, 22 and 26)
GROSS PROFIT

NT$

2009

2010

2010
US$(Note3)

Before Income Tax

After Income Tax

Before Income Tax

After Income Tax

NT$

NT$

NT$ US$ (Note 3)

NT$ US$ (Note 3)

144,492,518 $

278,761,244 $

9,569,559

98,329,537

194,892,505

6,690,440

46,162,981

83,868,739

2,879,119

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 24)

$

30.50

$

27.35

$

54.57

$

1.87

$ 48.49

$

1.66

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 24)

$

29.95

$

26.86

$

53.90

$

1.85

$ 47.89

$

1.64

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 22 and 26)
Selling and marketing

10,863,175

21,757,601

General and administrative

2,304,364

5,038,543

172,967

Research and development

8,372,535

12,940,014

444,216

21,540,074

39,736,158

1,364,097

24,622,907

44,132,581

1,515,022

10,775

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

746,914

NONOPERATING INCOME AND GAINS
Interest income

362,136

313,888

Gains on disposal of properties

2,984

879

30

Gains on sale of investments

3,035

3,001

103

Exchange gain (Note 2)

558,985

-

-

18,132

450,276

15,457

474,814

374,900

12,871

1,420,086

1,142,944

39,236

Interest expense

2,174

3,562

122

Loss on equity-method investments (Notes 2 and 13)

3,891

-

-

Losses on disposal of properties

2,576

13,066

449
7,370

Valuation gains on financial instruments, net
(Notes 2 and 5)
Other
Total nonoperating income and gains
NONOPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Exchange loss (Note 2)
Impairment losses (Notes 2, 12 and 13)
Other
Total nonoperating expenses and losses
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX (Notes 2 and 23)
NET INCOME

(

-

214,679

78,946

32,771

1,125

558,994

47,059

1,615

646,581

311,137

10,681

25,396,412

44,964,388

1,543,577

2,781,999)

$

22,614,413 $

$

22,608,902 $

(

5,449,544)

(

39,514,844 $

187,077)
1,356,500

ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Stockholders of the parent
Minority interest

5,511
$

22,614,413 $

39,533,600 $
(

18,756)
39,514,844 $

1,357,143
(

643)
1,356,500

(Continued)
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

Capital Stock
Issued and
Outstanding
Common Stock

New Taiwan Dollars
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2009

$

7,553,938

Unrealized
Valuation
Losses on
Financial
Instruments

Capital Surplus
From Share
Issuance in
Excess of Pars
$

4,374,244

Retained Earnings

Long-term
Equity
Investments
$

17,534

Legal Reserve
Merger
$

25,756

$

7,410,139

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustments

Accumulated
Earnings
$

44,626,182

$

65,602

Net Loss Not
Recognized as
Pension Cost
$

-

$(

Minority
Interests

Treasury Stock

1,632 ) $(

3,410,277 ) $

28,696

Total
$

60,690,182

Appropriation of the 2008 net earnings
Legal reserve
Stock dividends
Cash dividends
Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

-

-

-

-

2,863,535

(

2,863,535 )

-

-

-

-

-

372,697

-

-

-

-

(

372,697 )

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

20,125,634 )

-

-

-

-

-

(

20,125,634 )

133,573

4,821,316

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net income in 2009

-

-

-

-

-

22,608,902

-

-

-

-

5,511

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

Unrealized loss on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

26 )

-

-

(

26 )

Adjustment due to changes in ownership percentage in investees
and the movement of investees' other equity under equity
method
Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

877

-

-

34 )

-

-

-

(

4,454 )

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

2,406,930 )

-

-

-

-

Retirement of treasury stock

(

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009

170,850 )

(

139,237 )

-

(

567)

(

2,566 )

(

5,506,553 )

(

(

-

-

47,783 )

38,364,099

2,731 )

15,088

(

(

34 )

(

(

( 2,406,930 )

1,658 )

4,954,889
22,614,413
47,783 )

5,817,207

-

-

-

34,207

65,674,657

7,889,358

9,056,323

18,411

25,189

10,273,674

386,968

-

-

-

-

(

386,968 )

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

20,122,332 )

-

-

-

-

-

50,206

1,893,488

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net income in 2010

-

-

-

-

-

39,533,600

-

-

-

-

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

773

-

-

Adjustment due to the movement of investees' other equity
under equity method
Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

87 )

-

-

-

(

87 )

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,686,667 )

-

(

11,686,667 )

-

-

-

4,834,174

-

-

-

-

-

(

15,451 )

Appropriation of the 2009 net earnings
Stock dividends
Cash dividends
Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

-

Retirement of treasury stock

(

Change in minority interest
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010

150,000 )

(

$

8,176,532

172,188 )

-

$

10,777,623

(

$

18,411

479)

-

$

24,710

(

$

10,273,674

(

4,511,507 )
-

$

52,876,892

$(

594,937 )
(

579,849 ) $(

121 ) $(

(

885 ) $(

6,852,493 ) $

(

(

(

1,943,694

18,756 )

39,514,844
(

594,937 )
773

-

15,451 )
-

20,122,332 )

$

74,714,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

Capital Stock
Issued and
Outstanding
Common Stock

U.S. Dollars
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2010

$

270,833

Capital Surplus
From Share
Issuance in
Excess of Pars
$

310,893

Retained Earnings

Long-term
Equity
Investments
$

632

Legal Reserve
Merger
$

865

$

352,684

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustments

Accumulated
Earnings
$

1,316,996

$

518

Net Loss Not
Recognized as
Pension Cost
$(

1 ) $(

Unrealized
Valuation
Losses on
Financial
Instruments

Minority
Interests

Treasury Stock

57 ) $

-

$

1,173

Total
$

2,254,536

Appropriation of the 2009 net earnings
Stock dividends

13,284

-

-

-

-

(

13,284 )

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(

690,777 )

-

-

-

-

-

1,724

65,001

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net income in 2010

-

-

-

-

-

1,357,143

-

-

-

-

Translation adjustments on long-term equity investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unrealized gain on financial instruments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27

-

-

Adjustment due to the movement of investees' other equity under
equity method

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3)

-

-

-

(

3)

Purchase of treasury stock

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

401,190 )

-

(

401,190 )

17)

-

-

-

-

165,951

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cash dividends
Transfer of employee bonuses to common stock

Retirement of treasury stock

(

Change in minority interest

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010

5,150 )

(

-

$

280,691

5,910 )

-

-

$

369,984

(

-

$

632

$

848

$

$ 352,684

(

(

154,874 )
-

$

1,815,204

$(

20,424 )

(

19,906 ) $(

4 ) $(

(

30 ) $ (

235,239 ) $

(

(

(

66,725

643 )

1,356,500
(

20,424 )
27

-

530 )

-

690,777 )

(

$

530 )

2,564,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands)

2009
NT$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
$
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation (including depreciation of assets leased to others)
Amortization
Amortization of premium on financial assets
Prepaid pension cost
(
Loss on equity-method investments
(Gain) loss on disposal of properties and deferred charges, net
(
Transfer of properties to expenses
Gains on sale of investments, net
(
Impairment losses
Deferred income tax assets
(
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(
Notes and accounts receivable
Other current financial assets
Inventories
Prepayments
(
Other current assets
(
Other assets - other
(
Notes and accounts payable
(
Income tax payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Proceeds of the sale of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets
Increase in financial assets carried at cost
Increase in prepayments for long-term investments
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Purchase of properties and assets leased to others
Proceeds of the sale of properties and deferred charges
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits
Increase in deferred charges
(Increase) decrease in restricted assets
Increase in intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities

22,614,413

901,848
72,614
20,525 )
3,891
408 )
7,474
3,035 )
78,946
506,522 )
532,215 )
2,329,169
58,050
2,214,130
2,038,073 )
11,552 )
1,843,170 )
2,938,920 )
231,349
6,570,007
533,103

$

39,514,844

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

27,720,574

(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(

8,105,512 )
5,611,153
64,330 )
245,000 )
26,262 )
1,910,679 )
70,682
62,828
70,099 )
64,787 )
4,742,006 )

905,138
97,196
385
21,364 )
12,187
1,151
3,001 )
32,771
1,537,739 )
432,144 )
34,472,524 )
547,932 )
20,435,168 )
683,128
582,339 )
640,985 )
38,346,267
2,538,408
18,413,894
4,175,616

$

1,356,500

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

46,047,789

(

31,072
3,337
13
733 )
419
39
103 )
1,125
52,789 )
14,835 )
1,183,403 )
18,810 )
701,516 )
23,451
19,991 )
22,004 )
1,316,384
87,141
632,128
143,344
1,580,769

(

3,551,180 )
5,610,175
208,331 )
234,575 )
52,301 )
78,272 )
4,990,996 )
20,064
21,817 )
90,721 )
10,564
220,943 )

(

121,908 )
192,591
7,152 )
8,053 )
1,796 )
2,687 )
171,335 )
689
749 )
3,114 )
363
7,585 )

(

3,808,333 )

(

130,736 )

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

2009
NT$

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Decrease in long-term bank loans
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received
Cash dividends
Purchase of treasury stock
Decrease in minority interest
Net cash used in investing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

2010
US$(Note3)

NT$

(
(
(
(
(

2,674 )
28,750 )
5,210 )
20,125,634 )
2,406,930 )
-

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

42,326 )
22,499 )
12,749
20,122,332 )
11,686,667 )
15,451 )

(
(
(

1,453 )
772 )
437
690,777 )
401,190 )
530 )

(

22,569,198 )

(

31,876,526 )

(

1,094,285 )

(

8,808 )

(

538,359 )

18,482 )

400,562

9,824,571

337,266

64,237,728

64,638,290

2,218,960

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

$

64,638,290

$

74,462,861

$

2,556,226

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year
Interest
Income tax

$
$

2,219
3,057,172

$
$

2,386
4,448,828

$
$

82
152,723

$
$
$

372,697
261,824
5,817,207

$
$
$

386,968
47,813
4,834,174

$
$
$

13,284
1,641
165,952

$
$

4,954,889
1,749,140
160,535
1,004
1,910,679

$
$

$

-

$

$

26,262
26,262

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer of retained earnings to stock dividends for distribution
Transfer of assets leased to others to properties
Retirement of treasury stock
Transfer of stock bonuses to employees to common stock and
additional paid-in capital
Cost of properties and assets leased to others purchased
Decrease (increase) in payable for purchase of equipment
Decrease in lease payable
Cash paid for purchase of properties and assets leased to others
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
Increase in investments accounted for by the equity method
Decrease (increase) in other payable
Cash paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$

(
$

245,927
(

$

1,943,694 $
5,278,345 $
288,425 )
(
1,076
4,990,996 $

$

167,655 )
(
78,272 $

66,725
181,200
9,902 )
37
171,335

8,442
5,755 )
2,687

(Concluded)
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HTC CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated entities as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% of Ownership

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010
(In Thousands, Unless Stated Otherwise)

Investor
HTC Corporation

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

Investee
H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

Main Businesses
International holding

2009
100

2010 Remark
100 Incorporated in August 2000

BandRich Inc.

Design, manufacture and sale of
electronic devices
International holding

50.66

Testing and certification services

100

18.08 Incorporated in April 2006, lost
significant influence in July 2010
- Incorporated in August 2006, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in December 2009
100 Invested in January 2007

Global investing activities,
marketing, distribution and aftersales service
General investing activities

100

100 Incorporated in July 2007

100

100 Incorporated in July 2008

HTC HK, Limited

HTC Corporation (“HTC”) was incorporated on May 15, 1997 under the Company Law of the Republic of China to design, manufacture

-

and sell smart handheld devices. In 1998, HTC had an initial public offering and, in March 2002, had its stock listed on the Taiwan Stock
Communication Global
Certification Inc.
High Tech Computer Asia Pacific
Pte. Ltd.

Exchange. On November 19, 2003, HTC started trading Global Depositary Receipts on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

HTC and its consolidated subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Company,” had 8,249 and 12,575 employees as of December 31,
2009 and 2010, respectively.

HTC Investment Corporation

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PT. High Tech Computer Indonesia Marketing, repair and after-sales
services
HTC I Investment Corporation
General investing activities

Basis of Presentation
H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp.

guidelines, and principles, certain estimates and assumptions have been used for the allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance

100

For readers’ convenience, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original
Chinese version prepared and used in the ROC. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or

1

Huada Digital Corporation

Software service

-

HTC America Inc.

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

-

HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

"

100

High Tech Computer Corp.
(Suzhou)
Exedea Inc.

Manufacture and sale of smart
handheld devices
Distribution and sales

100

100 Incorporated in January 2003

100

HTC NIPPON Corporation

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

100

HTC BRASIL

"

100 Incorporated in December 2004 and
invested in July 2005
- Incorporated in March 2006, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in April 2010
- Incorporated in October 2006, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in February 2010

any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language consolidated financial statements shall prevail. However,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include the English translation of the additional footnote disclosures that

100 Incorporated in September 2009

International holding

for loss on inventories, depreciation of properties, income tax, royalty, pension cost, allowance for product warranties, bonuses to
employees, etc. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

1 Incorporated in December 2007

HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China (ROC). Under these

1

99.99

are not required under ROC generally accepted accounting principles but are required by the Securities and Futures Bureau for their
oversight purposes.
HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ) Repair and after-sales service

-

One & Company Design, Inc.

-

The Company’s significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Principles of Consolidation

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

100

- Incorporated in January 2003, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in November 2009
- Incorporated in July 2003, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in February 2010

- Incorporated in July 2007, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in December 2009
- Invested in October 2008, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in November 2009

accounts of investees that are not majority owned by HTC but in which HTC has controlling interests.

High Tech Computer (H.K.) Limited"

100

- Incorporated in July 2007, and merged
into High Tech Computer Asia Pacific
Pte. Ltd. in February 2010
100 Incorporated in August 2007

100

100 Incorporated in August 2007

All significant intercompany balances and transactions were eliminated upon consolidation. Minority interest was presented separately

HTC (Australia and New Zealand) "
Pty. Ltd.
HTC Philippines Corporation
"

99.99

99.99 Incorporated in December 2007

in the financial statements.

PT. High Tech Computer Indonesia "

99

99 Incorporated in December 2007

HTC India Private Ltd.

"

99

HTC (Thailand) Ltd.

"

100

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the direct and indirect subsidiaries of HTC and the

High Tech Computer High Tech Computer Singapore
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Pte. Ltd.

Design, research and
development of application
software

1 Incorporated in October 2009
100 Incorporated in January 2010

99 Incorporated in January 2008
100 Incorporated in November 2007 and
invested in September 2008

(Continued)
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% of Ownership
Investor
Investee
High Tech Computer HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Ltd.
HTC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

2010 Remark
- Incorporated in January 2007, invested
in July 2008, and transferred out for
the reorganization in February 2010
100 Incorporated in July 2008 and invested
in January 2009
100 Incorporated in January 2009

100

HTC Communication Co., Ltd.

The sale of smart handheld
devices

100

100 Incorporated in December 2008 and
invested in March 2009

HTC America Inc.

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

100

One & Company Design, Inc.

Design, research and
development of application
software

100

International holding

100

- Incorporated in January 2003,
transferred in for the reorganization in
November 2009, and transferred out
for the reorganization in April 2010
- Invested in October 2008, transferred
in for the reorganization in November
2009, and transferred out for the
reorganization in April 2010
100 Incorporated in August 2006, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
December 2009
99 Incorporated in October 2009

HTC HK, Limited

HTC Holding Cooperatief U.A.
High Tech Computer HTC India Private Ltd.
Singapore Pte. Ltd.
HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

International holding
Marketing, repair and after-sales
services
Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ) Repair and after-sales service

HTC Holding
Cooperatief U.A.

2009
100

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services
"

HTC Innovation Limited

HTC HK, Limited

Main Businesses
Manufacture and sale of smart
handheld devices

100

99
1

100

100

HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

Manufacture and sale of smart
handheld devices

-

HTC Netherlands B.V.

International holding

-

HTC India Private Ltd.

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

-

HTC South Eastern Europe Limited "
liability Company
HTC Netherlands B.V. HTC Europe Co., Ltd.

-

- Incorporated in January 2008, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in February 2010
- Incorporated in October 2006, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in March 2010
100 Incorporated in July 2007, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
December 2009
100 Incorporated in January 2007, invested
in July 2008, and transferred in for the
reorganization in February 2010

% of Ownership
Investor
Investee
HTC Netherlands B.V. HTC NIPPON Corporation

HTC France Corporation

Main Businesses
Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

2009
-

"

-

HTC South Eastern Europe Limited "
liability Company
HTC Nordic ApS.
"

-

HTC Italia SRL

"

-

HTC Germany GmbH

"

-

100 Incorporated in July 2006, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
October 2010
100 Incorporated in February 2007, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
October 2010
100 Incorporated in October 2010

HTC Iberia, S.L.

"

-

100 Incorporated in October 2010

HTC Poland sp. z.o.o.

"

-

100 Incorporated in October 2010

"

100

"

-

HTC Europe Co., Ltd. HTC America Holding Inc.

International holding

-

100 Incorporated in April 2010

HTC France
Corporation

Design, research and
development of application
software

-

100 Invested in July 2010

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

-

Design, research and
development of application
software
"

-

100 Incorporated in January 2003, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
April 2010
100 Invested in October 2008, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
April 2010
100 Incorporated in April 2010, and invested
in October 2010

Design, research and
development of application
software

-

HTC Belgium BVBA/ HTC Italia SRL
SPRL
HTC Nordic ApS.

ABAXIA SAS

HTC America HoldingHTC America Inc.
Inc.
One & Company Design, Inc.

HTC America Innovation Inc.

-

-

100 Incorporated in October 2009
1 Incorporated in January 2008, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
February 2010
0.67 Incorporated in June 2010

2010 Remark
100 Incorporated in March 2006, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
April 2010
100 Incorporated in April 2010

ABAXIA SAS

BLR Soft

99.33 Incorporated in June 2010

- Incorporated in February 2007, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in October 2010
- Incorporated in July 2010, and
transferred out for the reorganization
in October 2010

100 Invested in July 2010

(Concluded)

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

-

HTC BRASIL

Marketing, repair and after-sales
services

-

HTC Belgium BVBA/SPRL

"

-

100 Incorporated in July 2003, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
February 2010
99.99 Incorporated in October 2006, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
February 2010
100 Incorporated in October 2006, and
transferred in for the reorganization in
March 2010

In January and July 2010, the Company wholly acquired the shares issued by Huada Digital Corporation and ABAXIA SAS. However,
the Company lost its significant influence of BandRich Inc. in July 2010. The net assets of these companies were as follows:
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Cash in hand and in banks
Other current assets
Properties
Other assets
Current liabilities

$

(

ABAXIA SAS
NT$
93,848
62,626
4,813
14,041
140,043 )

$

(

BandRich Inc.
NT$
34,181
117,589
38,960
1,155
160,572 )

Huada Digital
Corporation (Note)
NT$
$
245,000
-

$

(

Total
NT$
373,029
180,215
43,773
15,196
300,615 )

Total consideration

$

35,285

$

31,313

$

245,000

$

311,598

Cash consideration/cash at the beginning of period
Cash at the acquisition date/losing significant
influence date

$

530,446

$

88,510

$

-

$

618,956

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

balance sheet date are determined as follows: Publicly traded

received or receivable and represents amounts agreed

stocks - at closing prices; open-end mutual funds - at net asset

between the Company and the customers for goods sold in the

values; bonds - at prices quoted by the Taiwan GreTai Securities

normal course of business, net of sales discounts and volume

Market; and financial assets and financial liabilities without

rebates. For trade receivables due within one year from the

quoted prices in an active market - at values determined using

balance sheet date, as the nominal value of the consideration

valuation techniques.

to be received approximates its fair value and transactions are
frequent, fair value of the consideration is not determined by

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of interest.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially measured at fair

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided on the basis

value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

of a review of the collectability of accounts receivable. The

Note:

acquisition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

Company assesses the probability of collections of accounts

Huada Digital Corporation was included in the consolidated financial statement beginning January 2010. And before that, it was booked on prepayments for long-term investments

recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured

receivable by examining the aging analysis of the outstanding

on December 31, 2009.

at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in equity

receivables and assessing the value of the collateral provided

until the financial assets are disposed of, at which time, the

by customers.

Expected net cash outflow (inflow) on the acquisition
of a subsidiary

(

$

93,848 )

436,598

(

$

34,181 )

54,329

(

$ (

245,000)

245,000 )

(

$

373,029 )

245,927

Current/Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
included in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

within one year from the balance sheet date. All other assets such as properties and intangible assets are classified as noncurrent.

The recognition, derecognition and the fair value bases of

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished

Current liabilities are obligations incurred for trading purposes or to be settled within one year from the balance sheet date. All other

available-for-sale financial assets are similar with those of

goods and work-in-process. Effective from January 1, 2008,

liabilities are classified as noncurrent.Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that

financial assets at FVTPL.

inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable

Current assets include cash, cash equivalents, and those assets held primarily for trading purposes or to be realized, sold or consumed

are directly attributable to the acquisition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise. Cash dividends received subsequently (including those received in the year of investment) are recognized as income for
the year. On derecognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable or consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) include financial
assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition. The Company recognizes a
financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. A financial asset is derecognized when the Company has lost control of its contractual rights over the financial
asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

value. Inventory write-downs are made item by item, except
Cash dividends are recognized on the stockholders’ resolutions,

where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items.

except for dividends distributed from the pre-acquisition

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories

profit, which are treated as a reduction of investment cost.

less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

Stock dividends are not recognized as investment income

make the sale. Cost is determined using the moving-average

but are recorded as an increase in the number of shares. The

method.

total number of shares subsequent to the increase is used for
recalculation of cost per share.

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortized cost

evidence that the financial asset is impaired. Any subsequent

using the effective interest method. Held-to-maturity financial

decrease in impairment loss for an equity instrument classified

assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs

as available-for-sale is recognized directly in equity.

that are directly attributable to the acquisition. Profit or loss
is recognized when the financial assets are derecognized,

Financial instruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are remeasured at fair value,

Revenue Recognition, Accounts Receivable and Allowance for

impaired, or amortized. All regular way purchases or sales of

with changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Cash dividends received subsequently

Doubtful Accounts

financial assets are accounted for using a trade date basis.

financial liability, the difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable or consideration

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the Company

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective

paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

evidence that the investment is impaired. The impairment

of ownership of the goods because the earnings process has

loss is reversed if an increase in the investment’s recoverable

A derivative that does not meet the criteria for hedge accounting is classified as a financial asset or a financial liability held for trading.

been completed and the economic benefits associated with

amount is due to an event which occurred after the impairment

If the fair value of the derivative is positive, the derivative is recognized as a financial asset; otherwise, the derivative is recognized as a

the transaction have been realized or are realizable.

loss was recognized; however, the adjusted carrying amount

(including those received in the year of investment) are recognized as income for the year. On derecognition of a financial asset or a

financial liability.
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would have been determined had no impairment loss been

before January 1, 2006, the unamortized amount continues to

The related cost (including revaluation increment) and

the impairment loss is treated as an increase in the unrealized

recognized for the investment in prior years.

be amortized over the remaining year.

accumulated depreciation are derecognized from the balance

revaluation increment. A reversal of an impairment loss on

sheet upon its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of the

goodwill is disallowed.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Profits from downstream transactions with an equity-method

asset is included in nonoperating gains or losses in the year of

investee are eliminated in proportion to the Company’s

disposal.

Investments in equity instruments with no quoted prices in

percentage of ownership in the investee; however, if the

an active market and with fair values that cannot be reliably

Company has control over the investee, all the profits are

If the properties are leased to others, the related costs and

(including goodwill) of each investment is compared with its

measured, such as non-publicly traded stocks and stocks

eliminated. Profits from upstream transactions with an equity-

accumulated depreciation would be transferred from properties

own recoverable amount for the purpose of impairment testing.

traded in the emerging stock market, are measured at their

method investee are eliminated in proportion to the Company’s

to other assets - assets leased to others.

original cost. The accounting treatment for dividends on

percentage of ownership in the investee.

significant influence but with no control, the carrying amount

Accrued Marketing Expenses
Intangible Assets

financial assets carried at cost is similar to that for dividends
on available-for-sale financial assets. An impairment loss is

When the Company subscribes for its investee’s newly issued

recognized when there is objective evidence that the asset is

shares at a percentage different from its percentage of

Intangible assets acquired are initially recorded at cost and

agreements, management’s judgment, and any known factors

impaired. A reversal of this impairment loss is disallowed.

ownership in the investee, the Company records the change

are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated

that would significantly affect the accruals. In addition,

in its equity in the investee’s net assets as an adjustment to

useful lives. Effective January 1, 2006, based on a newly

depending on the nature of relevant events, the accrued

investments, with a corresponding amount credited or charged

released SFAS No. 37, goodwill arising on acquisitions of other

marketing expenses are accounted for as an increase in

to capital surplus. When the adjustment should be debited to

companies is no longer amortized and instead is tested for

marketing expenses or as a decrease in revenues.

capital surplus, but the capital surplus arising from long-term

impairment annually. If circumstances show that the fair value

investments is insufficient, the shortage is debited to retained

of goodwill has become lower than its carrying amount, an

earnings.

impairment loss is recognized. A reversal of this impairment

Investments Accounted for by the Equity Method

Investments in which the Company holds 20 percent or more
of the investees’ voting shares or exercises significant influence
over the investees’ operating and financial policy decisions are

The Company accrues marketing expenses on the basis of

loss is not allowed.

accounted for by the equity method.
Properties

cost and the Company’s proportionate share in the investee’s

Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

equity was amortized by the straight-line method over five

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or

Deferred charges are telephone installation charges, computer

years. Effective January 1, 2006, pursuant to the revised

construction of properties are capitalized as part of the cost of

software costs and deferred license fees. Installation charges

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 5,

those assets. Major additions and improvements to properties

and computer software are amortized on a straight-line basis

“Long-term Investments Accounted for by Equity Method”, the

are capitalized, while costs of repairs and maintenance are

over 3 years, and deferred license fees, over 10 years.

acquisition cost is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities

expensed currently.

assumed based on their fair values at the date of acquisition,
Assets held under capital leases are initially recognized as

the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.

assets of the Company at the lower of their fair value at the

Goodwill is not being amortized. The excess of the fair value of

inception of the lease or the present value of the minimum

the net identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition cost is

lease payments; the corresponding liability is included in the

used to reduce the fair value of each of the noncurrent assets

balance sheet as obligations under capital leases. The interest

acquired (except for financial assets other than investments

included in lease payments is expensed when paid.

accounted for by the equity method, noncurrent assets held
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the

postretirement benefit) in proportion to the respective fair

estimated service lives of the assets or the regulations of

values of the noncurrent assets, with any excess recognized

subsidiaries’ respective local governments.

as an extraordinary gain. Effective January 1, 2006, the
accounting treatment for the unamortized investment
premium arising on acquisitions before January 1, 2006 is the
same as that for goodwill and the premium is no longer being
amortized. For any investment discount arising on acquisitions
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liability is estimated on the basis of management’s evaluation
pertinent factors.

Product-related Costs

The cost of revenues consists of costs of goods sold, writedowns of inventories and the reversal of write-downs. The
provisions for product warranty are estimated and recorded
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less

under cost of revenues when sales are recognized.

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

Pension Plan

charged to earnings unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
deduction to the unrealized revaluation increment.

for sale, deferred income tax assets, prepaid pension or other

The Company provides warranty service for one to two years

of the products under warranty, past warranty experience, and

Asset Impairment

and the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of

Reserve for Warranty Expenses

depending on the contract with customers. The warranty
Deferred Charges

Prior to January 1, 2006, the difference between the acquisition

170

For long term equity investments for which the Company has

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased accordingly, but the increased
carrying amount may not exceed the carrying amount that

Properties still in use beyond their original estimated useful

would have been determined had no impairment loss been

lives are further depreciated over their newly estimated useful

recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

lives.

impairment loss is recognized in earnings, unless the asset

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by
actuarial valuations. Contributions made under a defined
contribution plan are recognized as pension cost during the
year in which employees render services.

Curtailment or settlement gains or losses on the defined
benefit plan are recognized as part of the net pension cost for
the year.

is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
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Income Tax

When treasury stocks are sold and the selling price is above

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency nonmonetary assets

the book value, the difference should be credited to the capital

(such as equity instruments) and liabilities that are measured at

The Company applies intra-year and inter-year allocations for

surplus - treasury stock transactions. If the selling price is

fair value are revalued using prevailing exchange rates, with the

its income tax, whereby (1) a portion of income tax expense

below the book value, the difference should first be offset

exchange differences treated as follows:

is allocated to the cumulative effect of changes in accounting

against capital surplus from the same class of treasury stock

principles; and (2) deferred income tax assets and liabilities are

transactions, and any remainder should be debited to retained

recognized for the tax effects of temporary differences, unused

earnings. The carrying value of treasury stocks should be

loss carryforward and unused tax credits. Valuation allowances

calculated using the weighted-average method.

are provided to the extent, if any, that it is more likely than not

value are recognized in stockholders’ equity; and
b.	Recognized in profit and loss if the changes in fair value is

When the Company's treasury stock is retired, the treasury

tax asset or liability is classified as current or noncurrent in

stock account should be credited, and the capital surplus -

Foreign-currency nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are

accordance with the classification of its related asset or liability.

premium on stock account and capital stock account should

carried at cost continue to be stated at exchange rates at the

However, if a deferred income tax asset or liability does not

be debited proportionately according to the share ratio. The

trade dates.

relate to an asset or liability in the financial statements, then

difference should be credited to capital surplus or debited to

it is classified as either current or noncurrent based on the

capital surplus and/or retained earnings.

the translation of the investee’s financial statements into
the reporting currency of the Company. These adjustments

The financial statements of foreign operations are translated

are accumulated and reported as a separate component of

personnel training expenditures are recognized using the flow-

into New Taiwan dollars at the following exchange rates:

stockholders’ equity.

a. Assets and liabilities - at exchange rates prevailing on the

Reclassifications

through method.

deducted from the current year’s tax provision.

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax at 10% of
unappropriated earnings is provided for as income tax in the
year the stockholders approve to retain the earnings.

balance sheet date;
Certain 2009 accounts have been reclassified to be consistent

c. Dividends - at the exchange rate prevailing on the dividend

with the presentation of the financial statements as of and for

All subsidiaries file income tax returns based on the regulations

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the

of their respective local governments. In addition, there is no

financial statements of foreign operations are recognized as a

material difference in the accounting principles on income taxes

separate component of stockholders’ equity. Such exchange

between the parent company and those of its subsidiaries.

differences are recognized as gain or loss in the year in which
the foreign operations are disposed of.

Treasury Stock
Nonderivative foreign-currency transactions are recorded in
The Company adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting

New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange in effect when

Standards No. 30 - “Accounting for Treasury Stocks,” which

the transactions occur. Exchange differences arising from

requires the treasury stock held by the Company to be

the settlement of foreign-currency assets and liabilities are

accounted for by the cost method. The cost of treasury stock

recognized as gain or loss.

NT$ US$(Note 3)
4,304

$

148

Cash in banks

2,129,500

22,343,340

767,022

Time deposits

62,503,378

52,115,217

1,789,056

$ 64,638,290 $ 74,462,861

$ 2,556,226

On time deposits, interest rates ranged from 0.10% to 1.03%
and from 0.14% to 1.50%, as of December 31, 2009 and 2010,

On preferential deposits, interest rates ranged from 0.10% to
0.70% and from 0.15% to 0.70% as of December 31, 2009 and
2010, respectively.

5.	FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

the year ended December 31, 2010.

d. Income and expenses - at average exchange rates for the
year.

5,412 $

as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

b. Stockholders’ equity - at historical exchange rates;
declaration date; and

$

respectively.

technology, research and development expenditures, and

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or

NT$
Cash on hand

2010

If the functional currency of an equity-method investee is
a foreign currency, translation adjustments will result from

Tax credits for purchases of machinery, equipment and

were as follows:

2009

that deferred income tax assets will not be realized. A deferred

Foreign Currencies

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2009 and 2010

a.	Recognized in stockholders’ equity if the changes in fair

recognized in profit or loss.

expected length of time before it is realized or settled.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3. TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLARS

Derivatives financial assets Exchange
contracts

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 18,132

$ 450,276

$ 15,457

The financial statements are stated in New Taiwan dollars.
The translation of the 2010 New Taiwan dollar amounts into
U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience
of readers, using the noon buying rate of NT$29.13 to
US$1.00 quoted by the Bank of Taiwan on December 31,
2010. The convenience translation should not be construed
as representations that the New Taiwan dollar amounts have
been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into
U.S. dollars at this or any other exchange rate.

The Company had derivative transactions in 2009 and 2010
to manage exposures related to exchange rate fluctuations.
However, these transactions did not meet the criteria for
hedge accounting under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 34 - “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.” Thus, the Company had no hedge accounting
in 2009 and 2010. Outstanding forward exchange contracts as
of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

is shown as a deduction to arrive at stockholders’ equity,
while gain or loss from selling treasury stock is treated as an

At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency monetary assets

adjustment to capital surplus.

and liabilities are revalued using prevailing exchange rates and
the exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.
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2009

Forward exchange contracts

Buy/Sell

Currency

Settlement Period/Date

Sell

EUR/USD

2010.01.15-2010.02.26

9. INVENTORIES

Prepayments for others were primarily for rent, travel and

Inventories as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

Contract Amount
EUR

insurance expenses.

76,000

2010
Buy/Sell

Currency

Settlement Period/Date

Contract Amount

Forward exchange contracts

Buy

USD/CAD

2011.01.26

USD

250

Forward exchange contracts

Buy

USD/JPY

2011.01.12-2011.02.23

USD

18,187

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

EUR/USD

2011.01.05-2011.03.18

EUR

531,000

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

GBP/USD

2011.01.12-2011.03.25

GBP

57,400

Forward exchange contracts

Sell

USD/TWD

2011.01.03-2010.01.31

USD

447,000

Finished goods

$

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

1,002,841 $

1,859,010

$

63,818

11. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
Held-to-maturity financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and
2010 were as follows:

Work-in-process

1,210,132

6,707,423

230,258

Raw materials

3,173,012

13,075,800

448,877

2009

2010

Goods in transit

650,222

4,771,514

163,801

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

6,036,207 $ 26,413,747

$ 906,754

$

Corporate bonds

$

- $

207,946

$

7,139

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the allowance for inventory
Net loss on derivative financial instruments in 2009 was NT$749,476 thousand, including realized settlement loss of NT$767,608

In 2010, the Company bought the corporate bonds issued

devaluation was NT$2,770,551 thousand and NT$3,535,521

thousand and valuation gain of NT$18,132 thousand.

by Nan Ya Plastics Corporation and maturing in 2013 with an

thousand (US$121,370 thousand), respectively.

effective interest rate of 0.90%.

Net gain on derivative financial instruments in 2010 was NT$759,889 thousand (US$26,086 thousand), including realized settlement

The write-down of inventories to their net realizable value

gain of NT$309,613 thousand (US$10,629 thousand) and valuation gain of NT$450,276 thousand (US$15,457 thousand). Note 23 has

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

amounted to NT$1,853,579 thousand and NT$2,686,168

more information.

thousand (US$92,213 thousand) and was recognized as cost
of sales for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010,

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

8. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and

Other current financial assets as of December 31, 2009 and

2010 were as follows:

2010 were as follows:

10. PREPAYMENTS

2010

NT$
Mutual funds

$

2,497,394

Domestic quoted stocks

313

Less: Current portion

441,948

$

15,172

538

( 2,497,394)
$

2009

NT$ US$(Note 3)
$

18

( 441,948)

313 $

(

538

$

15,172)
18

2010

NT$
Other receivables

$

207,054

Hua-Chuang Automobile
Information Technical
Center Co., Ltd.

747,983 $

11,463

11,376

391

Agency payments

37,531

22,139

760

Other

2,426

2,042

70

258,474

$

783,540

$

26,898

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Other receivables were primarily prepayments on behalf of

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were

vendors or customers, withholding income tax of employees’

as follows:

Notes receivable

bonuses, and other compensation.

$

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from
related parties
Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

2,337

$

- $

-

28,146,109

62,620,703

2,149,697

792

2,143

74

Royalty

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 3,044,563 $

Net input VAT

15,301

1,870,381

$

361,152

64,208

(

1,023,629)

( 1,008,491)
$ 61,614,355

(
$

BandRich Inc.
Luminous Optical
Technology Co., Ltd.

Software and hardware
maintenance

85,797

115,425

3,962

Molding equipment

37,052

91,058

3,126

Marketing

41,707

66,295

2,276

Rent

SoundHound Inc.

Answer Online, Inc.

Prepayments for longterm investments

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

500,000 $

500,000 $
145,650

17,164
2,000

-

72,825

2,500

63,980

58,260

5,000

-

15,861

545

1,192

-

-

183,000

6,282

$

565,172 $

48,065
1,023,661

1,650
$

35,141

15,318

40,812

Materials purchases

13,084

38,990

1,338

Others

88,827

69,665

2,392

In January 2007, the Company acquired 10% equity interest in

91,101

Hua-Chuang Automobile Information Technical Center Co., Ltd.

$

3,341,649 $

2,653,778

1,401

2009

-

NETQIN MOBILE Inc.

12,398

$

for NT$500,000 thousand. The Company also signed a joint
Prepayments for royalty were primarily prepayments for
discount purpose and classified as current or noncurrent based
on their maturities. As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the
noncurrent prepayments were NT$1,843,170 thousand and

$ 27,125,609

$

GSUO Inc.

25,677

Interest receivables

$

follows:

NT$ US$(Note 3)
$

2010 were as followss:

respectively.

Prepayments as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as
2009

Financial assets carried at cost as of December 31, 2009 and

34,620)

NT$2,484,156 thousand (US$85,279 thousand) were classified

2,115,151

as other assets, respectively (Note 29 has more information).

venture agreement with Yulon Group, the main stockholder
of Hua-Chuang. Under the agreement, the Company and
Yulon Group may, between January 1, 2010 and December 31,
2011, submit written requests to each other for Yulon Group
to buy back NT$300,000 thousand at original price, some of
Hua-Chuang’s shares bought by the Company. The buy-back
proposed by Yulon Group becomes effective with a consensus
from the Company.
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In July 2009, the Company acquired 4.37% equity interest

In December 2010, the Company acquired 10.00% equity

In December 2009, the Company invested in Huada Digital Corporation for NT$245,000 thousand. Because the registration of the

in SoundHound Inc. (formerly Melodis Corporation until May

interest in Luminous Optical Technology Co., Ltd. for

investment was not completed on December 31, 2009, the investment was temporarily accounted for as “prepayments for long-term

2010) for US$2,000 thousand (NT$58,260 thousand).

NT$183,000 thousand (US$6,282 thousand).

investments.”

In December 2010, the Company acquired 1.60% equity interest

In July 2010, the Company invested Felicis Ventures II LP for

On its equity-method investments, the Company had a loss of NT$3,891 thousand in 2009.

in NETQIN MOBILE Inc. for US$2,500 thousand (NT$72,825

US$750 thousand (NT$23,220 thousand). However, because

thousand).

the registration of this investment had not been completed

The financial statements of equity-method investees for the year ended December 31, 2009 had been examined by the Company’s

as of December 31, 2010, the investment was temporarily

independent auditors.

accounted for under “prepayments for long-term investments.”

In May 2010, the Company acquired 11.11% equity interest in
GSUO Inc. for US$5,000 thousand (NT$145,650 thousand).

14. PROPERTIES
In August 2010, the Company invested WI Harper Fund VII for

Properties as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

In April 2006, the Company acquired 92% equity interest in

US$900 thousand (NT$28,134 thousand). However, because

BandRich Inc. for NT$135,000 thousand and accounted for

the registration of this investment had not been completed

this investment by the equity method. In May 2006 and July

as of December 31, 2010, the investment was temporarily

2010, BandRich Inc. issued common shares and the Company

accounted for under “prepayments for long-term investments.”

2009
Carrying Value
NT$

did not buy any shares. The Company’s ownership percentage

NT$

value because their fair value could not be reliably measured;

Buildings and structures

“financial assets carried at cost” using book value at the time of

thus, the Company accounted for these investments by the

Machinery and equipment

its ownership percentage changed in July 2010.

cost method.

Molding equipment

11,620

172,632

172,632

-

-

Computer equipment

136,161

474,299

310,657

163,642

5,618

acquired 1.82% equity interest in Answer Online, Inc. as a result
of the merger. In addition, the Company determined that the

The investment accounted for by the equity method as of

recoverable amount of this investment in 2010 was less than

December 31, 2009 and 2010 was as follows:

Leased assets
Leasehold improvements
Prepayments for
construction-in- progress
and equipment-in-transit

its carrying amount and thus recognized an impairment loss of
NT$1,192 thousand (US$41 thousand).

$

Carrying Value

2009
Ownership
Percentage

Original Cost

NT$
Vitamin D Inc.

$

Prepayments for long-term investments

-

NT$
25.59

$

245,000
$

245,000

-

US$(Note 3)
$

$

-

Carrying Value

-

NT$
$

$

-

-

$

-

$

-

-

$

5,862,076

$

201,238

3,550.890

5,005,642

812,785

4,192,857

143,936

1,121,526

7,236,349

4,201,382

3,034,967

104,187

1,338

7,378

2,669

4,709

162

226,285

245,041

175,352

69,689

2,392

2,986

5,934

4,536

1,398

48

98,802

305,073

121,220

183,853

6,311

30,664

511,138

-

511,138

17,547

9.899,808

$

19,825,562

$

5,801,233

$

14,024,329

$

481,439

In December 2008, the Company bought land - about 8.3 thousand square meters - from Yulon Motors Ltd. for NT$3,335,000
thousand to build the Taipei R&D headquarters in Xindian City. The Company had paid 80% and 20% of the purchase price and
completed the transfer registration of the relative portion of land in December 2008 and January 2010, respectively.

US$(Note 3)

$

2010
Ownership
Percentage

$

US$(Note 3)

As a result, the Company transferred this investment to

Furniture and fixtures

5,862,076

NT$

These unquoted equity instruments were not carried at fair

Transportation equipment

$

NT$

declined from 92% to 18.08% and lost its significant influence.

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY THE EQUITY 		
METHOD

4,719,538

Carrying Value

Land

In March 2004, the Company merged with IA Style, Inc. and

$

2010

Cost Accumulated Depreciation

-

-

In November 2010, the Company bought land and building for NT$404,000 thousand (US$13,869 thousand) from a related party, VIA

-

Technologies, Inc. to have more office space in Xindian. The transaction price had been paid except for NT$20,200 thousand (US$693
thousand), which was accounted for as payable for purchase of equipment.

In April 2008, the Company made a new investment of US$350 thousand and transferred its bond investment of US$1,000 thousand
to convertible preferred stocks issued by Vitamin D Inc. As a result, the Company acquired 27.27% equity interest in Vitamin D Inc.

Prepayments for construction-in-progress and equipment-in-transit were prepayments for the construction of Taipei R&D headquarters

for NT$40,986 thousand, enabling the Company to exercise significant influence over this investee. Thus, the Company accounts

and miscellaneous equipments.

for this investment by the equity method. In September 2008, January 2009 and June 2009, Vitamin D Inc. issued new convertible
preferred shares, but the Company did not buy any of these shares. The Company’s ownership percentage thus declined from 27.27%

There were no interests capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

to 25.59%, and there was a capital surplus - long-term equity investments of NT$1,689 thousand, NT$671 thousand in 2008 and 2009,
respectively. In addition, the Company determined that the recoverable amount of this investment in 2009 was less than its carrying
amount and thus recognized an impairment loss of NT$30,944 thousand. Vitamin D was dissolved in August 2010.
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15. SHORT-TERM BORROWING
Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2009 and 2010
were as follows:

Working capital loans

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 72,326

$

-

$

-

As of December 31, 2009, short-term borrowing was for

floors of Taipei's R&D headquarters, with these two floors to

to High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. in line with

be built at an estimated cost of NT$217,800 thousand, and

the reorganization of the Company's overseas subsidiaries'

(b) cash of NT$82,200 thousand. This donation excludes the

investment structure. Related liabilities between One &

Under the Law, which provides for a defined benefit pension

land, of which the ownership remains with the Company. The

Company Design, Inc. and H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp. were transferred

plan, retirement payments should be made according to the

difference between the estimated building donation and the

as well. Of the investment, NT$40,880 thousand (US$1,403

years of service, with a payment of two units for each year of

actual construction cost will be treated as an adjustment in the

thousand) had not been paid as of December 31, 2010.

service but only one unit per year after the 15th year; however,

year when the completed floors are actually turned over to the
HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation.

BandRich Inc.'s raising working capital and material purchase.
The Company lost its significant influence in BandRich Inc. in
July 2010, BandRich Inc. was not included in the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2010.

17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were
as follows:

16. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as
follows:

Marketing

$

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

8,784,378 $ 17,323,446

$

594,694

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

$ 5,265,463

$ 9,104,973

$

312,563

Other payables

474,908

269,045

9,236

Agency receipts

524,156

476,948

16,373

Advance receipts

152,907

805,838

27,664

Others

197,099

377,887

12,972

11,034,691

$ 378,808

4,859,236

8,491,704

291,511

Salaries and bonuses

1,001,358

2,642,916

95,101

Services

458,735

1,843,017

63,269

Freight

501,588

1,321,198

45,355

The Company provides warranty service for one to two years

Research materials

529,935

780,501

26,794

depending on the contract with customers. The warranty

Repairs and maintenance

64,893

250,638

8,604

liability is estimated based on management's evaluation of

Donation

217,800

217,800

5,573

the products under warranty, past warranty experience, and

Meals and welfare

114,030

197,590

6,783

pertinent factors.

78,411

127,905

4,391

$ 6,614,533 $

Pension cost

48,939

69,610

2,390

Agency receipts were primarily employees' income tax,

Travel

24,385

49,691

1,706

insurance, royalties and overseas value-added tax.

280,200

110,012

3,776

$ 16,963,888 $ 33,426,028

$ 1,147,478

Others

Based on the resolution passed by the Company's board of
directors, the employee bonuses for 2009 and 2010 should be
appropriated at 18% of net income before deducting employee
bonus expenses.

The Company accrued marketing expenses on the basis of
related agreements and other factors that would significantly
affect the accruals.

In September 2009, the Company's board of directors resolved
to donate to the HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation
NT$300,000 thousand, consisting of (a) the second and third
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total units should not exceed 45. The rate of the Company's
In July 2010, HTC France Corporation acquired 100% equity

contributions to a pension fund was 2% after the Act took

interest of ABAXIA SAS, and paid the investment to the original

effect. The pension fund is deposited in the Bank of Taiwan

stockholders of ABAXIA SAS in several installments based

in the committee's name. The pension fund balances were

on the agreement. Of the investment, NT$102,502 thousand

NT$417,407 thousand and NT$448,631 thousand (US$15,401

(US$3,519 thousand) had not been paid as of December 31,

thousand) as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

2010.

Bonus to employees

Insurance

thousand) in 2010.

Other payables were payables for miscellaneous expenses

H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp., HTC HK, Limited, and High Tech Computer

18. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. have no pension plans.

Long-term bank loans as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were
Under their respective local government regulations, other

as follows:

subsidiaries have defined contribution pension plans covering
2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

Secured loans (Note 27)
NT$50,000 thousand,
repayable from July
2006 in 16 quarterly
installments; 1% annual
interest

6,250

$

-

$

-

by the actuarial method.
40,625
( 22,500)
$

24,375

24,376
(
$

836

12,188)
12,188

(
$

418)
418

new defined contribution plan, took effect on July 1, 2005.

NT$125,663 thousand due to an increased financial risk from

Employees covered by the Labor Standards Law (the “Law”)

a customer. If the customer cannot pay its payments, the

before the enforcement of the Act were allowed to choose to

upstream firms might dun the Company for the customer's

remain to be subject to the defined benefit pension mechanism
under the Law or to be subject instead to the Act. Based
on the Act, the rate of the Company's required monthly

investment to the original stockholders of One & Company
Design, Inc. in several installments based on the agreement.
In November 2009, One & Company Design, Inc. was sold

The Company's net pension costs under the defined benefit
plan in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

19. PENSION PLAN

2008, the Company also estimated a contingent liability of

interest of One & Company Design, Inc., and paid the

Research and Development Foundation of the ROC, pension
cost under a defined benefit pension plan should be calculated

The Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), which provides for a

In October 2008, H.T.C. (B.V.I.) Corp. acquired 100% equity

(US$2,475 thousand) in 2010.

No. 18 - “Accounting for Pensions” issued by the Accounting
$

of overseas sales offices and repair materials. In December

liabilities.

were NT$38,234 thousand in 2009 and NT$72,115 thousand

Based on the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

NT$65,000 thousand,
repayable from July
2009 in 16 quarterly
installments; 1% annual
interest
Less: Current portion

all eligible employees. The pension fund contributions

contributions to the employees' individual pension accounts
is at least 6% of monthly wages and salaries, and these
contributions are recognized as pension expense in the income

2009

2010

NT$
Service cost

$

Interest cost
Projected return on plan
assets

NT$ US$(Note 3)
$

4,915

9,377
(

Amortization of
unrecognized net
transition obligation, net
Amortization of net
pension benefit
Net pension cost

5,255

$

11,094)

$

169

6,560
(

8,598)

225
(

295)

74

74

3

1,349

305

10

4,961 $

3,256

$

112

statement. The pension fund contributions were NT$186,811
thousand in 2009 and NT$220,769 thousand (US$7,579
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The reconciliations between pension fund status and prepaid

earnings amounting to NT$372,697 thousand and employee

Taking into account the effect of stock dividends, the GDRs

pension cost as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as

bonuses amounting to NT$133,573 thousand to capital stock.

increased to 8,804.8 thousand units (35,219.1 thousand shares).

follows:

As a result, the amount of the Company's outstanding common

The holders of these GDRs requested the Company to redeem

The capital surplus from long-term equity investments was

stock as of December 31, 2009 increased to NT$7,889,358

the GDRs to get the Company's common shares. As of

NT$17,534 thousand as of January 1, 2009. When the Company

thousand, divided into 788,936 thousand common shares at

December 31, 2010, there were 3,131.9 thousand units of GDRs

did not subscribe for the new shares issued by Vitamin D

NT$10.00 par value.

redeemed, representing 12,527.5 thousand common shares, and

Inc. in January 2009 and June 2009, adjustments of NT$187

the outstanding GDRs represented 22,691.6 thousand common

thousand and NT$484 thousand were made to the investment

shares or 2.81% of the Company's common shares.

carrying value and capital surplus, respectively. In December

2009

2010

NT$

NT$ US$(Note 3)

Present actuarial value of
benefit obligation
Vested benefit

$

1,334

Non-vested benefits

$

1,525

178,468

$

52

191,930

6,589

Accumulated benefit
obligation

179,802

193,455

6,641

Additional benefits on
future salaries

148,200

150,645

5,172

Projected benefit
obligation

328,002

344,100

11,813

In April 2010, the Company retired 15,000 thousand treasury
shares at NT$150,000 thousand (US$5,150 thousand). Also, in
June 2010, the stockholders approved the transfer of retained
earnings amounting to NT$386,968 thousand (US$13,284
thousand) and employee bonuses amounting to NT$50,206
thousand (US$1,724 thousand) to capital stock. As a result,
the amount of the Company's outstanding common stock as

Plan assets at fair value

( 417,407)

( 448,631)

( 15,401)

of December 31, 2010 increased to NT$8,176,532 thousand

Funded status

(

( 104,531)

(

(US$280,691 thousand), divided into 817,653 thousand

89,405)

3,588)

common shares at NT$10.00 (US$0.34) par value.

Unrecognized net
transitional obligation

(

490)

(

416)

(

14)

Unrecognized pension loss

(

48,090)

(

54,414)

(

1,868)

Additional minimum
pension liability
Prepaid pension cost

523
$(

536

137,462) $ ( 158,825 )

18
$(

5,452)

Assumptions used in actuarially determining the present value
of the projected benefit obligation were as follows:

Weighted-average discount rate
Assumed rate of increase in future
compensation
Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets

Global Depositary Receipts

Capital Surplus
Under the Company Law, capital surplus can only be used
to offset a deficit. However, the capital surplus from share
issued in excess of par (additional paid-in capital from issuance
of common shares, conversion of bonds and treasury stock
transactions) and donations may be capitalized, which however
is limited to a certain percentage of the Company's paid-in
capital. Also, the capital surplus from long-term investments
may not be used for any purpose.

The additional paid-in capital was NT$4,374,244 thousand

corresponding to 3,600 thousand units of Global Depositary

as of January 1, 2009. In January and November 2009, the

Receipts (GDRs). For this GDR issuance, the Company's

retirement of treasury stock caused a decrease of additional

stockholders, including Via Technologies, Inc., also issued

paid-in capital amounted to NT$57,907 thousand and

12,878.4 thousand common shares, corresponding to 3,219.6

NT$81,330 thousand, respectively. The bonus to employees

thousand GDR units. Thus, the entire offering consisted

of NT$6,164,889 thousand for 2008 was approved in the

2010

of 6,819.6 thousand GDR units. Each GDR represents four

stockholders' meeting in June 2009. Of the approved amount,

2.00%

2.00%

common shares, and was issued, at a premium, at NT$131.1.

NT$4,954,889 thousand, representing 13,357 thousand, which

For this common share issuance, net of related expenses,

was determined by fair value, would be distributed by common

NT$1,696,855 thousand was accounted for as capital surplus.

stock in 2009. The difference between par value and fair value

This share issuance for cash was completed and registered on

of NT$4,821,316 thousand was accounted for as additional

November 19, 2003.

paid-in capital in 2009. As a result, the additional paid-in

2.00%~3.75%

2.00%

2.00%

amount of this investment was less than its carrying amount
and recognized an impairment loss on its carrying value. As a
result, the carrying value of this investment became zero and
the Company reversed a capital surplus of NT$2,360 thousand
that was recognized in prior years for the movement of Vitamin
D's capital surplus in proportion to the Company's equivalent
stock. The Company also recognized the movement of other
investees' capital surplus amounting to NT$2,566 thousand. As
of December 31, 2010, the total capital surplus from long-term
equity-method investments was NT$18,411 thousand (US$632
thousand).

The Company issued 14,400 thousand common shares

capital as of December 31, 2009 was NT$9,056,323 thousand.

The vested benefits as of December 31, 2009 and 2010

The additional paid-in capital from a merger was NT$25,756
thousand as of January 1, 2009. In January 2009, November
2009 and April 2010, the retirement of treasury stock caused a
decrease of additional paid-in capital from a merger amounted
to NT$341 thousand, NT$226 thousand and NT$479 thousand
(US$17 thousand), respectively. As a result, the additional
paid-in capital from a merger as of December 31, 2010 was
NT$24,710 thousand (US$848 thousand).

Appropriation of Retained Earnings and Dividend Policy
Based on the Company Law of the ROC and the Company's

amounted to NT$1,511 thousand and NT$1,702 thousand (US$58

The holders of these GDRs have the same rights and

thousand), respectively.

obligations as the stockholders of the Company. However,

Also in April 2010, the retirement of treasury stock caused a

income less any deficit should first be appropriated as legal

the distribution of the offering and sales of GDRs and the

decrease of additional paid-in capital amounted to NT$172,188

reserve. From the remainder, there should be appropriations

shares represented thereby in certain jurisdictions may be

thousand (US$5,910 thousand). The bonus to employees

of not more than 3‰ as remuneration to directors and

restricted by law. In addition, the GDRs offered and the shares

of NT$4,859,236 thousand (US$166,812 thousand) for 2009

supervisors and at least 5% as bonuses to employees.

represented are not transferable, except in accordance with the

were approved in the stockholders' meeting in June 2010. Of

The Company's outstanding common stock as of January

restrictions described in the GDR offering circular and related

the approved amount, NT$1,943,694 thousand (US$66,725

The appropriation of retained earnings should be proposed

1, 2009 amounted to NT$7,553,938 thousand, divided into

laws applied in Taiwan. Through the depositary custodian in

thousand), representing 5,021 thousand common shares which

by the board of directors and approved by the stockholders in

755,394 thousand common shares at NT$10.00 par value. In

Taiwan, GDR holders are entitled to exercise these rights:

was determined by fair value, would be distributed by common

their annual meeting.

20. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital Stock

Articles of Incorporation, 10% of the Company's annual net

stock in 2010. The difference between par value and fair

January and November 2009, the Company retired 10,000
thousand and 7,085 thousand treasury shares at NT$100,000

a. To vote; and

value of NT$1,893,488 thousand (US$65,001 thousand) was

thousand and NT$70,850 thousand, respectively. In June

b.	To receive dividends and participate in new share issuance

accounted for as additional paid-in capital in 2010. As a result,

2009, the stockholders approved the transfer of retained

180

2009, the Company also determined that the recoverable

2009

2.00%~3.50%

NT$10,777,623 thousand (US$369,984 thousand).
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for cash subscription.

the additional paid-in capital as of December 31, 2010 was

As part of a high-technology industry and a growing enterprise,
the Company considers its operating environment, industry
developments, and long-term interests of stockholders as well
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as its programs to maintain operating efficiency and meet its
capital expenditure budget and financial goals in determining
the stock or cash dividends to be paid. The Company's
dividend policy stipulates that at least 50% of total dividends
may be distributed as cash dividends.

21. TREASURY STOCK
On October 7, 2008, the Company's board of directors passed
a resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand Company shares
from the open market. The repurchase period was between
October 8, 2008 and December 7, 2008, and the repurchase

Company shares from the open market between November 1, 2010 and November 30, 2010, and between December 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2010, respectively, with the repurchase price ranging from NT$565 to NT$850 per share. If the Company's share price
was lower than this price range, the Company might continue to buy back its shares. The Company bought back 5,000 thousand
shares for NT$3,986,503 thousand (US$136,852 thousand) during the repurchase period. The related treasury stock information for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 was as follows:

price ranged from NT$400 to NT$500 per share. If the
Company's share price was lower than this price range, the

were approved in the stockholders' meeting in June 2009. The

Company might continue to buy back its shares. The Company

Purpose of Treasury Stock

bonus to employees included a cash bonus of NT$1,210,000

bought back 10,000 thousand shares for NT$3,410,277

Year ended December 31, 2009

thousand and a share bonus of NT$4,954,889 thousand. The

thousand during the repurchase period and retired them in

number of shares of 13,357 thousand was determined by

January 2009.

To maintain the Company's credibility and shareholders'
interest

considering the effect of cash and stock dividends) of the
shares of the day immediately preceding the stockholders'
meeting. The approved amounts of the bonus to employees
were the same as the accrued amounts.

Number of Shares,
Beginning of Year

Addition
During the Year

Reduction
During the Year

Number of Shares,
End of Year

10,000

7,085

17,085

-

-

15,000

15,000

-

Year ended December 31, 2010

dividing the amount of share bonus by the closing price (after
On July 31, 2009, the Company's board of directors passed a

To maintain the Company's credibility and shareholders'
interest

resolution to buy back 13,000 thousand Company shares from

For transferring shares to the Company's employees

the open market. The repurchase period was between August

-

9,786

-

9,786

-

24,786

15,000

9,786

3, 2009 and October 2, 2009, and the repurchase price ranged
from NT$300 to NT$500 per share. If the Company's share

The bonus to employees of NT$4,859,236 thousand for 2009

Based on the Securities and Exchange Act of the ROC, the number of reacquired shares should not exceed 10% of the Company's

price was lower than this price range, the Company might

were approved in the stockholders' meeting in June 2010. The

issued and outstanding stocks, and the total purchase amount should not exceed the sum of the retained earnings, additional paid-in

continue to buy back its shares. The Company bought back

bonus to employees included a cash bonus of NT$2,915,542

capital in excess of par, and realized capital reserve. In addition, the Company should not pledge its treasury shares nor exercise voting

7,085 thousand shares for NT$2,406,930 thousand during the

thousand and a share bonus of NT$1,943,694 thousand. The

rights on the shares before their reissuance.

repurchase period and retired them in November 2009.

number of shares of 5,021 thousand was determined by
dividing the amount of share bonus by the closing price (after
considering the effect of cash and stock dividends) of the
shares of the day immediately preceding the stockholders'
meeting. The approved amounts of the bonus to employees
were the same as the accrued amounts.

On February 9, 2010, the Company's board of directors passed

2009

February 10, 2010 and April 9, 2010, and the repurchase price

NT$

ranged from NT$280 to NT$500 per share. If the Company's
continue to buy back its shares. The Company bought back

directors, the employee bonus for 2009 and 2010 should be

15,000 thousand shares for NT$4,834,174 thousand (US$165,951

appropriated at 18% of net income before deducting employee

thousand) during the repurchase period and retired them in

bonus expenses. If the actual amounts subsequently resolved

April 2010.

by the stockholders differ from the proposed amounts,
resolution as a change in accounting estimate. If bonus shares
are resolved to be distributed to employees, the number of
shares is determined by dividing the amount of bonus by the
closing price (after considering the effect of cash and stock
dividends) of the shares of the day immediately preceding the
stockholders' meeting.

As of January 18, 2010, the date of the accompanying

On July 11, 2010, the Company's board of directors passed a
resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand Company shares from

Information on earnings appropriation can be accessed online
through the Market Observation Post System website.
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Expense Item
Personnel expenses
Salary

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

2010
NT$
Total

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

Total

$ 2,980,449 $ 8,964,593 $ 11,945,042 $ 5,265,747 $ 15,813,869 $ 21,079,616

$ 180,767

$ 542,872

$ 723,639

Total

Operating
Costs

Operating
Expenses

US$ (Note 3)

2,551,772

8,180,903

10,732,675

4,544,387

14,879,114

19,423,501

156,004

510,783

666,787

Insurance

155,481

253,081

408,562

224,738

446,621

671,359

7,715

15,332

23,047

Pension cost

66,029

163,977

230,006

101,749

194,391

296,140

3,493

6,673

10,166

207,167

366,632

573,799

394,873

293,743

688,616

13,555

10,084

23,639

Depreciation

Other

476,585

421,450

898,035

469,145

435,568

904,713

16,105

14,953

31,058

Amortization

34,561

38,053

72,614

36,244

60,592

97,196

1,244

2,093

3,337

the open market. The repurchase period was between July 13,
2010 and September 12, 2010, and the repurchase price ranged
from NT$526 to NT$631 per share. If the Company's share

23. INCOME TAX

price was lower than this price range, the Company might

HTC's income tax returns through 2007 had been examined by the tax authorities. However, HTC disagreed with the tax authorities'

continue to buy back its shares. The Company bought back

assessment on its returns for 2001 to 2003 and applied for the administrative litigation of its returns. Nevertheless, under the

4,786 thousand shares for NT$2,865,990 thousand (US$98,387

conservatism guideline, HTC adjusted its income tax for the tax shortfall stated in the tax assessment notices.

thousand) during the repurchase period.

independent auditors' report, the appropriation of the 2010
earnings had not been proposed by the Board of Directors.

Function

from the open market. The repurchase period was between

Based on a resolution passed by the Company's board of

the differences are recorded in the year of stockholders'

22. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

a resolution to buy back 15,000 thousand Company shares

share price was lower than this price range, the Company might

182

(In Thousands of Shares)

The bonus to employees of NT$6,164,889 thousand for 2008

The income tax returns of Communication Global Certification Inc. and HTC Investment Corporation through 2008 had been examined
On October 29, 2010, the Company's board of directors passed

by the tax authorities.

a resolution to buy back 10,000 thousand and 10,000 thousand
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Under the Statute for Upgrading Industries, HTC was granted exemption from corporate income tax as follows:

2010
Income Tax Expense
(Benefit)
US$
NT$
(Note 3)

Item Exempt from Corporate Income Tax

Exemption Period

Sales of pocket PCs, pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2004.09.15-2009.09.14

Sales of pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2004.11.30-2009.11.29

Sales of pocket PCs (wireless) and smartphones

2005.12.20-2010.12.19

Communication Global
Certification Inc.

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3G or GPS function

2006.12.20-2011.12.19

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3G or GPS function

2007.12.20-2012.12.19

Sales of wireless or smartphone which has 3.5G function

2010.01.01-2014.12.31

HTC Corporation

enterprise's income tax rate from 25% to 20%, effective January 1, 2010. In May 2010, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of
Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduced a profit-seeking enterprise's income tax rate from 20% to 17%, also effective January
1, 2010. Provision for income tax expense (benefit) in 2009 and 2010; income tax payable, income tax receivables and deferred tax

2009

BandRich Inc.

Income Tax
Expense
(Benefit)

Income Tax
Payable

Income Tax
Receivable

Deferred
Tax Assets
(Liabilities)

NT$

NT$

NT$

NT$

4,152,624

-

1,877,341

245 )

-

72

-

664

-

23

1,576

141

-

225

-

2,603,562
(

Communication Global Certification Inc.
HTC Investment Corporation
HTC I Investment Corporation

$

19

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

$

-

$

2

$

-

77

-

-

-

72,449

-

15,074

26

77,102

96,613

-

-

46

1,215

-

-

HTC NIPPON Corporation

7,354

-

5,981

-

HTC BRASIL

4,240

-

7,846

-

One & Company Design, Inc.

2,538

2,018

-

HTC America Inc.
HTC EUROPE CO., LTD.
Exedea Inc.

(

HTC Corporation (Shanghai WGQ)
HTC Belgium BAVA/SPRL

583 )
19,314

High Tech Computer Singapore Pte. Ltd.
HTC (Australia and New Zealand) Pty. Ltd.

(

8,478 )

1

1,843

63

HTC Investment Corporation

132

5

-

-

216

7

-

-

HTC I Investment Corporation

159

6

32

1

-

-

-

-

Huada Digital Corporation

116

4

28

1

-

-

-

-

1,016

35

287

10

-

-

36

1

80,600

2,767

-

-

56,370

1,935

HTC America Inc.

213,608

7,333

-

-

59,070

2,028

27,787

954

HTC EUROPE CO., LTD.

138,709

4,762

137,426

4,718

-

-

8,612

296

19,356

665

-

-

4894

168

2,505

86

HTC NIPPON Corporation

4,028

138

3,692

127

-

-

-

-

HTC BRASIL

5,006

172

3,575

123

-

-

2,607

89

1,533

53

949

33

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,416

83

HTC Corporation (Shanghai
WGQ)
One & Company Design, Inc.

(

HTC Belgium BAVA/SPRL
High Tech Computer (H.K.)
HTC (Australia and New
Zealand) Pty. Ltd.
HTC India Private Limited

5,034 ) (

585 )

173 )

(

319 ) (

11 )

10,468

359

11,005

378

-

-

733

25

1,435

49

640

22

-

-

-

-

6,292

216

5,132

176

-

-

1,189 ) (

41 )

5,929 $

1,837 $

63 $
41

720

25

-

-

-

-

86,172

2,958

123,994

4,257

63,647

2,185

46,288

1,589

HTC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

1,334

46

HTC Innovation Limited

1,060

36

HTC Netherlands B.V.

1.029

35

HTC France Corporation
HTC South Eastern Europe
Limited liability Company

2,074

71

456

16

424

HTC Germany GmbH

2,502

86

757

26

(

227 ) (

203 $

1 $

16 $

1

-

-

256

9

34

-

-

-

-

958

33

-

-

3,155

108

-

-

14

-

-

-

-

605

21

-

-

-

-

419

14

-

-

-

-

43 )

-

-

9

-

-

1,005

8)

21 $

(

1,206

HTC (Thailand) Limited
HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

$

17,031 ) (

(

78,724 ) (

2,702 )

HTC Spain, S.L.

14,312

-

-

HTC Italia SRL

3,705

127

328 )

HTC Nordic ApS.

1,092

37

123

HTC Poland sp. z.o.o.

225

8

-

-

-

-

743

25

58

2

54

2

-

-

-

-

8,035

276

12,601

433

-

-

5,174

178

187,077 $

6,809,417 $

233,760 $

2,295

2,746

-

(

HTC HK, Limited

HTC (Thailand) Limited

725

449

-

-

HTC America Innovation Inc.

HTC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

669

417

-

HTC Innovation Limited

54

57

-

-

-

-

9,714
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(

HTC Communication Co. Ltd

-

-

$

114,830

256

511

2,781,999

3,345,010 $

23

-

$

- $

-

389

10,027 )

- $

25

25

(

220,277 $

735

-

HTC Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

6,416,667 $

17

1,216

HTC India Private Limited

184

$

170,193 $

ncome Tax Receivable
US$
NT$
(Note 3)

500

Exedea Inc.

assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

$

4,957,709 $

High Tech Computer Asia Pacific
Pte. Ltd.

In May 2009, the Legislative Yuan passed the amendment of Article 5 of the Income Tax Law, which reduced a profit-seeking

HTC Corporation

$

Income Tax Payable
US$
NT$
(Note 3)

Deferred Tax Assets
(Liabilities)
US$
NT$
(Note 3)

4,270,962

$

29,504

(

$

29 )

$ 5,449,544 $

(

1,263 ) (
275

130,287 $

4,473 $

(

55 ) (

3,417,684 $

2)

117,325

1,879,945
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Deductible temporary differences and tax credit carryforwards that gave rise to deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2010

Details of the loss carryforwards were as follows:

were as follows::
2009
2009

2010

NT$

NT$

US$(Note 3)

Temporary differences
Provision for loss on decline in value of inventory

$

536,717

Unrealized marketing expenses

$

596,374

$

Loss Year

Validity Period

2006

2007-2016

2010

NT$
$

NT$

49,635

$

$

-

2007

2008-2017

48,885

-

-

20,473

2008

2009-2018

102,497

-

-

2009

2010-2019

16,519

-

-

1,716,445

2,705,547

92,879

1,058,820

1,539,698

52,856

Capitalized expense

40,747

74,433

2,555

Unrealized royalties

1,691,142

2,879,421

98,847

Unrealized bad-debt expenses

147,309

64,353

2,209

thousand (US$52 thousand). Taxation could be made on its net income after deduction of losses incurred in the preceding years, but

Unrealized contingent losses of purchase orders

95,699

206,795

7,099

the deduction cannot exceed 30% of the taxable income in current year.

Unrealized exchange losses

155,790

30,482

1,047

Unrealized reserve for warranty expense

Other

43,497

66,947

2,298

48,566

1,523

52

Tax credit carryforwards

3,157,393

3,148,156

108,073

Total deferred tax assets

8,692,115

11,313,729

388,388

Loss carryforwards

Less: Valuation allowance

(

Total deferred tax assets, net

6,772,111 )

(

7,788,708 )

1,920,004

(

$

121,010

(

27,063 )

(

929 )

Unrealized valuation gains on financial instruments

(

3,626 )

(

76,547 )

(

2,628 )

8,836 )

(

3,727 )

(

Less: Current portion

(

Deferred tax assets - noncurrent

$

(

2,366,488

expenditures are incurred, but this deduction should not exceed 30% of the income tax payable for that fiscal year. This incentive took
effect from January 1, 2010 and is effective till December 31, 2019.

Valuation allowance is based on management's evaluation of the amount of tax credits that can be carried forward for four years.

117,325

1,051,196 )

$

Under Article 10 of the Statute for Industrial Innovation (SII) passed by the Legislative Yuan in April 2010, a profit-seeking enterprise

128 )

3,417,684

812,254 )
1,067,691

(

36,086 )

$

The income taxes in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

81,239

2009

Details of the tax credit carryforwards were as follows:

2010

NT$
Current income tax
2009

2010

NT$

Credit Grant Year

Validity Period

2006

2006-2010

2007

2007-2011

220,249

4,404

151

2008

2008-2012

874,619

833,163

28,602

2009

2009-2013

2,047,050

2,310,589

79,320

$

$

15,475

3,157,393

NT$
$

$

-

3,148,156

US$(Note 3)
$

$

-

$

3,383,532

Increase in deferred income tax assets

(

506,522)

(Overestimation) underestimation of prior year's income tax

(

95,011)

Income tax

$

2,781,999

NT$
$

6,890,038
(

US$(Note 3)
$

1,537,739)

$

5,449,544

236,527
(

97,245

52,789)
3,339

$

187,077

The integrated income tax information is as follows:

108,073

2009
NT$
Balance of imputation credit account (ICA)
Unappropriated earnings generated from 1998
Actual/estimated creditable ratio (including income tax payable)
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-

may deduct up to 15% of its research and development expenditures from its income tax payable for the fiscal year in which these

27,597 )

1,879,945

$

provision.

(

(

-

related regulations of Income Tax Act in the ROC. The total credits used in each year cannot exceed half of the estimated income tax

Unrealized pension cost

Unrealized depreciation

$

Before January 1, 2010, the investment and research and development tax credits can be carried forward for four years based on the

267,378 )

3,525,021

217,536

The loss carryforwards of HTC BRASIL that gave rise to deferred tax assets in the Federative Republic of Brazil were NT$1,523

Deferred tax liabilities

186

US$(Note 3)

-

$

1,702,246 $

2010
NT$
3,098,652

US$(Note 3)
$

106,373

38,364,099

52,876,892

1,815,204

13.85%

18.00%

18.00%

(Actual ratio)

(Estimated ratio)

(Estimated ratio)
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For distribution of earnings generated on or after January 1, 1998, the ratio for the imputation credits allocated to stockholders of

2010

the Company is based on the balance of the ICA as of the date of dividend distribution. The expected creditable ratio for the 2010

Amount (Numerator)

earnings may be adjusted, depending on the ICA balance on the date of dividend distribution.
Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

US$ (Note 3)

US$ (Note 3)

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share (EPS) before tax and after tax are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common

Basic EPS

shares outstanding which includes the deduction of the effect of treasury stock during each year. The weighted average number of

Bonus to employees

shares used in EPS calculation was 826,735 thousand shares and 815,239 thousand shares for the years ended December 31, 2009 and

Diluted EPS

$

1,527,366

$

1,357,143

815,239

-

10,201

1,357,143

825,440

$

1,527,366

$

EPS (In Dollars)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

US$ (Note 3)

US$ (Note 3)

$

1.87

$

1.66

$

1.85

$

1.64

2010, respectively. EPS for the year ended December 31, 2009 was calculated after the average number of shares outstanding was
adjusted retroactively for the effect of stock dividend distribution in 2010.

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Accounting Research and Development Foundation issued Interpretation 2007-052 that requires companies to recognize bonuses

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

paid to employees, directors and supervisors as compensation expenses beginning January 1, 2008. These bonuses were previously
recorded as appropriations from earnings. If the Company may settle the bonus to employees by cash or shares, the Company should

a. Nonderivative financial instruments

presume that the entire amount of the bonus will be settled in shares and the resulting potential shares should be included in the
weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the calculation of diluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive effect. The number

December 31

of shares is estimated by dividing the entire amount of the bonus by the closing price of the shares at the balance sheet date. Such

2009

dilutive effects of the potential shares needs to be included in the calculation of diluted EPS until the stockholders resolve the number
of shares to be distributed to employees at their meeting in the following year. The related EPS information for the years ended

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

NT$

NT$

December 31, 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

2010
Carrying
Amount
NT$

Fair Value

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

Assets
2009
Amount (Numerator)
After Income
Tax

Before Income Tax
NT$
Basic EPS

$

25,212,464

$

25,212,464

Bonus to employees
Diluted EPS

EPS (In Dollars)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

Before Income Tax

NT$

NT$

$

22,608,902
-

15,044

$

22,608,902

841,779

-

After Income
Tax

826,735

Available-for-sale financial assets - current

$

2,497,394

$

2,497,394

$

441,948

$

15,172

$

441,948

$

Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent

313

313

538

18

538

18

Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent

-

-

207,946

7,139

207,467

7,122

565,172

565,172

1,023,661

35,141

1,023,661

35,141

Financial assets carried at cost

NT$

$

30.50

$

27.35

$

29.95

$

26.86

b. Derivative financial instruments

December 31
2009

2010
Amount (Numerator)

Basic EPS

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

$

Bonus to employees
Diluted EPS

44,491,309

$

$

44,491,309

$

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

NT$

NT$

EPS (In Dollars)
Shares
(Denominator)
(In Thousands)

39,533,600

815,239

-

10,201

39,533,600

825,440

15,172

Before Income Tax

After Income
Tax

NT$

NT$

$

54.57

$

48.49

$

53.90

$

47.89

2010
Carrying
Amount
NT$

Fair Value

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current

$

18,132

$

18,132

$

450,276

$

15,457

$

450,276

$

15,457

Methods and Assumptions Used in Determining Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Not subject to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34 - “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
cash, receivables, other current financial assets, payables, accrued expenses and other current financial liabilities, which have carrying
amounts that approximate their fair values.

The financial instruments include neither refundable deposits nor guarantee deposits. The fair values of refundable deposits and
guarantee deposits received are based on the present value of future cash flows discounted at the average interest rates for time
deposits with maturities similar to those of the financial instruments.
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The fair values of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity financial assets are

c. Cash flow risk

based on quoted market prices in an active market, and their fair values can be reliably measured. If the securities do not have market
prices, fair value is measured on the basis of financial or other information. The Company uses estimates and assumptions that are

The Company's operating funds are deemed sufficient to meet the cash flow demand, therefore, liquidity risk is not considered to be

consistent with information that market participants would use in setting a price for these securities.

significant.

Financial assets carried at cost are investments in unquoted shares, which have no quoted prices in an active market and entail an

26. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

unreasonably high cost to obtain verifiable fair values. Therefore, no fair value is presented.
The related parties were as follows:
Methodology Used to Determine the Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair Values Based on Quoted Market Prices

Fair Values Based on Valuation Methods

December 31

December 31

2009
NT$

NT$

2010

2009

US$ (Note 3)

NT$

2010
NT$

US$ (Note 3)

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss current
Available-for-sale financial assets - current

$

18,132

$

450,276

$

15,457

$

-

$

-

$

Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Xander International Corp.

Chairperson is an immediate relative of the Company's chairperson

VIA Technologies, Inc.

Same chairperson with HTC

Syuda Construction Company

The only juridical stockholder whose chairperson is the same person with the Company at
the transaction date

Chander Electronics Corp.

Same chairperson with HTC

Way-Lien Technology Inc.

Same chairperson with HTC

Captec Partners Management Corp.

Main director is the chairperson of HTC

-

Comserve Network Netherlands B.V.

Main director is an immediate relative of HTC's chairperson

Employees' Welfare Committee

Employees' Welfare Committee of HTC

HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation

A non-profit organization of which the funds donated from the Company exceeds one third
of the non-profit organization's total funds

HTC Social Welfare and Charity Foundation

A non-profit organization of which the funds donated from the Company exceeds one third
of the non-profit organization's total funds

2,497,394

441,948

15,172

-

-

-

Available-for-sale financial assets - noncurrent

313

538

18

-

-

-

Held-to-maturity financial assets - noncurrent

-

207,467

7,122

-

-

-

Financial assets carried at cost

-

-

-

565,172

1,023,661

35,141

There was no loss or gain recognized for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 on the fair value changes of derivatives with
fair values estimated using valuation techniques. However, the Company recognized an unrealized loss of NT$26 thousand and an
unrealized gain of NT$773 thousand (US$27 thousand) under stockholders' equity for the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Major transactions with related parties are summarized below:

Purchases of Inventories and Services

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, financial assets exposed to fair value interest rate risk amounted to NT$0 thousand and
NT$207,946 thousand (US$7,139 thousand), respectively; financial assets exposed to cash flow interest rate risk amounted to

Related Party

Amount

NT$62,609,630 thousand and NT$52,210,905 thousand (US$1,792,341 thousand), respectively, financial liabilities exposed to fair value
interest rate risk amounted to NT$46,875 thousand and NT$24,376 thousand (US$836 thousand), respectively.

Financial Risks

a. Market risk

market risk is not material.

Chander Electronics Corp.

The Company deals only with banks with good credit standing based on the banks' reputation and takes into account past experience

Amount

28,606

-

NT$

US$ (Note 3)

270,931

9,301

-

Terms of payment and purchasing prices for both related and third parties were similar.

Sales and Services Provided

2009
Related Party

Amount

2010

% to Total Revenues

Amount

NT$
Employees' Welfare Committee

b. Credit risk

2010
% to Total Net
Purchases

NT$

The Company uses derivative contracts for hedging purposes, i.e., to reduce any adverse effect of exchange rate fluctuations of
accounts receivable/payable. The gains or losses on these contracts almost offset the gains or losses on the hedged items. Thus,

2009
% to Total Net
Purchases

$

NT$

9,666

$

34,138

% to Total Revenues

US$ (Note 3)
$

1,172

VIA Technologies, Inc.

794

-

2,353

81

-

Others

714

-

1,701

58

-

11,174

-

1,311

-

$

$

38,192

$

with them. Moreover, the Company has a series of control procedures for derivative transactions. Management believes its exposure
to counter-parties' default on contracts is low.
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Other Payables to Related Parties

The selling prices and collection terms for products sold to related parties were similar to those sold to third parties, except those for
HTC America Inc., HTC Europe Co., Ltd and Employees' Welfare Committee.

December 31

Accounts Receivable

December 31

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Accounts
Receivable

% to Total Accounts
Receivable

Amount

NT$
VIA Technologies, Inc.

$

Others
$

NT$

506

-

286

-

729

-

$

$

30
$

2,143

$

Amount

73

-

1

-

74

-

2010
% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$
Way-Lien Technology Inc.

$

Chander Electronics Corp.
Xander International Corp.

US$ (Note 3)

2,113

Related Party

2009
% to Total Other
Payables

$

NT$

420

-

81

-

38

-

539

-

$

US$ (Note 3)

-

$

$

-

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Warranty Expense

Accounts Payable

December 31
2009
December 31

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Accounts
Payable

% to Total Accounts
Payable

Amount

NT$
Chander Electronics Corp.

$

NT$

13,479

-

$

126,093

Related Party

Amount

2010

% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$
Comserve Network Netherlands B.V.

$

1,203

NT$
-

$

US$ (Note 3)

-

$

-

-

US$ (Note 3)
$

4,329

-

Other Receivables

Warranty expense resulted from authorizing the above related party to provide after-sales services.

Service Fees

December 31

Related Party

Amount

Chander Electronics Corp.

$

Others
$

December 31

2009

2010

2009

2010

% to Total Other
Receivable

% to Total Other
Receivable

% to Total Other
Payables

% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$

NT$

30

-

63

-

93

-

$

20

$

107
$

127

Related Party

Amount

US$ (Note 3)

$

Amount

NT$

1

-

Way-Lien Technology Inc.

3

-

Captec Partners Management Corp.

4

-

Accrued Expenses

NT$

$

2,400

-

3,222

-

$

5,622

-

$

2,000

$

2,000

US$ (Note 3)
$

69

-

-

-

$

69

-

-

Leasing - Lessee

December 31

Related Party

Amount

$

Way-Lien Technology Inc.
$

December 31

2009

2010

2009

2010

% to Total Accrued
Expenses

% to Total Accrued
Expenses

% to Total Other
Payables

% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$
HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation

% to Total Other
Payables

NT$

217,800

1

-

-

217,800

1

$

217,800

$

400
$

218,200

Related Party

Amount

US$ (Note 3)

$

Amount

NT$

7,477

1

14

-

7,491

1

VIA Technologies Inc.

$

9,035

NT$
4

$

12,212

US$ (Note 3)
$

419

5

The Company leased offices and parking space owned by VIA Technologies, Inc. at one-year renewable operating lease agreements,
and the rental payment was determined at the prevailing rates in the surrounding area.
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27. PLEDGED ASSETS

Service Fees

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the Company had provided time deposits of NT$106,252 thousand and NT$95,688 thousand
December 31

Related Party

Amount

2009

2010

% to Total Other
Payables

% to Total Other
Payables

Amount

NT$
HTC Cultural and Educational Foundation

$

HTC Social Welfare and Charity
Foundation
$

NT$

300,000

92

25,000

7

325,000

99

$

US$ (Note 3)

150,000

$

150,000
$

300,000

$

(US$3,285 thousand), respectively, as collateral for the secured loans, rental deposits and to the National Tax Administration of
Northern Taiwan Province as part of the requirements for the Company to get a certificate stating that it had no pending income tax.

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

5,150

49

As of December 31, 2010, unused letters of credit amounted to EUR86 thousand.

5,150

49

The Company provided NT$436,950 thousand (US$15,000 thousand) guarantee for HTC Electronics (Shanghai)'s bank loans. HTC

10,300

98

Electronics (Shanghai) has drawn down NT$78,195 thousand (US$2,684 thousand) from banks within the guarantee amount as of
December 31, 2010.

The Company donated NT$325,500 thousand in 2009 and NT$305,500 thousand (US$10,487 thousand) in 2010 to help
disadvantaged minorities, teenagers and other people in need. Of these donations, NT$500 thousand in 2009 and NT$5,500

29. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

thousand (US$189 thousand) in 2010 went to unrelated parties (Note 16 has more information).

Patent Agreements

Property and Investment Transaction

To enhance the quality of its products and manufacturing technologies, the Company has patent agreements as follows:

In November 2010, the Company bought land and building for NT$404,000 thousand (US$13,869 thousand) from a related party, VIA

Contractor

Contract Term

Description

Technologies, Inc. to have more office space in Xindian. The transaction price had been paid except for NT$20,200 thousand (US$693

Microsoft

February 1, 2009 - January 31, 2011

Authorization to use embedded operating system; royalty
payment based on agreement.

Qualcomm Incorporated

December 20, 2000 to the following dates:

thousand), which was accounted for as payable for purchase of equipment.

a. If the Company materially breaches any
Authorization to use CDMA technology to manufacture
covenant and fails to take remedial action within and sell units; royalty payment based on agreement.
30 days after Qualcomm's issuance of a written
notice, the Company will be prohibited from
using Qualcomm's property or patents.

In January 2009, the Company acquired land from a related party, Syuda Construction Company, for NT$791,910 thousand. It was
about 39 thousand square meters, located near the Company in Taoyuan, and the land price was based on appraisal reports. It will be
used to expand factory area.

b. Any time when the Company is not using
any of Qualcomm's intellectual property, the
Company may terminate this agreement upon
60 days' prior written notice to Qualcomm.

Compensation of Directors, Supervisors and Management Personnel

2009

2010

NT$
Salaries

$

Incentives
Special compensation
Bonus
$

94,140

NT$
$

111,318

$

3,822

349,011

11,981

12

3

-

747,834

(Note)

(Note)

$

460,332

April 2003 - March 2011

Authorization to use EDGE reference design license
and support agreement; royalty payment based on
agreement.

Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson

December 15, 2008 - December 14, 2013

Authorization to use platform patent license agreement;
royalty payment based on agreement.

Nokia Corporation

January 1, 2003 to the expiry dates of these
patents.

Authorization to use wireless technology, like GSM;
royalty payment based on agreement.

InterDigital Technology Corporation.

December 31, 2003 to the expiry dates of these
patents.

Authorization to use TDMA and CDMA technology;
royalty payment based on agreement.

KONINKLIJKE PHILIPS ELECTRONICS N.V.

January 5, 2004 to the expiry dates of these
patents

GSM/DCS 1800/1900 Patent License; royalty payment
based on agreement.

Motorola, Inc.

December 23, 2003 to the latest of the following TDMA, NARROWBAND CDMA, WIDEBAND CDMA
dates:
or TD/CDMA Standards patent license or technology;
a. Expiry dates of patents
royalty payment based on agreement.

US$ (Note)

51,300

893,286

Ericsson Mobile Platform AB

$

15,803

Note:The appropriation of the 2010 earnings is not shown because the Board of Directors had not yet made the related proposal.

The Company's disclosure of the compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2010 was in compliance with Order VI-0970053275 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission under the Executive

b. Any time when the Company is not using any
of Motorola's intellectual property,

Yuan.
ALCATEL LUCENT

November 2009 - November 2012

Siemens Aktiengesellschaft

July 1, 2004 to the expiry dates of these patents. Authorization to use GSM, GPRS or EDGE patent license
or technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

IV International Licensing Netherlands, B.V.

November 2010 - June 2020

The compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel for the year ended December 31, 2009 included the bonuses
appropriated from the earnings of 2009, which had been approved by stockholders in their annual meeting in 2010.
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Authorization to use 2G (GSM/GPRS/EDGE/CDMA), 3G
(CDMA2000/WCDMA), HTML, MPEG, AMR patent license
or technology; royalty payment based on agreement.

Authorization to use wireless technology; royalty
payment based on agreement.
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30. OTHER EVENTS

31. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Lawsuit

Industry Type

a. In April 2008, IPCom GMBH & CO., KG (“IPCom”) filed a multi-claim lawsuit against the Company with the District Court of

The Company mainly manufactures and sells smart handheld devices.

Mannheim in Germany, alleging that the Company infringed IPCom's patents. In February 2009, the court granted a ruling on
patent #100 (EP 186189B1) which granted IPCom's request for an injunction to prevent the Company from importing devices into
Germany, with the serving of this injunction pending IPCom's placement with the court of a security bond of €1 million. The

Foreign Operations

Company appealed this decision to the court of Appeal in Karlsruhe and requested a stay of the injunction pending the outcome
of this appeal. In May 2009, the court of Appeal in Karlsruhe issued a stay of the injunction and enforced this stay after the

Because sales to unaffiliated customers and identifiable assets of foreign segments were less than 10 percent of that of the Company,

Company submitted to the court a bank guarantee amounting to €7.5 million, the amount of the required security bond. Thus, the

the Company was exempt from disclosing information on foreign operations.

Company has continued to ship products regularly to Germany.
Export Revenues
In December 2009, the District Court of Mannheim ruled that it will stay the proceedings on patent #107 (EP 122782) because of the
Court's doubts about its validity. The case was therefore stayed pending the decision of the EPO opposition division on validity.
The EPO subsequently revoked the patent #107(EP 122782) for all designated states in June 2010. Also, in February 2010, the

Export revenues in 2009 and 2010 were as follows:

District Court of Mannheim further ruled that the Company had not infringed IPCom's patent #173 (EP 1018849).
2009

In October 2010, IPCom filed a new complaint against the Company alleging patent infringement of patent #114 (EP 1226692B1) in
District Court of Dusseldorf. The Company has previously filed patent invalidity action against patent #114(EP 1226692B1) in EPO

NT$
Asia

and patent #114 (EP 1226692B1) has already been revoked by EPO and IPCom is appealing EPO's decision. In December 2010,

North America

the #100 (EP 186189B1) was upheld in the Federal Patents Court; however, the chances of IPCom proving infringement are very low

Europe

because the revised claim is very restricted. The risk of this newly asserted patent is very low. As of January 18, 2011, the date of the

Others

$

19,310,968

NT$
$

28,126,618

US$ (Note)
$

965,555

69,711,852

141,027,352

4,841,310

44,021,684

90,115,532

3,093,564

6,620,411
$

accompanying independent auditors' report, there had been no further hearing nor had a court decision been made.

b. In March 2010, Apple Inc. (“Apple”) filed a lawsuit against the Company concurrently with the U.S. International Trade Commission

2010

139,664,915

11,867,133
$

271,136,635

407,385
$

9,307,814

Major Customers

(“ITC”) and U.S. District Court in Delaware (“Delaware court”), alleging that the Company infringed its patents. Apple requested ITC
and Delaware court to prevent the Company from importing to and selling devices in the United States and damage compensation,

Sales to major customers were as follows

respectively. The Company, subsequently filed ITC investigation and filed counterclaim with Delaware court against Apple for patent
infringements. The Company requested ITC and Delaware court to prevent Apple from importing and selling devices in the United

2009

States and damage compensation, respectively. The Company evaluated that there was indirect association between the patents
used by the Company‘s devices and those claimed by Apple. The Company believes the lawsuits have limited impact on its financial

Customer

results or sales activities. As of January 18, 2011, the date of the accompanying independent auditors' report, there had been no

A

further hearing nor had a court decision been made.

B

$

28,816,033

NT$
$

8,110,798

C

c. The Company had examined their circumstances and related information, including past experiences, expert opinions, results of the

2010

NT$

64,140,478

$

47,500,397

27,213,647
$

51,646,672

US$ (Note)

38,544,296
$

137,691,365

1,772,972
1,630,635
1,323,182

$

4,726,789

evaluation of contingencies and estimation of the degree of actual occurrence, and concluded that the amounts of contingent
assets or liabilities were appropriately accounted.

Construction for Taipei R&D Headquarters

In September 2009, the Company's board of directors resolved to build the Taipei R&D headquarters in Xindian City and the land was
bought from Yulon Motors Ltd. The estimated budget for the construction is NT$3,380,000 thousand for a total floor space of 92
thousand square meters. Construction is scheduled to be completed by August 31, 2011 (Note 14 has more information).

196

2010 HTC ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

197

6. OTHER MATTERS REQUIRING SUPPLEMENTARY 		
EXPLANATION
Financial or cash flow difficulties in 2010.
None.

Explanation of significant accounting policies:
1. Revenue recognition and allowance for doubtful 		
accounts
Revenue is measured at fair value as the transaction price
agreed between HTC and buyers (considering trade discounts
and volume discounts). Trade discounts include price
protection, marketing development fund, and mail-in rebate.
Allowances for doubtful accounts are estimated using aging
analysis, which is reviewed and updated regularly by assessing
the probability of recovering outstanding receivables, credit
ratings and general economic factors. HTC assigns a rating
to each customer based on their financial health. Allowance
accounts of customers with good credit ratings are accrued by
1% ~ 5% when receivables are 31~90 days overdue and by 5%
~ 100% when receivables are over 91 days overdue. Individual
determinations are made for customers with poor credit,
which include making reasonable estimates of allowances for
receivables not yet due.

2. Inventory write-downs
Assessments of allowances for loss on decline in inventory
value or loss on items retired are based on analysis of inventory
age and of slow moving or obsolete inventory items. HTC
began on 1 January 2008 to adopt newly released Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 10 to assess inventory
value on a category by category basis and write off as losses
currently-held inventory with no practical market value. Also,
HTC applies inventory aging analysis to products stored in
HTC's main warehouse facility, with items stored from 60~180
days depreciated by 25~75% and those stored more than 180
days depreciated by 100%. Items stored in other warehouse
facilities are held to depreciation ratios appropriate to their
situations. Changes in the business environment (e.g., newly
enforced regulations on lead-free products) also allow a full
write off (100% depreciation) of affected products in stock.

3. Accrued marketing expenses
Reasonable estimates for marketing expenses and trade
discounts such as price protection, marketing development
fund, and mail-in rebate are made according to contract
stipulations and other related factors and recognized
as marketing expenses, and are entered as expenses or
deductions from revenue depending on their category.

4. Reserve for warranty expenses
HTC provides a one- to two-year period of free warranty
maintenance in after sales service. It makes reasonable
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estimates of possible amounts for that service and recognizes
warranty liabilities based on historical experience and other
relevant factors. Allocation to the product warranty reserve
stands at around 3-4% of revenue currently.

5. Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit 		
or loss
HTC's financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss comprise forward foreign exchange contracts. We
calculated the fair value of each outstanding contract at the
close of 2010 based on its maturation date, average closing
rates from the Bank of Taiwan, and swap point quotations
provided by financial institutions.

6. Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are listed stocks and quasi
money market funds. Estimates of fair value are based on
closing prices for exchange- or OTC-listed securities on the
balance sheet date.

Appendix: HTC's Code of Conduct
HTC's Code of Conduct is a guideline to provide high
ethical standards for all employees in conducting business
activities. All employees of HTC Corp., including branches and
subsidiaries, must follow these ethical standards regardless of
the employees' position, grade level, and location. This Code
includes three major sections: General Moral Imperatives,
Venders/Suppliers and Customers Relationship, and Conflict of
Interest.
The General Moral Imperatives section requires that HTC
commits to providing a safe and healthy work environment and
equal opportunities, and that it establishes a behavioral code
for the treatment of knowledge about the company's assets/
properties/information.
The Venders/Suppliers and Customers Relationship section
requires that HTC commits to maintaining fair, legal, and longterm relationships with its venders/suppliers and customers to
the benefit of all parties.
The Conflict of Interest section describes the behavioral rules
for employees in situations of conflicted interest.
This Code is superior to any other local regulations except
certain mandatory laws/acts issued by local governments. In
such cases, the local Talent Management Division should submit
the specific laws/acts to the Corporate Talent Management
Division in order to waive this specific regulation of the Code
in that location. Otherwise, any violation of the HTC Code of
Conduct and applicable policies may cause disciplinary actions
up to and including the termination of employment.
Employees are responsible for understanding and complying
with the HTC Code of Conduct as well as other applicable HTC
policies/rules. The manager must ensure that each employee
endorses the contents of the Code of Conduct and should
review this document with each employee periodically (at least
once a year). Both parties should then sign in the appropriate
space on the last page.

Mandatory Contents

1.0 General Moral Imperatives
While maintaining a work culture that ensures the Company's
success, HTC strives to treat each employee fairly and with
dignity. HTC is also committed to complying with the labor
laws of each country it operates in. As well, each employee
is responsible for complying with all applicable external and
internal laws.

1.1 Work Environment
HTC is committed to comply with local laws and regulations
to establish a safe and healthy workplace, free from health
hazards. Furthermore, HTC is thoroughly dedicated to
providing employees with a workplace that is free of
harassment (including sexual harassment) and discrimination.
Any language or behavior of intention to cause hostilities or
in violation of this policy is strictly prohibited and shall be
reported to the responsible authority immediately.

1.2 Corporate Confidentiality
During the term of employment with HTC and thereafter, each
employee must hold in strict confidence and not disclose,
directly or indirectly, any “Confidential Information” (as defined
below) gained from HTC or its customers or venders/suppliers
to any third party without the prior written consent of HTC.
“Confidential Information” must be used only for the purpose
of executing work for HTC. “Confidential Information” shall
mean all business, technical, operational or other information
that is not generally known to the public and that an employee
develops, has access to, and becomes acquainted with during
the term of employment, whether or not such information
(A) is owned by HTC, HTC's customers, venders/suppliers, or
any third party with which HTC desires to establish a business
relationship with; (B) is in oral, written, drawn or electronic
media form; (C) is subject matter for the application of patents,
trademarks, copyrights, or other intellectual property rights;
or (D) is labeled with “Confidential” or an equivalent word.
Confidential information may include, but is not limited to the
following:

1.3 Protection of Company Assets, Information and 		
Personal Information
Copyrights, patents, trademarks, terms of license agreements
and any kind of intellectual property are under protection by
related laws and regulations; violations are strictly prohibited.
The Company's assets are not limited to physical equipment
and facilities only, but also include technologies, trademarks,
and other intangible assets and confidential information.
Company assets are used for business purposes and should
be maintained, updated, and recorded properly and regularly.
This is also applicable to the use of employee personal
information. Those who are dealing with employee information
shall consider business needs and employees' privacy as well.
The only exception that permits the revelation of employees'
personal information is where such disclosure is required by
law.

1.4 Equal Opportunity
HTC's Employment Policies are to comply with all applicable
laws. Hiring decisions are based on business needs and
qualifications of applicants. HTC strives to provide equal
employment opportunities for all applicants and employees
without regard to non-job-related factors, such as race, color,
social class, language, religion, political affiliation, national
origin, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, appearance,
disability, previous union membership, etc.
Everyone must be treated with dignity and respect. This
principle applies to all areas of employment, including,
but not limited to, recruitment, hiring, training, promotion,
compensation, benefits, transfer, and social and recreational
programs.
All employees should be responsible for the data accuracy
and quality in any type of report in all aspects of their daily
work. Intention to mislead or provision of incorrect data is not
acceptable and may cause disciplinary action.

1.5 Political Activities

1. Business plans, manufacturing and marketing plans, 		
procurement plans, product roadmaps, product design 		
records, product test plans and reports, product software 		
and source codes, product pricing, product appearance, 		
product specifications, tooling specifications, personnel 		
information, financial information, customer lists, venders/		
supplier lists, distributor lists, raw materials and product 		
inventory information, all quality records, trade secrets, and		
other information related to the Company's business 		
activities;

The Company encourages employees to participate in public
activities as responsible citizens. However, HTC employees are
prohibited from engaging in political activities on behalf of HTC.
The Company is not allowed to donate to or engage in political
activities in most locations it operates in. Therefore, employees
must be aware that their involvements are on an individual
basis, and no contribution or donation to political candidates or
parties can be made under the company name. Furthermore,
employees must not organize or hold any speeches or activities
connected to political activities on Company premises.

2. Computer programs and all documents, databases, or other
related materials developed during each stage of software 		
development;

2.0 Venders/Suppliers and Customers Relationship

3. Discoveries, concepts, ideas, designs, sketches, engineering 		
drawings, specifications, circuit layouts, circuit diagrams, 		
mechanical drawings, flow charts, production processes, 		
procedures, models, molds, samples, components, trouble 		
shooting guides, chips and other know-how; and
4. Proprietary information of any third party (such as 		
customers or venders/suppliers) that the Company has a 		
duty of confidentiality pursuant to contracts or required by 		
any applicable law.

It is a basic principle in Company business operations to
maintain good relationships with our venders/suppliers and
customers.

2.1 Firm and Rational Attitude
In securing and negotiating business, all employees should
attempt to establish long-term relationships with our
customers and venders/suppliers by providing essential
and accurate information about our products and services.
Employees shall demonstrate their professionalism with a
sincere, firm, and rational attitude while dealing with customers
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or venders/suppliers. Conflicts caused by emotional languages
or behaviors are strictly prohibited.

2.2 Product Quality and Safety
The Company is committed to pursuing excellence and
maintaining quality at all times. The Company strives to
continuously improve the quality of products and service in
compliance with related safety regulations/laws in order to
benefit our customers and venders/suppliers and achieve
world-class competitiveness. To protect HTC's reputation
and the interest of our customers and venders/suppliers, all
employees must comply with our quality processes and safety
requirements.

2.3 Performance of Contracts
Company contracts must be executed not only in accordance
with the requirements of each contract, but also in compliance
with all laws and regulations applicable to our business.
Any unfair or unreasonable regulation or condition should
be avoided. Purchasing decisions must be made in the best
interest of HTC by considering the venders'/suppliers' suitability,
quality, price, and delivery of products or services; personal
preferences are not allowed for special offers. Purchasing
agreements/sales contracts and related evaluation information
should be documented clearly and confidentially. Contract
information of customers and venders/suppliers, including but
not limited to their names, price, delivery conditions, payment
terms, are as confidential as Company documents. Every
employee must protect this confidential information from
misuse and disclosure.

2.4 Gifts, Entertainment and Business Courtesies
All employees or their immediate family members are not
allowed to accept kickbacks, commissions, lavish gifts, or
luxurious entertainment from customers, suppliers/venders,
or anyone in a business relationship in any kind of situation.
However, gifts of nominal value of less than NT$1,500 or US$50
(maximum one time per outside company per year), such as
small promotional items bearing the company's name/logo
or small food items, are not prohibited. The acceptance or
giving of a gift should be reported to and approved by local
management. Employees may provide or accept meals or
entertainment if these activities are legitimate, consistent with
accepted business practices and demonstrably beneficial to
building a business relationship. However, regardless of the
amount, employees are not allowed to accept or give kickbacks
and bribes, such as (but not limited to) any type of gift, cash,
stock, bond or equivalents, or to participate in any business
courtesy that may compromise the employees' judgment or
motivate the employees to perform acts prohibited by laws/
regulations or HTC policies. Meal expenses between/among
colleagues can not be treated as entertainment. However,
expenditures incurred for entertainment immediately before,
during, or after a business meeting are acceptable, if those who
enjoy the entertainment are from another country or continent.

2.5 Business Travel
All employees are responsible for ensuring that their business
travels are intended to further Company business interests,
and the business travel and entertainment expenditures shall
be reasonable, prudent, and in accordance with applicable
Company policies. On behalf of the Company, employees
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should be aware that certain venues, whose entertainment
nature or atmosphere may impact negatively on the
Company's reputation, such as a sexually-oriented site or
similar environment, are not appropriate for business-related
meetings or activities. These venues are not acceptable even
if the expenses incurred are not paid by the Company. Even
golf gatherings should be minimized if the expenses are not
personal.

3.0 Conflict of Interest
All employees must avoid any activity that is or has the
appearance of being hostile, adverse, or competitive with the
Company, or that interferes with the proper performance of
their duties, responsibilities or loyalty to the Company.

3.1 Outside Employment
All employees are prohibited to work either part-time or fulltime for or receive payments of services from any competitors,
customers, venders/suppliers or subcontractors of HTC. If any
employee is invited to serve as a lecturer, board member of an
outside company, member of an advisory board, committee or
agency, he/she must get appropriate approval from the local
top manager in advance. Even if the invitation does not violate
the above, permission from a top manager is still required. In
general, employees are not restricted from being members
of the boards of charitable or community organizations. HTC
also permits employees with appropriate approval to serve as
directors of outside companies that are invested in by HTC or
are not competitors or service providers of competitors.

3.2 Insider Trading
All employees are not permitted, using their own names or the
names of people with whom they have personal relationships,
to engage in business ventures where business scope is the
same as or similar to HTC or to invest exceeding five percent
of total market value in such company. Employees are also
prohibited from using so-called “Insider Information” to gain
personal profit or to influence the normal operation of other
businesses, such as investment in competitors, customers,
venders/suppliers or subcontractors. “Insider Information”
comprises facts that an employee knows, but people outside
of HTC may not know, which might be in written form or
discussed orally in a meeting. Inside information may also be
information received from another company, such as from
customers, suppliers or companies with which HTC has a
joint research or development program. Therefore, employees
may never use insider information to trade or influence the
trading of stocks of HTC or other companies and should
also not provide “tips” or share insider information with any
other person who might trade stock. Insider trading violates
company policies and may subject the employee to criminal
penalties in accordance with government regulations/laws.

